Haringey Council

Corporate Committee

THURSDAY, 20TH MARCH, 2014 at 19:00 HRS - CIVIC CENTRE, HIGH ROAD, WOOD
GREEN, N22 8LE.

MEMBERS: Councillors Adje, Amin (Vice-Chair), Diakides, Griffith, Jenks, Khan, Meehan

(Chair), Whyte, Williams and Wilson

AGENDA

APOLOGIES (IF ANY)
URGENT BUSINESS

The Chair will consider the admission of any late items of urgent business. (Late
items will be considered under the agenda items where they appear. New items will
be dealt with at item 20 for unrestricted items and item 24 for exempt items).

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

A member with a disclosable pecuniary interest or a prejudicial interest in a matter
who attends a meeting of the authority at which the matter is considered:

(i) must disclose the interest at the start of the meeting or when the interest becomes
apparent, and

(i) may not participate in any discussion or vote on the matter and must withdraw
from the meeting room.

A member who discloses at a meeting a disclosable pecuniary interest which is not
registered in the Register of Members’ Interests or the subject of a pending
notification must notify the Monitoring Officer of the interest within 28 days of the
disclosure.

Disclosable pecuniary interests, personal interests and prejudicial interests are
defined at Paragraphs 5-7 and Appendix A of the Members’ Code of Conduct.



DEPUTATIONS / PETITIONS / PRESENTATIONS / QUESTIONS

To consider any requests received in accordance with Part 4, section B, Paragraph
29 of the Council’s Constitution.

MINUTES (PAGES 1 -10)
To consider and agree the minutes of the meeting held on 28 January 2014.

Note from the Assistant Director of Corporate Governance and Monitoring Officer

When considering items 6, 7, 8, 9 and 10, the Committee will be operating in its

capacity as “Administering Authority”. When the Committee is operating in its capacity
as an Administering Authority, Members must have due regard to their duty as quasi-
trustees to act in the best interest of the Pension Fund above all other considerations.

FINAL ACTUARIAL VALUATION AND FUNDING STRATEGY STATEMENT
(PAGES 11 - 88)

To present final versions of the Actuarial Valuation report and Funding Strategy
Statement.

PENSION FUND STATEMENT OF INVESTMENT PRINCIPLES (PAGES 89 - 110)
To request approval of the updated Statement of Investment Principles.

PENSION FUND QUARTERLY UPDATE (PAGES 111 - 126)

To report the following in respect of the three months to 31% December 2013:

Investment asset allocation
Investment performance
Responsible investment activity
Budget management

Late payment of contributions
Communications

PENSION FUND: LONDON COLLECTIVE INVESTMENT VEHICLE (PAGES 127 -
138)

To summarise progress in establishing the Collective Investment Vehicle.



10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

PENSION FUND INVESTMENT IN RECOMMENDED INVESTMENT FUNDS
(PAGES 139 - 144)

Allocations to two new asset classes were agreed at the January 2014 meeting and
officers were delegated to identify suitable investment funds for consideration by the
Committee.

TREASURY MANAGEMENT UPDATE (PAGES 145 - 150)

To update the Committee on the treasury management developments since 1°
January 2014, in particular the recent sale of Icelandic deposits.

LOCAL GOVERNMENT PENSION SCHEME - EMPLOYER DISCRETIONS (PAGES
151 - 168)

The Local Government Pension Scheme Regulations 2013 and the Local
Government Pension Scheme (Transitional Provisions and Savings) Regulations
2013 come into effect on 1% April 2014. There are some discretionary elements which
the Council as the Employing Body can exercise. Regulation 60 (as amended by the
Transitional Regulations) requires the London Borough of Haringey to prepare,
approve, publish and keep under review changes to the Council’s Policy Statement
on the exercise of its employer discretions.

PAY POLICY STATEMENT 2014/15 (PAGES 169 - 178)

The council is required to produce an annual Pay Policy Statement to comply with the
requirements of the Localism Act 2011. The council published its first Pay Policy
Statement in March 2012. The attached Pay Policy Statement 2014/15 is a slightly
amended statement from the 2013/14 Pay Policy with updates to the delegations
regarding Members considering remuneration or severance packages of £100,000 or
more.

SCHOOLS EMPLOYEE CONSULTATIVE GROUP (PAGES 179 - 186)

To seek Corporate Committee approval to a revised consultative and negotiating
group for school based employees.

ANNUAL INTERNAL AUDIT PLAN AND STRATEGY 2014/15 (PAGES 187 - 196)

The Corporate Committee is responsible for reviewing and approving the annual
internal audit plan as part of its Terms of Reference. In order to facilitate this, a draft
audit plan for 2014/15, together with the internal audit strategy, is provided for review
and approval by the Corporate Committee.



16.

17.

18.

19.

20.

21.

22.

23.

AUDIT LETTERS TO MANAGEMENT AND THOSE CHARGED WITH
GOVERNANCE - ASSURANCE STATEMENTS TO COMPLY WITH
INTERNATIONAL AUDITING STANDARDS (PAGES 197 - 210)

For the Committee to note the responses set out and propose any amendments that
may be considered necessary before submission to the auditors.

THE AUDIT PLAN (PAGES 211 - 246)
Report of Grant Thornton.
LOCAL AUDIT AND ACCOUNTABILITY ACT 2014 (PAGES 247 - 252)

To brief members following the enactment of the Local Audit and Accountability Act
2014 (The Act). The Act received Royal Assent on the 30 January 2014.

DELEGATED DECISIONS, SIGNIFICANT ACTIONS, URGENT ACTIONS (PAGES
253 - 260)

Report of the Assistant Director — Corporate Governance and Monitoring Officer to
inform the Corporate Committee of non executive delegated decisions, significant
actions and any urgency decisions taken by the Chair.

ANY OTHER BUSINESS OF AN URGENT NATURE
To consider any items admitted at item 2 above.
EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC

The following items are likely to be subject of a motion to exclude the press and
public from the meeting as they contain exempt information as defined in Section
100a of the Local Government Act 1972; paragraphs 1 and 3, information relating to
any individual and information relating to the business or financial affairs of any
particular person (including the Authority holding that information).

EXEMPT MINUTES (PAGES 261 - 274)

To receive the minutes of the Special Committees held on 19 December 2013, 6
March 2014 and 7 March 2014 and the Council and Employee Joint Consultative
Committee, held on 10 October 2013.

PENSION FUND INVESTMENT IN RECOMMENDED INVESTMENT FUNDS
(PAGES 275 - 280)

To consider exempt information pertaining to agenda item 10.



24. ANY ITEMS OF EXEMPT URGENT BUSINESS

Bernie Ryan

Assistant Director — Corporate Governance and
Monitoring Officer

Level 5

River Park House

225 High Road

Wood Green

London N22 8HQ

Helen Chapman

Principal Committee Coordinator
Level 5

River Park House

225 High Road

Wood Green

London N22 8HQ

Tel: 020 8489 2615
Email: helen.chapman@haringey.gov.uk

Wednesday, 12 March 2014



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 1 Agenda Item 5

MINUTES OF THE CORPORATE COMMITTEE
TUESDAY, 28 JANUARY 2014

Councillors Adje, Browne, Diakides, Giriffith, Jenks, Mallett, Meehan (Chair),

Whyte, Williams and Wilson

Apologies Councillor Amin, Councillor Khan and Michael Jones

Also present: Keith Brown

Roger Melling
John Raisin

MINUTE ACTION
NO. SUBJECT/DECISION BY
CC303. | APOLOGIES (IF ANY)

Apologies for absence were received from Clir Amin, for whom Clir
Mallett was substituting, from ClIr Khan, for whom Clir Browne was
substituting and from Michael Jones.

CC304. | URGENT BUSINESS
There were no items of urgent business.

CC305. | DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
There were no declarations of interest.

CC306. | DEPUTATIONS / PETITIONS / PRESENTATIONS / QUESTIONS
There were no such items.

CC307. | MINUTES
RESOLVED
That the minutes of the meeting held on 26 November 2013 be approved
and signed by the Chair.

CC308. | PENSION FUND INVESTMENT STRATEGY

The Committee considered the report on the Pension Fund’s investment
strategy, which recommended changes to the Pension Fund’s asset
allocations, and also that increased property investment be made to
rebalance the strategic allocation. The recommendations had been
made following advice received from Mercer since their appointment as
new Investment Consultant, and discussions held with the Pensions
Working Group to review the investment strategy. Steve Turner, Mercer,
addressed the Committee on the changes proposed by Mercer as set
out in appendix 2 to the report, which would assist the Fund in managing




Page 2

MINUTES OF THE CORPORATE COMMITTEE
TUESDAY, 28 JANUARY 2014

risk, and improve the funding position over time.

In response to a question from the Committee regarding the risk of
default in relation to Multi-Asset Credit and Private Debt investments, it
was reported that risk management would be one of the key criteria used
in assessing potential fund managers for these areas. In response to a
specific question relating to investment in infrastructure and the recovery
of capital in the event of, for example, an airport going into
administration, it was reported that the amount recovered would depend
on the terms of any agreement made, but that it was very unlikely that all
capital investment would be lost in such an instance. It was reported that
investment would be in a wide range of projects in order to reduce such
risks, and that the risk of default was reflected in higher returns. Whilst
no investment was completely risk free, it was reported that
infrastructure was a low-risk form of debt and that most projects covered
by this type of investment would be subject to protective regulation.

The Committee asked whether officers accepted the advice contained in
paragraph 8.1 of the report from Mercer with regard to the need for an
OJEU exercise. It was reported that advice would be sought from the
Council’s legal and procurement teams regarding this point, and that this
advice would be circulated to the Committee for information. In response
to a question regarding the Pension Fund'’s current liquidity, Mr Turner
advised that Mercer had no concerns regarding the Fund’s level of
liquidity.

In response to a question from the Committee regarding the costs
associated with the proposed areas of active management, it was
reported that while costs varied, an indicative fee would be around 80
basis points.

Subject to the receipt of the legal and procurement advice regarding the
OJEU matter, the Committee considered the recommendations of the
report and it was:

RESOLVED

i) That the strategic asset allocation of the pension fund be
amended in accordance with appendix 1 to the report;

i) That additional cash be made available to CBRE to enable the
property portfolio to be rebalanced to 10% of the total pension
fund and that disposals are made from the Blackrock equity
portfolio to finance the additional property investments.

HoTP /
AD Fin

CC3009.

DRAFT PENSIONS FUNDING STRATEGY STATEMENT

The Committee considered the report on the draft Pensions Funding
Strategy Statement. The report sought approval for the draft strategy to
be circulated for consultation with the participating employers, with a
final report coming back to the Committee at its meeting in March 2014.
The report summarised the changes to the strategy since it was last




Page 3

MINUTES OF THE CORPORATE COMMITTEE
TUESDAY, 28 JANUARY 2014

updated in 2011, and it was noted that the main change related to
academies, in order to bring Haringey in line with the majority of local
authorities and the approach assumed by Government. It was confirmed
that changes to the strategy would come into force from 1 April 2014.

The Committee noted that the proposed changes with regard to
academies could mean an increased contribution rate for schools, and
asked whether the consultation process would include those schools
who were considering becoming academies, so that they were aware of
the potential implications. It was noted that the consultation was for
existing employers including current academies, but officers agreed that
this should be widened out to those schools considering becoming
academies.

In response to a question from the Committee as to whether stabilisation
measures could have a negative impact on the funding position, officers
advised that the strategy was financially modelled to ensure a good
chance of moving towards fully-funded status over time, and that this
was reviewed on a three-yearly basis so that further modelling could be
undertaken and adjustments made as necessary. The Committee asked
whether guidance was issued on responding to the consultation, given
the technical nature of the documentation; officers confirmed that they
offered to meet with all employing bodies in order to go through the
issues with them.

RESOLVED
That the draft Funding Strategy Statement be circulated for consultation

with pension scheme employers, and those schools considering
academy status.

HoTP /
AD Fin

CC310.

NOVATION OF CBRE INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT AGREEMENT

The Committee considered the report seeking approval for the novation
of the property management agreement to CBRE Global Collective
Investors UK Limited.

RESOLVED

That the Committee approve the appointment of CBRE Global Collective
Investors UK Limited as fund manager for the pension fund property
portfolio in place of CBRE Global Investors (UK Funds) Ltd (formerly
called Ing Real Estate Management (UK Funds) Ltd) by way of novation
of the Fund’s existing investment management agreement dated 28
February 2003.

CC311.

TREASURY MANAGEMENT 2012/13 QUARTER 3 UPDATE

The Committee considered the report on the Council’s treasury
management activities and performance in the quarter to 31%' December
2013. It was reported that £41m of debt had been repaid during the




Page 4

MINUTES OF THE CORPORATE COMMITTEE
TUESDAY, 28 JANUARY 2014

quarter, the majority of which had been short-term debt at low interest
rates, but repayment of some longer term debt had led to an annual
saving for the Council of £2m in interest. The only new borrowing during
the quarter was reported as a weekend bridging loan, and it was
anticipated that there may be a need for a further such loan in the
forthcoming quarter.

In response to a question from the Committee regarding the increase in
credit risk scores as indicated in paragraph 14.5 of the report, it was
reported that there had been a significant reduction in balances, most of
which were held in banks and money market funds from the approved
counterparty list, rather than the DMO. While this led to an increase in
the credit risk scores, the much lower level of balances meant that the
risk of default was significantly lower than previously. It was confirmed
that the counterparty list was monitored on a regular basis, and that any
proposed changes to the list were brought to the Committee for approval
— it was noted that this would be covered as part of the following agenda
item for this meeting. The Committee asked whether, given the current
low levels of interest rates, it would be preferable to use the DMO and
therefore keep the credit risk scores lower, in response to which officers
advised that the banks and money market funds in use were considered
safe, and did enable the Council to make some additional income as a
result of the higher rates they offered.

In response to a question regarding the cost of the bridging loan, it was
reported that this was very low (at around 0.4% per annum) and enabled
the Council to keep a low level of cash balances, in line with the
Treasury Management Strategy.

The Committee noted that the interest payable by the Council appeared
at its lowest level for some time, and welcomed the reduction in the cost
of debt that had been reported throughout the year. The Committee
acknowledged the good work that had been undertaken around treasury
management by officers over the course of the year.

RESOLVED

That the Treasury Management activity undertaken during the quarter to
315 December 2013 and the performance achieved be noted.

CC312.

TREASURY MANAGEMENT STRATEGY STATEMENT

The Committee considered the report on the proposed Treasury
Management Strategy Statement and Prudential Indicators for 2014/15
to 2016/17 (TMSS). The TMSS had been updated since the draft version
presented to the Committee in November 2013, and now included the
prudential indicators — this document had been considered by the
Council’s Overview and Scrutiny Committee, and the Committee was
asked to recommend the final version of the Strategy to Full Council for
final approval.

The Committee asked about the possibility of prematurely repaying




Page 5

MINUTES OF THE CORPORATE COMMITTEE
TUESDAY, 28 JANUARY 2014

loans taken out at higher interest rates, as set out in paragraph 4.11 of
the Strategy. Officers advised that there was now a significant premium
payable for early repayment; the Council and its treasury management
advisors carried out regular calculations as to whether early repayment
would be financially beneficial to the Council, comparing the interest
saved with the repayment premium payable, and took action
accordingly.

In response to a question from the Committee regarding the authorised
debt limit and operational boundary as indicated in annex 2 of the TMSS,
and why these were so high compared with the capital budget, officers
advised that this was a precautionary measure, and that in reality
expenditure would never come close to this limit. The Committee
acknowledged the need for some headroom, but asked whether it was
necessary for this limit to be set so far above what would conceivably be
required. It was agreed that these figures would be revised downward for
the final TMSS that went to Full Council for approval.

RESOLVED

That, subject to the requested amendment of the figures for the
authorised debt limit and operational boundary, the proposed Treasury
Management Strategy Statement and Prudential Indicators for 2014/15
to 2016/17 at Appendix 1 of the report be recommended to Full Council
for approval as part of the Financial Planning report.

HoTP /
AD Fin

CC313.

EXTERNAL AUDIT PROGRESS UPDATE

The Committee considered the progress report provided by Grant
Thornton. With regard to the 2012/13 Audit Certificate and the potential
objection referred to in the report, it was advised that there had been
ongoing liaison with the potential objector and that, unless further
correspondence was received in the interim, it was intended that the
2012/13 audit be closed at the end of January. The Committee’s
attention was drawn to Grant Thornton’s report ‘2016 tipping point?
Challenging the current’ which had recently been published.

In response to a request from the Committee, it was agreed that a report
on the implications of the Local Audit and Accountability Bill would be
brought to the next Committee.

The Committee asked whether Grant Thornton had any comments to
make with regard to income from charging, or business rate collection.
With regard to income from charging, Paul Dossett, Grant Thornton,
advised that there had been a useful report produced by the Audit
Commission on this topic in 2010. While he was unable to comment on
the position in Haringey specifically, Mr Dossett advised that the Council
should be reviewing its policies around income from charging, and
benchmarking against other local authorities on an ongoing basis. Tracie
Evans advised the Committee that the Council was currently around
average for London Boroughs, although the proposed freeze in charges
would mean that the Council was likely to be below average among the




Page 6

MINUTES OF THE CORPORATE COMMITTEE
TUESDAY, 28 JANUARY 2014

London Boroughs for the coming year. With regard to the collection of
business rates, Mr Dossett advised that, historically, Haringey had a high
collection rate, with fluctuations in the collection level within reasonable
expectations. It was noted that the collection of business rates would
become a more significant issue, as new arrangements came into effect.

The Committee asked about the potential objection with regard to the
2012/13 Audit Certificate. Mr Dossett advised that such objections were
relatively infrequent, but that this particular matter was related to a wider
campaign related to parking issues. It was reported that the Council had
provided a significant amount of information in response to requests
from the potential objector, and a decision had been taken that the Audit
would be closed if nothing further was heard by 31 January 2014.

RESOLVED

That the content of the report be noted.

CC314.

GRANTS CERTIFICATION REPORT -2012/13

The Committee considered the report from Grant Thornton on their
certification work for 2012/13. As indicated in the executive summary,
two errors had been identified in the Teachers’ Pension return, which
were corrected, and the Housing and Council Tax benefits claim was
qualified as in previous years. While it was not unusual for Housing and
Council Tax benefit claims to be qualified due to the complexity of this
area, it was noted that the number of errors had increased compared
with the previous year. The Council had undertaken additional testing,
and a recommendation had been made for the Council to determine the
reasons for the increase in errors within the Housing and Council Tax
benefits claim and undertake additional training where necessary.

In response to questions regarding the findings in respect of the Housing
and Council Tax benefits claim, Paul Ellicott, Head of Revenues,
Benefits and Customer Services, addressed the Committee on the
background to the errors identified, and the work that was being
undertaken to address this. Mr Ellicott advised that findings had been
based on a small sample, and the rate of errors identified was not
necessarily representative; it was also reported that almost half of the
sample related to assessments undertaken in the 11/12 financial year,
which may have affected the rate of errors identified. It was additionally
noted that, in the current financial climate, such claims had become
increasingly complex. With regard to quality assurance and checking, Mr
Ellicott advised that the service had identified a need to increase the
amount of time spent on quality control — it was noted that officers who
worked on quality control were the same staff as those working on policy
change and associated training; with the significant changes in this area
of work introduced in the past year, more resources had been devoted to
the areas of policy change and training, and there was a need to
rebalance workloads to ensure that there was sufficient focus on quality
control issues.




Page 7

MINUTES OF THE CORPORATE COMMITTEE
TUESDAY, 28 JANUARY 2014

Paul Dossett, Grant Thornton, advised that quality control processes
were key to increasing performance in this area and reducing the
number of errors. It was noted that the Housing and Council Tax benefits
claims were qualified for most local authorities, and that the number of
errors identified in Haringey, whilst having increased, was still below the
threshold for there to be any impact on the level of funding received from
the Department for Work and Pensions. It was also noted that the
additional testing work that the Council had been required to undertake
had been done very efficiently. In response to a question from the
Committee regarding whether the Housing and Council Tax benefit claim
would be unqualified next year if the recommended action was
completed in line with the action plan at appendix B, Mr Dossett advised
that there may still be a qualification, however this would be significantly
shorter.

The Committee sought assurance that there were sufficient resources
available to undertake the quality assurance work required, in response
to which Tracie Evans advised that she was working with Paul Ellicott to
identify where resources could be focussed to best effect; following the
significant changes that had been implemented over the past year
affecting the work of this service, management were now in a position to
review the necessary allocation of resources. In response to a question
from the Committee as to whether increased IT investment would help to
address any of the issues, Mr Ellicott advised that the majority of issues
related to human error rather than system problems.

The Committee asked whether it would be possible to have more regular
updates on this area of work, and it was agreed that a report would be
brought back to the Committee in six months’ time.

RESOLVED

That the content of the report be noted.

CC315.

INTERNAL AUDIT QUARTER 3 PROGRESS REPORT

The Committee considered the progress report for Internal Audit for
quarter 3, 2013-14, as circulated. It was noted that this was the last
internal audit report from Deloitte and Touche, who had been sold to
Mazars with effect from 1 February 2014 — in the short term, it was
reported that this would have no impact on the delivery of the internal
audit service, however it was confirmed that additional contract
monitoring and review would be undertaken in order to ensure that there
was no impact on performance and this would be reported on as part of
the Head of Audit’'s Annual Report. With regards to the investigation of
benefit fraud, Anne Woods, Head of Audit and Risk Management,
advised that, with the introduction of the DWP’s single fraud investigation
service that was proposed for introduction within the next two years,
there would be a gap created as the Council lost its right to investigate
benefit fraud, but retained the responsibility for administering benefits
until such time as the Universal Credit system was implemented.




Page 8

MINUTES OF THE CORPORATE COMMITTEE
TUESDAY, 28 JANUARY 2014

The Committee asked about the issues identified regarding the
procurement audit. Jacquie McGeachie, Interim Head of HR and
Organisational Development, advised that, prior to her joining the
organisation, there had been little progress made on the Hays Resource
Management project, however the project was now at the testing stage,
and was due to go live next week. In response to a further question from
the Committee, it was confirmed that the contract with Hays included a
penalty clause, but that the issues identified were the responsibility of
the Council, and not Hays. In response to a question from the
Committee regarding the Data Quality Policy, it was confirmed that the
updated policy had now been approved. It was agreed that a copy of the
updated policy be circulated to all Committee Members.

HARM
The Committee sought assurance that there had been no incidents that
Members should be aware of with regards to the public mortuary, and it
was agreed that the Head of Audit and Risk Management would ask the
Assistant Director to confirm this to the Committee. HARM

The Committee asked about 14-19 Provision 2013/14 audit, and noted
the small sample size. It was reported that the nature of this audit was a
system check, working through every stage of the process, which was
why sample sizes were relatively small. It was agreed that the Head of
Audit and Risk Management would confirm with the service what follow-
up action had been undertaken, and would include this within the follow-
up audit report. HARM

In response to a question regarding the performance statistics for benefit
overpayments recovered, it was reported that while the actual amount
recovered so far this year was well below the £150k target, there was
sometimes a time delay in recovering assets. This year, a number of
people had been issued by the courts with deadlines for the settlement
of amounts owed, including one payment amounting to £250k, and if
these were received, the target would be achieved. It was noted that the
target had been exceeded in the preceding year. The Committee
questioned the value of targets in this area, however it was felt that
having targets did help to focus attention on those who had deliberately
set out to defraud the benefits system in a criminal manner.

With regard to the data on consultants, the Committee sought
clarification on the use of ‘as and when’ to describe the number of days
per week worked. It was reported that this related to staff occasionally
called on for ad hoc pieces of work, for example the additional testing
required in relation to the Housing and Council Tax benefit claim, as
reported earlier in the agenda. The Committee asked about the two
positions in Children and Families which stated ‘waiting for confirmation
of new end date’, and it was reported that these two contracts had now
been extended for an additional year, as part of the work on the
transformation of the adoption and fostering service.

The Committee noted that appointment to a number of senior posts
would be taking place over the next few weeks.




Page 9

MINUTES OF THE CORPORATE COMMITTEE
TUESDAY, 28 JANUARY 2014

RESOLVED

i) That the Committee note the audit coverage and counter-fraud
work completed and the actions taken during the quarter to
ensure audit recommendations are implemented and address the
outstanding recommendations during the third quarter, 2013/14.

i) That the Committee note the information received from the HR
business unit.

CC316. | DELEGATED DECISIONS, SIGNIFICANT ACTIONS, URGENT
ACTIONS
The Committee considered the report on delegated decisions, significant
actions and urgent actions since the last meeting of the Committee.
RESOLVED
That the content of the report be noted.

CC317. | ANY OTHER BUSINESS OF AN URGENT NATURE
There were no new items of urgent business.

CC318. | EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC
RESOLVED
That the press and public be excluded from the meeting for the following
items as they contain exempt information as defined in Section 100a of
the Local Government Act 1972; paragraphs 1 and 4, information
relating to any individual and information relating to any consultations or
negotiations, or contemplated consultations or negotiations, in
connection with any labour relations matter arising between the authority
or a Minister of the Crown and employees of, or office holders under, the
authority.

CC319. | EXEMPT MINUTES
The Committee received the minutes of the Special Committees held on
28 November 2013 and 6 January 2014.

CC320. | DELEGATED DECISIONS, SIGNIFICANT ACTIONS, URGENT
ACTIONS
The Committee considered exempt information pertaining to agenda
item 14.

CC321. | EXEMPT ITEMS OF URGENT BUSINESS

There were no exempt items of urgent business.




Page 10

MINUTES OF THE CORPORATE COMMITTEE
TUESDAY, 28 JANUARY 2014

The meeting closed at 9pm.

COUNCILLOR GEORGE MEEHAN

CHAIR



Page 11 Agenda ltem 6
X

‘/’?

Haringey
Item
Report for: Corporate Committee | number
20" March 2014
Title: Final Actuarial Valuation and Funding Strategy

Statement

Report authorised 5/\'%2@)( A

by :

Assistant Director — Finance (CFO)

George Bruce, Head of Finance — Treasury &
Lead Officer: Pensions

George.bruce@haringey.gov.uk

020 8489 8621
Ward(s) affected: N/A Report for Non Key Decision
1. Describe the issue under consideration

1.1 Final versions of the Actuarial Valuation report and funding strategy
statement are presented.

2. Cabinet Member Introduction
2.1 Not applicable.
3. Recommendations

3.1  The Committee is invited to note the actuarial valuation report and
schedule of contributions and agree the Funding Strategy Statement.

4, Other options considered
4.1 None.
5. Background information

5.1  The Actuarial Valuation and Funding Strategy Statements both discuss
the measurement of liabilities and the setting of contribution rates.

Page 1 of 4



X

7’4

Haringey

5.2

Page 12

The FSS determines the approach and the actuarial valuation applies
these to determine the required contribution levels.

Contribution levels are set by the Actuary following consultation with
the administering authority and individual employers. Consultation has

taken place through the issue of individual employer results and a draft FSS,
with meetings held with employers to discuss both. These reports are
presented in their final versions.

6.

6.1

7.1

7.2

7.3

7.4

7.5

Comments of the Chief Finance Officer & financial implications

The Actuary has determined the contribution rates for the next three
years on the basis of the methodology and assumptions agreed with
the Committee and reflected in the funding strategy  statement. There
has been a process of consultation with employers. No adverse
comments were received.

Head of Legal Services and Legal Implications

The Council as administering authority is required under Regulation 36
of the Administration Regulations 2008 to obtain (a) an actuarial
valuation of the assets and liabilities of the pension fund, (b) a report by
the actuary in respect of the valuation and (c) a rates and adjustment
certificate prepared by an actuary. This must be done every 3 years from
the 31 March 2010.

The valuation report mentioned in (b) must contain a statement of the
demographic assumptions used in making that valuation and these
assumptions must relate to actual events that have occurred in relation
to members of the LGPS since the last valuation.

The rates and adjustment certificate must specify a common employer
contribution rate and any individual adjustments for each year of the 3
years period beginning on 1 April.

Members should note that only the valuation report is contained within
this report.

The Funding Strategy Statement was prepared and published under
Regulation 76A of the Local Government Scheme Regulations 1997.
Under Regulation 35 of the Local Government Pension Scheme
(administrations) Regulations 2008, the Administering Authority must
maintains and reviews the Funding Strategy Statement having regards
to the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy’s guidance
entitled “Guidance on preparing and Managing a Funding Strategy
Statement” and to the Fund’s Statement of Investment Principles and to
consult such persons as it considers appropriate.

Page 2 of 4



X

‘/’?

Page 13

Haringey

7.6  The Funding Strategy Statement attached to this report complies with
the obligations set out in the Regulations.

8. Equalities and Community Cohesion Comments

8.1  Not applicable.

9. Head of Procurement Comments

9.1 Not applicable.

10. Policy Implications

10.1 None.

1. Use of Appendices
Appendix 1: Actuarial Valuation Report
Appendix 2: Funding Strategy Statement

12 Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985

12.1  Not applicable.

13.  Actuarial Valuation Report

13.1 The pension fund is subject to an actuarial valuation every three years
in which the actuary determines the cost of future benefits and also any

adjustments required for under or over funding of past service liabilities.

13.2 The draft actuarial report was considered at the November Committee
meeting. In particular the Committee reviewed the assumptions and
methodologies used by the Actuary. Subsequent to that meeting,
schedules of results for individual employers were issued and
employers were invited to a meeting held during December in which
the Actuary explained the background to the valuation and answered
questions on individual results.

13.3 There have been no changes to the report, including assumptions, as
a consequence of the consultation process.

13.4 The results in the report are for the fund as a whole and not individual

employer. The final page discloses contributes rates set by the
actuary for each employer.

Page 3 of 4



X

‘/’?

Haringey
13.5

13.6

13.7

13.8

14.

141

14.2

14.3

Page 14

The fund as a whole results remain a deficit of £369 million and a
funding level of 70%. The reported reasons for the movements since
March 2011 are as previously discussed.

The Council contribution levels for the three years from 1 April 2014
shown on page 39 are expressed 17.1% of earnings plus a lump sum
of £6.9 million rising to £8.6 million. The Council will pay 23.9% to
249% in the three years but monitor that the level of deficit
contributions meets the level set by the Actuary.

Only one employer, Age Concern Haringey, has raised concern at the
affordability of the contribution levels. A meeting was held and
information requested to support the level payable, which is
outstanding.

The outcome from the Government’'s consultation on pooling
academies has not been issued. If pooling with local authorities is
offered and accepted, the contribution rates for academies will
change.

Funding Strategy Statement

The Funding Strategy Statement (FSS) explains the funding objectives
of the Scheme, in particular the measurement of liabilities and setting
of contribution levels. The achievement of the twin objectives of
solvency together with stability and affordability of contributions is
discussed.

The Committee agreed at its prior meeting to circulate a draft funding
strategy statement for consultation with employers. Consultation has
taken place, including a meeting on 3™ March 2014. At the
Committee’s request the FSS was sent to all schools.

No feedback / questions have been received from the consultation
and the attached version is unchanged.

Page 4 of 4



Page 15

Hymans Robertson LLP has carried out an actuarial valuation of the London Borough of Haringey Pension Fund
(“the Fund”) as at 31 March 2013, details of which are set out in the report dated TBC (“the Report”), addressed
to London Borough of Haringey (“the Client”). The Report was prepared for the sole use and benefit of our
Client and not for any other party; and Hymans Robertson LLP makes no representation or warranties to any
third party as to the accuracy or completeness of the Report.

The Report was not prepared for any third party and it will not address the particular interests or concerns of any
such third party. The Report is intended to advise our Client on the past service funding position of the Fund at
31 March 2013 and employer contribution rates from April 2014, and should not be considered a substitute for
specific advice in relation to other individual circumstances.

As this Report has not been prepared for a third party, no reliance by any party will be placed on the Report. It
follows that there is no duty or liability by Hymans Robertson LLP (or its members, partners, officers, employees
and agents) to any party other than the named Client. Hymans Robertson LLP therefore disclaims all liability
and responsibility arising from any reliance on or use of the Report by any person having access to the Report
or by anyone who may be informed of the contents of the Report.

Hymans Robertson LLP is the owner of all intellectual property rights in the Report and the Report is protected
by copyright laws and treaties around the world. All rights are reserved.

The Report must not be used for any commercial purposes unless Hymans Robertson LLP agrees in advance.

March 2014



London Borough of Haringey Pension Fund
2013 Actuarial Valuation
Valuation Report

HYMANS 3% ROBERTSON

The Spirit of Independence

March 2014




Contents

March 2014

Page 17

Executive summary

Introduction

Assumptions

Results

Risk Assessment

Related issues

Reliances and limitations

Appendix A: About the pension fund

Appendix B: Summary of the Fund’s benefits
Appendix C: About the valuation

Appendix D: Data

Appendix E: Assumptions

Appendix F: Events since valuation date
Appendix G: Rates and adjustments certificate
Statement to the rates and adjustments certificate

NOoO ok WwN -

PAGE



2013 VALUATION — VALUATION REPORT

1  Executive summary

We have carried out an actuarial valuation of the London Borough of Haringey Pension Fund (‘the Fund’) as at
31 March 2013. The results are presented in this report and are briefly summarised below.

Funding position
The table below summarises the financial position of the Fund at 31 March 2013 in respect of benefits earned
by members up to this date.

31 March 2010 31 March 2013

Past Service Position (Em) (Em)
Past Senvice Liabilities 960 1,232
Market Value of Assets 664 863

Surplus / (Deficit) (296) (369)
Funding Level 69.2% 70.0%

The increase in deficit reflects the adverse conditions which the Fund has had to contend with since the
previous valuation. In particular, the decrease in the real gilt yield has increased the value placed on the Fund’s
liabilities.

Contribution rates

The table below summarises the average employer contribution rate that would be required, based on this
triennial valuation.

31 March 2010 31 March 2013

Contribution Rates (% of pay) (% of pay)
Employer future senvice rate (incl. expenses) 17.3% 20.4%
Past Senice Adjustment (20 year spread) 11.2% 15.1%
Total employer contribution rate (incl. expenses) 28.5% 35.5%
Employee contribution rate 6.8% 6.6%
Expenses 0.5% 0.5%

Again, the increase in the total employer contribution rate is primarily due to the decrease in the real gilt yields
which has increased both the employer future service rate and the past service adjustment.

The common contribution rate is a theoretical figure — an average across the whole Fund. In practice, each
employer that participates in the Fund has its own underlying funding position and circumstances, giving rise to
its own contribution rate requirement. The minimum contributions to be paid by each employer from 1 April 2014
to 31 March 2017 are shown in the Rates and Adjustment Certificate in Appendix G.

March 2014



2013 VALUATION — VALUATION REPORT

2 Introduction

We have carried out an actuarial valuation of the London Borough of Haringey Pension Fund as at 31 March
2013.

Purpose
The main purposes of this valuation are:
e to assess the extent to which the Administering Authority‘s funding objectives were met at 31 March
2013;

o to identify the future contributions payable by the employers that participate in the Fund in order to meet
the Administering Authority‘s funding objectives;

e to enable completion of all relevant certificates and statements in connection with all relevant
regulations;

e to comment on the main risks to the Fund that may result in future volatility in the funding position or to
employers’ contributions.

Component reports
This document is an “aggregate” report, i.e. it is the culmination of various “component” reports and discussions,
in particular:

e The data report (mentioned in section 7);

e The Discussion Document (dated 08 November 2013) which outlined the preliminary assumption
proposals and whole fund results;

e The formal agreement by the Administering Authority of the actuarial assumptions used in this
document, at a meeting dated 26 November 2013;

e The stabilisation modelling carried out for certain employers, as detailed in our report and presentation
to the Administering Authority of 5 August 2013;

e The Funding Strategy Statement, confirming the different contribution rate setting approaches for
different types of employer or in different circumstances.

¢ Note that not all of these documents may be in the public domain.

March 2014



2013 VALUATION — VALUATION REPORT

3 Assumptions

Actuarial assumptions
Assumptions must be made about the factors affecting the Fund’s finances in the future. Broadly speaking, our
assumptions fall into two categories — financial and demographic.

Demographic assumptions typically try to forecast when benefits will come into payment and what form these
will take. For example, when members will retire (e.g. at their normal retirement age or earlier), how long they
will then survive and whether a dependant’s pension will be paid.

Financial assumptions typically try to anticipate the size of these benefits. For example, how large members’
final salaries will be at retirement and how their pensions will increase over time. In addition, the financial
assumptions also help us to estimate how much all these benefits will cost the Fund in today’s money.

Financial assumptions
A summary of the main financial assumptions adopted for the valuation of members’ benefits are shown below.

31 March 2010 31 March 2013
Financial assumptions Nominal Real Nominal Real
Discount Rate 6.1% 2.8% 4.6% 2.1%
Salary Increases™ 5.3%* 2.0% 4.3% 1.8%
Price Inflation / Pension Increases 3.3% - 2.5% -

* Plus an allowance for promotional pay increases.

**1% p.a. for 2010/11 and 2011/12, reverting to 5.3% p.a. thereafter.

Discount rate

The funding valuation is effectively a planning exercise, to assess the funds needed to meet the benefits as they
fall due. In order to place a current value on the future benefit payments from the Fund, an assumption about
future investment returns is required in order to “discount” future benefit payments back to the valuation date at
a suitable rate.

For a funding valuation such as this, the discount rate is set by taking into account the Fund’s current and
expected future investment strategy and, in particular, how this strategy is expected to outperform the returns
from Government bonds over the long term. The additional margin for returns in excess of that available on
Government bonds is called the Asset Outperformance Assumption (AOA).

The selection of an appropriate AOA is a matter of judgement and the degree of risk inherent in the Fund’s
investment strategy should always be considered as fully as possible.

Although there has been a downward shift in the expected returns on risky assets since the 2010 valuation, we
believe the expected returns in excess of the returns on government bonds to be broadly unchanged since
2010. Therefore, we are satisfied that an AOA of 1.6% p.a. is a prudent assumption for the purposes of this
valuation. This results in a discount rate of 4.6% p.a.

Price inflation / pension increases
Due to further analysis of the CPI index since 2010, we expect the average long term difference between RPI
and CPI to be 0.8% p.a. compared with 0.5% p.a. at the 2010 valuation.

At the previous valuation, the assumption for RPI was derived from market data as the difference between the
yield on long-dated fixed interest and index-linked government bonds. At this valuation, we have adopted a
similar approach.

March 2014



2013 VALUATION — VALUATION REPORT

Salary increases

The long term assumption for salary increases is RPI plus 1% p.a. This translates to CPI plus 1.8% p.a. This is
a change in approach from 2010 where we assumed 1% p.a. for 2 years and RPI plus 1.5% p.a. thereafter.

We have set a lower long term rate of salary growth to reflect both short term pay constraints and the belief that
general economic growth and hence pay growth may be at a lower level than historically experienced for a
prolonged period of time.

Note that this assumption is made in respect of the general level of salary increases (e.g. as a result of inflation
and other macroeconomic factors). We also make a separate allowance for expected pay rises granted in the
future as a result of promotion. This assumption takes the form of a set of tables which model the expected
promotional pay awards based on each member’s age and class. Please see Appendix E.

Longevity

The main demographic assumption to which the valuation results are most sensitive is that relating to the
longevity of the Fund’s members. For this valuation, we have adopted assumptions which give the following
sample average future life expectancies for members:

Actives & Deferreds Current Pensioners

Assumed life expectancy at age 65 Male Female Male Female

2010 valuation - baseline 21.2 23.8 21.2 23.8
2010 valuation - improvements 23.3 26.1 21.9 24.7
2013 valuation - baseline 19.9 22.5 19.7 22.0
2013 valuation - improvements 24.2 26.5 21.9 241

Further details of the mortality assumptions adopted for this valuation can be found in Appendix E. Note that
the figures for actives and deferreds assume that they are aged 45 at the valuation date.

Assets
We have taken the assets of the Fund into account at their market value as indicated in the audited accounts for
the period ended 31 March 2013.

In our opinion, the basis for placing a value on members’ benefits is consistent with that for valuing the assets -
both are related to market conditions at the valuation date.

Demographic assumptions

We are in the unique position of having a very large local authority data set from which to derive our other
demographic assumptions. We have analysed the trends and patterns that are present in the membership of
local authority funds and tailor our demographic assumptions to reflect LGPS experience.

Details of these assumptions are set out in Appendix E. Further commentary on these was included in the
Discussion Document.

Further comments on the assumptions

As required for Local Government Pension Scheme valuations, our proposed approach to this valuation must
include a degree of prudence. This has been achieved by explicitly allowing for a margin of prudence in the
AOA.

For the avoidance of doubt, we believe that all other proposed assumptions represent the “best estimate” of
future experience. This effectively means that there is a 50% chance that future experience will be better or
worse than the chosen assumption.

March 2014



2013 VALUATION — VALUATION REPORT

Taken as a whole, we believe that our proposed assumptions are more prudent than the best estimate. The
assessed liability value on a “neutral” best estimate (not prudent) basis would perhaps be 20%, lower than the
figures shown here.

March 2014



2013 VALUATION — VALUATION REPORT

4 Results

The Administering Authority has prepared a Funding Strategy Statement which sets out its funding objectives
for the Fund. In broad terms, the main ‘past service’ objective is to hold sufficient assets in the Fund to meet the
assessed cost of members’ past service benefits and the main ‘future service’ objective is to maintain a
relatively stable employer contribution rate. These objectives are potentially conflicting.

Past service

In assessing the extent to which the past service funding objective was met at the valuation date, we have used
the actuarial assumptions described in the previous section of this report and funding method described in
Appendix C. The table below compares the value of the assets and liabilities at 31 March 2013. The 31 March
2010 results are also shown for reference.

The results are presented in the form of a “funding level”, this is the ratio of the market value of assets to the
assessed cost of members’ past service benefits (“liabilities”).

A funding level of 100% would correspond to the funding objective being met at the valuation date.

Valuation Date 31 March 2010 | 31 March 2013
Past Service Position (£Em) (Em)
Past Senvce Liabilities
Employees 399 427
Deferred Pensioners 205 293
Pensioners 355 513
Total Liabilities 960 1,232
Market Value of Assets 664 863
Surplus / (Deficit) (296) (369)
Funding Level 69.2% 70.0%

The main funding objective was not met: there was a shortfall of assets to the assessed cost of members’
benefits of £369m.

March 2014



’ 2013 VALUATION — VALUATION REPORT

Summary of changes to the funding position

The chart below illustrates the factors that caused the funding position to deteriorate between 31 March 2010
and 31 March 2013:

Surplus / (deficit) at last valuation

Interest on surplus / (deficit)

Investment returns higher than expected
Contributions greater than cost of accrual
Actual experience over the period

Change in demographic assumptions

Change in base mortality assumption

Change in longevity improvements assumption
Change in financial assumptions

Other experience items

Surplus / (deficit) at this valuation (369)

(400) (350) (300) (250) (200) (150) (100) (50) 0 50 100
£m

Further comments on some of the items in this chart:

* There is an interest cost of £59m. This is broadly three years of compound interest at 6.1% p.a. applied to
the previous valuation deficit of £296m.

* Investment returns being higher than expected since 2010 led to a gain of £51m. This is roughly the
difference between the actual and expected three-year return applied to the whole fund assets from the
previous valuation of £664m, with a further allowance made for cashflows during the period.

* The impact of the change in demographic assumptions has been a loss of around £4m.

* The change in mortality assumptions (baseline and improvements) has given rise to a gain of £8m. This
is mainly due to the change in assumed baseline longevity.

* The change in financial conditions between the previous valuation has led to a loss of £137m. This is due
to a decrease in the real discount rate between 2010 and 2013. This has been partially been offset by the
0.3% p.a. increase in our assumption of the gap between RPI and CPI.

* Other experience items, such as changes in the membership data, have served to reduce the deficit at
this valuation by around £43m.

* Note that the benefit changes that come into effect as at 1 April 2014 do not change the funding position
as all past service benefits to 31 March 2014 are protected.

Future service

We have calculated the average long-term contribution rate that the Fund employers would need to pay to meet
the estimated cost of members’ benefits that will be earned after 31 March 2013 (the ‘future service contribution

March 2014



2013 VALUATION — VALUATION REPORT

rate’). Again, we have used the assumptions set out in the previous section of this report and the method set
out in Appendix C. The resulting contribution rate is that which should (if the actuarial assumptions about the
future are borne out in practice) ensure that the Administering Authority’s main future service funding objective
is met. The table below details this future service contribution rate for 31 March 2013 and shows the 31 March
2010 for comparison.

Valuation Date | 31 March 2010 | 31 March 2013

Future service rate % of pay % of pay
Employer future senvice rate (excl. expenses) 16.9% 19.9%
Expenses 0.5% 0.5%
Total employer future service rate (incl. expenses) 17.3% 20.4%
Employee contribution rate 6.8% 6.6%

Note that the employee contribution rate includes any additional contributions being paid by employees as at 31
March 2013 into the Fund. This future service contribution rate makes no allowance for the past service deficit in
the Fund described above.

The average future service rate for Fund employers is 20.4% of pay. This rate is calculated as at 31 March 2013
and therefore forms part of the total contribution rate payable by employers from 1 April 2014. Note this rate
makes an allowance for changes to the benefit structure that take effect from 1 April 2014. In practice, a future
service rate for each employer has been calculated which is based on their particular circumstances and
membership profile. The rate above is an average future service rate for the Fund as a whole.

Summary of changes to the future service rate

The chart below illustrates the factors that caused the future service rate to increase between 31 March 2010
and 31 March 2013:

Future service rate at last valuation # 17.3%

Change in mortality assumption -0.1%

Change in demographic assumptions l 0.3%

Change in financial assumptions _ 4.7%

Impact of LGPS 2014 |-2.1%

Other experience items 0.3%

Future service rate at this valuation 20.4%

1 T T T T

-5.0% 0.0% 5.0% 10.0% 15.0% 20.0% 25.0%
% of pay

March 2014



2013 VALUATION — VALUATION REPORT

As can be seen from this chart, the factors that have had the biggest impact on the future service rate between
2010 and 2013 are broadly similar to those discussed for the past service position.

In addition to this, the impact of the LGPS 2014 scheme has resulted in a reduction in contribution rate of 2.1%
of payroll.

Total common contribution rate payable

The total (or “common”) contribution rate payable is the average future service rate for Fund employers plus an
additional amount to recover the deficit and bring the funding level back to 100% over a period of 20 years, as
set out in the Funding Strategy Statement. This additional amount is referred to as the past service adjustment.

The common contribution rate based on the funding position as at 31 March 2013 is detailed below along with
the results for 31 March 2010:

Total contribution rate % of pay % of pay
Future senice rate (incl. expenses) 17.3% 20.4%
Past senice adjustment (20 year spread) 11.2% 15.1%
Total employer contribution rate 28.5% 35.5%

This does not represent the rate which any one employer is actually required to pay, nor is it the average of the
actual employer rates. The actual employer contributions payable from 1 April 2014 are given in Appendix G,
and these have been devised in line with the Funding Strategy Statement: see section 6.

March 2014



2013 VALUATION — VALUATION REPORT

5 Risk Assessment

The valuation results depend critically on the actuarial assumptions that are made about the future of the Fund.
If all of the assumptions made at this valuation were exactly borne out in practice then the results presented in
this document would represent the true cost of the Fund as it currently stands at 31 March 2013.

However, no one can predict the future with certainty and it is unlikely that future experience will exactly match
all of our assumptions. The future therefore presents a variety of risks to the Fund and these should be
considered as part of the valuation process. In particular:

The main risks to the financial health of the Fund should be identified.

Where possible, the financial significance of these risks should be quantified.
Consideration should be given as to how these risks can then be controlled or mitigated.
These risks should then be monitored to assess whether any mitigation is actually working.

This section investigates the potential implications of the actuarial assumptions not being borne out in practice.

Set out below is a brief assessment of the main risks and their effect on the valuation results, beginning with a
look at the effect of changing the main assumptions and then focusing on the two most significant risks —
namely investment risk and longevity risk.

Sensitivity of valuation results to changes in assumptions
The table below gives an indication of the sensitivity of the valuation results to small changes in some of the
main assumptions used.

Impact
| Deficit (Em) Future service rate (% of pay)

Assumption

Discount rate Increases by 0.5% Falls by £109m Falls by 3.2%
Salary increases Increases by 0.5% Rises by £30m No change
Price inflation / pension increases Increases by 0.5% Rises by £089m Rises by 3.6%
Life expectancy Increases by 1 year Rises by £37m Rises by 0.8%

This is not an exhaustive list of the assumptions used in the valuation. For example, changes to the assumed
level of withdrawals and ill health retirements will also have an effect on the valuation results. However, the
table contains those assumptions that typically are of most interest and have the biggest impact.

Note that the table shows the effect of changes to each assumption in isolation. In reality, it is perfectly possible
for the experience of the Fund to deviate from more than one of our assumptions simultaneously and so the
precise effect on the funding position is therefore more complex.

March 2014



2013 VALUATION — VALUATION REPORT

Investment risk

Sensitivity of valuation results to market conditions and investment performance

As the assets of the Fund are taken at their market value, volatility in investment performance can have an
immediate and tangible effect on the funding level and deficit. This is particularly relevant because the Fund is
invested predominantly in riskier assets such as equities and equity-type investments (e.g. property). A rise or
fall in the level of equity markets has a direct impact on the financial position of the Fund, which may seem
obvious.

Less obvious is the effect of anticipated investment performance on the Fund’s liabilities (and future service
cost). Here it is the returns available on government bonds that are of crucial importance, as the discount rate
that we use to place a value on the Fund’s liabilities is based on gilt yields at the valuation date plus a margin of
1.6% p.a.

The table below shows how the funding level (top), deficit (middle, in £m) and total contribution rate (bottom, as
% of pay) would vary if investment conditions at 31 March 2013 had been different. The level of the FTSE 100
Price index is taken as a suitable proxy for asset performance whilst the index-linked gilt yield is taken as a
yardstick for the valuation of liabilities.

=
0
P
=
(O]
T
Q
X
=
-l
x
o
T
=

6412

FTSE 100 Price Index

The shaded box contains the results for this valuation. Note that this does not take account of the performance
of all asset classes held by the Fund (e.g. overseas equities, property, bonds, cash etc.) but it does serve to
highlight, in broad terms, the sensitivity of the valuation results to investment conditions at the valuation date.

Note that the scenarios illustrated above are by no means exhaustive. They should not be taken as the limit of
how extreme future investment experience could be. The discount rate assumption adopted at this valuation is
expected to be appropriate over the long term. Short term volatility of equity markets does not invalidate this
assumption.

Longevity risk

The valuation results are also very sensitive to unexpected changes in future longevity. All else being equal, if
longevity improves in the future at a faster pace than allowed for in the valuation assumptions, the funding level
will decline and the required employer contribution rates will increase.

Recent medical advances, changes in lifestyle and a greater awareness of health-related matters have resulted
in life expectancy amongst pension fund members improving in recent years at a faster pace than was originally
foreseen. It is unknown whether and to what extent such improvements will continue in the future.

March 2014



2013 VALUATION — VALUATION REPORT

For the purposes of this valuation, we have selected assumptions that we believe make an appropriate
allowance for future improvements in longevity, based on the actual experience of the Fund since the previous
valuation.

The table below shows how the valuation results at 31 March 2013 are affected by adopting different longevity
assumptions.

Longevity assumption Deficit (Em) Future service rate

2010 valuation
2013 valuation (with improvements) | (369) | 20.4%
2013 valuation (further improvements) (419)
1 year extra (458) 22.6%

The shaded box contains the results for this valuation.
Full details of the longevity improvements adopted at this valuation are set out in Appendix E.

The “further improvements” are a more cautious set of improvements that, in the short term, assume the ‘cohort
effect’ of strong improvements in life expectancy currently being observed amongst a generation born around
the early and mid 1930s will continue to strengthen for a few more years before tailing off. This is known as
“non-peaked”.

The “1 year extra” figures relative to a further year of life expectancies beyond those assumed in “further
improvements”.

Again, the range of assumptions shown here is by no means exhaustive and should not be considered as the
limits of how extreme future longevity experience could be.

Other risks to consider

The table below summarises the effect that changes in some of the other valuation assumptions and risk factors
would have on the funding position. Note that these are probably unlikely to have a large financial impact on the
Fund and therefore the analysis is qualitative rather than quantitative.

Impact
Factor | Funding level Future service rate

Greater level of ill health retirement Decreases Marginal

Reduced level of withdrawals Decreases No change
Rise in average age of employee members Marginal effect Increases
Lower take up of 50:50 option No impact Increases

One further risk to consider is the possibility of future changes to Regulations that could materially affect the
benefits that members become entitled to. It is difficult to predict the nature of any such changes but it is not
inconceivable that they could affect not just the cost of benefits earned after the change but could also have a
retrospective effect on the past service position (as the move from RPI to CPI-based pension increases already
has).

Managing the risks

Whilst there are certain things, such as the performance of investment markets or the life expectancy of
members, that are not directly within the control of the pension fund, that does not mean that nothing can be
done to understand them further and to mitigate their effect. Although these risks are difficult (or impossible) to
eliminate, steps can be taken to manage them.

March 2014



' 2013 VALUATION — VALUATION REPORT

Ways in which some of these risks can be managed could be:

e Set aside a specific reserve to act as a cushion against adverse future experience (possibly by selecting
a set of actuarial assumptions that are deliberately more prudent).

e Take steps internally to monitor the decisions taken by members and employers (e.g. relating to early /
ill health retirements or salary increases) in a bid to curtail any adverse impact on the Fund.

e Pooling certain employers together at the valuation and then setting a single (pooled) contribution rate
that they will all pay. This can help to stabilise contribution rates (at the expense of cross-subsidy
between the employers in the pool during the period between valuations).

e Carrying out a review of the future security of the Fund’s employers (i.e. assessing the strength of
employer covenants).

e Carry out a bespoke analysis of the longevity of Fund members and monitor how this changes over
time, so that the longevity assumptions at the valuation provide as close a fit as possible to the
particular experience of the Fund.

e Undertake an asset-liability modelling exercise that investigates the effect on the Fund of possible
investment scenarios that may arise in the future. An assessment can then be made as to whether long
term, secure employers in the Fund can stabilise their future contribution rates (thus introducing more
certainty into their future budgets) without jeopardising the long-term health of the Fund.

e Purchasing ill health liability insurance to mitigate the risk of an ill health retirement impacting on
solvency and funding level of an individual employer where appropriate.

e Monitoring different employer characteristics in order to build up a picture of the risks posed. Examples
include membership movements, cash flow positions and employer events such as cessations.

We would be delighted to set out in more detail the risks that affect the Fund and discuss with you possible
strategies for managing them.

March 2014



' 2013 VALUATION — VALUATION REPORT

6 Related issues

The Fund’s valuation operates within a broader framework, and this document should therefore be considered
alongside the following:

the Funding Strategy Statement, which in particular highlights how different types of employer in
different circumstances have their contributions calculated;

o the Statement of Investment Principles (e.g. the discount rate must be consistent with the Fund’s asset
strategy);

e the general governance of the Fund, such as meetings of the Pensions Committee, decisions
delegated to officers, the Fund’s business plan, etc;

e the Fund’s risk register;
e the register of Fund employers.

Further recommendations

Valuation frequency

Under the provisions of the LGPS regulations, the next formal valuation of the Fund is due to be carried out as
at 31 March 2016. In light of the uncertainty of future financial conditions, we recommend that the financial
position of the Fund (and for individual employers in some cases) is monitored by means of interim funding
reviews in the period up to this next formal valuation. This will give early warning of changes to funding
positions and possible contribution rate changes.

Investment strategy and risk management
We recommend that the Administering Authority continues to regularly review its investment strategy and
ongoing risk management programme.

New employers joining the Fund
Any new employers or admission bodies joining the Fund should be referred to the Fund actuary for individual
calculation as to the required level of contribution.

Additional payments
Employers may make voluntary additional contributions to recover any shortfall over a shorter period, subject to
agreement with the Administering Authority and after receiving the relevant actuarial advice.

Further sums should be paid to the Fund by employers to meet the capital costs of any unreduced early
retirements, reduced early retirements before age 60 and/or augmentation (i.e. additional membership or
additional pension) using the methods and factors issued by me from time to time or as otherwise agreed.

In addition, payments may be required to be made to the Fund by employers to meet the capital costs of any ill-
health retirements that exceed those allowed for within our assumptions.

Cessations and bulk transfers
Any Admission Body who ceases to participate in the Fund should be referred to us in accordance with
Regulation 38 of the Administration Regulations.

Any bulk movement of scheme members:

* involving 10 or more scheme members being transferred from or to another LGPS fund, or

March 2014



2013 VALUATION — VALUATION REPORT

* involving 2 or more scheme members being transferred from or to a non-LGPS pension arrangement
should be referred to us to consider the impact on the Fund.

March 2014



2013 VALUATION — VALUATION REPORT

7 Reliances and limitations

Scope

This document has been requested by and is provided to London Borough of Haringey in its capacity as
Administering Authority to the London Borough of Haringey Pension Fund. It has been prepared by Hymans
Robertson LLP to fulfil the statutory obligations in accordance with regulation 36 of the Administration
Regulations. None of the figures should be used for accounting purposes (e.g. under FRS17 or IAS19) or for
any other purpose (e.g. a termination valuation under Regulation 38(1)).

This document should not be released or otherwise disclosed to any third party without our prior written consent,
in which case it should be released in its entirety. Hymans Robertson LLP accepts no liability to any other party
unless we have expressly accepted such liability.

The results of the valuation are dependent on the quality of the data provided to us by the Administering
Authority for the specific purpose of this valuation. We have previously issued a separate report confirming that
the data provided is fit for the purposes of this valuation and have commented on the quality of the data
provided. The data used in our calculations is as per our report of 12 November 2013.

Actuarial Standards
The following Technical Actuarial Standards’ are applicable in relation to this report and have been complied
with where material:

TAS R — Reporting;
TAS D — Data;
TAS M — Modelling; and

Pensions TAS.

Douglas Green Bryan T Chalmers

Fellow of the Institute and Faculty of Actuaries Fellow of the Institute and Faculty of Actuaries
03 March 2014 03 March 2014

! Technical Actuarial Standards (TASs) are issued by the Financial Reporting Council (FRC) and set standards for certain items of actuarial
work, including the information and advice contained in this report.

March 2014



2013 VALUATION — VALUATION REPORT

Appendix A: About the pension fund
For more details please refer to the Fund’s Funding Strategy Statement.

The purpose of the Fund is to provide retirement and death benefits to its members. It is part of the Local
Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) and is a multi-employer defined benefit pension scheme.

Defined benefit pension scheme

In a defined benefit scheme such as this, the nature of retirement benefits that members are entitled to is known
in advance. For example, it is known that members will receive a pension on retirement that is linked to their
salary and pensionable service according to a pre-determined formula.

However, the precise cost to the Fund of providing these benefits is not known in advance. The estimated cost
of these benefits represents a liability to the Fund and assets must be set aside to meet this. The relationship
between the value of the liabilities and the value of the assets must be regularly assessed and monitored to
ensure that the Fund can fulfil its core objective of providing its members with the retirement benefits that they
have been promised.

Liabilities
The Fund’s liabilities are the value placed on the benefits that will be paid in the future to its members (and their
dependants).

The precise timing and amount of these benefit payments will depend on future experience, such as when
members will retire, how long they will live for in retirement and what economic conditions will be like both
before and after retirement. Because these factors are not known in advance, assumptions must be made
about future experience. The valuation of these liabilities must be regularly updated to reflect the degree to
which actual experience has been in line with these assumptions.

Assets

The Fund’s assets arise from the contributions paid by its members and their employers and the investment
returns that they generate. The way these assets are invested is of fundamental importance to the Fund. The
selection, monitoring and evolution of the Fund’s investment strategy are key responsibilities of the
Administering Authority.

As the estimated cost of the Fund’s liabilities is regularly re-assessed, this effectively means that the amount of
assets required to meet them is a moving target. As a result, at any given time the Fund may be technically in
surplus or in deficit.

A contribution strategy must be put in place which ensures that each of the Fund’s employers pays money into
the Fund at a rate which will target the cost of its share of the liabilities in respect of benefits already earned by
members and those that will be earned in the future.

The long-term nature of the Fund

The pension fund is a long-term commitment. Even if it were to stop admitting new members today, it would still
be paying out benefits to existing members and dependants for many decades to come. It is therefore essential
that the various funding and investment decisions that are taken now recognise this and come together to form
a coherent long-term strategy.

In order to assist with these decisions, the Regulations require the Administering Authority to obtain a formal
valuation of the Fund every three years. Along with the Funding Strategy Statement, this valuation will help
determine the funding objectives that will apply from 1 April 2014.

March 2014



2013 VALUATION — VALUATION REPORT

Appendix B: Summary of the Fund’s benefits

Provided below is a brief summary of the non-discretionary benefits that we have taken into account for active
members at this valuation. This shouldn’t be taken as a comprehensive statement of the exact benefits to be
paid. For further details please see the Regulations.

Provision Benefit Structure To Benefit Structure From 1 Benefit Structure From 1 April 2014

31 March 2008 April 2008
N?.rmal t Age 65. Age 65. Equal to the individual member’s State
retiremen . -
age (NRA) Pension Age (minimum 65).
Earliest As per NRA (age 65). As per NRA (minimum age 65).
retirement

age (ERA) on
which

Protections apply to active members in the scheme
immediately prior to 1 October 2006 who would have
been entitled to immediate payment of unreduced

Protections apply to active members in
the scheme for pensions earned up to 1
April 2014, due to:

m?;?j?"séz benefits prior to 65, due to:
\ ) ) ) a) Accrued benefits relating to pre April
benefits can The benefits relating to various segments of scheme ;
. . - 2014 service at age 65.
be paid on membership are protected as set out in Schedule 2
voluntary to the Local Government Pension Scheme b) Continued ‘Rule of 85 protection for
retirement (Transitional Provisions) Regulations 2008 and qualifying members.
associated GAD guidance.
c) Members within 10 yrs of existing
NRA at 1/4/12 — no change to when they
can retire and no decrease in pension
they receive at existing NRA.
Member Officers - 6% of Banded rates (5.5%-7.5%) Banded rates (5.5%-12.5%) depending
contributions | pensionable pay depending upon level of full- | upon level of actual pay. A mechanism
time equivalent pay. A for sharing any increased scheme costs
y~)
c“ﬂ‘aneunaslix\r/lgrlrlirsa E;an mechanism for sharing any between employers and scheme
hag rotected Ic?w?e/r increased scheme costs members will be included in the LGPS
pre N between employers and regulations in due course.
rates rights or 6% for h bers i
ost 31 March 1998 | S¢T€Me Members 1
P included in the LGPS
entrants or former .
. regulations.
entrants with no
protected rights.
Pensionable All salary, wages, fees and other payments in respect | Pay including non-contractual overtime
pay of the employment, excluding non-contractual and additional hours.
overtime and some other specified amounts.
Some scheme members may be covered by special
agreements.
Final pay The pensionable pay in the year up to the date of N/A

leaving the scheme. Alternative methods used in
some cases, e.g. where there has been a break in
service or a drop in pensionable pay.

Will be required for the statutory underpin and in
respect of the final salary link that may apply in
respect of certain members of the CARE scheme
who have pre April 2014 accrual.

March 2014




2013 VALUATION — VALUATION REPORT

Provision

Benefit Structure From 1
April 2008

Benefit Structure To
31 March 2008

Benefit Structure From 1 April 2014

Period of Total years and days of service during which a N/A
scheme member contributes to the Fund. (e.g. transfers from
membership other pension arrangements, augmentation, or from

April 2008 the award of additional pension). For part

time members, the membership is proportionate with

regard to their contractual hours and a full time

equivalent). Additional periods may be granted

dependent on member circumstances.
Normal Annual Retirement Scheme membership from 1 | Scheme membership from 1 April 2014:
rbz[:sg’::gtt Er?;sg:; f 01 r/i(;tgho; car iprll 2008'_ _ Annu_al Retirement Pension - 1/49th of
NRA of scheme nnual Retllrement Pension pens!onable pay (or assumed

. - 1/60th of final pay for each | pensionable pay) for each year of
membership. !
year of scheme scheme membership.

'-“”.‘p sum membership. Lump Sum Retirement Grant - none

Retirement Grant - Lump Sum Retirement except by commutation of pension

3/80th of final pay for Granﬁ e excent b pLby P :

each year of scheme . ptby

membership. commutation of pension.
Option to In addition to the No automatic lump sum. No automatic lump sum. Any lump sum
increase standard retirement Any lump sum is to be is to be provided by commutation of
retirement grant any lump sum is | provided by commutation of | pension (within overriding HMRC limits).
lump sum to be provided by pension (within overriding The terms for the conversion of pension
benefit commutation of HMRC limits). The terms for | in to lump sum is £12 of lump sum for

pension (within the conversion of pension in | every £1 of annual pension surrendered.

overriding HMRC to lump sum is £12 of lump

limits). The terms for | sum for every £1 of annual

the conversion of pension surrendered.

pension in to lump

sum is £12 of lump

sum for every £1 of

annual pension

surrendered.
Voluntary On retirement after age 60, subject to reduction on On retirement after age 55, subject to
early account of early payment in some circumstances (in reduction on account of early payment in
retirement accordance with ERA protections). some circumstances (in accordance with
benefits (non ERA protections).
ill-health)
Employer’s On retirement after age 55 with employer’s consent. Benefits paid on redundancy or
consent early Benefits paid on redundancy or efficiency grounds efficiency grounds are paid with no
retirement S : ) actuarial reduction.

X are paid with no actuarial reduction.

benefits (non Employer’s consent is no longer
ill-health) Otherwise, benefits are subject to reduction on pioy 9

account of early payment, unless this is waived by

the employer.

required for a member to retire from age
55. However, benefits are subject to
reduction on account of early payment,
unless this is waived by the employer.

March 2014



2013 VALUATION — VALUATION REPORT

Provision

lll-health
benefits

Benefit Structure To
31 March 2008

As a result of
permanent ill-health
or incapacity.

Immediate payment
of unreduced
benefits.

Enhancement to
scheme membership,
dependent on actual
membership.
Enhancement seldom
more than 6 years
243 days.

Benefit Structure From 1
April 2008

As a result of permanent ill-
health or incapacity and a
reduced likelihood of
obtaining gainful
employment (local
government or otherwise)
before age 65.

Immediate payment of
unreduced benefits.

Enhanced to scheme
membership, dependent on
severity of ill health.

100% of prospective
membership to age 65
where no likelihood of
undertaking any gainful
employment prior to age 65;

25% of prospective
membership to age 65
where likelihood of obtaining
gainful employment after 3
years of leaving, but before
age 65; or

0% of prospective
membership where there is
a likelihood of undertaking
gainful employment within 3
years of leaving employment

Benefit Structure From 1 April 2014

As a result of permanent ill-health or
incapacity and a reduced likelihood of
obtaining gainful employment (local
government or otherwise) before NRA.

Immediate payment of unreduced
benefits.

Enhanced to scheme membership,
dependent on severity of ill health.

100% of prospective membership to age
NRA where no likelihood of undertaking
any gainful employment prior to age
NRA;

25% of prospective membership to age
NRA where likelihood of obtaining
gainful employment after 3 years of
leaving, but before age NRA; or

0% of prospective membership where
there is a likelihood of undertaking
gainful employment within 3 years of
leaving employment

March 2014



2013 VALUATION — VALUATION REPORT

Provision

Flexible
retirement

Benefit Structure To
31 March 2008

After 5th April 2006, a
member who has
attained the age of
50, with his
employer's consent,
reduces the hours he
works, or the grade in
which he is employed,
may elect in writing to
the appropriate
Administering
Authority that such
benefits may, with his
employer's consent,
be paid to him
notwithstanding that
he has not retired
from that
employment.

Benefits are paid
immediately and
subject to actuarial
reduction unless the
reduction is waived by
the employer.

Benefit Structure From 1 Benefit Structure From 1 April 2014
April 2008

A member who has attained the age of 55 and who, with his employer's
consent, reduces the hours he works, or the grade in which he is
employed, may make a request in writing to the appropriate
Administering Authority to receive all or part of his benefits,

Benefits are paid immediately and subject to actuarial reduction unless
the reduction is waived by the employer.

Pension
increases

All pensions in payment, deferred pensions and dependant’s pensions other than benefits
arising from the payment of additional voluntary contributions are increased annually. Pensions
are increased partially under the Pensions (Increases) Act and partially in accordance with
statutory requirements (depending on the proportions relating to pre 88 GMP, post 88 GMP and

excess over GMP).

Death after
retirement

A spouse’s or civil
partner’s pension of
one half of the
member's pension
(generally post 1 April
1972 service for
widowers’ pension
and post 6 April 1988
for civil partners) is
payable; plus

If the member dies
within five years of
retiring and before
age 75 the balance of
five years' pension
payments will be paid
in the form of a lump
sum; plus

Children’s pensions
may also be payable.

A spouse’s, civil partner’s or nominated cohabiting partner’s pension
payable at a rate of 1/160th of the member's total membership
multiplied by final pay (generally post 1 April 1972 service for widowers’
pension and post 6 April 1988 for civil partners and nominated
cohabiting partners) is payable; plus

If the member dies within ten years of retiring and before age 75 the
balance of ten years' pension payments will be paid in the form of a
lump sum; plus

Children’s pensions may also be payable.

March 2014



2013 VALUATION — VALUATION REPORT

Provision

Benefit Structure To
31 March 2008

Benefit Structure From 1 Benefit Structure From 1 April 2014
April 2008

Death in A lump sum of two A lump sum of three times final pay; plus
service times final pay; plus A spouse’s, civil partner’s or cohabiting partner’s pension payable at a
A spouse's or civil rate of 1/160th of the member's total (augmented to age 65)
partner’s pension of membership (generally post 1 April 1972 service for widowers’ pension
one half of the ill- and post 6 April 1988 for civil partners and nominated cohabiting
health retirement partners), multiplied by final pay; plus
pension that would Children’ . Is0 b bl
have been paid to the ildren’s pensions may also be payable.
scheme member if he
had retired on the day
of death (generally
post 1 April 1972
service for widowers’
pension and post 6
April 1988 for civil
partners); plus
Children’s pensions
may also be payable.
Leaving If the member has completed three months’ or more | |f the member has completed two years
service scheme. membership, deferrec_j _benef_lts.wﬂh or more scheme membership, deferred
options calculation and payment conditions similar to general

retirement provisions ; or benefits with calculation and payment

A transfer payment to either a new employer's
scheme or a suitable insurance policy, equivalent in
value to the deferred pension; or

If the member has completed less than three months'
scheme membership, a return of the member's
contributions with interest, less a State Scheme
premium deduction and less tax at the rate of 20%. the deferred pension; or

conditions similar to general retirement
provisions ; or

A transfer payment to either a new
employer's scheme or a suitable
insurance policy, equivalent in value to

If the member has completed less than
two years scheme membership, a return
of the member's contributions with
interest, less a State Scheme premium
deduction and less tax at the rate of
20%.

State pension

The Fund is contracted-out of the State Second Pension and the benefits payable to each

scheme member are guaranteed to be not less than those required to enable the Fund to be contracted-
out.

Assumed N/A This applies in cases of reduced

pensionable contractual pay (CPP) resulting from

pay sickness, child related and reserve
forces absence, whereby the amount
added to the CPP is the assumed
pensionable pay rather than the reduced
rate of pay actually received.

50/50 option N/A Optional arrangement allowing 50% of

main benefits to be accrued on a 50%
contribution rate.

March 2014



2013 VALUATION — VALUATION REPORT

Note: Certain categories of members of the Fund are entitled to benefits that differ from those summarised
above.

Discretionary benefits

The LGPS Regulations give employers a number of discretionary powers. The effect on benefits or
contributions as a result of the use of these provisions as currently contained within the Local Government
Pension Scheme Regulations has been allowed for in this valuation to the extent that this is reflected in the
membership data provided. No allowance has been made for the future use of discretionary powers that will be
contained within the scheme from 1 April 2014.

March 2014



2013 VALUATION — VALUATION REPORT

Appendix C: About the valuation
For more details please refer the Fund’s Funding Strategy Statement.

It is important to realise that the actual cost of the pension fund (i.e. how much money it will ultimately have to
pay out to its members in the form of benefits) is currently unknown. This cost will not be known with certainty
until the last benefit is paid to the last pensioner. The core purpose of this valuation is to estimate what this cost
will be, so that the Fund can then develop a strategy to meet it.

Such a valuation can only ever be an estimate — as the future cannot be predicted with certainty. However, as
actuaries, we can use our understanding of the Fund and the factors that affect it to determine an anticipated
cost which is as sensible and realistic as possible. A decision can then be made as to how much is set aside
now to meet this anticipated cost. The pace of this funding can vary according to the level of prudence that is
built into the valuation method and assumptions.

For this valuation, as for the previous valuation, our calculations identify separately the expected cost of
members’ benefits in respect of scheme membership completed before the valuation date (“past service”) and
that which is expected to be completed after the valuation date (“future service”).

Past service

The principal measurement here is the comparison at the valuation date of the assets (taken at market value)
and the value placed on the Fund’s liabilities (calculated using a market-based approach). By maintaining a link
to the market in both cases, this helps ensure that the assets and liabilities are valued in a consistent manner.
Our calculation of the Fund’s liabilities also explicitly allows for expected future pay and pension increases.

The funding level is the ratio of assets to liabilities at the valuation date. A funding level of less/more than 100%
implies that there is a deficit/surplus in the Fund at the valuation date.

The funding target is to eliminate any deficit (or surplus) over a specified period and therefore get back to a
funding level of 100%. To do so, additional contributions may be required to be paid into the Fund, either via
lump sums or by increasing the employer’s contribution rate. These additional contributions are known as the
past service adjustment.

Future service

In addition to benefits that have already been earned by members prior to the valuation date, employee
members will continue to earn new benefits in the future. The cost of these new benefits must be met by both
employers and employees. The employers’ share of this cost is known as the future service contribution rate.

For the valuation results for the Fund as a whole, we have calculated the future service rate as the cost of
benefits being earned by members over the year following the valuation, taking account of expected future
salary increases until retirement. If new entrants are admitted to the Fund to the extent that the overall
membership profile remains broadly unchanged (and if the actuarial assumptions are unchanged) then the
future service rate should be reasonably stable.

This funding method we have used is known as the Projected Unit Method. As well as the whole fund, it is
appropriate for individual employers that continue to admit new entrants to the Fund.

March 2014



2013 VALUATION — VALUATION REPORT

However, some participating employers may have a policy of not admitting new entrants. In this case, the
membership profile will inevitably begin to age. Under these circumstances, the Projected Unit Method is
arguably no longer appropriate and will not promote sufficient stability in the future service rate. For these
employers, we will adopt a funding method known as the Attained Age Method, which effectively looks at the
cost of benefits that members will earn over the entirety of their remaining working lifetime (rather than just the
year following the valuation).

Combining this future service rate with any past service adjustment required to repay a deficit (or reduce a
surplus) gives us the total contribution rate. The total rate for the Fund as a whole is known as the common
contribution rate. This is really just a notional figure. In practice, each individual employer will have a
contribution rate which reflects their own particular circumstances.

The sensitivity of valuation results

The aim of this valuation is not only to determine these important figures but also to demonstrate their sensitivity
to a number of key influences. This will promote an understanding of how the expected cost of the Fund may
change in response to uncertain future events (e.g. changes in life expectancy or investment returns). Please
refer to section 5 for details of the sensitivity analysis.

March 2014



2013 VALUATION — VALUATION REPORT

Appendix D: Data

This section contains a summary of the membership, investment and accounting data provided by the
Administering Authority for the purposes of this valuation (the corresponding membership and investment data
from the previous valuation is also shown for reference). For further details of the data, and the checks and
amendments performed in the course of this valuation, please refer to our separate report.

Membership data — whole fund
Employee members

31 March 2010 31 March 2013

Number Pensionable Pay* Pensionable Pay*
(£000) (£000)
153,647 126,020

Total employee membership

*actual pay (not full-time equivalent)

Deferred pensioners

31 March 2010 31 March 2013
Number Deferred pension Number Deferred pension
(£000) (£000)
12,255 15,924

Total deferred membership

The deferred pension shown includes revaluation up to and including the 2013 Pension Increase Order. The
figures above also include any “status 2” and “status 9” members at the valuation date.

Current pensioners, spouses and children

31 March 2010 31 March 2013

Number

Pension
(£000)

Number

Pension
(£000)

Members 22,282 29,956
Dependants 899 2,100 963 2,372
Children 101 112 91 122

Total pensioner members 5,910 24,494 6,710 32,451

Note that the membership numbers in the table above refer to the number of records provided to us and so will
include an element of double-counting in respect of any members who are in receipt (or potentially in receipt of)
more than one benefit.

Membership Profile

Average Age (years)

FWL (years)

2010 2013 2010 2013
Employees 51.4 51.3 8.3 9.8
Deferred Pensioners 50.8 51.3 - -
Pensioners 66.0 66.3 - -

The average ages are weighted by liability.

The expected future working lifetime (FWL) indicates the anticipated length of time that the average employee
member will remain as a contributor to the Fund. Note that it allows for the possibility of members leaving,
retiring early or dying before retirement.

March 2014



2013 VALUATION — VALUATION REPORT

4

Membership data — individual employers

Employees Deferreds Pensioners

Employer Name

Number

Actual
Pay

Number Pension Number

Pension

(£000) (£000) (£000)

1 Haringey Council 4,149 93,344 7,585 14,220 6,080 29,058
3 Age Concern Haringey 2 79 5 1 16 63
Haringey Magistrates Courts
4 Committee 0 0 21 67 18 90
College of Enfield and North East
5 London (CHENEL) 152 4,032 240 481 117 610
6 CSS (Haringey) Ltd 0 0 33 68 49 109
Haringey Citizens Advice

7 Bureaux 7 229 1 10 4 38

8 Alexandra Palace Trading Co Ltd 3 81 11 55 8 58
10 Jarvis Workspace FM Ltd 0 0 25 52 18 79
11 Urban Futures London Ltd 3 185 8 28 0 0
12 Enterprise Haringey Ltd 0 0 39 104 45 268
13 Greig City Academy 33 775 26 25 4 12
15 Trident Safeguards Ltd 0 0 0 0 2 15
16 Initial Catering Services Ltd 0 0 1 1 1 1
17 Harrisons Catering Ltd 0 0 1 0 2 3
18 Homes for Haringey 465 16,095 161 626 127 1,176
19 John Loughborough 11 227 4 9 1 5
20 TLC at Coopercroft 14 240 8 5 4 15
21 OCS Group UK Ltd 0 0 1 0 1 6
22 Fortismere School 38 805 13 17 7 56
23 RM Education PLC 0 0 3 6 0 0
25 Ontime Parking Solutions 0 0 3 12 1 4
26 ESSL 1 27 0 0 0 0
27 Veolia (Waste Management) 110 2,371 22 67 11 84
28 Alexandra Park School 52 1,132 6 5 2 13
29 Woodside Academy 54 976 3 8 1 4
30 Eden Free School 5 104 0 0 0 0
31 Churchill Cleaning 3 32 0 0 1 1
32 Coleraine 15 185 0 0 0 0
33 Downhills 19 179 0 0 1 8
34 Nightingale 24 322 3 4 1 4
35 Noel Park 40 484 1 0 0 0
36 Sports and Leisure 68 1,157 2 1 0 0
37 Cleaning contract 85 560 0 0 0 0
38 Haringey Sixth Form College 44 861 0 0 0 0
39 St Pauls All Hallows CofE Infants 20 275 0 0 0 0
40 St Pauls All Hallows CofE Junior 10 118 0 0 0 0
41 St Michaels CofE 12 138 1 0 0 0
42 St Annes CofE 17 210 0 0 0 0
43 The Green School 12 146 0 0 0 0
44 Hartsbrook E- ACT Free School 6 144 0 0 0 0
45 St Thomas More 27 533 0 0 0 0
100 Actuary Cards 0 0 0 0 144 619
200 Actuary Cards 2 0 0 31 36 44 52

March 2014




2013 VALUATION — VALUATION REPORT

Assets at 31 March 2013
A summary of the Fund’s assets (excluding members’ money-purchase Additional Voluntary Contributions) as
at 31 March 2013 and 31 March 2010 is as follows:

Asset class Market Value at 31 March 2010 Allocation Market Value at 31 March 2013 Allocation
(£000) % (£000) %
UK equities 193,806 29% 214,620 25%
UK fixed interest gilts 32,342 5% 0 0%
UK corporate bonds 75,755 11% 0 0%
UK index-linked gilts 40,119 6% 127,780 15%
Owerseas equities 238,090 36% 458,417 53%
Owerseas bonds 0 0% 0 0%
Property 45,895 7% 47,755 6%
Cash and net current assets 37,679 6% 14,620 2%
Total 663,686 100% 863,192 100%

Accounting data — revenue account for the three years to 31 March 2013

Consolidated accounts (£000)
[ 3 March2011 [ 31March2012 | 31 March 2013 Total

Income

Employer - normal contributions 34,140 30,938 29,788 94,866
Employer - additional contributions 0 0 0 0
Employer - early retirement and augmentation strain contributions 852 4,179 2,155 7,186
Employee - normal contributions 10,326 9,198 8,710 28,234
Employee - additional contributions 263 166 109 538
Transfers In Received (including group and individual) 6,034 9,072 4,258 19,364
Other Income 0 0 0 0
Total Income 51,615 53,553 45,020 150,188
Expenditure

Gross Retirement Pensions 25,347 28,525 31,380 85,252
Lump Sum Retirement Benefits 5,989 12,956 7,771 26,716
Death in Senice Lump sum 882 520 926 2,328
Death in Deferment Lump Sum 0 0 0 0
Death in Retirement Lump Sum 0 0 0 0
Gross Refund of Contributions 1 1 1 3
Transfers out (including bulk and individual) 7,687 4,231 5,127 17,045
Fees and Expenses 680 651 876 2,207
Total Expenditure 40,586 46,884 46,081 133,551
Net Cashflow 11,029 6,669 -1,061 16,637
Assets at start of year 663,686 720,952 754,948 663,686
Net cashflow 11,029 6,669 -1,061 16,637
Change in value 46,237 27,327 109,305 182,869
Assets at end of year 720,952 754,948 863,192 863,192
6.9% [ 3.8% [ 14.5% [ 27.0% |

Note that the figures above are based on the Fund accounts provided to us for the purposes of this valuation,
which were fully audited at the time of our valuation calculations.

March 2014



' 2013 VALUATION — VALUATION REPORT

Appendix E: Assumptions

Financial assumptions

Financial assumptions 31 March 2010 31 March 2013

(% p-a.) (% p.a.)
Discount rate 6.1% 4.6%
Price inflation 3.8% 3.3%
Pay increases* 5.3% 4.3%

Pension increases:

pension in excess of GMP 3.3% 2.5%

post-88 GMP 2.8% 2.5%

pre-88 GMP 0.0% 0.0%

Revaluation of deferred pension 3.3% 2.5%

Expenses 0.5% 0.5%

*An allowance is also made for promotional pay increases (see table below). Note that the assumption at 31 March 2013 is actually 1% p.a.
for 2010/11 and 2011/12, reverting to 5.3% p.a. thereafter.

Mortality assumptions
Longevity assumptions
Longevity - baseline
Longevity - improvements

CMI Model version used CMI_2010
Starting rates

31 March 2013
Vita curves

CMI calibration based on data from Club Vita using the latest available data
as at December 2011.

Long term rate of improvement Period effects:
1.25% p.a. for men and women.
Cohort effects:
0% p.a. for men and for women.
Period of convergence Period effects:

CMI model core values i.e. 10 years for ages 50 and below and 5 years for
those aged 95 and abowe, with linear transition to 20 years for those aged
between 60 and 80.

Cohort effects:

CMI core i.e. 40 years for those born in 1947 or later declining linearly to 5
years for those born in 1912 or earlier.

Proportion of convergence remaining |50%
at mid point

We have suggested a longevity improvement assumption based on the latest industry standard and combined
information from our longevity experts in Club Vita. The start point for the improvements has been based on
observed death rates in the Club Vita data bank over the period.

In the short term we have assumed that the ‘cohort effect’ of strong improvements in life expectancy currently
being observed amongst a generation born around the early and mid 1930s will start to tail off, resulting in life
expectancy increasing less rapidly than has been seen over the last decade or two. This is known as ‘peaked’.

March 2014



2013 VALUATION — VALUATION REPORT

In the long term (post age 70) we have assumed that increases in life expectancy will stabilise at a rate of
increase of 1 year per decade for men and women. This is equivalent to assuming that longer term mortality
rates will fall at a rate of 1.25% p.a. for men and women.

Various scaling factors have been applied to the mortality tables to reflect the predicted longevity for each class
of member and their dependants. Full details of these are available on request.

As a member of Club Vita, the longevity assumptions that have been adopted at this valuation are a bespoke
set of VitaCurves that are specifically tailored to fit the membership profile of the Fund. These curves are based
on the data you have provided us with for the purposes of this valuation. Full details of these are available on
request.

Other demographic valuation assumptions
Retirements in ill health Allowance has been made for ill-health retirements before
Normal Pension Age (see table below).

Withdrawals Allowance has been made for withdrawals from service (see
table below).
Family details A varying proportion of members are assumed to be married (or

have an adult dependant) at retirement or on earlier death. For
example, at age 60 this is assumed to be 90% for males and
85% for females. Husbands are assumed to be 3 years older
than wives.

Commutation 50% of future retirements elect to exchange pension for
additional tax free cash up to HMRC limits for service to 1 April
2008 (equivalent 75% for service from 1 April 2008).

50:50 option 10% of members (uniformly distributed across the age, service
and salary range) will choose the 50:50 option.

The tables below show details of the assumptions actually used for specimen ages. The promotional pay scale
is an annual average for all employees at each age. Itis in addition to the allowance for general pay inflation
described above. For membership movements, the percentages represent the probability that an individual at
each age leaves service within the following twelve months.

March 2014



2013 VALUATION — VALUATION REPORT

Death in Service tables:
Incidence per 1000 active members per annum

Male officers Male Manuals FEELR EEERE Female Manuals
and Post 98 and Post 98

20 0.26 0.32 0.14 0.17
25 0.26 0.32 0.14 0.17
30 0.31 0.38 0.20 0.26
35 0.36 0.45 0.34 0.43
40 0.61 0.77 0.54 0.68
45 1.02 1.28 0.88 1.11
50 1.63 2.04 1.29 1.62
55 2.55 3.19 1.70 2.13
60 4.59 5.74 2.18 2.72
65 7.65 9.56 2.79 3.49

March 2014



2013 VALUATION — VALUATION REPORT

Il Health Early Retirements tables
Tier 1
Incidence for 1000 active members per annum

Male Officers & Post Female Officers & Post

Male Manuals Female Manuals

98 Males 98 Females
lIl Health Il Health lIl Health Il Health
FT PT FT PT FT PT FT PT
20 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
25 0.00 0.00 0.76 0.60 0.19 0.15 0.99 0.79
30 0.00 0.00 1.39 1.11 0.25 0.20 1.44 1.15
35 0.19 0.15 2.08 1.66 0.50 0.40 1.98 1.58
40 0.32 0.25 3.02 2.42 0.76 0.60 2.88 2.30
45 0.69 0.55 4.16 3.33 1.01 0.81 3.78 3.02
50 1.76 1.41 6.17 4.94 1.89 1.51 5.04 4.03
55 6.91 5.53 14.61 11.69 7.01 5.61 13.54 10.83
60 12.16 9.73 23.42 18.74 14.86 11.89 23.81 19.05
65 23.10 18.48 45.15 36.12 26.71 21.37 45.15 36.12
Tier 2

Incidence for 1000 active members per annum
Female Officers & Post 98

Male Officers & Post 98

Male Manuals Female Manuals

Males Females
Il Health Il Health Il Health Il Health

FT PT FT PT FT PT FT PT
20 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
25 0.00 0.00 0.80 0.64 0.20 0.16 1.05 0.84
30 0.00 0.00 1.47 1.18 0.27 0.21 1.53 1.22
35 0.20 0.16 2.21 1.77 0.54 0.43 2.10 1.68
40 0.33 0.27 3.21 2.57 0.80 0.64 3.06 2.45
45 0.74 0.59 4.42 3.53 1.07 0.86 4.02 3.21
50 2.37 1.90 8.31 6.65 2.54 2.03 6.78 5.43
55 5.34 4.27 11.29 9.03 5.42 4.33 10.47 8.37
60 4.58 3.66 8.82 7.05 5.60 4.48 8.96 7.17
65 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Tier 3

Incidence for 1000 active members per annum
Female Officers & Post 98

Male Officers & Post 98

Male Manuals Female Manuals

Males Females
Il Health Il Health Il Health Il Health

FT PT FT PT = PT FT PT
20 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
25 0.00 0.00 0.48 0.38 0.09 0.07 0.55 0.44
30 0.09 0.07 0.77 0.62 0.15 0.12 0.77 0.61
35 0.12 0.10 1.16 0.93 0.30 0.24 1.11 0.88
40 0.21 0.17 1.61 1.29 0.39 0.31 1.53 1.22
45 0.48 0.38 2.32 1.86 0.62 0.50 1.96 1.56
50 0.26 0.21 0.68 0.54 0.24 0.20 0.58 0.46
55 0.37 0.30 0.77 0.61 0.45 0.36 0.76 0.61
60 0.21 0.17 0.42 0.33 0.25 0.20 0.42 0.33
65 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

March 2014




2013 VALUATION — VALUATION REPORT

Withdrawal

Less than 2 years’ service
Incidence for 1000 active members per annum

Male Officers Male Manuals Female Officers Female Manuals Post 98 Males Post 98 Females

Withdrawals Withdrawals Withdrawals Withdrawals Withdrawals Withdrawals

FT PT FT PT FT PT FT PT FT PT FT PT
20 304.04 506.74 304.04 506.74 288.39 400.55 288.39 400.55 557.41 1000.00 | 384.52 640.87
25 200.83 334.72 201.20 335.01 194.07 269.50 194.43 269.79 368.19 736.38 258.74 431.17
30 142.53 237.46 143.05 237.91 162.69 225.89 163.17 226.27 261.24 522.40 216.89 361.38
35 111.38 185.51 112.17 186.19 140.45 194.94 141.07 195.43 204.11 408.11 187.19 311.79
40 89.71 149.31 90.77 150.23 116.92 162.22 117.80 162.92 164.33 328.47 155.80 259.40
45 73.64 122.28 75.03 123.55 96.49 133.73 97.50 134.54 134.71 268.98 128.49 213.73
50 56.96 94.68 57.28 95.02 73.34 101.75 73.60 101.96 104.26 208.28 97.73 162.71
55 49.47 82.09 49.77 82.44 56.73 78.59 56.97 78.78 90.46 180.57 75.53 125.58
60 29.97 49.75 30.13 49.94 26.40 36.55 26.52 36.65 54.81 109.43 35.13 58.39

More than 2 years’ service

Incidence for 1000 active members per annum

Male Officers Male Manuals Female Officers Female Manuals Post 98 Males Post 98 Females

Withdrawals Withdrawals Withdrawals Withdrawals Withdrawals Withdrawals

FT PT FT PT FT PT FT PT FT PT FT PT
20 119.85 199.76 119.85 199.76 113.69 157.90 113.69 157.90 219.73 439.46 151.58 252.63
25 79.17 131.95 79.31 132.06 76.50 106.24 76.64 106.35 145.14 290.28 101.99 169.97
30 56.18 93.60 56.39 93.78 64.13 89.05 64.32 89.20 102.98 205.93 85.50 142.46
35 43.90 73.12 44.22 73.40 55.37 76.84 55.61 77.04 80.46 160.88 73.79 122.91
40 35.36 58.85 35.79 59.22 46.09 63.95 46.44 64.22 64.78 129.48 61.42 102.26
45 29.03 48.18 29.59 48.71 38.04 52.72 38.44 53.04 53.10 106.03 50.65 84.25
50 22.45 37.31 22.58 37.46 28.91 40.11 29.01 40.19 41.10 82.10 38.52 64.14
55 19.50 32.35 19.62 32.50 22.36 30.98 22.46 31.06 35.66 71.18 29.77 49.50
60 11.82 19.60 11.88 19.69 10.41 14.41 10.46 14.45 21.61 43.14 13.85 23.02

Promotional salary scale

Promotional Salary Scales

Male Officers & Post 98 Male Manuals Female Officers & Post Female Manuals
Males 98 Females

20 100 100 100 100 100 100 100 100
25 135 116 100 100 118 105 100 100
30 169 134 100 100 137 111 100 100
35 192 146 100 100 151 116 100 100
40 208 153 100 100 163 121 100 100
45 222 154 100 100 166 122 100 100
50 236 154 100 100 166 122 100 100
55 239 154 100 100 166 122 100 100
60 239 154 100 100 166 122 100 100
65 239 154 100 100 166 122 100 100

March 2014



2013 VALUATION — VALUATION REPORT

Appendix F: Events since valuation date

Post-valuation events

These valuation results are in effect a snapshot of the Fund as at 31 March 2013. Since that date, various
events have had an effect on the financial position of the Fund. Whilst we have not explicitly altered the
valuation results to allow for these events, a short discussion of these “post-valuation events” can still be
beneficial in understanding the variability of pension funding.

Investment conditions since 31 March 2013
In the period from the valuation date to early March 2014, investment markets moved in the following manner:

e asset returns have been ¢.3%.

e Jong term Government bond yields have risen by more than long term expected price inflation, which is
likely to have reduced past service liabilities by 4%

It should be noted that the above is for information only: the figures in this report have all been prepared using
membership data, audited asset information and market-based assumptions all as at 31 March 2013. In
particular, we do not propose amending any of the contribution rates listed in the Rates & Adjustments
Certificate on the basis of these market changes, and all employer contribution rates are based on valuation
date market conditions. In addition, these rates are finalised within a risk-measured framework as laid out in the
Fund’s Funding Strategy Statement (FSS).

We do not propose altering the FSS to include allowance for post-valuation date market changes, since this
principle would then need to be adopted for future valuations even if markets had worsened since the valuation
date (thus increasing contribution rates). Such a change in principle would then obstruct advance planning by
employers. Only allowing for market changes where these reduced contribution rates, and not where they
increased the rates, would not be consistent with prudent financial management of the Fund.

Other events
Other than investment conditions changes above, | am not aware of any material changes or events occurring
since the valuation date.

March 2014



2013 VALUATION — VALUATION REPORT

Appendix G: Rates and adjustments certificate

In accordance with regulation 36(1) of the Administration Regulations we have made an assessment of the
contributions that should be paid into the Fund by participating employers for the period 1 April 2014 to 31
March 2017 in order to maintain the solvency of the Fund.

The method and assumptions used to calculate the contributions set out in the Rates and Adjustments
certificate are detailed in the Funding Strategy Statement dated TBC and our report on the actuarial valuation
dated TBC.

The required minimum contribution rates are set out in the table below,

Signature:

Date: 03 March 2014

Name: Douglas Green

Qualification: Fellow of the Institute and
Faculty of Actuaries

Firm: Hymans Robertson LLP

20 Waterloo Street
Glasgow

G2 6DB

March 2014



2013 VALUATION — VALUATION REPORT

Statement to the rates and adjustments certificate

The Common Rate of Contribution payable by each employing authority under regulation 36(4)(a) of the
Administration Regulations for the period 1 April 2014 to 31 March 2017 is 35.5% of pensionable pay (as

defined in Appendix B).

Individual Adjustments are required under regulation 36(4)(b) of the Administration Regulations for the period 1
April 2014 to 31 March 2017 resulting in Minimum Total Contribution Rates expressed as a percentage of

pensionable pay are as set out below.

The contributions shown include expenses and the expected cost of lump sum death benefits but exclude early
retirement strain and augmentation costs which are payable by Fund employers in addition.

Employer

Contributions currently

Minimum Contributions for the Year Ending

31 March 2015

31 March 2016

31 March 2017

code |Employer name
1 Haringey Council (Pool) *

being paid in 2013/14

22.9%

17.1% plus £6,905,000

17.1% plus £7,731,000

17.1% plus £8,616,000

3 Age Concern Haringey

33.8%

27.1% plus £62,000

27.1% plus £65,000

27.1% plus £68,000

5 College of Enfield and North East London

17.2% plus £662,000

20.7% plus £412,000

20.7% plus £429,000

20.7% plus £448,000

7 Haringey Citizens Advice Bureaux

21.7% plus £23,000

25.4% plus £54,000

25.4% plus £56,000

25.4% plus £59,000

8 Alexandra Palace Trading Co Ltd

23.0% plus £43,000

27.2% plus £44,000

27.2% plus £46,000

27.2% plus £48,000

11 Urban Futures London Ltd

19.5% plus £30,000

21.6% plus £23,000

21.6% plus £24,000

21.6% plus £25,000

13 Greig City Academy

16.8% plus £8,000

18.9% plus £15,000

18.9% plus £16,000

18.9% plus £16,000

18 Homes for Haringey *

18.3% plus £74,000

20.6% plus £417,000

20.6% plus £435,000

20.6% plus £453,000

19 John Loughborough 18.9% 20.4% 20.4% 20.4%
20 TLC at Coopercroft 25.4% 26.6% 26.6% 26.6%
22 Fortismere School 19.2% plus £27,000 20.4% plus £29,000 20.4% plus £31,000 20.4% plus £32,000
27 Veolia (Waste Management) 22.1% 26.4% 26.4% 26.4%
28 Alexandra Park School 22.1% 22.3% plus £46,000 22.3% plus £48,000 22.3% plus £50,000
29 Woodside Academy 24.8% 20.0% plus £23,000 20.0% plus £24,000 20.0% plus £25,000
30 Eden Free School 22.9% 19.4% 19.4% 19.4%
31 Churchill Cleaning 21.2% 22.9% plus £5,000 22.9% 22.9%
32 Coleraine 26.8% 21.6% plus £7,000 21.6% plus £8,000 21.6% plus £8,000
33 Downhills 27.9% 21.3% plus £8,000 21.3% plus £8,000 21.3% plus £8,000
34 Nightingale 28.5% 22.2% plus £13,000 22.2% plus £14,000 22.2% plus £14,000
35 Noel Park 26.2% 20.8% plus £16,000 20.8% plus £17,000 20.8% plus £18,000
36 Sports and Leisure 20.6% 22.1% 22.1% 22.1%
37 Cleaning contract 25.3% 24.6% 24.6% 24.6%
38 Haringey Sixth Form College 25.5% 18.7% plus £29,000 18.7% plus £31,000 18.7% plus £32,000
39 St Pauls All Hallows CofE Infants 26.3% 23.2% 23.2% 23.2%
40 St Pauls All Hallows CofE Junior 23.1% 23.2% 23.2% 23.2%
41 St Michaels CofE 24.5% 23.2% 23.2% 23.2%
42 St Annes CofE 25.9% 23.2% 23.2% 23.2%
43 Holy Trinity CE Primary School 27.2% 23.2% 23.2% 23.2%
44 Hartsbrook E- ACT Free School 17.6% 16.2% 16.2% 16.2%
45 St Thomas More 30.8% 22.3% plus £30,000 22.3% plus £31,000 22.3% plus £33,000

Haringey Council and Homes for Haringey will initially pay contributions of 23.9% for 2014/15, 24.4% for

2015/16 and 24.9% for 2016/17. If these total rates contribute less than the rates certified above (made up of
a percentage of pay and cash contribution) then the amount to be paid will be adjusted accordingly. This will

be monitored on a quarterly basis.

March 2014



Page 54

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 55

LONDON BOROUGH OF HARINGEY PENSION FUND

HYMANS ROBERTSON LLP

London Borough of Haringey Pension Fund
Funding Strategy Statement

March 2014

DRAFT Funding Strategy Statement

1 Introduction

2 Basic Funding issues

3  Calculating contributions for individual Employers
4 Funding strategy and links to investment strategy
Appendices

Appendix A — Regulatory framework

Appendix B — Responsibilities of key parties

Appendix C — Key risks and controls

Appendix D — The calculation of Employer contributions
Appendix E — Actuarial assumptions

Appendix F — Glossary

Contents

PAGE

R N SN

18
20
22
26
29
31

March 2014
E:\MODERNGOV\DATA\AGENDAITEMDOCS\9\5\4\A100036459\$HCQR1IMR.DOCX



Page 56

LONDON BOROUGH OF HARINGEY PENSION FUND 001

HYMANS ROBERTSON LLP

1 Introduction

1.1 What is this document?
This is the Funding Strategy Statement (FSS) of the London Borough of Haringey Pension Fund (“the Fund”),
which is administered by the London Borough of Haringey, (“the Administering Authority”).

It has been prepared by the Administering Authority in collaboration with the Fund’s actuary, Hymans Robertson
LLP, and after consultation with the Fund’s employers and advisers. It is effective from 1 April 2014.

1.2 What is the London Borough of Haringey Pension Fund?

The Fund is part of the national Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS). The LGPS was set up by the UK
Government to provide retirement and death benefits for local government employees, and those employed in
similar or related bodies, across the whole of the UK. The Administering Authority runs the London Borough of
Haringey Fund, in effect the LGPS for the Haringey area, to make sure it:

° receives the proper amount of contributions from employees and employers, and any transfer payments;

° invests the contributions appropriately, with the aim that the Fund’s assets grow over time with investment
income and capital growth;

° uses the assets to pay Fund benefits to the members (as and when they retire, for the rest of their lives),
and to their dependants (as and when members die), as defined in the LGPS Regulations. Assets are
also used to pay transfer values and administration costs.

The roles and responsibilities of the key parties involved in the management of the Fund are summarised in
Appendix B.

1.3 Why does the Fund need a Funding Strategy Statement?

Employees’ benefits are guaranteed by the LGPS Regulations, and do not change with market values or
employer contributions. Investment returns will help pay for some of the benefits, but probably not all, and
certainly with no guarantee. Employees’ contributions are fixed in those Regulations also, at a level which
covers only part of the cost of the benefits.

Therefore, employers need to pay the balance of the cost of delivering the benefits to members and their
dependants.

The FSS focuses on how employer liabilities are measured, the pace at which these liabilities are funded, and
how employers or pools of employers pay for their own liabilities. This statement sets out how the Administering
Authority has balanced the conflicting aims of:

° affordability of employer contributions,

o transparency of processes,

° stability of employers’ contributions, and
° prudence in the funding basis.

There are also regulatory requirements for an FSS, as given in Appendix A.

The FSS is a summary of the Fund’s approach to funding its liabilities, and this includes reference to the Fund’s
other policies; it is not an exhaustive statement of policy on all issues. The FSS forms part of a framework of
which includes:

° the LGPS Regulations;

March 2014
E:\MODERNGOV\DATA\AGENDAITEMDOCS\9\5\4\A100036459\$HCQR1IMR.DOCX



Page 57

LONDON BOROUGH OF HARINGEY PENSION FUND 002

HYMANS ROBERTSON LLP

° the Rates and Adjustments Certificate (confirming employer contribution rates for the next three years)
which can be found in an appendix to the formal valuation report;

° actuarial factors for valuing individual transfers, early retirement costs and the costs of buying added
service; and
° the Fund’s Statement of Investment Principles (see Section 4).

1.4 How does the Fund and this FSS affect me?
This depends who you are:

° a member of the Fund, i.e. a current or former employee, or a dependant: the Fund needs to be sure it is
collecting and holding enough money so that your benefits are always paid in full;

° an employer in the Fund (or which is considering joining the Fund): you will want to know how your
contributions are calculated from time to time, that these are fair by comparison to other employers in the
Fund, and in what circumstances you might need to pay more. Note that the FSS applies to all
employers participating in the Fund;

o an Elected Member: you will want to be sure that the council balances the need to hold prudent reserves
for members’ retirement and death benefits, with the other competing demands for council money;

° a Council Tax payer: your council seeks to strike the balance above, and also to minimise cross-subsidies
between different generations of taxpayers.

1.5 What does the FSS aim to do?
The FSS sets out the funding strategy objectives, which are:

° to ensure the long-term solvency of the Fund, using a prudent long term view. This will ensure that
sufficient funds are available to meet all members’/dependants’ benefits as they fall due for payment;

° to ensure that employer contribution rates are reasonably stable where appropriate;

° to minimise the long-term cash contributions which employers need to pay to the Fund, by recognising
the link between assets and liabilities and adopting an investment strategy which balances risk and return
(NB this will also minimise the costs to be borne by Council Tax payers);

° to reflect the different characteristics of different employers in determining contribution rates. This
involves the Fund having a clear and transparent funding strategy to demonstrate how each employer
can best meet its own liabilities over future years; and

° to use reasonable measures to reduce the risk to other employers and ultimately to the Council Tax payer
from an employer defaulting on its pension obligations.

1.6 How do | find my way around this document?
In Section 2 there is a brief introduction to some of the main principles behind funding, i.e. deciding how much
an employer should contribute to the Fund from time to time.

In Section 3 we outline how the Fund calculates the contributions payable by different employers in different
situations.

In Section 4 we show how the funding strategy is linked with the Fund’s investment strategy.
In the Appendices we cover various issues in more detail:

A. the regulatory background, including how and when the FSS is reviewed,

March 2014
E:\MODERNGOV\DATA\AGENDAITEMDOCS\9\5\4\A100036459\$HCQR1IMR.DOCX



Page 58

LONDON BOROUGH OF HARINGEY PENSION FUND 003

HYMANS ROBERTSON LLP

m o O @

F.

who is responsible for what,

what issues the Fund needs to monitor, and how it manages its risks,
some more details about the actuarial calculations required,

the assumptions which the Fund actuary currently makes about the future,

a glossary explaining the technical terms occasionally used here.

If you have any other queries please contact George Bruce, Head of Finance: Treasury & Pensions in the first
instance at e-mail address george.bruce@haringey.gov.uk or on telephone number 02084893726.

March 2014
E:\MODERNGOV\DATA\AGENDAITEMDOCS\9\5\4\A100036459\$HCQR1IMR.DOCX



Page 59

LONDON BOROUGH OF HARINGEY PENSION FUND 004

HYMANS ROBERTSON LLP

2 Basic Funding issues
(More detailed and extensive descriptions are given in Appendix D).

2.1 How does the actuary calculate a contribution rate?
Employer contributions are normally made up of two elements:

a) the estimated cost of future benefits being built up from year to year, referred to as the “future service
rate”; plus

b) an adjustment for the difference between the assets built up to date and the value of past service
benefits, referred to as the “past service adjustment’. If there is a deficit the past service adjustment will
be an increase in the employer’s total contribution; if there is a surplus there may be a reduction in the
employer’s total contribution. Any past service adjustment will aim to return the employer to full funding
over an appropriate period (the “deficit recovery period”).

2.2 How is a deficit (or surplus) calculated?
An employer’s “funding level” is defined as the ratio of:

° the market value of the employer’s share of assets, to

° the value placed by the actuary on the benefits built up to date for the employer’s employees and ex-
employees (the “liabilities”). The Fund actuary agrees with the Administering Authority the assumptions
to be used in calculating this value.

If this is less than 100% then it means the employer has a shortfall, which is the employer’s deficit; if it is more
than 100% then the employer is said to be in surplus. The amount of deficit or shortfall is the difference
between the asset value and the liabilities value.

A larger deficit will give rise to higher employer contributions. If a deficit is spread over a longer period then the
annual employer cost is lower than if it is spread over a shorter period.

2.3 How are contribution rates calculated for different employers?

The Fund’s actuary is required by the Regulations to report the Common Contribution Rate, for all employers
collectively at each triennial valuation, combining items (a) and (b) above. This is based on actuarial
assumptions about the likelihood, size and timing of benefit payments to be made from the Fund in the future,
as outlined in Appendix E.

The Fund’s actuary is also required to adjust the Common Contribution Rate for circumstances specific to each
individual employer. The sorts of specific circumstances which are considered are discussed in Section 3. Itis
this adjusted contribution rate which the employer is actually required to pay, and the rates for all employers are
shown in the Fund’s Rates and Adjustments Certificate.

In effect, the Common Contribution Rate is a notional quantity, as it is unlikely that any employer will pay that
exact rate. Separate future service rates are calculated for each employer together with individual past service
adjustments according to employer-specific circumstances.

Details of the outcome of the Actuarial Valuation as at 31 March 2013 can be found in the formal valuation
report dated [TBC], including an analysis at Fund Level of the Common Contribution Rate. Further details of
individual employer contribution rates can also be found in the formal report.

March 2014
E:\MODERNGOV\DATA\AGENDAITEMDOCS\9\5\4\A100036459\$HCQR1IMR.DOCX



Page 60

LONDON BOROUGH OF HARINGEY PENSION FUND 005
HYMANS ROBERTSON LLP

2.4 What else might affect the employer’s contribution?
Employer covenant and likely term of membership are also considered when setting contributions: more details
are given in Section 3.

For some employers it may be agreed to pool contributions, see 3.4.
Any costs of non ill-health early retirements must be paid by the employer, see 3.6.

If an employer is approaching the end of its participation in the Fund then its contributions may be amended
appropriately, so that the assets meet (as closely as possible) the value of its liabilities in the Fund when its
participation ends.

Employers’ contributions are expressed as minima, with employers able to pay contributions at a higher rate.
Account of the higher rate will be taken by the Fund Actuary at subsequent valuations.

2.5 What different types of employer participate in the Fund?

Historically the LGPS was intended for local authority employees only. However over the years, with the
diversification and changes to delivery of local services, many more types and numbers of employers now
participate. There are currently more employers in the Fund than ever before, a significant part of this being
due to new academies.

In essence, participation in the LGPS is open to public sector employers providing some form of service to the
local community. Whilst the majority of members will be local authority employees (and ex-employees), the
majority of participating employers are those providing services in place of (or alongside) local authority
services: academy schools, contractors, housing associations, charities, etc.

The LGPS Regulations define various types of employer as follows:

Scheduled bodies — The Council and other specified employers such as academies and further education
establishments. These must provide access to the LGPS in respect of their employees who are not eligible to
join another public sector scheme (such as the Teachers Scheme). These employers are so-called because
they are specified in a schedule to the LGPS Regulations.

It is now possible for Local Education Authority schools to convert to academy status, and for other forms of
school (such as Free Schools) to be established under the academies legislation. All such academies, as
employers of non-teaching staff, become separate new employers in the Fund. As academies are defined in
the LGPS Regulations as “Scheduled Bodies”, the Administering Authority has no discretion over whether to
admit them to the Fund, and the academy has no discretion whether to continue to allow its non-teaching staff
to join the Fund. There has also been guidance issued by the DCLG regarding the terms of academies’
membership in LGPS Funds.

Designating employers - employers such as town and parish councils are able to participate in the LGPS via
resolution (and the Fund cannot refuse them entry where the resolution is passed). These employers can
designate which of their employees are eligible to join the scheme.

Other employers are able to participate in the Fund via an admission agreement, and are referred to as
‘admission bodies’. These employers are generally those with a “community of interest” with another scheme
employer — community admission bodies (“CAB”) or those providing a service on behalf of a scheme
employer — transferee admission bodies (“TAB”). CABs will include housing associations and charities, TABs
will generally be contractors. The Fund is able to set its criteria for participation by these employers and can
refuse entry if the requirements as set out in the Fund’s admissions policy are not met.

March 2014
E:\MODERNGOV\DATA\AGENDAITEMDOCS\9\5\4\A100036459\$HCQR1IMR.DOCX



Page 61

LONDON BOROUGH OF HARINGEY PENSION FUND 006

HYMANS ROBERTSON LLP

2.6 How does the Fund recognise that contribution levels can affect council and employer service
provision, and council tax?

The Administering Authority and the Fund actuary are acutely aware that, all other things being equal, a higher

contribution required to be paid to the Fund will mean less cash available for the employer to spend on the

provision of services. Whilst this is true, it should also be borne in mind that:

° The Fund provides invaluable financial security to local families, whether to those who formerly worked in
the service of the local community who have now retired, or to their families after their death;

° The Fund must have the assets available to meet these retirement and death benefits, which in turn
means that the various employers must each pay their own way. Lower contributions today will mean
higher contributions tomorrow: deferring payments does not alter the employer’s ultimate obligation to the
Fund in respect of its current and former employees;

° Each employer will generally only pay for its own employees and ex-employees (and their dependants),
not for those of other employers in the Fund;

° The Fund strives to maintain reasonably stable employer contribution rates where appropriate and
possible;
° The Fund wishes to avoid the situation where an employer falls so far behind in managing its funding

shortfall that its deficit becomes unmanageable in practice: such a situation may lead to employer
insolvency and the resulting deficit falling on the other Fund employers. In that situation, those employers’
services would in turn suffer as a result;

° Council contributions to the Fund should be at a suitable level, to protect the interests of different
generations of council tax payers. For instance, underpayment of contributions for some years will need
to be balanced by overpayment in other years; the council will wish to minimise the extent to which
council tax payers in one period are in effect benefitting at the expense of those paying in a different
period.

Overall, therefore, there is clearly a balance to be struck between the Fund’s need for maintaining prudent
funding levels, and the employers’ need to allocate their resources appropriately. The Fund achieves this
through various techniques which affect contribution increases to various degrees (see 3.1). In deciding which
of these techniques to apply to any given employer, the Fund will consider a risk assessment of that employer
using a knowledge base which is regularly monitored and kept up-to-date. This database will include such
information as the type of employer, its membership profile and funding position, any guarantors or security
provision, material changes anticipated, etc. This helps the Fund establish a picture of the financial standing of
the employer, i.e. its ability to meet its long term Fund commitments.

For instance, where an employer is considered relatively low risk then the Fund will permit greater smoothing
(such as stabilisation or a longer deficit recovery period relative to other employers) which will temporarily
produce lower contribution levels than would otherwise have applied. This is permitted in the expectation that
the employer will still be able to meet its obligations for many years to come.

On the other hand, an employer whose risk assessment indicates a less strong covenant will generally be
required to pay higher contributions (for instance, with a more prudent funding basis or a shorter deficit recovery
period relative to other employers). This is because of the higher probability that at some point it will fail or be
unable to meet its pension contributions, with its deficit in the Fund then falling to other Fund employers.

The Fund actively seeks employer input, including to its funding arrangements, through various means: see
Appendix A.

March 2014
E:\MODERNGOV\DATA\AGENDAITEMDOCS\9\5\4\A100036459\$HCQR1IMR.DOCX



Page 62

LONDON BOROUGH OF HARINGEY PENSION FUND 007

HYMANS ROBERTSON LLP

3 Calculating contributions for individual Employers

3.1 General comments

A key challenge for the Administering Authority is to balance the need for stable, affordable employer
contributions with the requirement to take a prudent, longer-term view of funding and ensure the solvency of the
Fund. With this in mind, there are a number of methods which the Administering Authority may permit, in order
to improve the stability of employer contributions. These include, where circumstances permit:-

° capping of employer contribution rate changes within a pre-determined range (“stabilisation”)

° the use of extended deficit recovery periods

° the phasing in of contribution rises or reductions

° the pooling of contributions amongst employers with similar characteristics

o the use of some form of security or guarantee to justify a lower contribution rate than would otherwise be
the case.

These and associated issues are covered in this Section.

The Administering Authority recognises that there may occasionally be particular circumstances affecting
individual employers that are not easily managed within the rules and policies set out in the Funding Strategy
Statement. Therefore the Administering Authority may, at its sole discretion, direct the actuary to adopt
alternative funding approaches on a case by case basis for specific employers.

3.2 The effect of paying contributions below the theoretical level
Employers which are permitted to use one or more of the above methods will often be paying, for a time,
contributions less than the theoretical contribution rate. Such employers should appreciate that:

o their true long term liability (i.e. the actual eventual cost of benefits payable to their employees and ex-
employees) is not affected by the choice of method,

° lower contributions in the short term will be assumed to incur a greater loss of investment returns on the
deficit. Thus, deferring a certain amount of contribution will lead to higher contributions in the long-term,
and

° it will take longer to reach full funding, all other things being equal.

Overleaf (3.3) is a summary of how the main funding policies differ for different types of employer, followed by
more detailed notes where necessary.

Section 3.4 onwards deals with various other funding issues which apply to all employers.

March 2014
E:\MODERNGOV\DATA\AGENDAITEMDOCS\9\5\4\A100036459\$HCQR1IMR.DOCX



HYMANS ROBERTSON LLP

3.3 The different approaches used for different employers

LONDON BOROUGH OF HARINGEY PENSION FUND

008

Type of employer

Scheduled Bodies

Community Admission Bodies and
Designating Employers

Transferee Admission Bodies

Sub-type Local Academies Colleges Open to new Closed to new (all)
Authorities entrants entrants
Basis used Ongoing, assumes long-term Fund participation Ongoing, but may move to “gilts basis” - Ongoing, assumes fixed contract term in
(see Appendix E) see Note (a) the Fund (see Appendix E)

Future service rate

Projected Unit Credit approach (see Appendix D — D.2)

Attained Age

approach (see
Appendix D — D.2)

Projected Unit Credit approach (see
Appendix D — D.2)

Stabilised rate? Yes - see Yes - see No No No No
Note (b) Note (b)
Maximum deficit 20 years 20 years 20 years 20 years 20 years Outstanding contract term
recovery period —
Note (c)
Deficit recovery Monetary Monetary Monetary Monetary Monetary amount Monetary amount
payments — Note (d) amount amount amount amount
Treatment of surplus | Covered by Covered by Preferred approach: contributions kept at future service rate. Reduce contributions by spreading the
stabilisation stabilisation However, reductions may be permitted by the surplus over the remaining contract term
arrangement arrangement Administering Authority
Phasing of Covered by Covered by 3 years 3 years 3 years None
contribution changes | stabilisation stabilisation - Note (e) - Note (e) - Note (e)
arrangement arrangement

Review of rates —

Administering Authority reserves the right to review

contribution rates and amounts, and the

Particularly reviewed in last 3 years of

Note (f) level of security provided, at regular intervals between valuations contract
New employer n/a ‘ Note (9) | n/a Note (h) Notes (h) & (i)

Cessation of

Cessation is assumed not to be generally possible,

Can be ceased subject to terms of

Participation is assumed to expire at the

E:\MODERNGOV\DATA\AGENDAITEMDOCS\9\5\4\A100036459\$HCQR1IMR.DOCX

participation: as Scheduled Bodies are legally obliged to admission agreement. Cessation debt end of the contract. Cessation debt (if
cessation debt participate in the LGPS. In the rare event of will be calculated on a basis appropriate any) calculated on ongoing basis.
payable cessation occurring (machinery of Government to the circumstances of cessation —see | Awarding Authority will be liable for future
changes for example), the cessation debt principles Note (j). deficits and contributions arising.
applied would be as per Note (j).
March 2014

cg abed



Page 64

LONDON BOROUGH OF HARINGEY PENSION FUND 009
HYMANS ROBERTSON LLP

Note (a) (Basis for CABs and Designating Employers closed to new entrants)

In the circumstances where:

° the employer is a Designating Employer, or an Admission Body but not a Transferee Admission Body,
and

° the employer has no guarantor, and

° the admission agreement is likely to terminate, or the employer is likely to lose its last active member,

within a timeframe considered appropriate by the Administering Authority to prompt a change in funding,

the Administering Authority may vary the discount rate used to set employer contribution rate. In particular
contributions may be set for an employer to achieve full funding on a more prudent basis (e.g. using a discount
rate set equal to gilt yields) by the time the agreement terminates or the last active member leaves, in order to
protect other employers in the Fund. This policy will increase regular contributions and reduce, but not entirely
eliminate, the possibility of a final deficit payment being required from the employer when a cessation valuation
is carried out.

The Administering Authority also reserves the right to adopt the above approach in respect of those Designating
Employers and Admission Bodies with no guarantor, where the strength of covenant is considered to be weak
but there is no immediate expectation that the admission agreement will cease or the Designating Employer
alters its designation.

Note (b) (Stabilisation)

Stabilisation is a mechanism where employer contribution rate variations from year to year are kept within a pre-
determined range, thus allowing those employers’ rates to be relatively stable. In the interests of stability and
affordability of employer contributions, the Administering Authority, on the advice of the Fund Actuary, believes
that stabilising contributions can still be viewed as a prudent longer-term approach. However, employers whose
contribution rates have been “stabilised” (and may therefore be paying less than their theoretical contribution
rate) should be aware of the risks of this approach and should consider making additional payments to the Fund
if possible.

This stabilisation mechanism allows short term investment market volatility to be managed so as not to cause
volatility in employer contribution rates, on the basis that a long term view can be taken on net cash inflow,
investment returns and strength of employer covenant.

The current stabilisation mechanism applies if:

° the employer satisfies the eligibility criteria set by the Administering Authority (see below) and;

° there are no material events which cause the employer to become ineligible, e.g. significant reductions in
active membership (due to outsourcing or redundancies), or changes in the nature of the employer
(perhaps due to Government restructuring).

On the basis of extensive modelling carried out for the 2013 valuation exercise (see Section 4), the stabilised
details are as follows:

March 2014
E:\MODERNGOV\DATA\AGENDAITEMDOCS\9\5\4\A100036459\$HCQR1IMR.DOCX



Page 65

LONDON BOROUGH OF HARINGEY PENSION FUND 010

HYMANS ROBERTSON LLP

Type of employer Council Academy

Starting rate* 23.9% (as at 1% April 2014) Calculated by the Actuary at
date of academy conversion

Max contribution increase +1% of pay TBC

Max contribution decrease -1% of pay TBC

*In practice, contribution rates will show the future service rate based on a percentage of pay and the past service
adjustment as a monetary amount.

The stabilisation criteria and limits will be reviewed at the 31 March 2016 valuation, to take effect from 1 April
2017. This will take into account the employer’s membership profiles, the issues surrounding employer security,
and other relevant factors.

Note (c) (Deficit Recovery Periods)

The deficit recovery period starts at the commencement of the revised contribution rate (1 April 2014 for the
2013 valuation). The Administering Authority would normally expect the same target date for full funding to be
used at successive triennial valuations, but would reserve the right to propose alternative spreading periods, for
example where there were no new entrants.

Where stabilisation applies, the resulting employer contribution rate would be amended to comply with the
stabilisation mechanism.

For employers with no (or very few) active members at this valuation, the deficit should be recovered by a fixed
monetary amount over a prudent period to be agreed with the body or its successor.

For academies where written notice has been served terminating their funding agreement with the Department
for Education, the period is reduced to the period of notice (with immediate effect).

For Community Admission Bodies without a guarantor, the period will generally be equal to the average future
working lifetime of their active employee members.

Note (d) (Deficit Recovery Payments)

The Administering Authority reserves the right to amend the deficit recovery payments between valuations
and/or to require these payments in monetary terms (if they are paid in percentage of pay terms), for instance
where:

° the employer is relatively mature, i.e. has a large deficit recovery contribution rate (e.g. above 15% of
payroll), in other words its payroll is a smaller proportion of its deficit than is the case for most other
employers, or

° there has been a significant reduction in payroll due to outsourcing or redundancy exercises, or
o the employer has closed the Fund to new entrants.

Note (e) (Phasing in of contribution changes)

All phasing is subject to the Administering Authority being satisfied as to the strength of the employer’s
covenant.

March 2014
E:\MODERNGOV\DATA\AGENDAITEMDOCS\9\5\4\A100036459\$HCQR1IMR.DOCX



Page 66

LONDON BOROUGH OF HARINGEY PENSION FUND 011

HYMANS ROBERTSON LLP

Normally the Fund will require the employer to pay at least its future service rate each year.
Employers which have no active members at this valuation will not be phased.
Note (f) (Regular Reviews)

Such reviews may be triggered by significant events including but not limited to: significant reductions in payroll,
altered employer circumstances, Government restructuring affecting the employer’s business, or failure to pay
contributions or arrange appropriate security as required by the Administering Authority.

The result of a review may be to require increased contributions (by strengthening the actuarial assumptions
adopted and/or moving to monetary levels of deficit recovery contributions), and/or an increased level of security
or guarantee.

Note (g) (New Academy employers)
At the time of writing, the Fund’s policies on academies’ funding issues are as follows:

a) The new academy will be regarded as a separate employer in its own right and will not be pooled with
other employers in the Fund. The only exception is where the academy is part of a Multi Academy Trust
(MAT) in which case the academy’s figures will be calculated as below but can be combined with those of
the other academies in the MAT;

b) The new academy’s past service liabilities on conversion will be calculated based on its active Fund
members on the day before conversion. For the avoidance of doubt, these liabilities will include all past
service of those members, but will exclude the liabilities relating to any ex-employees of the school who
have deferred or pensioner status;

c) The new academy will be allocated an initial asset share from the ceding council’s assets in the Fund.
This asset share will be calculated using the estimated funding position of the ceding council at the date
of academy conversion. The share will be based on the active members’ funding level, having first
allocated assets in the council’s share to fully fund deferred and pensioner members. The asset
allocation will be based on market conditions and the academy’s active Fund membership on the day
prior to conversion;

d) The new academy’s initial contribution rate will be calculated using market conditions, the council funding
position and, membership data, all as at the day prior to conversion.

The Fund’s policies on academies are subject to change in the light of any amendments to DCLG guidance.
Any changes will be notified to academies, and will be reflected in a subsequent version of this FSS. In
particular, policies (d) and (e) above will be reconsidered at each valuation.

Note (h) (New Admission Bodies)

With effect from 1 October 2012, the LGPS 2012 Miscellaneous Regulations introduced mandatory new
requirements for all Admission Bodies brought into the Fund from that date. Under these Regulations, all new
Admission Bodies will be required to provide some form of security, such as a guarantee from the letting
employer, an indemnity or a bond. The security is required to cover some or all of the following:

° the strain cost of any redundancy early retirements resulting from the premature termination of the
contract;
° allowance for the risk of asset underperformance;
March 2014

E:\MODERNGOV\DATA\AGENDAITEMDOCS\9\5\4\A100036459\$HCQR1IMR.DOCX



Page 67

LONDON BOROUGH OF HARINGEY PENSION FUND 012
HYMANS ROBERTSON LLP

° allowance for the risk of a fall in gilt yields;
° allowance for the possible non-payment of employer and member contributions to the Fund;
° the current deficit.

For all new Transferee Admission Bodies, the security must be to the satisfaction of the Administering Authority
as well as the letting employer, and will be reassessed on an annual basis.

The Administering Authority will only consider future requests from Community Admission Bodies (or other
similar bodies, such as section 75 NHS partnerships) to join the Fund if they are sponsored by a Scheduled
Body with tax raising powers, guaranteeing their liabilities and also providing a form of security as above.

The above approaches reduce the risk to other employers in the Fund, of potentially having to pick up any
shortfall in respect of Admission Bodies ceasing with an unpaid deficit.

Note (i) (New Transferee Admission Bodies)

A new TAB usually joins the Fund as a result of the letting/outsourcing of some services from an existing
employer (normally a Scheduled Body such as the council or an academy) to another organisation (a
“contractor”). This involves the TUPE transfer of some staff from the letting employer to the contractor.
Consequently, for the duration of the contract, the contractor is a new participating employer in the Fund so that
the transferring employees maintain their eligibility for LGPS membership. At the end of the contract the
employees revert to the letting employer or to a replacement contractor.

Ordinarily, the TAB would be set up in the Fund as a new employer with responsibility for all the accrued
benefits of the transferring employees; in this case, the contractor would usually be assigned an initial asset
allocation equal to the past service liability value of the employees’ Fund benefits. The quid pro quo is that the
contractor is then expected to ensure that its share of the Fund is also fully funded at the end of the contract:

see Note (j).

Employers which “outsource” have flexibility in the way that they can deal with the pension risk potentially taken
on by the contractor. In particular there are three different routes that such employers may wish to adopt.
Clearly as the risk ultimately resides with the employer letting the contract, it is for them to agree the appropriate
route with the contractor:

i) Pooling

Under this option the contractor is pooled with the letting employer. In this case, the contractor pays the same
rate as the letting employer, which is may be under the stabilisation approach.

ii) Letting employer retains pre-contract risks

Under this option the letting employer would retain responsibility for assets and liabilities in respect of service
accrued prior to the contract commencement date. The contractor would be responsible for the future liabilities
that accrue in respect of transferred staff. The contractor’'s contribution rate could vary from one valuation to the
next. It would be liable for any deficit at the end of the contract term in respect of assets and liabilities
attributable to service accrued during the contract term.

iii) Fixed contribution rate agreed

Under this option the contractor pays a fixed contribution rate and doesn’t pay any cessation deficit.

March 2014
E:\MODERNGOV\DATA\AGENDAITEMDOCS\9\5\4\A100036459\$HCQR1IMR.DOCX



Page 68

LONDON BOROUGH OF HARINGEY PENSION FUND 013
HYMANS ROBERTSON LLP

The Administering Authority is willing to administer any of the above options as long as the approach is
documented in the Admission Agreement as well as the transfer agreement. The Admission Agreement should
ensure that some element of risk transfers to the contractor where it relates to their decisions and it is unfair to
burden the letting employer with that risk. For example the contractor should typically be responsible for
pension costs that arise from;

° above average pay increases, including the effect in respect of service prior to contract commencement
even if the letting employer takes on responsibility for the latter under (ii) above;

° redundancy and early retirement decisions.

Note (j) (Admission Bodies Ceasing)

Notwithstanding the provisions of the Admission Agreement, the Administering Authority may consider any of
the following as triggers for the cessation of an admission agreement with any type of body:

° Last active member ceasing participation in the Fund;
° The insolvency, winding up or liquidation of the Admission Body;
° Any breach by the Admission Body of any of its obligations under the Agreement that they have failed to

remedy to the satisfaction of the Fund,;

° A failure by the Admission Body to pay any sums due to the Fund within the period required by the Fund,;
or

° The failure by the Admission Body to renew or adjust the level of the bond or indemnity, or to confirm an
appropriate alternative guarantor, as required by the Fund.

On cessation, the Administering Authority will instruct the Fund actuary to carry out a cessation valuation to
determine whether there is any deficit or surplus. Where there is a deficit, payment of this amount in full would
normally be sought from the Admission Body; where there is a surplus it should be noted that current legislation
does not permit a refund payment to the Admission Body.

For non-Transferee Admission Bodies whose participation is voluntarily ended either by themselves or the
Fund, or where a cessation event has been triggered, the Administering Authority must look to protect the
interests of other ongoing employers. The actuary will therefore adopt an approach which, to the extent
reasonably practicable, protects the other employers from the likelihood of any material loss emerging in future:

a) Where there is a guarantor for future deficits and contributions, the cessation valuation will normally be
calculated using the ongoing basis as described in Appendix E;

b) Alternatively, it may be possible to simply transfer the former Admission Body’s liabilities and assets to
the guarantor, without needing to crystallise any deficit. This approach may be adopted where the
employer cannot pay the contributions due, and this is within the terms of the guarantee;

c) Where a guarantor does not exist then, in order to protect other employers in the Fund, the cessation
liabilities and final deficit will normally be calculated using a “gilts cessation basis”, which is more prudent
than the ongoing basis. This has no allowance for potential future investment outperformance above gilt
yields, and has added allowance for future improvements in life expectancy. This could give rise to
significant cessation debts being required.

Under (a) and (c), any shortfall would usually be levied on the departing Admission Body as a single lump sum
payment. If this is not possible then the Fund would look to any bond, indemnity or guarantee in place for the
employer.

March 2014
E:\MODERNGOV\DATA\AGENDAITEMDOCS\9\5\4\A100036459\$HCQR1IMR.DOCX



Page 69

LONDON BOROUGH OF HARINGEY PENSION FUND 014

HYMANS ROBERTSON LLP

In the event that the Fund is not able to recover the required payment in full, then the unpaid amounts fall to be
shared amongst all of the other employers in the Fund. This may require an immediate revision to the Rates
and Adjustments Certificate affecting other employers in the Fund, or instead be reflected in the contribution
rates set at the next formal valuation following the cessation date.

As an alternative, where the ceasing Admission Body is continuing in business, the Fund at its absolute
discretion reserves the right to enter into an agreement with the ceasing Admission Body. Under this
agreement the Fund would accept an appropriate alternative security to be held against any deficit, and would
carry out the cessation valuation on an ongoing basis: deficit recovery payments would be derived from this
cessation debt. This approach would be monitored as part of each triennial valuation: the Fund reserves the
right to revert to a “gilts cessation basis” and seek immediate payment of any funding shortfall identified. The
Administering Authority may need to seek legal advice in such cases, as the Body would have no contributing
members.

3.4 Pooled contributions

From time to time the Administering Authority may set up pools for employers with similar characteristics. This
will always be in line with its broader funding strategy. The pooling of contributions is a way of sharing
experience and smoothing out the effects of costly but relatively rare events such as ill-health retirements or
deaths in service.

Haringey Council may be pooled with the legacy liabilities and assets following cessation of an employer.
Schools generally are also pooled with the Council, however there may be exceptions for specialist or
independent schools.

In general, the Administering Authority does not permit other pools, but will consider new proposals on a case
by case basis.

Those employers which have been pooled are identified in the Rates and Adjustments Certificate.

3.5 Additional flexibility in return for added security

The Administering Authority may permit greater flexibility to the employer’s contributions if the employer
provides added security to the satisfaction of the Administering Authority.

Such flexibility includes a reduced rate of contribution, an extended deficit recovery period, or permission to join
a pool with another body (e.g. the Local Authority).

Such security may include, but is not limited to, a suitable bond, a legally-binding guarantee from an appropriate
third party, or security over an employer asset of sufficient value.

The degree of flexibility given may take into account factors such as:

° the extent of the employer’s deficit;

° the amount and quality of the security offered;

° the employer’s financial security and business plan;

° whether the admission agreement is likely to be open or closed to new entrants.

3.6 Nonill health early retirement costs

It is assumed that members’ benefits are payable from the earliest age that the employee could retire without
incurring a reduction to their benefit (and without requiring their employer’s consent to retire). (NB the relevant
age may be different for different periods of service, following the benefit changes from April 2008 and April

March 2014
E:\MODERNGOV\DATA\AGENDAITEMDOCS\9\5\4\A100036459\$HCQR1IMR.DOCX



Page 70

LONDON BOROUGH OF HARINGEY PENSION FUND 015

HYMANS ROBERTSON LLP

2014). Employers are required to pay additional contributions (‘strain’) wherever an employee retires before
attaining this age. The actuary’s funding basis makes no allowance for premature retirement except on grounds
of ill-health.

Normally the payment is payable as a single lump sum and is not spread.

3.7 lll health early retirement costs

Admitted Bodies will usually have an ‘ill health allowance’; Scheduled Bodies may have this also, depending on
their agreement terms with the Administering Authority. The Fund monitors each employer’s ill health
experience on an ongoing basis. If the cumulative cost of ill health retirement in any financial year exceeds the
allowance at the previous valuation, the employer will be charged additional contributions on the same basis as
apply for non ill-health cases. Details will be included in each separate Admission Agreement.

3.8 Il health insurance

If an employer holds satisfactory current insurance policy covering ill health early retirement strains the
Administering Authority may agree to waive some or all of the ill health allowance set out in 3.7.

3.9 Employers with no remaining active members

In general an employer ceasing in the Fund, due to the departure of the last active member, will pay a cessation
debt on an appropriate basis (see 3.3, Note (j)) and consequently have no further obligation to the Fund.
Thereafter it is expected that one of two situations will eventually arise:

a) The employer’s asset share runs out before all its ex-employees’ benefits have been paid. In this situation
the other Fund employers will be required to contribute to pay all remaining benefits: this will be done by
the Fund actuary apportioning the remaining liabilities on a pro-rata basis at successive formal valuations;

b) The last ex-employee or dependant dies before the employer’s asset share has been fully utilised. In this
situation the remaining assets would be apportioned pro-rata by the Fund’s actuary to the other
employers in the Fund.

c) In exceptional circumstances the Fund may permit an employer with no remaining active members to
continue contributing to the Fund. This would require the provision of a suitable security or guarantee, as
well as a written ongoing commitment to fund the remainder of the employer’s obligations over an
appropriate period. The Fund would reserve the right to invoke the cessation requirements in the future,
however. The Administering Authority may need to seek legal advice in such cases, as the employer
would have no contributing members.

3.10 Policies on bulk transfers
Each case will be treated on its own merits, but in general:

° The Fund will not pay bulk transfers greater than the lesser of (a) the asset share of the transferring
employer in the Fund, and (b) the value of the past service liabilities of the transferring members;

° The Fund will not grant added benefits to members bringing in entittements from another Fund unless the
asset transfer is sufficient to meet the added liabilities;

° The Fund may permit shortfalls to arise on bulk transfers if the Fund employer has suitable strength of
covenant and commits to meeting that shortfall in an appropriate period. This may require the employer’s
Fund contributions to increase between valuations.

3.11 Collection of contributions

To avoid loss of income and the administration cost of late payment of contributions, employers will be required
to pay employer and employee contributions by way of direct debits in favour of the pension fund.

March 2014
E:\MODERNGOV\DATA\AGENDAITEMDOCS\9\5\4\A100036459\$HCQR1IMR.DOCX



Page 71

LONDON BOROUGH OF HARINGEY PENSION FUND 016
HYMANS ROBERTSON LLP

4 Funding strategy and links to investment strategy

4.1 What is the Fund’s investment strategy?
The Fund has built up assets over the years, and continues to receive contribution and other income. All of this
must be invested in a suitable manner, which is the investment strategy.

Investment strategy is set by the administering authority, after taking investment advice. The precise mix,
manager make up and target returns are set out in the Statement of Investment Principles (SIP), which is
available to members and employers.

The investment strategy is set for the long-term, but is reviewed from time to time. Normally a full review is
carried out after each actuarial valuation, and is kept under review annually between actuarial valuations to
ensure that it remains appropriate to the Fund’s liability profile.

The same investment strategy is currently followed for all employers.

4.2 What is the link between funding strategy and investment strategy?

The Fund must be able to meet all benefit payments as and when they fall due. These payments will be met by
contributions (resulting from the funding strategy) or asset returns and income (resulting from the investment
strategy). To the extent that investment returns or income fall short, then higher cash contributions are required
from employers, and vice versa

Therefore, the funding and investment strategies are inextricably linked.

4.3 How does the funding strategy reflect the Fund’s investment strategy?

In the opinion of the Fund actuary, the current funding policy is consistent with the current investment strategy of
the Fund. The asset outperformance assumption contained in the discount rate (see E3) is within a range that
would be considered acceptable for funding purposes; it is also considered to be consistent with the

requirement to take a “prudent longer-term view” of the funding of liabilities as required by the UK Government
(see A1).

However, in the short term — such as the three yearly assessments at formal valuations — there is the scope for
considerable volatility and there is a material chance that in the short-term and even medium term, asset returns
will fall short of this target. The stability measures described in Section 3 will damp down, but not remove, the
effect on employers’ contributions.

The Fund does not hold a contingency reserve to protect it against the volatility of equity investments.

44 How does this differ for a large stable employer?

The Actuary has developed four key measures which capture the essence of the Fund’s strategies, both funding
and investment:

° Prudence - the Fund should have a reasonable expectation of being fully funded in the long term;
o Affordability — how much can employers afford;
o Stewardship — the assumptions used should be sustainable in the long term, without having to resort to

overly optimistic assumptions about the future to maintain an apparently healthy funding position;

° Stability — employers should not see significant moves in their contribution rates from one year to the
next, and this will help to provide a more stable budgeting environment.

March 2014
E:\MODERNGOV\DATA\AGENDAITEMDOCS\9\5\4\A100036459\$HCQR1IMR.DOCX



Page 72

LONDON BOROUGH OF HARINGEY PENSION FUND 017

HYMANS ROBERTSON LLP

A particular issue is that the key objectives often conflict. For example, minimising the long term cost of the
scheme (i.e. keeping employer rates affordable) is best achieved by investing in higher returning assets e.g.
equities. However, equities are also very volatile (i.e. go up and down fairly frequently in fairly large moves),
which conflicts with the objective to have stable contribution rates.

Therefore a balance needs to be maintained between risk and reward, which has been considered by the use of
Asset Liability Modelling: this is a set of calculation techniques applied by the Fund’s actuary, to model the
range of potential future solvency levels and contribution rates.

The Actuary was able to model the impact of these four key areas, for the purpose of setting a stabilisation
approach (see 3.3 Note (b)). The modelling demonstrated that retaining the present investment strategy,
coupled with constraining employer contribution rate changes as described in 3.3 Note (b), struck an
appropriate balance between the above objectives. In particular the stabilisation approach currently adopted
meets the need for stability of contributions without jeopardising the Administering Authority’s aims of prudent
stewardship of the Fund.

Whilst the current stabilisation mechanism is to remain in place until 2017, it should be noted that this will need
to be reviewed following the 2016 valuation.

4.5 Does the Fund monitor its overall funding position?

The Administering Authority annually monitors the relative funding position, i.e. changes in the relationship
between asset values and the liabilities value. It reports this to the Corporate Committee.

March 2014
E:\MODERNGOV\DATA\AGENDAITEMDOCS\9\5\4\A100036459\$HCQR1IMR.DOCX



Page 73

LONDON BOROUGH OF HARINGEY PENSION FUND 018
HYMANS ROBERTSON LLP

Appendix A — Regulatory framework

A1 Why does the Fund need an FSS?
The Department for Communities and Local Government (DCLG) has stated that the purpose of the FSS is:

° “to establish a clear and transparent fund-specific strategy which will identify how employers’ pension
liabilities are best met going forward;

° to support the regulatory framework to maintain as nearly constant employer contribution rates as
possible; and

° to take a prudent longer-term view of funding those liabilities.”

These objectives are desirable individually, but may be mutually conflicting.

The requirement to maintain and publish a FSS is contained in LGPS Regulations which are updated from time
to time. In publishing the FSS the Administering Authority has to have regard to any guidance published by
Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) (most recently in 2012) and to its Statement of
Investment Principles.

This is the framework within which the Fund’s actuary carries out triennial valuations to set employers’
contributions and provides recommendations to the Administering Authority when other funding decisions are
required, such as when employers join or leave the Fund. The FSS applies to all employers participating in the
Fund.

A2 Does the Administering Authority consult anyone on the FSS?

Yes. This is required by LGPS Regulations. It is covered in more detail by the most recent CIPFA guidance,
which states that the FSS must first be subject to “consultation with such persons as the authority considers
appropriate”, and should include “a meaningful dialogue at officer and elected member level with council tax
raising authorities and with corresponding representatives of other participating employers”.

In practice, for the Fund, the consultation process for this FSS was as follows:
a) A draft version of the FSS was issued to all participating employers in [DATE] for comment;
b) Comments were requested within [30] days;

c) Following the end of the consultation period the FSS was updated where required and then published, in
[DATE].

A3 How is the FSS published?
The FSS is made available through the following routes:

° Published on the website, at [CLIENT URL];

° A copy sent by [post/e-mail] to each participating employer in the Fund;
° A copy sent to [employee/pensioner] representatives;
° A full copy [included in/linked from] the annual report and accounts of the Fund;
° Copies sent to investment managers and investment advisers;
° Copies made available on request.
March 2014

E:\MODERNGOV\DATA\AGENDAITEMDOCS\9\5\4\A100036459\$HCQR1IMR.DOCX



Page 74

LONDON BOROUGH OF HARINGEY PENSION FUND 019

HYMANS ROBERTSON LLP

A4 How often is the FSS reviewed?
The FSS is reviewed in detail at least every three years as part of the triennial valuation. This version is

expected to remain unaltered until it is consulted upon as part of the formal process for the next valuation in
2016.

It is possible that (usually slight) amendments may be needed within the three year period. These would be
needed to reflect any regulatory changes, or alterations to the way the Fund operates (e.g. to accommodate a
new class of employer). Any such amendments would be consulted upon as appropriate:

° trivial amendments would be simply notified at the next round of employer communications,
o amendments affecting only one class of employer would be consulted with those employers,
° other more significant amendments would be subject to full consultation.

In any event, changes to the FSS would need agreement by the Corporate Committee and would be included in
the relevant Committee Meeting minutes.

A5 How does the FSS fit into other Fund documents?

The FSS is a summary of the Fund’s approach to funding liabilities. It is not an exhaustive statement of policy
on all issues, for example there are a number of separate statements published by the Fund including the
Statement of Investment Principles, Governance Strategy and Communications Strategy. In addition, the Fund
publishes an Annual Report and Accounts with up to date information on the Fund.

These documents can be found on the web at [CLIENT URL].

March 2014
E:\MODERNGOV\DATA\AGENDAITEMDOCS\9\5\4\A100036459\$HCQR1IMR.DOCX



Page 75

LONDON BOROUGH OF HARINGEY PENSION FUND 020

HYMANS ROBERTSON LLP

Appendix B — Responsibilities of key parties

The efficient and effective operation of the Fund needs various parties to each play their part.

B1 The Administering Authority should:-

° operate the Fund as per the LGPS Regulations;

o effectively manage any potential conflicts of interest arising from its dual role as Administering Authority
and a Fund employer;

° collect employer and employee contributions, and investment income and other amounts due to the Fund;

° ensure that cash is available to meet benefit payments as and when they fall due;

° pay from the Fund the relevant benefits and entitlements that are due;

° invest surplus monies (i.e. contributions and other income which are not immediately needed to pay
benefits) in accordance with the Fund’s Statement of Investment Principles (SIP) and LGPS Regulations;

° communicate appropriately with employers so that they fully understand their obligations to the Fund;

° take appropriate measures to safeguard the Fund against the consequences of employer default;

° manage the valuation process in consultation with the Fund’s actuary;

° prepare and maintain a FSS and a SIP, after consultation;

o notify the Fund’s actuary of material changes which could affect funding (this is covered in a separate
agreement with the actuary); and

° monitor all aspects of the fund’s performance and funding and amend the FSS/SIP as necessary and
appropriate.

B2 The Individual Employer should:-

° deduct contributions from employees’ pay correctly;

° pay all contributions, including their own as determined by the actuary, promptly by the due date;

° have a policy and exercise discretions within the regulatory framework;

° make additional contributions in accordance with agreed arrangements in respect of, for example,
augmentation of scheme benefits, early retirement strain; and

° notify the Administering Authority promptly of all changes to its circumstances, prospects or membership,
which could affect future funding.

B3 The Fund Actuary should:-

° prepare valuations, including the setting of employers’ contribution rates. This will involve agreeing
assumptions with the Administering Authority, having regard to the FSS and LGPS Regulations, and
targeting each employer’s solvency appropriately;

° provide advice relating to new employers in the Fund, including the level and type of bonds or other forms
of security (and the monitoring of these);

° prepare advice and calculations in connection with bulk transfers and individual benefit-related matters;

° assist the Administering Authority in considering possible changes to employer contributions between
formal valuations, where circumstances suggest this may be necessary;

March 2014

E:\MODERNGOV\DATA\AGENDAITEMDOCS\9\5\4\A100036459\$HCQR1IMR.DOCX



Page 76

LONDON BOROUGH OF HARINGEY PENSION FUND 021

HYMANS ROBERTSON LLP

° advise on the termination of Admission Bodies’ participation in the Fund; and
° fully reflect actuarial professional guidance and requirements in the advice given to the Administering
Authority.

B4 Other parties:-
° council officers and investment advisers (investment consultant and independent advisor) should ensure
the Fund’s SIP remains appropriate, and consistent with this FSS;

° investment managers, custodians and bankers should all play their part in the effective investment (and
dis-investment) of Fund assets, in line with the SIP;

° auditors should comply with their auditing standards, ensure Fund compliance with all requirements,
monitor and advise on fraud detection, and sign off annual reports and financial statements as required;

° governance advice may be sought by the Administering Authority on efficient structures, processes and
working methods in managing the Fund;

° legal advisers (either internal or external) should ensure the Fund’s operation and management remains
fully compliant with all regulations and broader local government requirements, including the
Administering Authority’s own procedures.

March 2014
E:\MODERNGOV\DATA\AGENDAITEMDOCS\9\5\4\A100036459\$HCQR1IMR.DOCX



Page 77

LONDON BOROUGH OF HARINGEY PENSION FUND

HYMANS ROBERTSON LLP

Appendix C — Key risks and controls

C1 Types of risk

022

The Administering Authority has an active risk management programme in place. The measures that it has in
place to control key risks are summarised below under the following headings:

° financial;

° demographic;

° regulatory; and

o governance.

C2 Financial risks

Risk

Summary of Control Mechanisms

Fund assets fail to deliver returns in line with the
anticipated returns underpinning valuation of
liabilities over the long-term.

Only anticipate long-term return on a relatively prudent
basis to reduce risk of under-performing.

Assets invested on the basis of specialist advice, in a
suitably diversified manner across asset classes,
geographies, managers, etc.

Analyse progress at three yearly valuations for all
employers.

Inter-valuation roll-forward of liabilities between
valuations at whole Fund level.

Inappropriate long-term investment strategy.

Overall investment strategy options considered as an
integral part of the funding strategy. Used asset
liability modelling to measure 4 key outcomes.

Chosen option considered to provide the best balance.

Fall in risk-free returns on Government bonds,
leading to rise in value placed on liabilities.

Stabilisation modelling at whole Fund level allows for
the probability of this within a longer term context.

Inter-valuation monitoring, as above.

Some investment in bonds helps to mitigate this risk.

Active investment manager under-performance
relative to benchmark.

Quarterly investment monitoring analyses market
performance and active managers relative to their
index benchmark.

Pay and price inflation significantly more than

The focus of the actuarial valuation process is on real

anticipated. returns on assets, net of price and pay increases.
Inter-valuation monitoring, as above, gives early
warning.
Some investment in bonds also helps to mitigate this
March 2014

E:\MODERNGOV\DATA\AGENDAITEMDOCS\9\5\4\A100036459\$HCQR1IMR.DOCX



Page 78

LONDON BOROUGH OF HARINGEY PENSION FUND

HYMANS ROBERTSON LLP

023

Risk

Summary of Control Mechanisms

risk.

Employers pay for their own salary awards and should
be mindful of the geared effect on pension liabilities of
any bias in pensionable pay rises towards longer-
serving employees.

Effect of possible increase in employer’s
contribution rate on service delivery and
admission/scheduled bodies

An explicit stabilisation mechanism has been agreed
as part of the funding strategy. Other measures are
also in place to limit sudden increases in contributions.

Orphaned employers give rise to added costs
for the Fund

The Fund seeks a cessation debt (or
security/guarantor) to minimise the risk of this
happening in the future.

If it occurs, the Actuary calculates the added cost
spread pro-rata among all employers — (see 3.9).

C3 Demographic risks

Risk

Summary of Control Mechanisms

Pensioners living longer, thus increasing cost to
Fund.

Set mortality assumptions with some allowance for
future increases in life expectancy.

The Fund Actuary has direct access to the experience
of over 50 LGPS funds which allows early identification
of changes in life expectancy that might in turn affect
the assumptions underpinning the valuation.

Maturing Fund — i.e. proportion of actively
contributing employees declines relative to
retired employees.

Continue to monitor at each valuation, consider
seeking monetary amounts rather than % of pay and
consider alternative investment strategies.

Deteriorating patterns of early retirements

Employers are charged the extra cost of non ill-health
retirements following each individual decision.

Employer ill health retirement experience is monitored,
and insurance is an option.

Reductions in payroll causing insufficient deficit
recovery payments

In many cases this may not be sufficient cause for
concern, and will in effect be caught at the next formal
valuation. However, there are protections where there
is concern, as follows:

Employers in the stabilisation mechanism may be
brought out of that mechanism to permit appropriate
contribution increases (see Note (b) to 3.3).

March 2014

E:\MODERNGOV\DATA\AGENDAITEMDOCS\9\5\4\A100036459\$HCQR1IMR.DOCX



Page 79

LONDON BOROUGH OF HARINGEY PENSION FUND

HYMANS ROBERTSON LLP

024

Risk

Summary of Control Mechanisms

For other employers, review of contributions is
permitted in general between valuations (see Note (f)
to 3.3) and may require a move in deficit contributions
from a percentage of payroll to fixed monetary
amounts.

C4 Regulatory risks

Risk

Summary of Control Mechanisms

Changes to national pension requirements
and/or HMRC rules e.g. changes arising from
public sector pensions reform.

The Administering Authority considers all consultation
papers issued by the Government and comments
where appropriate.

The results of the most recent reforms have been built
into the 2013 valuation. Any changes to member
contribution rates or benefit levels will be carefully
communicated with members to minimise possible opt-
outs or adverse actions.

C5 Governance risks

Risk

Summary of Control Mechanisms

Administering Authority unaware of structural
changes in an employer's membership (e.g.
large fall in employee members, large number of
retirements) or not advised of an employer
closing to new entrants.

The Administering Authority has a close relationship
with employing bodies and communicates required
standards e.g. for submission of data.

The Actuary may revise the rates and Adjustments
certificate to increase an employer’s contributions
(under Regulation 38) between triennial valuations

Deficit contributions may be expressed as monetary
amounts.

Actuarial or investment advice is not sought, or
is not heeded, or proves to be insufficient in
some way

The Administering Authority maintains close contact
with its specialist advisers.

Advice is delivered via formal meetings involving
Elected Members, and recorded appropriately.

Actuarial advice is subject to professional requirements
such as peer review.

Administering Authority failing to commission
the Fund Actuary to carry out a termination
valuation for a departing Admission Body.

The Administering Authority requires employers with
Best Value contractors to inform it of forthcoming
changes.

Community Admission Bodies’ memberships are

March 2014

E:\MODERNGOV\DATA\AGENDAITEMDOCS\9\5\4\A100036459\$HCQR1IMR.DOCX




Page 80

LONDON BOROUGH OF HARINGEY PENSION FUND 025

HYMANS ROBERTSON LLP

Risk Summary of Control Mechanisms

monitored and, if active membership decreases, steps

will be taken.
An employer ceasing to exist with insufficient The Administering Authority believes that it would
funding or adequacy of a bond. normally be too late to address the position if it was left

to the time of departure.
The risk is mitigated by:

Seeking a funding guarantee from another scheme
employer, or external body, where-ever possible (see

Notes (h) and (j) to 3.3).

Alerting the prospective employer to its obligations and
encouraging it to take independent actuarial advice.

Vetting prospective employers before admission.

Where permitted under the regulations requiring a bond
to protect the Fund from various risks.

Requiring new Community Admission Bodies to have a
guarantor.

Reviewing bond or guarantor arrangements at regular
intervals (see Note (f) to 3.3).

Reviewing contributions well ahead of cessation if
thought appropriate (see Note (a) to 3.3).

March 2014
E:\MODERNGOV\DATA\AGENDAITEMDOCS\9\5\4\A100036459\$HCQR1IMR.DOCX



Page 81

LONDON BOROUGH OF HARINGEY PENSION FUND 026

HYMANS ROBERTSON LLP

Appendix D — The calculation of Employer contributions

In Section 2 there was a broad description of the way in which contribution rates are calculated. This Appendix
considers these calculations in much more detail.

The calculations involve actuarial assumptions about future experience, and these are described in detail in
Appendix E.

D1 What is the difference between calculations across the whole Fund and calculations for an
individual employer?
Employer contributions are normally made up of two elements:

a) the estimated cost of future benefits being accrued, referred to as the “future service rate”; plus

b) an adjustment for the funding position of accrued benefits relative to the Fund’s solvency target, “past
service adjustment’. If there is a surplus there may be a reduction in the employer’s contribution rate. If
there is a deficit there will be an increase in the employer’s contribution rate, with the surplus or deficit
spread over an appropriate period. The aim is to return the employer to full funding over that period. See
Section 3 for deficit recovery periods.

The Fund’s actuary is required by the regulations to report the Common Contribution Rate’, for all employers
collectively at each triennial valuation. It combines items (a) and (b) and is expressed as a percentage of pay; it
is in effect an average rate across all employers in the Fund.

The Fund’s actuary is also required to adjust the Common Contribution Rate for circumstances which are
deemed “peculiar” to an individual employerz. It is the adjusted contribution rate which employers are actually
required to pay. The sorts of “peculiar” factors which are considered are discussed below.

In effect, the Common Contribution Rate is a notional quantity. Separate future service rates are calculated for
each employer together with individual past service adjustments according to employer-specific past service
deficit spreading and increased employer contribution phasing periods.

D2 How is the Future Service Rate calculated?

The future service element of the employer contribution rate is calculated with the aim that these contributions
will meet benefit payments in respect of members’ future service in the Fund. This is based upon the cost (in
excess of members’ contributions) of the benefits which employee members earn from their service each year.

The future service rate is calculated separately for all the employers, although employers within a pool will pay
the contribution rate applicable to the pool as a whole. The calculation is on the “ongoing” valuation basis (see
Appendix E), but where it is considered appropriate to do so the Administering Authority reserves the right to set
a future service rate by reference to liabilities valued on a more prudent basis (see Section 3).

The approach used to calculate each employer’s future service contribution rate depends on whether or not new
entrants are being admitted. Employers should note that it is only Admission Bodies and Designating
Employers that may have the power not to automatically admit all eligible new staff to the Fund, depending on
the terms of their Admission Agreements and employment contracts.

' See LGPS (Administration) Regulations 36(5).
2 See LGPS (Administration) Regulations 36(7).

March 2014
E:\MODERNGOV\DATA\AGENDAITEMDOCS\9\5\4\A100036459\$HCQR1IMR.DOCX



Page 82

LONDON BOROUGH OF HARINGEY PENSION FUND 027
HYMANS ROBERTSON LLP

a) Employers which admit new entrants

These rates will be derived using the “Projected Unit Method” of valuation with a one year period, i.e. only
considering the cost of the next year’s benefit accrual and contribution income. If future experience is in line
with assumptions, and the employer’'s membership profile remains stable, this rate should be broadly stable
over time. If the membership of employees matures (e.g. because of lower recruitment) the rate would rise over
time.

b) Employers which do not admit new entrants

To give more long term stability to such employers’ contributions, the “Attained Age” funding method is normally
adopted. This measures benefit accrual and contribution income over the whole future anticipated working
lifetimes of current active employee members.

Both approaches include expenses of administration to the extent that they are borne by the Fund, and include
allowances for benefits payable on death in service and ill health retirement.

D3 How is the Solvency / Funding Level calculated?

The Fund’s actuary is required to report on the “solvency” of the whole Fund in a valuation which should be
carried out at least once every three years. As part of this valuation, the actuary will calculate the solvency
position of each employer.

‘Solvency” is defined to be the ratio of the market value of the employer’s asset share to the value placed on
accrued benefits on the Fund actuary’s chosen assumptions. This quantity is known as a funding level.

For the value of the employer’s asset share, see D5 below.

For the value of benefits, the Fund actuary agrees the assumptions to be used with the Administering Authority
— see Appendix E. These assumptions are used to calculate the present value of all benefit payments expected
in the future, relating to that employer’s current and former employees, based on pensionable service to the
valuation date only (i.e. ignoring further benefits to be built up in the future).

The Fund operates the same target funding level for all employers of 100% of its accrued liabilities valued on
the ongoing basis, unless otherwise determined (see Section 3).

D4 What affects a given employer’s valuation results?
The results of these calculations for a given individual employer will be affected by:

° past contributions relative to the cost of accruals of benefits;

° different liability profiles of employers (e.g. mix of members by age, gender, service vs. salary);

° the effect of any differences in the valuation basis on the value placed on the employer’s liabilities;

° any different deficit/surplus spreading periods or phasing of contribution changes;

° the difference between actual and assumed rises in pensionable pay;

° the difference between actual and assumed increases to pensions in payment and deferred pensions;
° the difference between actual and assumed retirements on grounds of ill-health from active status;

° the difference between actual and assumed amounts of pension ceasing on death;

° the additional costs of any non ill-health retirements relative to any extra payments made;

over the period between each triennial valuation.

March 2014
E:\MODERNGOV\DATA\AGENDAITEMDOCS\9\5\4\A100036459\$HCQR1IMR.DOCX



Page 83

LONDON BOROUGH OF HARINGEY PENSION FUND 028

HYMANS ROBERTSON LLP

Actual investment returns achieved on the Fund between each valuation are applied proportionately across all
employers, to the extent that employers in effect share the same investment strategy. Transfers of liabilities
between employers within the Fund occur automatically within this process, with a sum broadly equivalent to the
reserve required on the ongoing basis being exchanged between the two employers.

D5 How is each employer’s asset share calculated?

The Administering Authority does not account for each employer’s assets separately. Instead, the Fund’s
actuary is required to apportion the assets of the whole Fund between the employers, at each triennial
valuation.

This apportionment uses the income and expenditure figures provided for certain cash flows for each employer.
This process adjusts for transfers of liabilities between employers participating in the Fund, but does make a
number of simplifying assumptions. The split is calculated using an actuarial technique known as “analysis of
surplus”.

The Fund actuary does not allow for certain relatively minor events, including but not limited to:

° the actual timing of employer contributions within any financial year;
° the effect of the premature payment of any deferred pensions on grounds of incapacity.

These effects are swept up within a miscellaneous item in the analysis of surplus, which is split between
employers in proportion to their liabilities.

The methodology adopted means that there will inevitably be some difference between the asset shares
calculated for individual employers and those that would have resulted had they participated in their own ring-
fenced section of the Fund.

The asset apportionment is capable of verification but not to audit standard. The Administering Authority
recognises the limitations in the process, but it considers that the Fund actuary’s approach addresses the risks
of employer cross-subsidisation to an acceptable degree.

March 2014
E:\MODERNGOV\DATA\AGENDAITEMDOCS\9\5\4\A100036459\$HCQR1IMR.DOCX



Page 84

LONDON BOROUGH OF HARINGEY PENSION FUND 029

HYMANS ROBERTSON LLP

Appendix E — Actuarial assumptions

E1 What are the actuarial assumptions?

These are expectations of future experience used to place a value on future benefit payments (“the liabilities”).
Assumptions are made about the amount of benefit payable to members (the financial assumptions) and the
likelihood or timing of payments (the demographic assumptions). For example, financial assumptions include
investment returns, salary growth and pension increases; demographic assumptions include life expectancy,
probabilities of ill-health early retirement, and proportions of member deaths giving rise to dependants’ benefits.

Changes in assumptions will affect the measured value of future service accrual and past service liabilities, and
hence the measured value of the past service deficit. However, different assumptions will not of course affect
the actual benefits payable by the Fund in future.

The combination of all assumptions is described as the “basis”. A more optimistic basis might involve higher
assumed investment returns (discount rate), or lower assumed salary growth, pension increases or life
expectancy; a more optimistic basis will give lower liability values and lower employer costs. A more prudent
basis will give higher liability values and higher employer costs.

E2 What basis is used by the Fund?

The Fund’s standard funding basis is described as the “ongoing basis”, which applies to most employers in most
circumstances. This is described in more detail below. It anticipates employers remaining in the Fund in the
long term.

However, in certain circumstances, typically where the employer is not expected to remain in the Fund long
term, a more prudent basis applies: see Note (a) to 3.3.

E3 What assumptions are made in the ongoing basis?

a) Investment return / discount rate

The key financial assumption is the anticipated return on the Fund’s investments. This “discount rate”
assumption makes allowance for an anticipated out-performance of Fund returns relative to long term yields on
UK Government bonds (“gilts”). There is, however, no guarantee that Fund returns will out-perform gilts. The
risk is greater when measured over short periods such as the three years between formal actuarial valuations,
when the actual returns and assumed returns can deviate sharply.

Given the very long-term nature of the liabilities, a long term view of prospective asset returns is taken. The
long term in this context would be 20 to 30 years or more.

For the purpose of the triennial funding valuation at 31 March 2013 and setting contribution rates effective from
1 April 2014, the Fund actuary has assumed that future investment returns earned by the Fund over the long
term will be 1.6% per annum greater than gilt yields at the time of the valuation (this is the same as that used at
the 2010 valuation). In the opinion of the Fund actuary, based on the current investment strategy of the Fund,
this asset out-performance assumption is within a range that would be considered acceptable for the purposes
of the funding valuation.

March 2014
E:\MODERNGOV\DATA\AGENDAITEMDOCS\9\5\4\A100036459\$HCQR1IMR.DOCX



Page 85

LONDON BOROUGH OF HARINGEY PENSION FUND 030

HYMANS ROBERTSON LLP

b) Salary growth

Pay for public sector employees is currently subject to restriction by the UK Government until 2016. Although
this “pay freeze” does not officially apply to local government and associated employers, it has been suggested
that they are likely to show similar restraint in respect of pay awards. Based on long term historical analysis of
the membership in LGPS funds, the salary increase assumption at the 2013 valuation has been set to 1%
above the retail prices index (RPI) per annum. This is a change from the previous valuation, which assumed a
two year restriction at 1% per annum followed by longer term growth at RPI plus 1.5% per annum.

The current assumption of 1% pa above RPI in effect captures the anticipated continued short term public
sector pay restrictions, with an expectation of return to real salary growth in the long term thereafter.

c) Pension increases

Since 2011 the consumer prices index (CPI), rather than RPI, has been the basis for increases to public sector
pensions in deferment and in payment. This change was allowed for in the valuation calculations as at 31
March 2010. Note that the basis of such increases is set by the Government, and is not under the control of the
Fund or any employers.

As at the previous valuation, we derive our assumption for RPI from market data as the difference between the
yield on long-dated fixed interest and index-linked government bonds. This is then reduced to arrive at the CPI
assumption, to allow for the “formula effect” of the difference between RPI and CPI. At this valuation, we
propose a reduction of 0.8% per annum. This is a larger reduction than at 2010, which will serve to reduce the
value placed on the Fund’s liabilities (all other things being equal).

d) Life expectancy

The demographic assumptions are intended to be best estimates of future experience in the Fund based on
past experience of LGPS funds which participate in Club Vita, the longevity analytics service used by the Fund,
and endorsed by the actuary.

The longevity assumptions that have been adopted at this valuation are a bespoke set of “VitaCurves”,
produced by the Club Vita’'s detailed analysis, which are specifically tailored to fit the membership profile of the
Fund. These curves are based on the data provided by the Fund for the purposes of this valuation. This is a
change from the 2010 valuation, when actuarial profession standard tables were adopted.

It is acknowledged that future life expectancy and, in particular, the allowance for future improvements in life
expectancy, is uncertain. There is a consensus amongst actuaries, demographers and medical experts that life
expectancy is likely to improve in the future. Allowance has been made in the ongoing valuation basis for future
improvements in line with “medium cohort” and a 1.25% per annum minimum underpin to future reductions in
mortality rates. This is a higher allowance for future improvements than was made in 2010.

The combined effect of the above changes from the 2010 valuation approach is to maintain broadly the same
life expectancies on average. The approach taken is considered reasonable in light of the long term nature of
the Fund and the assumed level of security underpinning members’ benefits.

e) General

The same financial assumptions are adopted for all employers, in deriving the past service deficit and the future
service rate: as described in (3.3), these calculated figures are translated in different ways into employer
contributions, depending on the employer’s circumstances.

The demographic assumptions, in particular the life expectancy assumption, in effect vary by type of member
and so reflect the different membership profiles of employers.

March 2014
E:\MODERNGOV\DATA\AGENDAITEMDOCS\9\5\4\A100036459\$HCQR1IMR.DOCX



Page 86

LONDON BOROUGH OF HARINGEY PENSION FUND 031
HYMANS ROBERTSON LLP

Appendix F — Glossary

Actuarial
assumptions/basis

Administering
Authority

Admission Bodies

Common
contribution rate

Covenant

Deficit

Deficit
repair/recovery
period

Designating
Employer

Discount rate

Employer

Funding level

March 2014
E:\MODERNGOV\DATA\AGENDAITEMDOCS\9\5\4\A100036459\$HCQR1IMR.DOCX

The combined set of assumptions made by the actuary, regarding the future, to
calculate the value of liabilities. The main assumptions will relate to the discount
rate, salary growth, pension increases and longevity. More prudent assumptions
will give a higher liability value, whereas more optimistic assumptions will give a
lower value.

The council with statutory responsibility for running the Fund, in effect the Fund’s
“trustees”.

Employers which voluntarily participate in the Fund, so that their employees and ex-
employees are members. There will be an Admission Agreement setting out the
employer’s obligations. For more details (see 2.5).

The Fund-wide future service rate plus past service adjustment. It should be
noted that this will differ from the actual contributions payable by individual
employers.

The assessed financial strength of the employer. A strong covenant indicates a
greater ability (and willingness) to pay for pension obligations in the long run. A
weaker covenant means that it appears that the employer may have difficulties
meeting its pension obligations in full over the longer term.

The shortfall between the assets value and the liabilities value. This relates to
assets and liabilities built up to date, and ignores the future build-up of pension
(which in effect is assumed to be met by future contributions).

The target length of time over which the current deficit is intended to be paid off. A
shorter period will give rise to a higher annual past service adjustment (deficit
repair contribution), and vice versa.

Employers such as town and parish councils that are able to participate in the LGPS
via resolution. These employers can designate which of their employees are
eligible to join the Fund.

The annual rate at which future assumed cashflows (in and out of the Fund) are
discounted to the present day. This is necessary to provide a liabilities value
which is consistent with the present day value of the assets, to calculate the deficit.
A lower discount rate gives a higher liabilities value, and vice versa. It is similarly
used in the calculation of the future service rate and the common contribution
rate.

An individual participating body in the Fund, which employs (or used to employ)
members of the Fund. Normally the assets and liabilities values for each
employer are individually tracked, together with its future service rate at each
valuation.

The ratio of assets value to liabilities value: for further details (see 2.2).



Page 87

LONDON BOROUGH OF HARINGEY PENSION FUND 032

HYMANS ROBERTSON LLP

Future service rate

Gilt

Guarantee /
guarantor

Letting employer

Liabilities

LGPS

Maturity

Members

Past service
adjustment

March 2014

The actuarially calculated cost of each year’s build-up of pension by the current
active members, excluding members’ contributions but including Fund
administrative expenses. This is calculated using a chosen set of actuarial
assumptions.

A UK Government bond, i.e. a promise by the Government to pay interest and
capital as per the terms of that particular gilt, in return for an initial payment of
capital by the purchaser. Gilts can be “fixed interest”, where the interest payments
are level throughout the gilt’s term, or “index-linked” where the interest payments
vary each year in line with a specified index (usually RPI). Gilts can be bought as
assets by the Fund, but their main use in funding is as an objective measure of
solvency.

A formal promise by a third party (the guarantor) that it will meet any pension
obligations not met by a specified employer. The presence of a guarantor will mean,
for instance, that the Fund can consider the employer’s covenant to be as strong
as its guarantor’s.

An employer which outsources or transfers a part of its services and workforce to
another employer (usually a contractor). The contractor will pay towards the LGPS
benefits accrued by the transferring members, but ultimately the obligation to pay
for these benefits will revert to the letting employer. A letting employer will usually
be a local authority, but can sometimes be another type of employer such as an
Academy.

The actuarially calculated present value of all pension entitlements of all members
of the Fund, built up to date. This is compared with the present market value of
Fund assets to derive the deficit. It is calculated on a chosen set of actuarial
assumptions.

The Local Government Pension Scheme, a public sector pension arrangement put
in place via Government Regulations, for workers in local government. These
Regulations also dictate eligibility (particularly for Scheduled Bodies), members’
contribution rates, benefit calculations and certain governance requirements. The
LGPS is divided into 101 Funds which map the UK. Each LGPS Fund is
autonomous to the extent not dictated by Regulations, e.g. regarding investment
strategy, employer contributions and choice of advisers.

A general term to describe a Fund (or an employer’s position within a Fund) where
the members are closer to retirement (or more of them already retired) and the
investment time horizon is shorter. This has implications for investment strategy
and, consequently, funding strategy.

The individuals who have built up (and may still be building up) entitlement in the
Fund. They are divided into actives (current employee members), deferreds (ex-
employees who have not yet retired) and pensioners (ex-employees who have now
retired, and dependants of deceased ex-employees).

The part of the employer’s annual contribution which relates to past service deficit
repair.

E:\MODERNGOV\DATA\AGENDAITEMDOCS\9\5\4\A100036459\$HCQR1IMR.DOCX



Page 88

LONDON BOROUGH OF HARINGEY PENSION FUND 033

HYMANS ROBERTSON LLP

Pooling

Profile

Rates and
Adjustments
Certificate

Scheduled Bodies

Solvency

Stabilisation

Theoretical
contribution rate

Valuation

March 2014

Employers may be grouped together for the purpose of calculating contribution
rates, so that their combined membership and asset shares are used to calculate a
single contribution rate applicable to all employers in the pool. A pool may still
require each individual employer to ultimately pay for its own share of deficit, or (if
formally agreed) it may allow deficits to be passed from one employer to another.
For further details of the Fund’s current pooling policy (see 3.4).

The profile of an employer’'s membership or liability reflects various measurements
of that employer's members, i.e. current and former employees. This includes: the
proportions which are active, deferred or pensioner; the average ages of each
category; the varying salary or pension levels; the lengths of service of active
members vs their salary levels, etc. A membership (or liability) profile might be
measured for its maturity also.

A formal document required by the LGPS Regulations, which must be updated at
least every three years at the conclusion of the formal valuation. This is completed
by the actuary and confirms the contributions to be paid by each employer (or pool
of employers) in the Fund for the three year period until the next valuation is
completed.

Types of employer explicitly defined in the LGPS Regulations, whose employers
must be offered membership of their local LGPS Fund. These include Councils,
colleges, universities, academies, police and fire authorities etc, other than
employees who have entitlement to a different public sector pension scheme (e.g.
teachers, police and fire officers, university lecturers).

In a funding context, this usually refers to a 100% funding level, i.e. where the
assets value equals the liabilities value.

Any method used to smooth out changes in employer contributions from one year to
the next. This is very broadly required by the LGPS Regulations, but in practice is
particularly employed for large stable employers in the Fund. Different methods
may involve: probability-based modelling of future market movements; longer deficit
recovery periods; higher discount rates; or some combination of these.

The employer’s contribution rate, including both future service rate and past
service adjustment, which would be calculated on the standard actuarial basis
before any allowance for stabilisation or other agreed adjustment.

An actuarial investigation to calculate the liabilities, future service contribution rate
and common contribution rate for a Fund, and usually individual employers too.
This is normally carried out in full every three years (last done as at 31 March
2013), but can be approximately updated at other times. The assets value is based
on market values at the valuation date, and the liabilities value and contribution
rates are based on long term bond market yields at that date also.

E:\MODERNGOV\DATA\AGENDAITEMDOCS\9\5\4\A100036459\$HCQR1IMR.DOCX



Page 89 Agenda ltem 7
X

‘/’?

Haringey
Item
Report for: Corporate Committee | number
20" March 2014
Title: Pension Fund Statement of Investment Principles

Report authorised b(g,wg(,hjg

by :
y Assistant Director — Finance (CFO)
George Bruce, Head of Finance — Treasury &
Lead Officer: Pensions
George.bruce@haringey.gov.uk
020 8489 8621
Ward(s) affected: N/A Report for Non Key Decision
1. Describe the issue under consideration

1.1 The Investment strategy was revised at the January meeting. The
Statement of Investment Principles has been updated to reflect the
changes in strategy and approval is requested from the Committee.

2, Cabinet Member Introduction

2.1 Not applicable.

3. Recommendations

3.1 The Committee agree the updated Statement of Investment Principles.

4. Other options considered
4.1  None.
5. Background information

5.1 The Statement of Investment Principles (“SIP”) sets out the principles
governing the Haringey Council Pension Fund’s decisions about the

Page 1 of 4



X

‘/’?

Haringey

5.2

5.3

f)

Page 90

investment of Pension Fund money. It is prepared in accordance with
Regulation 12 of the Local Government Pension Scheme
(Management and Investment of Funds) Regulations 2009.

At the January meeting, the Committee agreed to include allocations
to infrastructure debt and multi sector credit within the investment
strategy. The SIP has been updated to reflect these allocations.
Track changes are used to highlight the proposed amendments.

The changes made to the SIP are:

The tables in section 5, 6, annex 1 and annex 2 have been updated to
include the new mandates and the funding from the reduction in
BlackRock equities.

Asset class ranges have been included. Without these, the portfolio
will always be non compliant with the SIP.

Statements have been included that asset class allocations will be
monitored against the ranges and rebalancing considered when
appropriate i.e. rebalancing is not automatic.

The narrative on the management of liquidity (section 5) has been
amended.

In section 6, the obligation for officers to meet with managers quarterly
has been changed to a minimum of annually. Normally active
managers are seen quarterly, but passive less frequently.

The statement on custody (section 12) reflects that the pension fund
does not directly own individual stocks, bonds or properties.

Although the pension fund does not directly loan securities, the two
passive equity managers do undertake this activity, with the pension
fund benefiting from part of the income.

A section on the Committee’s investment beliefs has been added
(annex 4). The SIP is intended to set out the principles governing
decision making. Investment beliefs are central to the setting and
implementation of strategy. The key beliefs reflected in the strategy
are that equities will outperform bonds in the long term and that active
management does not add value in developed equity markets. The
Committee is invited to consider whether they agree with the
statements and whether others should be included.

Page 2 of 4



X

‘/’?

Haringey
54

6.1

7.1

7.2

7.3

7.4

Page 91

There are gaps in the draft SIP attached relating to the two new
mandates that will be populated in advance of the Committee
meeting.

Comments of the Chief Finance Officer & financial implications

The SIP is the formal documentation of the investment strategy. The
changes agreed at the January 2014 meeting have been incorporated.
The strategy targets an investment return that has been modelled as
likely to eliminate the past service deficit over twenty years.

Head of Legal Services and Legal Implications

The Local Government Pension Scheme (Management &
Investment of Funds) Regulations 2009 (“2009 Regulations”) require
the Pension Fund to prepare and keep under review a Statement of
Investment Principles. This is a document which sets out the Fund’s
approach to investing and related matters.

The Council as administering authority has the authority to invest the
Pension Fund monies. The monies must be invested in accordance
with the 2009 Regulations.

Regulation 11 requires the Council as administering authority to
formulate a policy for the investment of the Pension Fund monies. That
policy must be formulated with a view to (a) the advisability of investing
monies in a wide variety of investments and (b) the suitability and types
of investments.

Regulation 12 requires the Council as administering authority, after
consultation with such persons as it considers appropriate, to prepare
and maintain a written statement of principles. That statement must
cover the following:

(a) the types of investments to be held;

b) the balance between different types of investments;

c) risk

d) the expected returns;

e) the realisation of investments;

f) social, environmental or ethical considerations;

g) the exercise of the rights attached to investments;

h) stock lending; and

i) compliance or not with Secretary of State guidance.

Page 3 of 4



Page 92

X

7
Haringey
8. Equalities and Community Cohesion Comments

8.1  Not applicable.
0. Head of Procurement Comments
9.1 Not applicable.
10. Policy Implications
10.1 None.
11. Use of Appendices
Appendix 1: Statement of Investment Principles
12 Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985

12.1 Not applicable.

Page 4 of 4



X

/’f
Haringey
Statement of Investment Principles

1

Page 93

Introduction

This Statement of Investment Principles document sets out the principles
governing the Haringey Council Pension Fund’s decisions about the
investment of Pension Fund money. It is prepared in accordance with
Regulation 12 of the Local Government Pension Scheme (Management
and Investment of Funds) Regulations 2009.

Governance and decision making

Haringey Council is the Administering Authority for the Local
Government Pension Scheme in the London Borough of Haringey area
and as such is responsible for the investment of Pension Fund money.
The Council has delegated this responsibility to the Corporate
Committee.

The Committee is responsible for setting the investment strategy for the
Pension Fund, appointing fund managers to implement it and monitoring
the performance of the strategy. The Committee retains an independent
adviser and the services of an investment consultancy company, in
addition to the advice it receives from the Chief Financial Officer and
their staff.

Further information on the governance of the Pension Fund can be found
in the Governance Compliance Statement on the website
www.haringey.gov.uk/pensionfund

Stock level decisions are taken by the investment managers appointed
by the Committee to implement the agreed investment strategy. These
decisions are taken within the parameters set out for each manager —
more detail is provided in section 6 below.

Objectives of the Pension Fund
The primary objective of the Pension Fund is:
e To provide for members’ pension and lump sums benefits on their

retirement or for their dependants benefits on death before or after
retirement on a defined benefits basis.



X

=

Haringey

Page 94

The investment objective of the Pension Fund is:

e To achieve a return on Fund assets that is sufficient, over the long
term, to meet the funding objectives.

The Pension Fund recognises that the investment performance of the
Fund is critical as it impacts directly on the level of employer’s
contributions that the employers are required to pay.

The key funding objectives that relate to investment strategy are
summarised below and more detail about them and how they will be
achieved can be found in the Pension Fund’s Funding Strategy
Statement on the website www.haringey.gov.uk/pensionfund

e To ensure the long-term solvency of the Fund;

e To ensure that sufficient funds are available to meet all benefits as
they fall due for payment; and

e Not to restrain unnecessarily the investment strategy of the Fund
so that the Administering Authority can seek to maximise
investment returns (and hence minimise the cost of the benefits)
for an appropriate level of risk.

This Statement of Investment Principles describes how the Haringey
Council Pension Fund seeks to meet its objectives.

Investment Parameters

The investment strategy of the Pension Fund must operate within the
parameters set out in the Local Government Pension Scheme
(Management and Investment of Funds) Regulations 2009 (“the
regulations”). The regulations state that the Pension Fund must invest
any monies not needed immediately to make payments.

The regulations also state that the Pension Fund must have regard to the
suitability and range of investments used and take proper advice in
determining its investment strategy. These issues are covered in more
detail in sections 5-7 below.

The limits within which the Pension Fund operates are shown overleaf.
All the limits are the lowest set by Schedule 1 to the regulations with the
exception of the single insurance contract limit The Committee has
exercised its right to increase its limit for a single insurance contract limit
within the range set by the regulations. This was done, after taking
proper advice, in order to maximise the diversification and performance
of the Fund'’s assets while minimising the costs to the Pension Fund.



Page 95

X

=

Haringey

Type of Investment Limit
Any single sub-underwriting contract 1%
All contributions to any single partnership 2%
All contributions to partnerships 5%
The sum of all loans (except a Government loan) and all 10%
deposits with local authorities

All investments in unlisted securities of companies 10%
Any single holding (except unit trusts & UK gilts) 10%
All deposits with any single institution 10%
All sub-underwriting contracts 15%

All investments in units or shares of the investments subjectto | 25%
the trusts of unit trust scheme managed by any one body

All investments in open ended investment companies where
the collective investment schemes constituted by the 25%,
companies are managed by one body

All investments in unit or other shares of the investments
subject to the trusts of unit trust schemes and all investments
in open-ended investment companies where the unit trust 259,
schemes and the collective investment schemes are
constituted by those companies are managed by any one
body.

Any single insurance contract 35%*

* This limit is at the higher limit of the range (25-35%) laid down in the
regulations.

5 Types of investments

The Committee has determined an overall asset allocation for the
Pension Fund to meet the objectives within the parameters set out in
section 4 above and to comply with the regulations. The Committee
have considered the suitability of different investments and the need to
diversify the investments to reduce risk. The Fund's revised strategic
benchmark is shown in the table overleaf.



Page 96

X

=

Haringey

Asset class Benchmark % Range %
UK Equities 15 12-18%
Overseas Equities 45 40-50%

North America 21.7

Europe ex UK 7.4

Pacific ex Japan 3.4

Japan 3.5

Emerging Markets 9
UK Index linked gilts 15 12-18%
Property 10 6-12%
Multi Sector Credit 5 4-6%
Infrastructure Debt 5 4-6%
Private Equity 5 4-6%
Cash 0 0-10%

The Committee’s investment strategy was set following the results of the
2013 actuarial valuation of the Pension Fund and takes into
consideration the value and timing of projected future benefit payments,
the funding position and the range of possible future economic and
financial conditions. The strategy aims to achieve the objectives set out
in section three and balance the need to achieve full funding and
maintain stability of contribution rates. Normally, a full review of the
investment strategy is undertaken every three years following an
actuarial valuation. The factors influencing the investment strategy are
monitored and changes thereto may require more frequent reviews of the
investment strategy.

The allocations to each asset classes will be impacted by changes in
market value, income reinvested and cash investments and withdrawals.
The Committee will monitor actual allocations against the ranges shown
above and rebalance when considered appropriate.

In setting investment policy the Committee has discussed their
investment beliefs (annex D), which inform the setting of strategy and its
implementation, including manager selection.



X

=

Haringey

Page 97

The Committee has decided to invest the majority of the Pension Fund
investments in passively managed equity and bond funds to remove the
risk of underperformance and ensure benchmark performance at a low
cost.

Due to the size of the portfolios allocated to the investment managers,
the investments are generally held in pooled funds, which are more cost
effective for the Fund.

The majority of the investment types the Committee have decided to
invest in are quickly realisable if required, including pooled equities, as
the underlying securities are quoted on major markets. The investments
in property, multi sector credit, infrastructure debt and private equity,
which represent 25% of the strategic allocations, are long term less liquid
investments not designed to be realised early. At the present time the
Pension Fund has sufficient regular cash receipts to cover benefit
payments and does not need to realise investments quickly. As the
Pension Fund matures, income from equity investments is available to
meet expenditure.

The asset allocation and associated benchmark is expected to produce a
return in excess of the investment return assumed in the actuarial
valuation over the long term.

Investment Management arrangements

The Committee has appointed a number of external investment
managers to implement its investment strategy. The current investment
managers and the percentage of the Pension Fund they currently
manage are shown in the table below:

Investment Manager Mandate %
BlackRock Investment Global Equities & Index 47.2
Management linked Bonds

Legal & General Global Equities & Index 27.8
Investment Management Linked Bonds

TBC Multi Sector Credit 5
TBC Infrastructure Debt 5
CBRE Global Investors Property 10
Pantheon Private Equity 5

A range of investment managers have been appointed to diversify the
Pension Fund and so reduce the risk of poor performance. The
allocations above reflect the asset class benchmarks shown in section 5.



X

=

Haringey

Page 98

Movements away from benchmarks and rebalancing are managed at
asset class level for which monitoring ranges have been set.

The equity and index linked bond investment managers are expected to
perform in line with their benchmarks, as they are investing on behalf of
the Fund on a passive basis. The detail of their benchmarks is set out in
Annex B. The other investment managers are expected to meet the
targets set above the benchmarks detailed in Annex A over the long
term.

The investment managers’ performance is assessed on a quarterly
basis, with independent performance data provided by the Pension
Fund’s global custodian Northern Trust. The Chief Financial Officer
and/or their representative meet with the investment managers on an
annual or more frequent basis to discuss performance.

The investment managers are paid fees relating to the value of the funds
they are managing on the Pension Fund’'s behalf, or in the case of
private equity on the amount committed. In some case e.g. private equity
an additional performance related fee based is also payable.

There will always be a balance of cash used to manage benefit
payments invested in-house and there may be occasions when the
Committee decide to invest in cash on a short term basis. These
investments will be placed in line with the Treasury Management
Strategy Statement in place at the time.

Advice

The regulations set out the requirement for the Pension Fund to obtain
proper advice at reasonable intervals. The Committee has three sources
of advice independent of the investment managers used by the Pension
Fund:

e Chief Financial Officer and their staff
e Investment Consultant — Mercer
¢ Independent Adviser — John Raisin

The Chief Financial Officer (or their representative) attends all
Committee meetings to support the Committee to scrutinise both the
performance of the investment managers and the investment consultant.
The Investment Consultant and Independent Adviser attend Committee
meetings as required.



Haringey

10

Page 99

Risk

The Pension Fund’s investment strategy has an inherent degree of risk
which has to be taken in order to achieve the rate of return required. The
Pension Fund has put in place a number of controls in order to minimise
the level of risk taken.

The benchmark the Committee has set involves a wide range of asset
classes and geographical areas. This diversification reduces the risk of
low returns. As the majority of the Fund is invested on a passive basis,
risk of underperforming the benchmark has been significantly reduced.

Appointing a range of investment managers ensures that the risk of
underperformance is reduced through diversification.
Responsible ownership

The Committee has agreed a responsible investment policy, which can
be found on the website www.haringey.gov.uk/pensionfund

The Pension Fund believes the adoption by companies of positive
Environmental, Social and Governance principles can enhance their long
term performance and increase their financial returns. The Pension
Fund has demonstrated this by adopting the United Nations Principles
for Responsible Investment and by being a member of the Local
Authority Pension Fund Forum, which undertakes engagement activity
with companies on behalf of its members.

The investment managers are expected to consider responsible
investment issues when voting on behalf of the Pension Fund. However
in instances where shareholder value and responsible investment
conflict, the investment managers are instructed to vote for shareholder
value and report these instances to the Committee. All investment
managers are expected to vote in respect of all pooled funds.

Compliance with Myners Principles

The regulations require Local Government Pension Funds to state in
their Statement of Investment Principles the extent to which the Fund’s
investment policy complies with published guidance on the Myners
Principles. The Myners principles are a set of principles on investment
decision making for occupational pension schemes. The Pension Fund



X

=

Haringey

11

12

Page 100

complies with all of these principles. The detail of the principles is set
out in Annex D.

Additional Voluntary Contributions (AVCs)

The Pension Fund is required to provide scheme members with the
opportunity to invest additional voluntary contributions. These are
invested separately from the Pension Fund's other assets and the
scheme members take the investment risk.

AVCs are invested with Prudential Assurance, Clerical & Medical and
Equitable Life. Scheme members can choose which company to invest
with (except Equitable Life, which is not open to new members) and
select from a range of policies to suit their appetite for risk.

Other issues

Custody — The Pension Fund’'s assets are held by an independent global
custodian, Northern Trust. The performance and fees for their contract are
reviewed regularly. As the Pension Fund does not directly own equities, bonds
or properties, custody activity is limited to controlling cash, valuation record
keeping and performance analysis.

Stock Lending — The Pension Fund does not undertake any stock
lending activities. However, the pooled funds operated by both Legal &
General and BlackRock do engage in stock lending and the Pension
Fund receives a share of the revenue generated.

Review process — This document is reviewed by the Committee on an
annual basis and whenever any major change to the investment strategy
is undertaken to ensure it remains up to date.

Publication — This document is published on the Haringey Council
Pension Fund website www.haringey.gov.uk/pensionfund and forms part
of the Pension Fund Annual Report.

Annexes
A Investment managers and mandates
B Global Equity & Bond benchmarks
C Compliance with Myners principles
D Investment beliefs



X

‘/74

Haringey
Annex A: Investment Managers and mandates

10| ebed

% of Total
Manager Portfolio Mandate Benchmark Performance Target
BlackRock Investment Global Equities & Index (passively
Management 47.20% Bonds See below managed)
Legal & General
Investment Global Equities & Index (passively
Management 27.80% Bonds See below managed)
TBC 5.00% Multi Sector Credit TBC TBC
TBC 5.00% Infrastructure Debt TBC TBC
IPD UK Pooled
Property Funds
All Balanced +1% gross of fees p.a.
CBRE Global Investors 10% Property Index over a rolling 5 yr period
MSCI World + 0.75% gross of fees
Pantheon Private Equity 5% Private Equity Index plus 5% p.a.
Total 100%

Page 9 of 17



X

=

Haringey
Annex B: Global Equity & Bond Benchmarks

20| abed

Asset Class Benchmark BlackRock Legal & General Total
Investment Investment
Management Management
UK Equities FTSE All Share 12.40% 2.60% 15.00%
Overseas Equities 22.80% 22.20% 45.00%
North America FT World Developed 17.90% 3.80% 21.70%
North America GBP
Unhedged
Europe ex UK FT World Developed 3.10% 4.30% 7.40%
Europe X UK GBP
Unhedged
Pacific ex Japan FT World Developed 1.40% 2.00% 3.40%
Pacific X Japan GBP
Unhedged
Japan FT World Developed 0.40% 3.10% 3.50%
Japan GBP Unhedged
Emerging Markets | FT World Global 0.00% 9.00% 9.00%
Emerging Markets GBP
Unhedged
Index Linked Gilts | FTA Index Linked Over 12.00% 3.00% 15.00%
5 Years Index
47.20% 27.80% 75.00%

Page 10 of 17



Haringey

Asset Class Benchmark BlackRock Legal & General Total
Investment Investment
Management Management
UK Equities FTSE All Share 14.9% 2.6% 17.5%
Overseas Equities 28.8% 23.7% 52.5%
North America FT World Developed North 21.5% 3.8% 25.3%
America GBP Unhedged
Europe ex UK FT World Developed Europe X 4.3% 4.3% 8.6%
UK GBP Unhedged
Pacific ex Japan FT World Developed Pacific X 2.0% 2.0% 4.0%
Japan GBP Unhedged
Japan FT World Developed Japan 1.0% 3.1% 4.1%
GBP Unhedged
Emerging Markets | FT World Global Emerging 0.0% 10.5% 10.5%
Markets GBP Unhedged
Index Linked Gilts | FTA Index Linked Over 5 12.0% 3.0% 15.0%
Years Index
55.7% 29.3% 85.0%

Page 11 of 17

€01 ebed



X

‘/74

Haringey
Annex C: Compliance with Myners Principles

1. Effective Decision Making

Administering authorities should ensure that:

e decisions are taken by persons or organisations with the skills, knowledge, advice and resources necessary to make them
effectively and monitor their implementation;
and

e those persons or organisations have sufficient expertise to be able to evaluate and challenge the advice they receive, and
manage conflicts of interest.

Haringey position

Haringey offers regular training to all members of the Committee to ensure they have the necessary knowledge to make decisions
and challenge the advice they receive.

2. Clear Objectives

An overall investment objective(s) should be set out for the fund that takes account of the scheme’s liabilities, the potential impact
on local tax payers, the strength of the covenant for non-local authority employers, and the attitude to risk of both the administering
authority and scheme employers, and these should be clearly communicated to advisers and investment managers.

Haringey position

The Pension Fund sets out an investment objective in section 2 of this Statement of Investment Principles, which reflects the
current deficit position of the Pension Fund and the desire to return to full funding with a minimum impact on the local tax payer.
The Statement of Investment Principles is provided to all the Pension Fund’s advisers and investment managers whenever it is
updated.

Page 12 of 17

0| abed



X

=

Haringey

3. Risk and Liabilities

In setting and reviewing their investment strategy, administering authorities should take account of the form and structure of
liabilities. These include the implications for local tax payers, the strength of the covenant for participating employers, the risk of
their default and longevity risk.

Haringey position

The Committee’s investment strategy was set following the results of the last formal valuation of the Pension Fund, which
incorporated these issues.

4. Performance Assessment

Arrangements should be in place for the formal measurement of performance of the investments, investment managers and
advisers.

Administering authorities should also periodically make a formal assessment of their own effectiveness as a decision making body
and report on this to scheme members.

Haringey position

The Committee reviews the performance of Pension Fund investments on a quarterly basis and meets with investment managers
at least once a year. Contracts with advisers are reviewed regularly. The Committee undertakes an assessment of their own
effectiveness on a regular basis.

Page 13 of 17

Go| obed



X

‘/74

Haringey

5. Responsible ownership

Administering authorities should:
e adopt or ensure their investment managers adopt, the Institutional Shareholders’ Committee Statement of Principles on the
responsibilities of shareholders and agents
e include a statement of their policy on responsible ownership in the statement of investment principles
e report periodically to scheme members on the discharge of such responsibilities.

Haringey position

The Pension Fund’s fund managers have adopted or are committed to the Institutional Shareholders’ Committee Statement of
Principles.

The Pension Fund includes a statement of their policy on responsible ownership in section 9 of this Statement of Investment
Principles. This is monitored on a quarterly basis through the Committee and reported to scheme members through the annual

report to scheme members.

6.Transparency and reporting

Administering authorities should:
e actin a transparent manner, communicating with stakeholders on issues relating to their management of investment, its
governance and risks, including performance against stated objectives
e provide regular communication to scheme members in the form they consider most appropriate.

Haringey position
The Pension Fund communicates with its stakeholders through the publication of policy statements and an Annual Report on its
website. The Pension Fund communicates regularly with its scheme members and the communication policy statement provides

information about how this is done.

Page 14 of 17

901 8bed



X

‘/’?

Haringey

Annex 4

Statement of Investment Belief’s

The objective of this Statement is to set out the key investment beliefs held by the Corporate Committee (the Committee) of
Haringey Council. These beliefs will form the foundation of discussions, and assist decisions, regarding the structure of the
Haringey Pension Fund, strategic asset allocation and the selection of investment managers.

The Investment beliefs have been prepared by the administering authority in consultation with the Independent Advisor and
Investment Consultant. In forming these beliefs the Committee take into consideration the ongoing advice received from Officers
and Advisors.

1) Investment Governance

a) The Fund has the necessary skills, expertise and resources to take decisions on asset allocations, rebalancing and fund
manager appointments.

b) Day to day investment decisions are delegated to regulated external fund managers that have appropriate skills &
experience.

c) Investment consultants, independent advisors and officers are a source of expertise and research to inform Committee
decisions.

d) The Committee primary goal is the security of assets and will only take decisions when the Committee is convinced that it is
right to do so. In that regard, training in advance of decision making is a priority.

Page 15 of 17

/0| 8bed



X

‘/’?

Haringey
2) Long Term Approach

a) The strength of the employers’ covenant allows a longer term deficit recovery period and for the Fund to take a long term
view of investment strategy.

b) The most important aspect of risk is not the volatility of returns but the risk of absolute loss and of not meeting the objective
of facilitating low, stable contribution rates for employers.

c) llliquidity and volatility are shorter term risks which offer potential sources of additional compensation to the long term
investor. Moreover, it is important to avoid being a forced seller in short term markets.

d) Participation in economic growth is a major source of long term equity return.
e) Over the long term, equities are expected to outperform other liquid assets, particularly government bonds.

f)  Well governed companies that manage their business in a responsible manner will produce higher returns over the long
term.

3) Appropriate Investments

a) Allocations to asset classes other than equities and government bonds (e.g. corporate bonds, private equity and property)
offer the Fund other forms of risk premia (e.g. additional solvency risk/illiquidity risk).

b) Diversification across asset classes and asset types will tend to reduce the volatility of the overall Fund return.

Page 16 of 17

80| ebed



X

‘/’?

Haringey
4) Management Strategies

a) Passive management provides low cost exposure to asset class returns and is especially attractive in efficient markets where
there is limited evidence that active management can consistently generate returns (after additional costs) that exceed index
benchmarks. Most equity markets are sufficiently efficient to prefer passive equity investments.

b) Active management will only be considered in markets in which passive approaches are either impossible or there is strong
evidence that active management can add value over the long-term. Fixed income, property and alternatives are suited to
active management.

c) Active managers are expensive and fees should be aligned to the value created in excess of the performance of the market.

d) Active management performance should be monitored over multi-year rolling cycles and assessed to confirm that the original
investment process on appointment is being delivered and that continued appointment is appropriate.

e) Implementation of strategies must be consistent with the governance capabilities of the Committee.

Page 17 of 17

601 abed



Page 110

This page is intentionally left blank



N Page 111 Agenda Item 8

=

Haringey
Item
Report for: Corporate Committee | number
20 March 2014
Title: Pension Fund Quarterly Update
Report authorised b{wg e
by : Assistant Director — Finance (CFO)
George Bruce, Head of Finance — Treasury &
Lead Officer: Pensions
george.bruce@haringey.gov.uk
020 8489 3726
Ward(s) affected: N/A Report for Non Key Decision

1. Describe the issue under consideration

1.1 To report the following in respect of the three months to 31%' December 2013:

Investment asset allocation
Investment performance
Responsible investment activity
Budget management

Late payment of contributions
Communications

2. Cabinet Member Introduction
2.1 Not applicable.
3. Recommendations

3.1 That the information provided in respect of the activity in the three months to
31% December 2013 is noted.

4. Other options considered

4.1 None.

Page 1 of 15



X

=

Haringey

Page 112

5. Background information

5.1

5.2

5.3

This report is produced on a quarterly basis to update the Committee on a
number of Pension Fund issues. The Local Government Pension Scheme
Regulations require the Committee to review investment performance on a
quarterly basis and sections 13 and 14 provide the information for this.
Appendix 1 shows the targets which have been agreed with the fund
managers.

The Pension Fund has a responsible investment policy and section 15 of this
report monitors action taken in line with it. The remainder of the report covers
various issues on which the Committee or its predecessor body have
requested they receive regular updates.

Following the request at the Committee’s meeting in September 2012,
information on communication with stakeholders has been provided by
officers in Human Resources and included in section 18.

6. Comments of the Chief Financial Officer and Financial Implications

6.1

The investment performance figures in section 14 show the impact of the
introduction of passive fund managers in that generally the variance from
target has reduced. The continuing negative performance over five years
reflects the underperformance of the previous active managers which is likely
to continue to show for the next few years. The quarterly performance is very
close to target.

7. Head of Legal Services and Legal Implications

7.1

7.2

7.3

Page 2 of 15

The Council as administering authority for the Haringey Pension Fund
(*Fund”) has an obligation to keep the performance of its investment
managers under review. In this respect the Council must, at least every three
months review the investments made by investment managers for the Fund
and any other actions taken by them in relation to it;

Periodically the Council must consider whether or not to retain the investment
managers. In particular members should note the continuing negative
performance and the reason stated in this report as to why this is the case;

In carrying out its review proper advice must be obtained about the variety of
investments that have been made and the suitability and types of investment;



Page 113

X

=

Haringey
7.4 All monies must be invested in accordance with the Council’s investment
policy and members of the Committee should keep this duty in mind when
considering this report and have regard to advice given to them.

8. Equalities and Community Cohesion Comments

8.1 The Local Government Pension Scheme is a defined benefit open scheme
enabling all employees of the Local Authority to participate. There are no
impacts in terms of equality from the recommendations contained within this
report.

9. Head of Procurement Comments

9.1 Not applicable

10. Policy Implications

10.1 None.

11. Use of Appendices

11.1 Appendix 1: Investment Managers’ mandates, benchmarks and targets.

12. Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985

12.1 Not applicable

Page 3 of 15



Page 114

X

=

Haringey
13. Investment Update
13.1 Fund Holdings at 30" September 2013
Total Portfolio Allocation by Manager & Asset Class
31/12/2013 & 31/01/2014
Value Value Value Allocation Strategic
30.09.13 31.12.13 31.01.14 30.01.2014 Allocation
£'000 £'000 £'000 % %

Equities
UK 184,423 176,383 170,980 19.7% 17.5%
North America 211,889 255,655 248,746 28.7% 25.3%
Europe 84,705 82,680 80,335 9.3% 8.6%
Japan 41,571 35,741 34,650 4.0% 4.1%
Asia Pacific 33,314 35,762 34,081 3.9% 4.0%
Emerging Markets 89,966 89,426 84,078 9.7% 10.5%
Total Equities 645,868 675,647 652,870 75.3% 70.0%
Bonds
Index Linked 119,051 117,958 120,037 13.8% 15.0%
Property
CBRE 54,239 56,691 56,478 6.5% 10.0%
Private equity
Pantheon 34,156 34,527 34,190 3.9% 5.0%
Cash & NCA 6,999 5,883 4,438 0.5% 0.0%
Total
Assets 860,313 890,706 868,013 100.0% 100.0%
Fund Managers
Legal & General 244,638 248,821 239,659 27.6% 29.3%
BlackRock 520,281 544,784 533,248 61.5% 55.7%

Page 4 of 15



Page 115

X

=

Haringey

The value of the portfolio increased by £7.7 million between September 2013
and January 2014. Equities gains were the main contributor to the market
movements. During Q4, 2013 the final phase of the rebalancing of equity
markets was completed.

The recovery in equity markets in the last two years has seen the equity
weighting rise to 75.3%, in excess of its strategic weighting. The other asset
classes, mainly property remain, underweight. The January 2014 Corporate
Committee meeting agreed to rebalance property back to its strategic allocation
of 10%, which will involve additional property investments of approximately £30
million funded from sales of equities.

14. Investment Performance Update: to 31" December 2013
Appendix 1 provides details of the benchmarks and targets the fund managers
have been set. The tables below show the performance in the quarter July to

September 2013.

14.1 Whole Fund

Return Benchmark | (Under)/Out
Oct-Dec 2013 3.72% 3.86% (0.14%)
One Year 14.65% 15.82% (1.17%)
Three Years 8.04% 8.30% (0.26%)
Five Years 10.59% 11.43% (0.84%)

e Performance in the quarter was very close to target. Underperformance
over longer periods is driven by private equity and property. Further
details of the returns from each asset class are given below.

e The negative three and five year returns are carried forward from
previous manager structures.

14.2 BlackRock Investment Management

Return Benchmark | (Under)/Out
Oct-Dec 2013 4.71% 4.52% 0.19%
One Year 18.49% 18.91% (0.42%)

e Total Value at 31/12/13: £544.8 million

¢ BlackRock manages equities and index linked passively.

e Further details of returns at geographic level are given in section 14.7, which

indicates underperformance against the Japanese and North American
indices, which is being investigated.

Page 5 of 15



Page 116

X

=

Haringey

14.3 Legal & General Investment Management

Return Benchmark Variance
Oct-Dec 2013 1.72% 1.89% (0.17%)
One Year 8.90% 9.71% (0.81%)

e Total Value at 31/12/13: £248.8 million

e At investment level, L&G is able to add value over index benchmarks
through timing transactions. As can be seen from section 14.7 below
the underperformance over one year is due to their portfolio being out of
alignment with the benchmark.

14.4 CBRE Global Investors

Return Benchmark | (Under)/Out
Oct-Dec 2013 4.44% 4.30% 0.14%
One Year 8.75% 9.52% (0.77%)
Three Years 4.77% 6.04% (1.27%)
Five Years 3.39% 5.61% (2.22%)

e Total Value at 31/12/13: £56.7 million

e Although performance in the quarter exceeded benchmark for year CBRE
have underperformed their benchmark by 0.8%. The target is to out perform
by 1% p.a.

e Recently, the UK portfolio has exceeded benchmark, but the overall portfolio
has suffered from exposure to Italian and German funds.

e Compared with the average Local Authority fund, the quarterly and annual
(most recent data available) returns for CBRE exceeds the average by 0.6%
and 1.0%.

14.5 Pantheon

Return Distributions Drawdowns %
in period in period drawdown
Oct-Dec 2013 1.82% £2.06m £0.32m
One Year 11.02% £4.99m £3.44m
Since inception 3.94% £7.43m £32.80m 69.4%

e Total Value at 31/12/13: £34.5 million

¢ Distributions exceeded drawdowns during the quarter as the funds moved into
the distribution phase of their cycles.

e The performance target is the MCSI Worlds plus 5.75%, which for 12 months
is 31.14% and 3 years 15.51%. Actual returns for three ears net of fees is
15.3%. The funds are still relatively young for a true picture of long term
returns to emerge. The performance benchmark (MSCI plus 5% net of fees) is
challenging.

e Pantheon’s one year return of 11.0% exceeds the local authority average by
1.9%. The underperformance against the private equity benchmark (-19%)

Page 6 of 15



Page 117

X

=

Haringey
represents nearly 1% at total portfolio and explains almost all the relative
performance at total fund level.

14.6 In house cash

Value Average Average Return

Credit Rating | Maturity (days)
At 31/12/13 £0.92m AAA 1 0.22%
At 30/09/13 £2.73m AAA 1 0.33%
At 30/06/13 £3.18m AAA 1 0.33%
At 31/03/12 £5.51m AAA 1 0.31%

14.7 Equity Market Performance

3 months 12 months Allocations
Return Benchmark Return Benchmark Diff Actual Target
Legal & General
UK Equity 5.48 5.46 21.00 20.81 0.19 9.28% 8.87%
North Amer equ 7.48 7.48 28.31 28.30 0.01 12.81% 12.97%
Europe equ 5.69 5.79 26.44 26.47 -0.03 15.46% 14.67%
Asia Pac equ -1.13 -1.15 2.52 243 0.09 6.69% 6.83%
Japan 0.03 0.09 25.14 2495 0.19 10.50% 10.58%
Emerging Mkts -0.60 -0.69 -5.43 -5.29 -0.14 36.01% 35.84%
Index linked -0.92 -0.93 0.64 0.58 0.06 9.25% 10.24%
total 1.71 1.89 8.91 9.71 -0.80 100.00% 100.00%
BlackRock

UK Equity 5.49 5.46 21.10 20.81 0.29 28.13% 26.75%
North Amer equ 7.60 7.48 27.79 2830 -0.51 41.07% 38.60%
Europe equ 5.82 5.79 26.67 26.47 0.20 8.10% 7.72%
Asia Pacequ -0.93 -1.15 2.44 243 0.01 3.51% 3.57%
Japan 0.00 0.09 23.09 2495 -1.86 1.76% 1.80%
Emerging Mkts

Index linked -0.92 -0.93 0.68 0.58 0.10 17.43% 21.56%
total 4.71 4.52 18.49 18.91 -0.42 100.00% 100.00%

The above table breaks down the performance of L&G and BlackRock at regional
level. For 9 out of 13 regional / assets classes, performance exceeds the
benchmark. The only significant underperformance is BlackRock’s US and Japanese
portfolios

Page 7 of 15



X

7’4

Haringey
15. Responsible Investment Activity in the three months ended 31°' December 2013

BlackRock

Legal & General

LAPFF

15.1 Environmental Issues

Lonmin

Visited a mine in South Africa to better
understand their relationship with
employees, local communities and other
sustainability issues. We met the new
CEO along with senior executives,
including Head of Mining. We discussed
the relationship with the newly formed
union, with respect to the latest pay
negotiations, safety, community
programmes and socio-economic
backgrounds impacting their operations
and housing for employees. We will
continue to monitor mining companies
regarding their operations in South Africa

Apache

L&G regularly engage with the company
on various ESG issues and following the
defeat of the company's say on pay vote,
we discussed what the company could do
better in terms of its compensation
structure. We also discussed the progress
they had made on integrating key

Focussed on ‘stranded assets’, carbon
management strategies and climate
change performance scores with BP. A
meeting with Glencore Xstrata also
initiated a discussion on these

issues.

Co-signed letters to major US,
European and Japanese consumer
companies in the palm oil supply chain
on the sustainability of their supplies.

Page 8 of 15

81| abed



ey

BlackRock Legal & General LAPFF
environmental and social risks into its
compensation structure

BlackRock Legal & General LAPFF

15.2 Governance / Remuneration Issues

In light of the upcoming legal changes to
executive remuneration in the UK, we have
experienced a considerable increase during
the quarter in the number of engagements
with issuers on executive remuneration
matters. Companies are in the midst of
reviewing their remuneration arrangements
and seeking shareholder feedback in
anticipation for the introduction of the binding
vote on their remuneration policy.

Engaged with a number of issuers on
succession planning, in a joint engagement
with our portfolio management team, we met
with the Chairman of a luxury goods company
to discuss the succession plan carried out
after the departure of its CEO. We sought to
understand the process that had been in place
to identify the successor and how this
appointment would impact the business

overall.

JP Morgan

Discussed the significant unauthorised
trading losses and the mechanisms the
company has strengthened as a result of
these failures. Also discussed was our
preference for a split CEO and Chairman
role and the company's actions to
strengthen the risk committee

Renault

Participated in a meeting with the
company to discuss board structure,
independence levels, director tenures and
mandates, the role of the Lead
Independent Director and the combined
CEO and Chairman role. Also discussed
was the new shareholder vote on
remuneration and what we as
shareholders would expect to be

Sent a letter to Oracle outlining their
concerns about executive pay. The
Company lost its pay vote for the
second year in a row, but the Board
remains defiant.

Met with Standard Chartered, M&S
and Burberry to discuss remuneration
issues and get company feedback on
LAPFF’s ‘Expectations for Executive
Pay’ document.

Corresponded with Afren, Easyjet and
G4S regarding pay practices and pay
complexity and to seek further
meetings.

Page 9 of 15

61| obed



ey

BlackRock

Legal & General

LAPFF

Concluded our thematic engagement series
on corporate responsibility and sustainability
practices across the retail and grocer sector.
We held a final meeting in the series with a
UK grocer to discuss the company's
sustainability programme, including the recent
refocus to use their scale to push for change
and the new CEQ's focus on creating a
sustainable business over the long-term.
Significant time has been spent over the last
year on engaging internal and external
stakeholders to understand what the key
concerns are and what the objectives for the
programme should be. We also discussed the
company’s work with a number of industry
bodies in furthering best practice. Similar to
our previous findings, we believe that
commitment throughout the organisation will
determine the success of this new

disclosed

Page 10 of 15

0z | ebed



ey

BlackRock

Legal & General

LAPFF

15.3 Other Engagement activity

The main themes for voting against
management this quarter include board
composition and the lack of sufficient
independent oversight, poor remuneration
practices and general share issuance
requests in excess of recommended
guidelines without sound rationale.

This quarter saw an extraordinary shareholder
meeting of a UK manufacturer of technology
systems and components. The main issue
was the vote on a share incentive plan for the
incoming CEO. The one-off plan, which was
proposed in addition to the agreed annual pay
package upon appointment as CEO, had a
number of features that were not considered
to be in the interest of shareholders. These
included a high level of matching shares
vesting on the development of the share price,
and the possibility for early vesting following a
change of control, while not being time pro-
rated. Given these conditions, it was decided
to vote against the plan.

RSA

Engaged with the board chairman who
explained that PWC had been appointed
to look at the control processes within the
Irish insurance business after the
disclosure of significant losses. The CEO
resigned after the profit warning and the
chairman said he would take on this
additional role for up to a year while
reviewing the company strategy. We will
continue to engage with the company and
monitor their performance

Explored the impact of governance
changes at Twenty-First Century Fox
since the split from News Corporation
and discussed the approach to the
ongoing phone hacking scandal.

Responded to a FRC consultation on
the strategic report raising concerns
about its status and compatibility with
UK Company Law, and to a FRC
consultation on directors’
remuneration. Provided input to the
SEC on pay ratio disclosure.

Page 11 of 15

12| obed



Page 122

X

‘/’7’4

Haringey

16. Budget Management — nine months to 31%' December 2013

Prior Actual Variance
year (under)/
(9 mths) overspend

£000 £000 £000

Contributions & Benefit related expenditure

Income

Employee Contributions 6,600 6,408 (192)

Employer Contributions 24,000 22,244 (1,756)

Transfer Values in 3,000 1,770 (1,230)
Total Income 33,600 30,422 (3,178)
Expenditure

Pensions & Benefits (30,000) | (30,446) (4406)

Transfer Values Paid (3,900) (1,786) 2,114

Administrative Expenses (600) (459) 141
Total Expenditure (34,500) | (32,691) 1,809
Net of Contributions & Benefits \ (900) | (2,269)| (1,369)
Returns on investment

Net Investment Income 2,700 1,800 (900)

Investment Management Expenses (1,200) (444) 756
Net Return on Investment 1,500 1,356 (144)
Total 600 (913)) (1,513)

Page 12 of 15



X

‘/’?

Haringey

Page 123

17. Late Payment of Contributions

17.1 The table below provides details of the employers who have made late

payments during the last quarter.

Employer Occasions | Average Average
late Number of monthly

days late | contributions(£)

Mulberry 1 8 14,500
TLC 1 4 4,183

18. Communication Policy

18.1

18.2

18.3

18.4

Two sets of regulations govern pension communications in the LGPS: The
Disclosure of Information Regulations 1996 (as amended) and Regulation 67
of the Local Government Pensions Scheme (Administration) Regulations
2008 as amended.

In March 2011, the Council approved the Pensions Administration Strategy
Statement (PASS). The PASS sets out time scales and procedures which
are compliant with the requirements of the Disclosure of Information
Regulations. The PASS is a framework within which the Council as the
Administering Authority for the Fund can work together with its employing
bodies to ensure that the necessary statutory requirements are being met.

In June 2008 the Council approved the Policy Statement on Communications
with scheme members and employing bodies. The Policy Statement identifies
the means by which the Council communicates with the Fund members, the
employing bodies, elected members, and other stakeholders. These cover a
wide range of activities which include meetings, workshops, individual
correspondence and use of the internet. In recent times, the Pensions web
page has been developed to provide a wide range of employee guides, forms
and policy documents. Where possible, Newsletters and individual notices are
sent by email to reduce printing and postage costs.

The requirement to publish a Communications Policy Statement recognises
the importance that transparent effective communication has on the proper
management of the LGPS.

18.5 During the third quarter of 2013-14, one of the Council’s AVC providers

Page 13 of 15

Prudential gave a presentation to staff on the services they offer. In
December the Council met with the other employer bodies participating in the
Fund, to share information on the 2014 actuarial valuation exercise and to
provide a brief outline on the new scheme to be introduced from April 2014.



X

=

Haringey

Appendix 1 — Investment Managers mandates, benchmarks and targets

v ebed

V)
Manager % of To_tal Mandate Benchmark Performance Target
Portfolio
BlackRock Investment o Global Equities Index (passively
Management 55.7% & Bonds See overleaf managed)
Legal & General Investment 29 3% Global Equities See overleaf Index (passively
Management & Bonds managed)
IPD UK Pooled +1% gross of fees p.a
CBRE Global Investors 10% Property Property Funds All o gros p-a.
over a rolling 5 yr period
Balanced Index
(o)
Pantheon Private Equity 5% Private Equity MScl Wor5lc(:|)/olndex plus +0.75% grgss of fees
Total 100%

Page 14 of 15



Haringey

Asset Class Benchmark BlackRock Legal & General Total
Investment Investment
Management Management
UK Equities FTSE All Share 14.9% 2.6% 17.5%
Overseas Equities 28.8% 23.7% 52.5%
North America FT World Developed North 21.5% 3.8% 25.3%
America GBP Unhedged
Europe ex UK FT World Developed Europe X 4.3% 4.3% 8.6%
UK GBP Unhedged
Pacific ex Japan FT World Developed Pacific X 2.0% 2.0% 4.0%
Japan GBP Unhedged
Japan FT World Developed Japan 1.0% 3.1% 4.1%
GBP Unhedged
Emerging Markets | FT World Global Emerging 0.0% 10.5% 10.5%
Markets GBP Unhedged
Index Linked Gilts | FTA Index Linked Over 5 12.0% 3.0% 15.0%
Years Index
55.7% 29.3% 85.0%

Page 15 of 15

Gz | ebed



Page 126

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 127 Agenda ltem 9
X

‘/’?

Haringey
Item
Report for: Corporate Committee | number
20" March 2014
Title: Pension Fund: London Collective Investment Vehicle
Report authorised %‘”"’%ﬂ o>
by :
Assistant Director — Finance (CFQO)
George Bruce, Head of Finance — Treasury &
Lead Officer: Pensions
george.bruce@haringey.gov.uk
020 8489 3726
Ward(s) affected: N/A Report for Key /Non Key Decision
N/A

1. Describe the issue under consideration

1.1 The Committee agreed at the September 2013 meeting to
contribute up to £25,000 towards the costs of establishing a Collective
Investment Vehicle (“CIV”) for London LGPS that aimed to assume
responsibility for the appointment of fund managers. The establishment
of a CIV is designed to reduce investment management fees and also to
improve performance for those funds that select active fund
management. This report summarises progress in establishing the CIV.

2. Cabinet Member Introduction
2.1 Not applicable.
3. Recommendations

3.1 That the Committee note progress towards the establishment of a
London Collective Investment Vehicle.

Page 1 of 12



X

‘/’?

Haringey

Page 128

4. Other options considered

4.1

5.2

The Society of London Treasurers has considered a range of options
for increased collaborate working in London to enhance the efficiency
of individual London Funds. A report was commissioned from the
accountancy firm PWC in 2012 to look at a range of options including
business as usual to a full blown merger. The options set out were:

Shared procurement — easy to implement, but relatively low impact
and savings limited

Shared procurement with fund manager oversight — relatively easy to
implement, savings higher than option 1, but still not significant
Collective Investment Funds — less easy to implement, but significant
potential for cost savings, whilst at the same time enabling funds to
maintain local governance of funds

Scheme merger of London funds — whilst cost savings are high, this
would be very difficult to implement and would have a major impact on
local accountability and governance.

Centralised administration — again cost savings would be high, but
issues around accountability and governance.

Consideration of the options led to the decision to explore ways of
working more closely together to develop a collective investment
vehicle for pension funds in London to achieve benefits of scale,
bringing cost savings, but maintaining local decision making,
governance and accountability.

5. Background information

5.1

5.2

5.3

In recent years there have been a number of discussion papers
supported by academic research that has intimated that the LGPS
would be more efficient if it was operated as a smaller number of larger
funds. It has been argued that those larger funds would have lower unit
administration costs and have better investment returns.

The Government initiated in summer 2013 a Call for Evidence of the
impact of different LGPS structures in London with ministers indicating
that they believe the current structure was sub optimal. In response,
London Councils have been discussing closer working arrangement
that can achieve the fee savings and performance improvements
sought by the Government, without merging individual funds. As yet
there has been no Government announcement from the Call for
Evidence.

Discussions across London at Leader and CFO level have concluded
that a collective Investment Vehicle (“CIV”) that takes responsibility for

Page 2 of 12



Haringey

5.4

5.5

5.6

5.7

5.8

Page 3 of 12

Page 129

the identification of fund managers and the negotiation of fees for
London funds can achieve the above goals.

The Committee discussed their willingness to participate in a CIV at the
September 2013 meeting and agreed (a) to support further
investigations into the potential establishment of a London-wide
Collective, and (b) approve expenditure of up to £25,000 as a
contribution towards the legal and other related costs in connection
with the possible establishment of the CIV. The approved expenditure
on set up costs has been paid to London Councils.

The London Councils Leaders’ Committee has approved the detailed
business case for the CIV and a proposed governance structure. They
have also approved that a London Local Government Pension Scheme
(LGPS) CIV in the form of a UK based, Financial Conduct Authority
(FCA) approved, Authorised Contractual Scheme (ACS) be set up.

At the present time each Council is being asked to approve, through its
Cabinet, participation in the structure, investment of £1 in share capital
and nomination of a member to sit on a joint committee designed to
represent the Council’s interest as shareholder. There is no
commitment to contribute further share capital nor to invest any funds
in the CIV. Decisions on whether to invest pension assets in the CIV
will be matters for the Council as trustee and administering authority of
the pension fund, to be decided at a date in the future. Cabinet
approval is being sought only to establish the CIV structure in order
that regulatory authority can be applied for to carry out the planned
activities.

Initially the CIV is targeting assets of £5 billion, mainly passive equities.
Over time, it is expected that actively managed mandates and
investments into alternatives such as property and infrastructure
assets may be added to the range of investments offered by the ACS.

The London Councils Leaders Report sets out the likely Governance
structures and key principles. The principles include: investment in the
CIV should be voluntary; ability to choose how much to invest in
individual asset classes; boroughs should have sufficient control over
the CIV Operator, who would provide regular information to
participating boroughs; and Authorities seeking to invest in the CIV will
also take a shareholding interest in the Operator (and have
membership of the Pensions CIV Joint Committee). This Joint
Committee will be established under the existing London Councils
arrangements to represent the participating borough’s shareholder
interest, such as assisting in the appointment of directors to the CIV
Operator. The Pensions CIV Joint Committee will comprise elected
Councillors nominated by participating boroughs as provided for under



X

‘/’?

Haringey

5.9

Page 130

the existing London Councils Governing Agreement. The London
Council’s report proposes that in the event that all 33 boroughs decide
to join then the existing London Councils Leaders Committee can
undertake the role of the joint committee.

In that event that all boroughs do not participate it is nevertheless
recognised that typically the borough Leader might be appointed as the
representative on the joint committee. However, for meetings that deal
with specialist matters, it may be appropriate that a member with
particular expertise e.g. Chair of the Pensions Committee would act as
deputy and attend such meeting.

5.10 As mentioned above, the setting up of the CIV is an executive function

for Cabinet to determine. However, the Committee should be
comfortable with progress and their eventual willingness to consider
participation.

5.11 Attached to this paper for further information is a Q&A paper prepared

by the London Councils. In the Q&A paper the CIV is referred to as an
Authorised Contractual Scheme (“ACS”), which is the proposed legal
structure.

6. Comments of the Chief Financial Officer and financial Implications

6.1.

6.2.

6.3

London Councils have considered in detail the business case for the
establishment of a CIV and the potential for cost savings for Pension
Funds across London. The proposals have received wide spread
support from London Boroughs being prepared to commit funds to see
the CIV established.

There is the potential to see significant financial benefits from greater
collaboration amongst pension funds and the formation of a CIV will
enable these to be delivered without the need for merger which itself
could prove to significantly increase costs in the short term. It has been
estimated that cost savings across London under a CIV could be as high
as £120m and it is anticipated would help to deliver some of the savings
that CLG are seeking from LGPS funds. The benefits of the CIV are that
it will enable the cost savings to be delivered whilst continuing to
enshrine the key objectives of maintaining local accountability and
decision making for individual local authority pension funds. A
collaborative approach provides opportunities to potentially invest in
types of assets that smaller individual funds may not be able to easily
access, for instance direct investment in appropriate infrastructure
projects, which is also a particular focus for the current government.

There are clearly risks attached to the project given that funds need to
be committed to establish the CIV, £25,000 to date, however these are

Page 4 of 12



Page 131

X

‘/’?

Haringey

relatively minor in the context of a £900 million pension fund and would
clearly be offset by the cost savings which can be delivered going
forwards. The risks of inaction or non-participation in this collaborative
venture are seen as far more significant, particularly if the outcome were
to be a merger of funds which could see decisions being taken by
external bodies and resulting in loss of accountability and potential to
increase costs to local taxpayers.

7. Assistant Director of Corporate Governance and Legal Implications

7.1 This report asks the Corporate Committee to note the progress on the
establishment of a London Collective Investment Vehicle.

7.2 Cabinet will be asked to agree to the establishment of a company to
operate the scheme, to contribute £1 initial share capital and to nominate
an elected member to sit on the joint committee to represent the
Council’s shareholder interest.

7.3 There are no specific legal implications arising out of this report.
8. Equalities and Community Cohesion Comments

8.1 The Local Government Pension Scheme is a defined benefit open
scheme enabling all employees of the Local Authority to participate.
There are no impacts in terms of equality from the recommendations
contained within this report.

9. Head of Procurement Comments
9.1 Not applicable
10. Policy Implications

10.1 The Coalition Government, since coming to power has undertaken a
review of public sector pension schemes, leading to a number of major
changes including changes to the benefits structures not only for the
LGPS but also for Teachers, Civil Servants, Fire Brigades, etc. The
objectives for reform are to maintain good quality pension schemes for
those working in the public sector whilst looking to reduce the costs of
the schemes including the administration of such schemes. Following
on from this has been a ‘Call for Evidence’ from Communities and
Local Government to consider the most appropriate structure for the
LGPS going forwards. The Minister responsible for the LGPS, Brandon
Lewis has made it very clear that he does not believe that the status
quo is an option and has sought additional professional evidence to
look at the potential costs and savings from a range of options which
include merger of funds or collective investment vehicles. The outcome

Page 5 of 12



Page 132

X

‘/’?

Haringey

of the ‘Call for Evidence’ and a consultation on the future structure of
the LGPS is expected over the coming months.

10.2 LGPS funds themselves have independently been looking at ways of
reducing costs and working more collaboratively to bring about the
benefits that can be achieved by closer working whilst ensuring that
funds retain the local decision making and accountability.

11. Use of Appendices
11.1 Appendix 1 — Q&A

12. Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985

12.1 Not applicable.

Page 6 of 12



Page 133

X

‘/’?

Haringey

Appendix 2
London LGPS CIV Seminar

5th February 2014
Summary of Questions and Answers

Introduction

The s.151 officers and pension officers from many of the London Boroughs met
on 5th February 2014, to discuss the Pension Working Group’s report to
Leaders’ Committee on the progress of the project to develop a Collective
Investment Vehicle (CIV). The session addressed a number of questions from
officers, with the key area of discussion around governance issues. A summary
is set out below.

Aspects of the report

1. Regarding the recommendations, should the decisions be made by
local pension committees rather than at full council meetings?

[Deleted — out of date.]

2. How many positive responses from boroughs are required to
continue the project?

London Councils would require sufficient quantum and enthusiasm for the
project in order to continue to act on behalf of the London boroughs
collectively; however there is no set number of responses required.

Nevertheless, we are mindful of the local elections, and how this may
affect each borough’s ability to reach decisions, and the position will be
monitored over the coming weeks.

For boroughs that cannot reach a decision now, the option to join later
will always remain open.

[NB. The positive response received to the report at the 11 February
Leaders’ Committee meeting makes it easier for London Councils to
continue in its facilitation role.]

3. How concrete is the proposed timeline for the launch of the ACS
and ACS operator in order to take things forward?

The proposed timeline shows the possible time it may take to launch the
ACS and the ACS Operator, and the work that needs to be completed.
There is a minimum period of time that will be required to negotiate
contracts and prepare FCA applications, and the amount of time the FCA

Page 7 of 12



X

‘/’?

Haringey

Page 134

may take to consider the application can vary (it is likely that the FCA will
require 6 months to review the applications for the ACS and the ACS
Operator although it cannot be guaranteed that both applications will be
reviewed concurrently). As such, the timeline is only indicative, but based
on previous experience it is a reasonable estimate.

The report suggests £5bn of assets is a sensible target. If the £5bn
threshold is not achieved what are the implications?

Analysis has suggested that £5bn of asset within the fund would be a
sensible target to achieve the economies of scale which have previously
been identified; however it is not a critical target size. If the fund size is
smaller, the costs would increase per borough, as each borough would
pick up a larger share, but this does not mean the costs would outweigh
the benefits. Again, this will need to be monitored as the project
progresses.

The proposed structure

5.

6.

The report is brief on the benefits of the ACS itself. Why is the ACS
vehicle considered most appropriate?

There are a number of advantages of using an ACS for the fund,
including:

e ltis tax efficient e.g. for VAT there is an exemption on investment
management fees, ensuring that VAT costs do not increase for the
boroughs.

e As the ACS is tax transparent, the withholding tax benefits the
pension funds are currently entitled to can be maintained.

It is also worth noting that the ACS structure was developed by HM
Treasury, and launched last year, as an attractive alternative to other
similar vehicles based in Ireland and Luxemburg. As such, they are very
interested, and broadly supportive, of our proposals.

The selection of an ACS as the most appropriate fund vehicle was set out
in greater detail in a previous report to Leaders.

Will the nominated interim directors have the required skills and
qualifications to fulfil the role of directors in the ACS Operator?

One point to emphasise is that the interim board of directors is not
intended to remain in place after FCA authorisation. It is temporary. It is
there to steer the initial set up phases to assist in progressing the detailed
work. The suggested interim directors are current Pensions Working
Group members and have been involved in this project from an early
stage.

Page 8 of 12



X

‘/’?

Haringey

Page 135

The interim directors will be representing you and the company to
facilitate it being established. Going forward new appointments will be
made from candidates who are confirmed as suitable by the FCA.
Selecting who these individuals may be, and deciding on the selection
process, will be one of the tasks for the next phase of work.

. What are the risks associated with the ACS?

This model is an authorised scheme by the FCA and so is heavily
regulated. It is more highly regulated than similar funds in both Ireland
and Luxembourg. As such, the risks are as if you were to make any
normal investment. These risks include:

¢ Incorrect valuations
e Holding misrepresented on the register
e Fraud

These risks will exist in the fund. However there will be controls in place
to mitigate these risks. This involves both legal clauses in contracts, and
having the people with the correct skills, knowledge and expertise to
manage the fund.

Regarding tax risk, the key tax risk is that the pension fund'’s investments
are less tax efficient than they would have otherwise been. HMRC have
provided assurances with regards to this vehicle to seek to provide
comfort, for example, by confirming a VAT exemption on investment
management fees.

What measures have been taken to prevent the ACS going bust?
What would happen to the assets?

ACS operator is a limited liability company, in order to protect
shareholders. It will have significant capital, which would mean that,
although the ACS operator could be closed down if the participating
boroughs chose to, it is very difficult for it to go bust. This is because the
London boroughs will own the entity and so will control it as shareholders.
The ACS will only have a maximum of 33 ‘clients’ and so will be acutely
client focussed in its approach.

The assets would be protected legally since they will be ring-fenced
through the corporate entity, the ACS operator company. If the decision
was made to close down the ACS the current value of the investments
made would be returned to investors (subject to payment of any charges
and any change in value caused by movement in the market).

The board of directors of the company will be responsible for monitoring
the performance of the funds and so will receive detailed reporting on a
regular basis. As boroughs are involved, there should be sufficient

Page 9 of 12



X

‘/’?

Haringey

9.

Page 136

warning if it is felt the ACS is not providing value and boroughs wish to
remove their funds.

If action was taken to wind up the ACS, it should be noted that the FCA
will not allow the participants in the ACS to drop to a level where all the
costs of closure would be borne by a few remaining participating councils
in the vehicle. If any such action was taken significant redemptions would
be managed to prevent few investors suffering the closure costs involved.

What assurances can you provide that HM Government will not
intervene?

The risk of Government intervention must be taken into account, but
London Councils have been maintaining active dialogue with the
Department for Communities and Local Government. Nothing from this
dialogue has given London Councils reason to believe that the current
direction of travel will be stopped. London Councils believe the structure
delivers much of what central Government are seeking to achieve. The
Government are exploring the options for the reform of the LGPS, but it
seems unlikely that any reforms will be mandated at this stage.

10.How confident are we that the identified savings will be made?

11.

A very high level summary of the potential savings and costs have been
provided in the report delivered to Leaders. The savings included here
are based on work previously undertaken by PwC.

From some initial discussions in the market, it is considered that fund
managers would be able to provide volume discounts due to the size of
the fund.

As an example, analysis of data provided by the councils to Wandsworth
showed that 7 councils use the services of the same fund manager,
which has an ad valorum fee, with a total investment of ¢ £750m. If those
councils had pooled their assets through the ACS, then by not each
having to pay higher fees on the first part of their investment, the overall
fee saving would have been approximately £750k p.a. This is a simple
example from the initial analysis, but indicates that savings that can be
made through the ACS structure.

It was also noted that if the overall performance of the boroughs had
been in line with the top performers, overall improved returns of close to
£100m would have been achieved. Even if these mandates had been
passive this could have resulted in a saving of £50m. These figures
illustrate the potential benefit of a pooled approach, albeit future returns
cannot be guaranteed.

How will the CIV be better equipped at selecting the fund managers
than the boroughs are now?

Page 10 of 12



Page 137

X

‘/’?

Haringey

There is of course no guarantee to this. However, the vehicle will have a
core staff team looking after the fund, taking advice, and being able to
spend more time on analysis on a full-time basis, and not as a smaller
part of an existing and already busy day job, as can be the case now.

12.How would mandates such as Infrastructure or Real Estate be
governed? Is there a risk fund investments could be politicised?

As a regulated company the ACS will require a robust governance
structure that recognises the need for close engagement with its ‘clients’,
whilst ensuring that its investment decision making is independent.

Any mandates for alternative assets will be considered by the ACS
Operator, and discussed with the boroughs (as ‘clients’) in advance of
being offered. As investors, each borough Pension Committee will be
able to choose whether to invest in such mandates (and any such
decision will need to comply with any investment restrictions applicable to
a borough).

Similarly, if a number of councils wanted to make investments with a
particular strategy, for example ethical investments, it may be that the
ACS could offer this as one of the options should there be sufficient
interest, but it would be for each borough to choose if this was one of the
mandates it would invest in.

Currently, the Government cannot control the mandates of a regulated
fund such as this. Therefore, they would need to change regulation if they
wanted to do this.

[NB. An infrastructure fund ‘think piece’ will be developed in the coming
weeks for discussion with the Pensions Working Group and boroughs.]

13.Will boroughs need to go through a procurement exercise to invest
in the ACS?

If the scheme is kept to just the 33 London councils, then there should
not be a need for individual boroughs to undertake procurement. Legal
advice will be shared on this point. If the fund is offered more widely this
will need to be considered further, but only in the context of the impact on
those other local authorities seeking to join.

If boroughs wished to market test the ACS by undertaking a procurement
exercise they would of course be able to.

14.1s there a risk other investment managers would undercut the fees
offered by the ACS in a procurement exercise?

The ideal scenario is that the market will support the ACS and
undercutting does not happen, although it would demonstrate further that

Page 11 of 12



Page 138

X

‘/’?

Haringey

better value has been driven by the existence of the CIV. It should also
be noted that fees are not the only consideration when undertaking
procurement. It is considered there is not a comparable offering in the
market, where the mandates available have been so tailored to the needs
of the London boroughs.

15.1f the government wants the structure to be adopted across the UK,
what are the implications?

A number of authorities are watching the developments here in London.
In terms of this ACS, it may be that you choose (as owners) that other
non-London LGPS funds can come in as investors, however they would
not be shareholders of the Operator, and as such would not participate in
decision making in the same way the participating London boroughs
would.

Page 12 of 12



Page 139 Agenda ltem 10
X

‘/’?

Haringey
Item
Report for: Corporate Committee | number
20" March 2014
Title: Pension Fund Investment in Recommended

Investment Funds

Report authorised - ' _
by - %&Aﬂgf%

Assistant Director — Finance (CFO)

George Bruce, Head of Finance — Treasury &
Lead Officer: Pensions

George.bruce@haringey.gov.uk

020 8489 8621

Ward(s) affected: N/A Report for Non Key Decision

1. Describe the issue under consideration

1.1 Allocations to two new assets classes were agreed at the January
2014 meeting and officers were delegated to identify suitable
investment funds for consideration by the Committee.

2, Cabinet Member Introduction

2.1 Not applicable.

3. Recommendations

3.1 The Committee agree to invest in the recommended investment
funds that will be named at the meeting and delegate authority to the
CFO and / or Assistant Director of Corporate Governance to complete
all required documentation.

4. Other options considered

4.1 None.

Page 1 of 6



X

7’4

Haringey
5I

5.1

5.2

6.

6.1

Page 140

Background information

The January meeting of the Committee agreed to include allocations
to infrastructure debt and multi sector credit within the investment
strategy (appendix 1) and delegated authority to officers bring forward
recommended funds. Each new mandate will be approximately £45
million.

The process to identify recommended funds is underway with
presentations from short listed candidates held on 6™ & 17 March. It is
intended that details of the selected investment funds will be provided
atthe 20 March meeting. Presentations will be given by the two
preferred funds in advance of the 20" March.

Comments of the Chief Finance Officer & financial implications

Delegated authority was received to recommend appropriate funds for

the two new asset classes. The process has been reviewed by Legal and
Procurement and has been conducted with support from Mercer and the
Independent Advisor. At the time of writing the paper the appointment
process is ongoing and the recommendations will be discussed at the
Committee meeting.

7.

7.1

7.2

8.1

9.1

Assistant Director of Corporate Governance comments and
Legal Implications

The Council as administering authority for the Haringey Pension Fund
has the power to invest fund monies as set out in Local Government
Pension Scheme (Management and Investment Funds) Regulations
2009.

The Council is seeking to invest in two investment funds based on the
selection process outline in this report. The investment fund is set up
under a trust deed and the Council will be a beneficiary under the
trust. The investment of funds in this way does not raise any
procurement issues.

Equalities and Community Cohesion Comments

Not applicable.

Head of Procurement Comments

Not applicable.

Page 2 of 6



X

7’4

Haringey
10.

10.1

11,

12

12.1

13.

13.1

Page 141

Policy Implications
None.
Use of Appendices

Appendix 1: Investment Strategy Allocations
Appendix 2: Notes of Shortlisting Meeting (exempt)

Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985

This report contains exempt and non-exempt information. Exempt
information is contained in Part B and is not for publication. The
information is exempt under the following category (identified in the
amended Schedule 12 A of the Local Government Act 1972):

Information relating to the business or financial affairs of any particular
person (including the Authority holding that information).

Selection Process

Following the Committee’s decision to invest in multi sector credit and
infrastructure debt a process has been commenced to identify suitable
funds. The steps in the process are set out below:

These types of investments are best suited to pooled investments,
which are likely to incur lower all in costs than segregated mandates
for the proposed portfolio values. In addition, investing through funds
is treated as an investment rather than a fund manager appointment
and entails less procurement rules.

The proposed selection process was cleared with Legal and
Procurement Services.

Mercer's produced a long list of eight investment funds for each
mandate using their manager ratings. Following discussion, four
suitable candidates for each mandate were shortlisted to receive a
questionnaire. One investment fund subsequently withdrew. Notes of
the Shortlisting meeting are attached (appendix 2). Copies of Mercer’s
notes on each candidate are available from the Lead Officer.

While the selection process is outside of European procurement
rules it does have to meet internal standards of objectivity, fairness,
transparency and best value. To achieve these requirements a
questionnaire and scoring system has been developed that will allow

Page 3 of 6



X

‘/’?

Haringey

Page 142

candidates’ responses to be evaluated and a preferred fund identified

for each mandate.

e)

f)

g9)

13.3

14.

141

14.2

14.3

14.4

Presentations from the short listed investment funds took place on 6"
March (Infrastructure debt) with a further presentation to be held on
17" March (Multi Sector Credit) at the offices of Mercer. The
presentations are being used to confirm the responses to the tender
questionnaire and also the scoring / preferred candidate.

Recommended funds will be discussed with the Committee on 20™
March. Both recommended funds will be asked to present to
Committee Member’s immediately prior to the meeting.

Delegation is sought for the CFO (or Head of Legal Services) to
complete the investments, including signing  appropriate
documentation.

The short listed funds selected are discussed below with further
details in appendix 2. Both recommended funds will present
immediately prior to the Committee meeting

Multi Sector Credit

After discussion of the eight investment funds identified by Mercer,
the following four shortlisted candidates were agreed:

BlueBay
CQs

Stone Harbor
Wellington

The first three have the highest A manager rating from Mercer.
Wellington is rated one level lower at B+; a classification that retains
an above average expectation of out-performance. Wellington
provided training to the Pension Working Group last December and
being a global diversified fund manager group offer a different option
to the other three more focused organisations.

All four funds have investment professionals based in the UK that
allows greater visibility of the investment process.

As three of the four names are likely to be relatively unknown to the
Committee, consideration was given to adding one or two additional B+
rated managers that have greater name recognition. The two possible
candidates have significant concerns relating to team stability and
investment process and it was agreed not to add to the shortlist.

Page 4 of 6



Page 143

X

‘/74

Haringey

15. Infrastructure Debt
15.1 The three preferred investment funds are:

e Allianz
e Macquarie
e AMP

15.2 The funds selected were based both on their capabilities and
experience of the sector but also on the availability of suitable funds.

15.3 Initially a 4™ candidate was selected, Westbourne, who indicated that
they could accommodate an investment by Haringey. Subsequently,
that position was reversed and they have no available investment
opportunities. Discussions with Mercer indicated that there is a
significant overlaps in the strategies of AMP and Westbourne and the
three remaining candidates provide a good spread of strategies and a
credible choice.

Page 5 of 6



Page 144

X

‘/74

Haringey

Appendix 1

Suggested Recommendations to Corporate Committee in respect of the
Pension Fund Strategic Asset Allocation

Strategic Asset Allocation Proposal

Actual Strategy Strategy
Dec-13 Current Future
Asset Class
Equities 75.9 70.0 60.0
Index Linked 13.8 15.0 15.0
Property 6.0 10.0 10.0
Private equity 4.0 5.0 5.0
Multi asset credit 5.0
Infrastructure debt 5.0
Cash 0.3
100.0 100.0 100.0

Page 6 of 6



Page 145 Agenda ltem 11
X

=

Haringey
Item
Report for: Corporate Committee | number
20" March 2014
Title: Treasury Management Update
Report authorised \w(l? M
by : a/ ,
Assistant Director — Finance (CFO)
George Bruce, Head of Finance — Treasury &
Lead Officer: Pensions George.bruce@haringey.gov.uk
020 8489 3726
Ward(s) affected: N/A Report for Non Key Decision

1. Describe the issue under consideration

1.1 This report updates the Committee on the treasury management
development since 1% January 2014, in particular the recent sale of
Icelandic deposits.

2. Cabinet Member Introduction

2.1 Not applicable.

3. Recommendations

3.1 That members’ note the sale of Landsbanki deposits and the actions
being taken with the remaining balances.

4. Other options considered

4.1 None.

5. Background information

5.1 The Corporate Committee receive quarterly updates on treasury

activity, with the December 2013 quarter being reported to the January
meeting. Since then, the outstanding claim relating to Landsbanki has

Page 1 of 5



Page 146

X

=

Haringey

been sold and this note updates the Committee on the sale and the
remaining Icelandic balances.
6. Comments of the Chief Financial Officer and financial implications
6.1 Proceeds from the Icelandic bank claims have continued to exceed the
previous prudent estimates. The cash loss is now estimated at
£1,233,000 compared with the May 2013 estimate of £2,679,000. The
timing of future distributions is dependent on when Icelandic exchange
controls are lifted and the outcome of legal action between lIcelandic
banks.
7. Head of Legal Services and Legal Implications
7.1 Separate legal advice has been provided with regards the sale of the
Landsbanki deposits and there are no further legal implications in
respect of this report.
8. Equalities and Community Cohesion Comments
8.1 There are no equalities issues arising from this report.
9. Head of Procurement Comments
9.1 Not applicable.
10. Policy Implications
10.1 None applicable.
11. Use of Appendices
11.1 Appendix 1: Summary of Icelandic Balances
12. Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985
12.1 Not applicable.
13. Icelandic Deposits
13.1 The Council held deposits of £37 million with three Icelandic banks that

failed during October 2008. These were Heritable (£19.8 million),
Landsbanki (£15.157 million) and Glitnir (£2 million). This note

Page 2 of 5



X

=

Haringey

Page 147

provides an update on distributions received from each bank and
anticipated final recoveries. A summary is attached.

14. Landsbanki

14.1 Prior to 2014, distributions of £8,245,000 had been received from
Landsbanki. The CFO received authority to participate in an auction of
the remaining Landsbanki claim alongside other investors, provided a
minimum agreed price was received.

14.2 The auction was successful and the remaining claim was sold in
January 2014 for £6,155,000, brining total proceeds to £14,400,000.
This represents 95% of the original deposit. The loss of £757,000
excludes interest that would have been earned since 2008.

14.3 The previous report on expected recoveries (May 2013) estimated
distributions until 2018 with 98% of the initial deposit being recovered.
Although the auction proceeds are less than the previous estimate of
98% total recovery, the date of recovery has been brought forward by
4-5 years and ends the uncertainty over future receipts.

15. Heritable Bank

15.1 A further distribution of £3,329,000 was received in August 2013,
bringing total distributions to £18,702,000, being 94.5% of the initial
deposit (or 94% of the claim). This is a substantial improvement on the
86-90% recovery predicted last May. The shortfall to date is
£1,098,000. The outstanding claim value is £1.19 million (which
includes interest). Future distributions are estimated to increase the
recovery to 97% and reduce the cash loss to £594,000.

16. Glitnir

16.1 The £2 million deposit with Glitnir has been reported as 100%
recovered, with £1,678,000 received and further distribution, paid in
Icelandic Krona, being held in Iceland due to exchange controls. The
value of the funds held in Iceland at today’s exchange rate is
£440,000, which if repaid would result in a ‘surplus’ of £117,000. The
escrow balance is currently earning interest at 4.2%.

16.2 Recent legal advice is that the capital controls will remain in place for

some years although they may be lifted in stages offering some exit
opportunities.

17. Summary

Page 3 of 5



X

=

Haringey

Page 148

17.1 The distributions received from the Icelandic banks now total

Page 4 of 5

£34,780,000 out of the original £36,957,000 invested, which represents
a shortfall of £2,177,000. This position is expected to improve with
eventual recovery of the escrow balance (£440,000) and the potential
for further Heritable distributions, estimated at £504,000. The previous
estimated final cash loss of £2,679,000 has proved to be overstated.
The table below summarises the position to date.



Page 149

X

=

Haringey

Appendix 1

Icelandic deposits update — February 2014

The table below summarises the current position in terms of distributions
received and the total recovery expected.

A B C D E F G
Original Distribs Distribs Further Total Total Expected
invested recd inISK Anticipated expected expected cash loss

Distributions recovery recovery
%

Glitnir Bank 2,000 1,678 440 0 2,118 106% -118
Heritable 19,800 18,702 0 504 19,206 97% 594
Bank

Landsbanki 15,157 14,400 0 0 14,400 95% 757
Total 36,957 34,780 440 504 35,724 97% 1,233

Distributions

e The distributions listed in column B above have been received into
Haringey’s bank account.

e The distributions in column C have been made in Icelandic Krona into a
ring fenced bank account in Iceland, where they currently remain earning
interest at 4.2%. Interest to 31 December 2013 is included. The values
shown are the sterling equivalents, which will change as exchange rates
vary.

Expected recoveries

e Glitnir has been fully distributed, although some is in Icelandic Krona,
which has not been received yet. Depending on exchange rates, the
amount received may be more or less than 100%.

e Heritable distributions to date represent 94% of deposits. It is anticipated
that the final recovery will be 97% of the original investment.

e The Landsbanki claim was sold by way of an auction and no further
recoveries are due.

Icelandic Krona
e The funds in Icelandic Krona are subject to currency controls in Iceland
and so cannot be transferred out of the country. The LGA and Bevan
Brittan are continuing to search for solutions to expedite the transfer on
behalf of all local authorities, but no cost effective solution has yet been
found.

Page 5 of 5



Page 150

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 151 Agenda ltem 12

Haringey
. . Item

Report for: Corporate Committee Number:
Title: Local Government Pension Scheme - Employer Discretions
popot Jacquie McGeachie - Interim Head of H R d
Authorised by: acquie McGeachie - Interim Head of Human Resources an

Organisational Development P ee

<

Lead Officer: | Janet Richards Pensions Manager

Ward(s) affected: None

Report for Key/Non Key Decisions:

Non Key Decision

1. Describe the issue under consideration

The Local Government Pension Scheme Regulations 2013 (“LGPS 2013”) and The Local
Government Pension Scheme (Transitional Provisions and Savings) Regulations 2013
(“Transitional Regulations”) comes into effect on 1% April 2014. There are some
discretionary elements which the Council as the Employing Body can exercise. Regulation
60 (as amended by the Transitional Regulations) requires the London Borough of
Haringey to prepare, approve, publish and keep under review changes to the Council’s
Policy Statement on the exercise of its employer discretions

2. Cabinet Member introduction

Not applicable

3. Recommendations

That the corporate committee approves the changes to the Councils Policy Statement
set out in paragraph [ 6 ] on the exercise of its pension discretions

4. Alternative options considered
n/a

Page 1 0of 17



Page 152

Haringey

5. Background information

The LGPS 2013 and the Transitional Regulations come into effect on 1%t April 2014.
Although the Local Government Pension Scheme is a national scheme there are some
discretionary elements. The new regulation introduces or amends a number of
discretions which the Council as the Employing Body can exercise. Under regulation 60
the London Borough of Haringey is required to prepare and publish its policies under the
following regulations. These policy discretions are, where appropriate as close to the
previous discretions as possible and have been the subject of consultation with trades
unions.

This review will not lead to a serious loss of confidence in the public service

The current policy statement is attached as appendix A. Appendix B gives a summary of
the changes.

6. New and Revised Policies

The current policy statement will remain saved were revised and added to as set out
below:

Policy Decisions
Regulation 16(2)e

Voluntary funding of additional pension contributions via Shared Cost
Additional Pension Contributions (by regular ongoing contribution)

Policy decision
The council’s policy is not to fund additional pension via shared cost APC

Regulation 16(4) d

Voluntary funding of additional pension contributions via Shared Cost
Additional Pension Contributions (by one off lump sum)

Policy decision

The council’s policy is not to fund additional pension contributions via Shared
Cost Additional Pension Contributions

Regulation 30(5) as amended

Switching on the 85 year rule for members voluntarily drawing benefits on or
after age 55 and before age 60

Policy decision

Although the term compassionate grounds is not defined in the regulations, the
Council’s policy is to apply the following definition:-

‘Compassionate Grounds means that the scheme member is required to look
after a sick dependant relative on a whole time basis, is therefore unable to take
up gainful employment, and in consequence is suffering financial hardship.’

Page 2 of 17



Page 153

Haringey
In addition, the Council will satisfy itself that the sick dependant relative has a
permanent long-term condition with a reasonable life expectancy having regard
to his/her age.

Each case will be considered on its merits and will be subject to approval by the
Chief Financial Officer acting under delegated powers.

Regulation 30(6)
Flexible retirement
Policy decision

The Council will consider applications for Flexible Retirement from scheme
members age 55 and over. Flexible Retirement is linked to the Council’s existing
policies on Flexible Working and extending employment beyond age 65 or state
pension age if later. It provides opportunities for re-skilling and redeploying older
workers across the workforce as well as retaining skills and experience as part of
a transition towards retirement.

Flexible Retirement allows scheme members age 55 and over to apply to transfer
to a lower graded post or to reduce hours of employment and at the same time
access their retirement benefits. Both the transfer to a lower graded post or
reduction in hours of work and the early release of retirement benefits is an
employer discretion. As a minimum requirement, a member’s pay must reduce by
at least four spinal points or the equivalent in reduced hours.

In considering Flexible Retirement both the needs of the member and the Service
must be taken into account. Initial approval rests with the Service Chief Officer
e.g. Assistant Director or equivalent with final approval by the Head of Human
Resources.

The early release of benefits before age 65 or state pension age if later has the
potential to incur an actuarial reduction in benefits. The Council’s Section 151
Officer has delegated authority to waive any actuarial reduction, but only in
exceptional circumstances that benefit the business and operational needs of the
service. The cost to the Fund will be met from the Service budget.

Acceptance of Flexible Retirement debars the member from changing their job to
a post offering higher pay within the Council or from returning to employment on
higher pay with the Council for a period of not less then three years.

The procedure and criteria for approving Flexible Retirement applications is
available on Harinet.

Regulation 30(8)
Waiving of actuarial reductions
Policy Decision:

Page 3 of 17



Page 154

Haringey
The Council’s policy is only to consider waiving an actuarial reduction by
applying ‘in the Interest of efficiency of the service’ policy in exceptional
circumstances where switching on the 85 year rule would leave someone in
financial hardship

Each case will be considered on its merits and will be subject to approval by the
Chief Financial Officer acting under delegated powers.

Any Capital Cost arising will be met from Service/Business Unit budgets and will
be paid into the Fund within a three month period.

First and second tier Officers will require Member approval.

Regulation 31

Awarding additional pension (via an Additional Pension) at whole cost to the
employer

The council’s policy is not to fund additional pension (via an Additional Pension)
at whole cost to the employer

7. Comments of the Chief Finance Officer and financial implications

The Chief Finance Officer has been consulted over the contents of the report and has
no additional comments to make.

8. Head of Legal Services and legal implications

8.1 Regulation 60 of the LGPS 2013 places certain obligations on the Council both as a
Scheme Employer and as Administering Authority for the LGPS.

8.2  The regulation has been amended by Regulation 18 of the Transitional Regulations
which makes transitional provisions relating to the so-called “85 year rule”.
Schedule 2 paragraph 2 applies where a member makes a request to receive
immediate payment of retirement benefits under Regulation 30(5) of the LGPS
2013. In this situation Scheme Employer or where the employer has ceased to be a
Scheme Employer, the Administering Authority, may on compassionate grounds
waive the reductions referred to in paragraphs 2(a) or (b) of Schedule 2.

8.2  Under Regulation 60 (as amended) a Scheme Employer must prepare a written
statement of its policy in relation to the exercise of its functions under Regulations:
-16(2)(e) and 16(4)(d) (funding of additional pension);

- 30(6) (flexible retirement);
- 30(8) (waiving of actuarial reduction);
- 31 (award of additional pension); and

Page 4 of 17



Page 155

Haringey
- 30(5) (retirement benefits: early retirement) (as amended)

8.3 The obligation on the Administering Authority is to prepare a statement in relation to
the exercise of its functions under Regulation 30(8) in cases where a former employer
has ceased to be a Scheme Employer.

8.4 The Scheme Employer must send a copy of its statement to the Administering
Authority before 1 July 2014 and must publish its statement.

8.5 A body required to publish a statement must keep it under review and make such
revision as is appropriate following a change in its policy. A Scheme Employer must
then send a copy of the revised statement to the Administering Authority and publish
it within one month of revision.

8.6 In preparing, reviewing or revising the statement that body must have regard to the
extent to which the exercise of its function above in 8.2 in accordance with its policy
could lead to a serious loss of confidence in the public service.

9. Equalities and Community Cohesion Comments
N/A

10.Head of Procurement Comments
N/A

11. Policy Implication

N/A
12 Reasons for Decision

The Council is obliged under the Local Government Pension Scheme Regulations 2013 to
prepare, approve, publish and keep under review changes to the Council’s Policy
Statement on the exercise of its employer discretions

13 Use of Appendices

14 Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985

Page S of 17



Page 156

Haringey

Appendix A

POLICY STATEMENT ON THE USE OF ITS DISCRETIONARY POWERS:

This Policy Statement sets out the Council’s use of its discretionary powers under the
Local Government Pension Scheme Regulations' and Local Government Pension
Scheme Compensation Regulations.

The document can be viewed on the Harinet Pensions Page (click Personnel and follow
the links) and the Haringey Pensions Web Page (www.haringey.gov.uk/pensionfund)

The current policy was reviewed and updated by Corporate Committee on 20t January
2013

This policy statement only applies to scheme members employed by Haringey Council.
Scheme members not employed by the Council must refer to the Policy Statement
issued by their employing body. '

Councillor Members should refer to Part 2

Part 1.A Pensions Discretions

Employee Members

1. | Choice of early payment of pension (Regulation 30)

This applies to members who cease employment after age 55 and before age 60
who elect for early payment of their retirement benefits.

The Council’s policy is to allow early payment of benefits as provided by
Regulation 30 where there is a clear financial or operational advantage to the
Council in doing so.

The Council will consider waiving any actuarial reduction on ‘compassionate
grounds’ as defined in Paragraph 5 of the Policy Statement below.

Each case will be considered on its merits and will be subject to approval by the
Section 151 Officer acting under delegated powers.

Any Capital Cost arising will be met from Service / Business Unit budgets and will
be paid into the Fund within a three month period.

' The main scheme regulations referred to are :-

The Local Government Pension Scheme (Benefits, Membership and Contributions) Regulations 2007 (as
amended)

The Local Government Pension Scheme (Administration)) Regulations 2008 (as amended)

The Local Government Pension Scheme (Transitional Provisions) Regulations 2008 (as amended)

The Local Government (Early Termination of Employment) (Discretionary Compensation) (England and Wales) )
Regulations 2006 (as amended).

Page 6 of 17




Page 157

Haringey

First and second tier Officers will require Member approval.

2. | Early Retirement on Redundancy and Business Efficiency (Reg 19)

Members age 55 and over who are retired on redundancy or efficiency grounds
have entitlement to immediate payment of unreduced benefits.

Any Capital Cost arising from an early retirement on redundancy or business
efficiency will be met from Service/Business Unit budgets and must be paid into
the Fund within a three month period.

Each case will be considered on its merits and will be subject to approval by the
Section 151 Officer acting under delegated powers.

First and second tier Officers will require Member approval

3. | Early payment of Deferred Benefits (Requlations 30 : 30A)

A member who left with entitlement to Deferred Benefits or whose Tier 3 Ill Health
Retirement Pension was suspended under Regulation 20(9)) can elect from age 55
to have the benefits put into payment early. An election made before age 60
requires employer consent.

Benefits claimed before age 65 may be subject to an actuariatl reduction unless
the Council agrees to waive the reduction

The Council’s policy is to allow early payment of Deferred Benefits only if the case
can be considered on ‘Compassionate Grounds’ as defined in paragraph 5 below
or otherwise where there is no financial disadvantage to the Council for doing so.

Deferred Member Benefits which began before 1%t April 1997 can only be released
early on ‘compassionate grounds as defined in paragraph 5 below. There is no
discretion to waive any actuarial reduction if an election to receive early payment
of benefits from age 60 is made

Each case will be considered on its merits and will be subject to approval by the
Section 151 Officer acting under delegated powers.

4. | Elexible retirement (Requlation 18)

The Council will consider applications for Flexible Retirement from scheme
members age 55 and over.

As a minimum requirement, a member’s pay must reduce by at least four spinal
points or the equivalent in reduced hours

Both the transfer to a lower graded post or reduction in hours of work and the
early release of retirement benefits is an employer discretion

In considering Flexible Retirement both the needs of the member and the Service
must be taken into account. Initial approval rests with the Service Chief Officer
e.g. Assistant Director or equivalent with final approval by the y Head of Human
Resources.

The early release of benefits before age 65 has the potential to incur an actuarial
reduction in benefits. The Section 151 Officer has delegated authority to waive
any actuarial reduction, but only in exceptional circumstances that benefit the
business and operational needs of the service. The cost to the Fund will be met
from the Service budget.

Page 7 of 17




Page 158

Haringey

Acceptance of Flexible Retirement debars the member from changing their job to
a post offering higher pay or increasing their hours within the Council or from
returning to employment on higher pay with the Council for a period of not less
then three years.

The full Flexible Retirement Policy, Procedure and Documentation is available on
Harinet (click Personnel and follow the links)

5. | Discretion to waive an actuarial reduction under Regulation 30

Although the term compassionate grounds is not defined in the regulations, the
Council’s policy is to apply the following definition:-

‘Compassionate Grounds means that the scheme member is required to look after
a sick dependant relative on a whole time basis, is therefore unable to take up
gainful employment, and in consequence is suffering financial hardship.’

In addition, the Council will satisfy itself that the sick dependant relative has a
permanent long-term condition with a reasonable life expectancy having regard to
his/her age.

Each case will be considered on its merits and will be subject to approval by the
Section 151 Officer acting under delegated powers

6. | Awards of Added Membership Reg. 12

The Council’s policy is not to award additional membership

7. | Awards of Additional Pension Req.13

The Council’s policy is not to award additional pension

8. | Payment of Death Grants for Active Members Requlation 23, Deferred Members

Reg.32 and Pensioner Members Regulation 35,

A death grant will usually be paid in accordance with the member's nomination or,
where there is no nomination, to the legal personal representatives. However
where it is considered that:

a) an existing nomination may no longer reflect the member's intentions (for
example there is a subsequent marriage, divorce or children) or,

b) there is a deserving recipient (who must be have been his relative or dependant
at some time) who would otherwise be excluded by payment to the Estate or,

c) payment to the Estate may be inappropriate for other reasons (for example
where inheritance tax may be a factor if payment were made to the Estate).

Payment may be made in the manner and proportions the Council believe
appropriate in the circumstances of the case.

In all cases, the release of the Death Grant is delegated for approval to the
Section 151 Officer.

9. | Disregarding a break in full-time education for a Childs Pension to continue in

payment.

a. Where there is a break in full-time education or training, the Chief Financial
Officer will decide whether such a break can be ignored on the child’s return
to full-time education or training

b. The Chief Financial Officer will have regard to the circumstances of-each case

Page 8 0of 17




Page 159

Haringey

within the guideline that the break should not generally extend beyond 12
months from the beginning of one academic year to the end of one academic
year, or include periods of full-time employment of more then three months

c. Where the gap extends beyond the 12 month limit as described above, the
child must be able to clearly demonstrate a clear intention to return to full-
time education or training and has not undertaken paid employment as an
alternative career option to returning to fill-time education or training

d. Where the Section 151 Officer deems it appropriate to ignore a break in full-
time education or training, the child’s pension will be reinstated from the re-
commencement of full-time education or training or such earlier date as the
Secton151 Officer deems appropriate based on the individual circumstance
of the case.

e. The exercise of this discretion will be reported to the Corporate Committee.

10.

Abatement (reduction) of pensions on re-employment

Members of the Fund who commence re-employment or who return to Office after
31% March 1998 will be liable for an abatement in their pension in the
circumstances described below.

The abatement will be calculated in accordance with the provisions of Schedule 5
to the Local Government Pension Scheme Regulations 1995.

Pensioner members who commence re-employment or return to Office in local
government following retirement on medical grounds. or

re-employment or return to Office with Haringey Council or its employing bodies
in circumstances where the member has retired early with no percentage
reduction to the retirement benefits will be subject to an abatement except in
cases of Flexible Retirement agreed in accordance with Regulation 18.

11.

Waiving of time limits

The Council’s policy is to waive time limits set within the Pension Scheme
Regulations? where it is satisfied that the individual could not have known of the
requirement to make an election at the proper time.

12.

Medical clearance to purchase Additional Pension ( ARCs) Reaulation 23

(Administration Regulations)

An application to purchase additional pension will only be accepted if the member
makes a declaration that he/she is in reasonably good health and has not been
seen by a medical practitioner within the last 12 months or otherwise where the
member provides a report by a registered medical practitioner of the results of a
medical examination undertaken at the member's own expense

13.

Attributing salary bands

Salary bands are attributed on 1! April based on basic annual pensionable pay
plus variable pensionable pay over the last twelve months.

New starters to be attributed a salary band on the first day of membership based
on basic annual pensionable pay.

That with the exception of back-dated pay awards to 1% April, no variation will be

Page 9 of 17




Page 160

Haringey

made to a member’s attributed salary band other then at each annual review date
on 1% April of each subsequent year.

To ensure the smooth implementation of this change any variation to this policy is
delegated to the Head of Human Resources subject to approval at the next
available meeting of Corporate Committee

14.| Shared Cost Additional Voluntary Contribution Scheme

The Council’s policy is not to provide a Shared Cost AVC scheme

Part 1.B Compensation Discretions

Discretions exercised by Haringey Council in accordance with provisions of

The Local Government (Early Termination of Employment) (Discretionary
Compensation) (England and Wales) Regulations 2006 (as amended) and the Local
Government (Discretionary Payments) Regulations 1996 as amended

1. | Compensation for Redundancy

Compensation on redundancy will be based on ; 1 weeks pay for each complete
year of service up to a maximum of 20 years total service.

2. | Rate of Pay for Redundancy Purposes

The redundancy payment is based on the actual weekly rate of pay at the relevant
date. (This is usually but not always, the date notice is given).

Injury Allowances

3. | An Injury allowance may be paid to an employee who sustains an injury or
contracts a disease as a result of anything he/she was required to do in carrying
out their work; and either:-

Is certified as being permanently incapacitated and ceases employment. or
Suffers a reduction in pay.

In deciding on the amount of Injury Allowance payable, the Council takes into
account all the circumstances of the case.

The maximum amount payable is 85% of Final Pay.
Injury Allowances in payment are reviewed annually, and at age 65.

Each case is referred for a decision to the Section 151 Officer acting under
delegated authority.

4. | Gratuity Payments

5. | Gratuities for Non- Pensionable Service: Summary of current Policy:

Gratuities are paid to retiring employees for service with the Council during which
they were not eligible to join the Local Government Pension Scheme.

Part Time employees who worked at least 15 hours per week for 35 weeks a year
can count service up to 31/3/1987 for gratuity entitiement.

Part Time employees who worked less 15 hours per week can count service up to

Page 10 of 17




Page 161

Haringey

16/8/1993.

Gratuity payments do not apply to casual employment
The payments are calculated on 3.75% of Annual Pay for each year of gratuity
service as described above.

The employee can choose between a once off lump sum or an annuity payment.
A Death Gratuity is also paid if an employee dies in Service.

The Death Gratuity is paid to an employee's dependants. it is calculated on
3.75% of Annual Pay for all local government service up to 31/3/1987. It is
payable to members of the Local Government Pension Scheme and non-scheme
members alike.

Part 2.A

Councillor Members:

1.

Voluntary early retirement from age 55

The Council will not exercise its discretion to release retiremient benefits early to
councillor members who cease or have ceased to be a member of the Council age
50 and under 65

The Council will not exercise its discretion to waive the actuarial reduction for

councillor members who cease to be a member of the Council and claim immediate
payment of benefits

Re-employed pensioners — Abatement of pensions (Regulation 109)

3.| The Council’s policy is not to abate a pension in all cases except :-

re-employment or return to Office in local government following retirement on
medical grounds. or

re-employment or return to Office with Haringey Council or its employing bodies
in circumstances where the member has retired early with no percentage
reduction to the retirement benefits

4. Waiving of time limits

That the time limits set within the Pension Scheme Regulations will be waived
where the member could not have known of the requirement to make an election at
the proper time.

Waiving restriction on entry to the Fund Regulation 7 (9)

The Council’s policy is not to restrict re-entry to the Fund where a member has
previously elected to opt out more then once

Important Note:

Nothing stated above confers any statutory rights or overrides the provisions of the Local
Government Pension Scheme and Compensation Regulations® or related legislation.
In the event of any dispute over your pension benefits, the appropriate legislation will prevail

Page 11 of 17




Page 162

Haringey
For more information contact the Pensions Team at:-

Alexandra House 10 Station Road London N22 7TR

Tel Number 020 8489 5916

E- Mail Pensions.Mailbox@haringey.gov.uk

Page 12 of 17



Page 163

Haringey
Appendix B
Summary of the Changes
Discretion Current LGPS New LGPS Policy Comments
Scheme Policy
Regulation 16(2)e
Not to fund additional New policy
Voluntary funding None - pension via shared cost | Replaces no 4
of additional New policy Additional Pension
pension Contribution
contributions via
shared cost APC
(by regular
ongoing
contribution)
Regulation 16(4)d Not to fund additional
pension contributions New policy
Voluntary funding None - via shared cost Replaces no 19
of additional New policy Additional Pension
pension Contributions (by one
contributions via off lump sum)
Shared Cost APC

(by one off lump
sum)

Regulation 31

Awarding
additional pension
(via an Additional
Pension) at whole
cost to the
employer

None - new policy

Not to fund additional
pension at whole cost
to the employer

New policy
Replaces no 5

Regulation 12
Awards of Added
Membership

Not to award additional
membership

None

Policy no longer
exists in LGPS
2014

Page 13 0of 17




Haringey

Page 164

Regulation 13
Awards of
additional pension

Not to award additional
pension

None

Policy no longer
exists in LGPS
2014

Regulation 30(8)

Waiving of
actuarial
reductions

None new policy

consider waiving an
actuarial reduction by
applying ‘in the Interest
of efficiency of the
service’ policy

Subject to approval by
the Chief Finance
Officer acting under
delegated powers.

First and second tier
Officers will require
Member approval

pouaten306) e SRnsiasedion New polic
A RRICY compassionate policy
Switching on the e
85 year rule for 9 )
members
voluntarily Subi
. , ject to approval by
Sevnglbenefits the Section 151 officer
on or after age 55
and before age 60
The Council will The Council will
Regulation 30(6) consider applications consider applications No change
from scheme members | from scheme members
Flexible retirement | age 55 and over. age 55 and over.
Approval by the Head of | Approval by the Head
Human Resources. of Human Resources.
The Section 151 Officer | The Section 151 Officer
has delegated authority | has delegated authority
to waive any actuarial to waive any actuarial
reduction. reduction.
The Council will New policy

Page 14 of 17




Haringey

Page 165

Childs Pension to
continue in
payment,

of 12 months based on
the individual
circumstance of the
case.

of 12 months based on
the individual
circumstance of the
case.

Members between age None Transitional
9 Regulation 30 55 and 60 requesting Regulations,
Choice of early early payment of applies to LGPS
payment of retirement benefits. members who
pension Council will consider have deferred
waiving actuarial benefits before 1
reduction April 2014
Regulation 19 Members age 55 and Members age 55 and No change
. over retired on over retired on
Eﬁrg egig?;?‘i;t redundancy or efficiency | redundancy or
10 : entitled to unreduced efficiency entitled to
and Business : .
Efficiency pensions unreduced pensions
Request of early None Transitional
payment of deferred Regulations
Eae;zg%ygee:;%fs beneifits from age 55 applies to LEPS-
Regulations 30 : employer con§ent members who
11 | 30A required cgnsndgred have <_jeferred
where no financial benefits before 1
disadvantage to council April 2014
or on compassionate
grounds
Request of early None Transitional
Discretionito paymgnt of deferred Regt_JIations
e benefits from age 55 applies to
12 . employer consent members who
reduction under . A
Regulation 30 required cgnmdgred have deferred
where no financial benefits before 1
disadvantage to council April 2014
or on compassionate
grounds
Payment of Death | In all cases, the Council | In all cases, the No change
Grants for Active | will exercise its Council will exercise its
Members discretion the release of | discretion the release of
13 | Regulation 23, the Death Grant is the Death Grant is
Deferred delegated for approval delegated for approval
Members Reg.32 | to Section 151 officer to Section 151 officer
and Pensioner
Members
Regulation 35,
Disregarding a The Section 151 Officer | The Section 151 Officer | No change
break in full-time |deems it appropriate to  |deems it appropriate to
14 [ education for a ignore a break in excess |ignore a break in excess

Page 15 of 17




Page 166

Haringey
Members of the Fund Members of the Fund No change
Abatement who commence re- who commence re-
(reduction) of emp!oymer}t following emp!oymer!t following
15 pensions on re- medical retirement or medical retirement or
employment whq are reerpployed by whq are reer_nployed by
Haringey or its Haringey or its
employing bodies who employing bodies who
return to Office after 31 | return to Office after
March 1998 will be liable | 31%t March 1998 will be
for an abatement liable for an abatement
Waive time limits set Waive time limits set No change
within the Pension within the Pension
Scheme Regulations Scheme Regulations
16 where an individual where an individual
Waiving of time could nqt have known of | could not r!ave known
limits the requirement to make | of the requirement to
an election at the proper | make an election at the
time. proper time.
An application to An application to No change
Medical clearance | purchase additional purchase additional
to purchase pension will only be pension will only be
17 | Additional accepted if the member | accepted if the member
Pension (ARCs) | makes a declaration that | makes a declaration
Regulation 23 he/she is in reasonably | that he/she is in
(Administration good health reasonably good health
Regulations)
Salary bands are Salary bands are No change
Attributing salary | attributed on 1%t April attributed on 1%t April
18 | bands based on basic annual based on basic annual
pensionable pay plus pensionable pay plus
variable pensionable pay | variable pensionable
over the last twelve pay over the last twelve
months. months.
New starters to be New starters to be
attributed a salary band | attributed a salary band
on the first day of on the first day of
membership based on membership based on
basic annual basic annual
pensionable pay. pensionable pay.
No longer applies
19 igzgggn(;?ﬁ The Council’s policy is None
Voluntary not to provide a Shared
. Cost AVC scheme
Contribution
Scheme

Page 16 of 17




Haringey

Page 167

20

Part 1.B

Discretions

Compensation

No change

No change

No change

21

Injury Allowances

No change

No change

No change

22

Gratuity
Payments

No change

No change

No change

23

Councillor
Members:

No change

No change

No change

Page 17 of 17




Page 168

This page is intentionally left blank



\ Page 169 Agenda ltem 13

=

Haringey

Fanorttor: = | Cariorsle commites 0. en,

Title: Pay Policy Statement 2014/15

Etejfhoor:ised by Jacquie McGeachie - Interim Head of HR /;%M
y:

Lead Officer: Paul Smith -Human Resources

Ward(s) affected: ALL Report for Key/ Non Key Decisions:

Non Key Decision

1 Describe the issue under consideration

1.1 The council is required to produce an annual Pay Policy Statement to comply with
the requirements of the Localism Act 2011. The council published its first Pay
Policy Statement last March 2012. The attached Pay Policy Statement 2014/15 is
a slightly amended statement from the 2013/14 Pay Policy with updates to the
delegations regarding Members considering remuneration or severance packages
of £100,000 or more.

2 Cabinet Member introduction

2.1 Not applicable

3 Recommendations

3.1  That committee note the Pay Policy Statement 2014/15 attached at appendix A
which will be submitted to Council for approval on 26" March 2014

Page 1 of 10



Page 170

LY

—*

//r

Haringey

4

4.1

4.2

4.3

4.4

4.5

4.6

4.7

4.8

4.9

410

Background

The Localism Act 2011 requires relevant authorities to prepare and publish an
annual pay policy statement.

The “Act” does not apply to the staff of local authority schools and therefore
teaching and support staff employed by the Council and based in Council schools
need not be brought within the scope of the “statement”

The Council will publish specific information on the pay and reward of staff earning
£50,000 or more on its website in line with the Code of Recommended Practice for
Local Authorities on Data Transparency and the Accounts and Audit (England)
Regulations 2011.

The Council will also publish information on its website as follows. The current
senior manager, chief officer and chief executive management structure including
employee salaries, names, job titles, staff budget and numbers of staff. The
Council defines “senior managers” as those staff appointed on senior manager pay
grades — which start at remuneration levels of approx £50k per annum

The Code says that authorities should also publish a specific pay multiple to show
how pay and reward is dispersed across their workforce. It defines the ‘pay
multiple’ as the ratio between the highest paid salary and the median average
salary of the whole of the Council’s workforce. The Council’s highest paid
employee is the Chief Executive. Government Guidance says that while authorities
are not required to publish a pay multiple within their pay policy statement they
may consider it helpful to do so.

For the purposes of calculating the pay multiple, “salary” is defined in the pay
policy statement as the total of all regular payments made to an individual officer
including salary, allowances if applicable, regular overtime, performance pay,
recruitment or retention allowances, additional responsibility payments, together
with any other additional regular payments.

The statement also makes clear the Council’s policy to pay the London living wage
to its lowest paid employees.

The Council will shortly be undertaking a review of its approach to reward and this
will be submitted to the appropriate bodies for approval.

This will in due course feature in the Council’s pay policy.

Review of Senior Pay

Page 2 of 10



Page 171

Haringey

5.1

5.2

6.1

6.1

6.2

6.3

6.4

6.5

A review of senior pay progression is under way and the outcomes will be reported
to the appropriate Committee.

This will in time feature in the Council’s pay policy.

Comments of Chief Finance Officer and Financial implications

There are no specific financial implications arising from the contents of this report.

Comments of Head of Legal Services and legal implications

Chapter 8 of the Localism Act 2011 introduced new provisions regarding the
preparation, approval, publication and content of an annual pay policy statement
by principal councils. The provisions came into force on 15 January 2012. The first
pay policy statement as required under the Localism Act 2011 was published in
April 2012 for the financial year 2012-13.

The Council is under a statutory duty to prepare, and by resolution of Full Council
approve, a pay policy statement before the end of the 31 March immediately
preceding the financial year to which it relates. . As soon as is reasonably
practicable following approval the statement must be published including
publication on the Council’s website.

The Council is under a duty, when preparing , approving and publishing pay policy
statements, to have regard to any guidance issued or approved by the Secretary of
State . Such guidance was issued in February 2012 and supplementary guidance
was issued in February 2013. '

The Government has issued under section 2 of the Local Government , Planning
and Land Act 1980 a Code of Recommended Practice for Local Authorities on
Data Transparency (September 2011). The Code relates to the publication of
Public Data defined as the objective, factual data on which policy decisions are
based and on which public services are assessed, or which is collected or
generated in the course of public service delivery.

The Code sets out as a minimum the public data that should be released. This
includes senior employee salaries (all salaries over £58,200 irrespective of post ),
names (with the option for individuals to refuse to consent to their name being
published), job descriptions, responsibilities, budgets and numbers of staff
together with an organisational chart of the staff structure including salary bands
and details of current vacant posts. It also requires the release of a ‘pay multiple’

Page 3 of 10



Page 172

X

-* -

ol

Haringey

6.6

6.7

6.8

7.1

8.1

9.1

10

10.1

being the ratio between the highest paid salary and the median average salary of
the whole of the authority’s workforce.

The Accounts and Audit (England) Regulations 2011 requires the Council to include
in its annual accounts a note of the remuneration of senior employees. “ Senior
employees” are defined by the Regulations as employees whose salary is
£150,000 or more per year and certain other employees whose salary is £50,000 or
more per year, such as the Chief Executive, statutory chief Officers and non-
statutory Chief Officers.

Under section 41 of the Localism Act 2011, from 1 April 2012 any determination
which relates to the remuneration or other terms and conditions of a chief officer
must comply with the pay policy statement.

In the preparation of the pay policy statement attached at Appendix A, regard has
been had to the guidance referred to above and the pay policy statement fulfils all
the requirements of the Localism Act 2011.

Equalities and Community Cohesion Comments

The pay policy statement supports the Council’s approach to remuneration for its
workforce in an accountable, fair and transparent way. This therefore supports the
Council's equalities policy and promotes equal pay.

Policy implications

The Pay Policy Statement supports the Council’s People Strategy and its approach
to remuneration for the workforce.

Use of Appendices

Appendix A — Pay Policy Statement

Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985

No documents that require listing were used in the preparation of this report.

Page 4 of 10



Page 173

Appendix A -

Haringey Council
Pay Policy Statement 2014/15

This Pay Policy Statement is published to comply with the Localism Act 2011. The
policy outlines the authority’s approach to the pay of its workforce, and in particular
the pay of its senior staff. The policy statement excludes staff in Schools.

Pay Strategy

The Council outlines its strategy for pay in the People Strategy. We wish to reward
and recognise the contributions of staff in an appropriate way. We want a committed,
motivated and high performing workforce that is flexible and willing to contribute
more.

The Council set pay (and reward packages generally, including pensions, etc) in
accordance with a fair and equitable pay policy and with regard to national and
regional pay policy. The principles for the agreed policy are
e Attract and retain the right people
o Motivate and engage staff through principles of total reward
e Be cost effective
e Be flexible enough to account for different workforce requirements,
organisational working and team partnership, and the working patterns and
expectations of staff
Be fair, open, and underpin the organisation’s values
Meet employment legislation tests e.g. equal pay, age discrimination
Pay staff a minimum pay rate in line with the London Living Wage

Council Pay Rates / Scales

The Council utilises the Greater London Provincial Council (GLPC) outer London pay
spine for the majority of its staff.

However, it considers it important to be able to locally determine pay rates for some
staff where this is necessary. This enables it to respond to regional and local labour
market conditions. The Council benchmarks its pay rates with other London
Boroughs to ensure that it is able to recruit and retain qualified and competent
employees.

The following Council pay scales are locally agreed by the Council:

¢ Senior manager and Chief officer pay scales
e Chief Executive pay scale

Page 5 of 10



Page 174

The Council uses national Soulbury pay scales for employees who are Education
Psychologists and Education Advisers/ Inspectors.

The Council uses national Teaching pay scales for centrally employed (in the
Children’s directorate) local authority teachers.

Public health employees who transferred into the Council from 1 April 2013 continue
to be paid in accordance with NHS terms and conditions of employment. The Council
is harmonising non contractual terms.

The Council also approved with effect from May 2011 that in future the pay of Council
employees at the lower end of the London pay spine receive a level of pay in line with
the London Living Wage rate as determined from time to time by the Greater London
Authority.

The Council supports the national (JNC/NJC') and regional (GLPC) collective
bargaining arrangements for pay and conditions of service and the pay scales for all
employees, including the Chief Executive and Senior Managers/Chief Officers, are
increased in line with national and regional pay agreements.

The last pay award agreement increasing pay for the Chief Executive and Chief
Officers was implemented in 2008/9.

The last pay award agreement increasing pay for all other non-teaching employees
was implemented in 2013/14.

Remuneration of Senior Managers and Chief Officers including the Chief
Executive

The Council defines its senior managers as those staff appointed on senior manager
pay grades — which start at remuneration levels of approx £50k per annum. These
staff are appointed on terms and conditions ( other than pay ) in accordance with the
national terms and conditions of Chief Officers in local government and are expected
to work as many hours as necessary to complete the job.

Chief Officers are statutory chief officers or non statutory chief officers who report to
the Head of the Paid Service (the Chief Executive). “Chief Officers” also includes
deputy chief officers who report directly to a chief officer.

The Council’s Corporate Committee is responsible of approving the terms and
conditions including pay of all these senior staff.

Where it is proposed to appoint to a post which is not in existence at the time of the
publication of this pay policy statement, and the proposed starting salary is £100,000
or more per annum the appointment may not be made unless the Council (or where
the matter cannot reasonably be delayed the Special Committee in accordance with
section K4 of the Council's Constitution) has agreed to the level of remuneration
attaching to the position.

' Joint Negotiating Committee / National Joint Council
Page 6 of 10



Page 175

The current senior manager, chief officer and chief executive management structure
including employee salaries costs, names, job titles, staff budget and numbers of staff
is published on the council website.

Apart from pay awards approved at national level or awards/ progression there is no
other provision to increase the pay of these staff unless approved by committee.

The Council may, in exceptional circumstances, engage senior managers under
contracts for services. The Council publishes details of all payments made under
contracts for services in excess of £5600 on the Council website.

Remuneration of employees who are not senior managers or chief officers

The pay grades and therefore remuneration levels for posts below senior manager
and chief officer grades are determined by use of the Greater London Provincial
Council (GLPC) job evaluation scheme. This has been agreed by the Council and
unions as part of the collective agreement reached in 2008 on ‘single status’ as part
of the Equal pay and conditions package.

The Council defines its lowest paid employees as those paid at the lowest pay scale
1A which is pay spine points 6 — 7 on the GLPC outer London pay spine. The reason
for this definition is that this is the lowest pay grade in the Council in line with the job
evaluation scheme and pay scales agreed with the unions. This excludes trainees,
apprentices and interns.

However, the Council also approved with effect from May 2011 that in future the pay
of Council employees at the lower end of the London pay spine receive a level of pay
in line with the London Living Wage rate as determined from time to time by the
Greater London Authority. This will be by way of an hourly pay supplement as
appropriate to ensure that the London Living Wage rate is achieved.

Pay Progression of staff who are not senior managers or chief officers

All employees are able to incrementally progress through the pay spine column points
for their job evaluated grade. Progression will normally be one increment (pay spine
column point) on the 1%t of April each year until they reach the top of their grade.

Pay Multiple

The ‘pay multiple’ is the ratio between the highest paid salary and the median average
salary of the Council's workforce. The Council’s highest paid employee is the Chief
Executive and the current pay multiple is published on the Council’s website.

For the purposes of calculating the pay multiple, “salary” is defined as the total of all

regular payments made to an individual officer including salary, allowances if
applicable, regular overtime, performance pay, recruitment or retention allowances,

Page 7 of 10



Page 176

additional responsibility payments, together with any other additional regular
payments.

Pay on Appointment

All employees, including chief officers, are normally appointed on the lower spinal
points (below mid point) of the grade.

The Council delegates authority to chief officers/ chief executive as appropriate to
appoint staff above the mid point of the scale

The salary banding of the Chief Executive will be determined by the recruitment panel
and following this decision the Leader of the Council would determine the starting
point in the salary banding.

Recruitment & Retention payments

Haringey acknowledges that our employees are our best asset and that due to
external factors recruitment and retention allowances will be required for some posts
in order to attract and retain good employees.

Recruitment and retention allowances are linked to the post, not the person. They
cannot be paid to someone because of their level of skill or experience.

A recruitment / retention allowance is deemed suitable where there is evidence of one
or more of the following:

¢ The post has been advertised on more than one occasion and a suitable
applicant could not be recruited.

e Pay benchmarking exercises show that similar local authorities offer
recruitment and retention allowance or a higher salary for the same work.

e A national /local skills shortage where the Council is competing with a number
of other employers for applicants.

o The post is highly specialised with a limited number of potential applicants.

If the post does not meet the suitability criteria the attraction of a recruitment and
retention allowance is unjustified and may be in breach of the Equality Act .

Fees for Election Duties

Council staff may be engaged on election duties of varying types. The fees paid to
Council employees for undertaking these election duties vary according to the type of

election they participate in, and the nature of the duties they undertake.

Returning Officer duties (and those of the Deputy Returning Officer) are contractual
requirements, and fees paid to them for national elections/referendums are paid in

Page 8 of 10



Page 177

accordance with the appropriate Statutory Fees and Charges Order and are paid by
the body responsible for the conduct of the election.

Pension

All non-teaching employees are able to join the Local Government Pension Scheme
and receive benefits in accordance with the provisions of that Scheme as applied by
the Council. Details of the Council’s policy and decisions in respect of discretionary
elements of the Scheme are published on the Council’'s website. Teaching employees
are able to join the Teachers’ Pension Scheme as administered by the Teachers’
Pensions Agency.

Other Terms and Conditions of Employment

The Council’s employment policies and procedures are reviewed on a regular basis in
the light of service delivery needs and any changes in legislation etc.

The Council and unions’ agreement on ‘single status’ reached in 2008 as part of the
collective agreement on Equal pay and conditions outlines the working arrangements
and the payments to be made to employees below senior manager grades for
working outside normal working hours including overtime, and call out payments.

Employees on senior manager or chief officer grades are not entitled to additional
payments or allowances for travel or meals within the London region. For trips
outside of the London region reasonable travel and subsistence expenses will be
reimbursed for staff on these grades.

Payments on Termination of Employment

In the event that the Council terminates the employment of an employee (including
senior managers and chief officers) on the grounds of redundancy or efficiency of the
service they will be entitled to receive compensation and benefits in accordance with
the Council’s Redundancy and Early Retirement schemes, which are published on the

Council’s website.

Details of redundancy compensation payments paid to senior management are
published on the Council’'s website.

The Council’'s Redundancy and Early Retirement schemes may be subject to change
as part of the modernising pay review.
Re-employment of Employees

Section 7 of the Local Government and Housing Act 1989 requires that every
appointment to paid office or employment in a local authority shall be made on merit.

Page 9 of 10



Page 178

Should a successful candidate be in receipt of a severance payment the Council will
apply the provisions of the Redundancy Payments (Continuity of Employment in Local
Government etc.) (Modification) Order 1999 regarding the recovery of redundancy
payments. The rules of the Local Government Pension Scheme also have provisions
to reduce pension payments in certain circumstances to those who return to work
within local government service.

Further Information

For further information on the Council’s pay policy please contact the Council’s
Human Resources Service email HR.adviceteam@haringey.gov.uk DD 0208 489
3177.

Page 10 of 10



Page 179 Agenda ltem 14

. Corporate Committee ltem
Reportfor: | 50m March 2014 Number:
Title: Schools Employee Consultative Group

Report ' 1 X =
Authorised by: Jacquie McGeachie Interim Head of HWQZ ,

Lead Officer: Paul Smith Interim Head of Schools HR

Ward(s) affected: None Report for Key/Non Key Decisions:

Non Key Decision

1. Describe the issue under consideration

This report seeks Corporate Committee approval to a revised consultative and
negotiating group for school based employees..

2. Cabinet Member introduction

3. Recommendations

That the Committee approve the terms of reference for this group

4. Alternative options considered
N/A

5. Background information



Page 180

The Committee will be aware that since 1989,schools have had significant control
over making key employment decisions for their employees within a Local Authority
framework. During the past 10 years a number of schools have become academies,
taking on the employer role. However under legislation employees at these schools
are still bound by both statutory terms and conditions of employment and their local
application (in the case of teachers) and national and local terms and conditions in
respect of support staff. In addition, the Local Authority can agree employment policies
with trades unions and recommend them to schools for adoption.

Previously these functions were undertaken by the Teachers Negotiating Group
(TNG). However, in 2013 the Outstanding For All Commission recommended that the
TNG be abolished. As a result the Council needed to establish new consultative
arrangments for school based employees. It made sense to include support staff as
part of this review as consultative arrangments for school based support staff were not
joined up with the arrangments for teachers.
Subsequently discussions have taken place with representatives of teacher and
support staff unions and it has been agreed that a new group be established. This
group will be called the School Employee Consultative Group (SECG).
Membership of this group will consist of:

o Representatives from the Local Authority

o Head Teacher representatives from Primary, Secondary and Special Schools

o Representatives from teacher trade unions (nominated by the Haringey
Teachers Panel)

« Representatives from support staff trade unions (nominated by the Haringey
Employees Side)

The meetings will be chaired by the Assistant Director for Schools & Learning.
The terms of reference for the SECG has been agreed with the teaching and support
staff trades union representatives and is appended to this report.
6. Comments of the Chief Finance Officer and financial implications
There are no financial implications arising from this report.

7. Comments of the Assistant Director of Corporate Governance and legal
implications

The Assistant Director of Corporate Governance has been consulted with the
preparation of this report, and makes the following comments



Page 181

The arrangements proposed are in line with the provisions of the School Staffing
(England) Regulations 2009, made under the School Standards and Framework Act
1998 and the Education Act 2002, regarding the delegation of key employment
decisions within a Local Authority framework to schools including academies.
Employers are legally obliged to consult with recognised trades unions on matters
affecting employees and therefore the arrangements proposed enable the Council to
meet these obligations

8. Equalities and Community Cohesion Comments
Equalities in employment matters will be discussed at this Group as appropriate

9. Head of Procurement Comments
Not applicable

10.Policy Implication
There are no policy implications

11. Reasons for Decision
The report seeks this Committee’s approval to the proposed terms of reference for
the SECG in order that the Council has an effective and robust consultation forum
with trades unions representing school based employees.

12.Use of Appendices

None

13.Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985



Page 182

Appendix

Haringey Council
Schools Employee Consultative Group Constitution & Terms of Reference

1. Introduction

This document sets out the arrangements for the functioning of the Schools
Consultative Group. References in this document to school based staff apply to all
teaching and support staff who are employed by Haringey Council but based in
school under the management of the Governing Body.

2. Purpose & Scope

The purpose of the Group is to facilitate discussion between the Local Authority,
school management and recognised trades unions on matters that affect school
based staff. All members of the Group are committed to positive employee
relations via effective communication and engagement. The Group will act as a
negotiation, consultation and information sharing body as appropriate.
Matters to be discussed by this Group will include:

e Model policies

¢ Implementation of changes to national terms and conditions of employment
including pay arrangements (note — for support staff many of these changes
will normally be discussed at the Local Authority’s corporate CEJCC
meeting).

e Matters of Local Authority policy insofar as they may impact upon:
o The number of school based staff employed
o Terms & conditions of service
o Working arrangements

e Oversight of local employee relations relating to matters such as school
closures, redundancies, and staff transfers.

¢ Implementation of legislation and national policy that impacts upon school
based staff.

The Group may establish ad hoc working groups on particular issues which would
then feed back to the Group as appropriate.

It is recognised that in the main, matters discussed by this group will be of direct
concern to teachers. However there will be issues discussed that will have an
impact upon support staff. Therefore representatives recognised trades unions
representing support staff will form part of this group.

3. Membership



Page 183

The Group shall consist of representatives from
e The Local Authority including schools management

e Members of the Haringey Teachers Panel

e Recognised support staff trades unions (Known as Haringey Employees
Side)

e The recognised teaching and support staff trades unions are as follows::

Teaching Support Staff
NUT Unison
NASUWT GMB

NAHT Unite

ASCL

ATL

Detailed membership will be reviewed annually by the Group. Appendix A sets out
a proposed membership for the academic year 2013/14
4. Joint Secretaries

The management side, the Teaching side & the Support staff side will appoint joint
secretaries for the following arrangements.

The three joint secretaries will:

e Meet, sufficiently in advance of the next scheduled meeting, to agree the
agenda items for meetings
Provisionally agree the notes of meetings
Agree dates of meetings for the next school year
Provide an additional mechanism outside of the group to resolve disputes and
seek preliminary agreement on issues.

e Maintain a schedule of collective agreements and agreed local conditions of
service
Agree the terms of reference to ACAS should the need arise
Maintain a forward plan of activities and dates for when items are scheduled to
be discussed.

5. Agenda & Meetings

The agenda setting out the agreed items and accompanying papers for meetings will
be circulated by the management side secretary to all members of the Group at least 3
working days before the meeting. Items not appearing on the agenda may only be
discussed with the agreement of both sides

The calendar for meetings will be agreed annually at the start of the academic year



Page 184

with a minimum of two meetings per term unless both sides agree that a meeting is not
needed

6. Quorum

In order for the meeting to be quorate there must be a minimum of the following in

attendance:

a)2 representatives of the Local Authority

b) 2 representatives of the Haringey Teachers Panel

¢) 2 Representatives of the Haringey Employees Side

Where the matter relates solely to teaching staff then the quorum will be a) & b) above

Where the matter relates solely to support staff then the quorum will be a) & c) above.
7. Meeting Notes

Notes of key points of discussion and agreed actions arising out of each agenda item
will be taken by an officer of the local authority and circulated to the joint secretaries
within 10 working days of the meeting.

The joint secretaries will amend the notes of the meeting as appropriate and ensure
distribution to all relevant parties within a further 10 working days.

All members of the Group undertake to communicate the key outcomes from each
Group meeting to their constituent groups (for example head teachers, trades union
colleagues etc)

8. Disputes

Although it is the aim to resolve matters within the Group meetings, it is open for either
party to declare a formal dispute where discussion cannot reach a resolution. This
dispute would be progressed in accordance with the relevant procedures within
national conditions of service and, where appropriate, corporate Local Authority
procedures



X)

--*

2,

Haringey
Membership for Academic Year 2013/2014
Management Side Representatives

Page 185

Name

A

Representing

Job Title

Location/School

CYPD Assistant Director

CYPD/HR Interim Head of
Schools HR

CYPD/HR HR Manager
(Schools)

Primary Schools

Head Teacher

Secondary Schools

Head Teacher

Special Schools

Head Teacher

Haringey Teachers Panel & Haringey Employees Side Representatives

Name

Representing

Job Title

Location/School

*Joint Secretary

Page 7 of 7




Page 186



Page 187 Agenda Item 15

Haringey
Corporate Committee
Report for: Item
20 March 2014 number
Title: Annual Internal Audit Plan and Strategy 2014/15

Report authorised

Assistant Director Corporate Governance

by:
Anne Woods, Head of Audit and Risk Management
Lead Officer: Tel: 020 8489 5973

Email: anne.woods@haringey.gov.uk

Ward(s) affected: ALL

Report for: Non-Key Decision

1. Describe the issue under consideration

1.1The Corporate Committee is responsible for reviewing and approving the
annual internal audit plan as part of its Terms of Reference. In order to
facilitate this, a draft audit plan for 2014/15, together with the internal audit
strategy, is provided for review and approval by the Corporate Committee.

2. Cabinet Member Introduction

2.1 Not applicable

3. Recommendations

3.1 That the Corporate
strategy.

3.2 That the Corporate

Committee reviews and approves the Internal Audit

Committee reviews and approves the Annual Internal

Audit Plan for 2014/15.

4. Other options considered

4.1 Not applicable.

Page 1 of 4



Page 188

Xy

-*—

>

Haringey

5. Background information

5.1 Local authorities are required by law to maintain an interal audit function.
In addition, The Accounts and Audit (Amendment) (England) Regulations
2011 reinforce the statutory requirement and re-state the need for the
Council to maintain an adequate and effective system of internal audit.

5.2 Within Haringey, the Internal Audit function is comprised of Mazars, who
undertake the majority of the internal audit work in accordance with the
contract in place, including IT and procurement audit. The in-house
corporate anti-fraud team is responsible for investigations into allegations
of financial irregularity, pro-active and reactive corporate anti-fraud work,
provision of advice on risk and controls and some grant certification work.

5.3 Appendix A contains the proposed annual audit plan for 2014/15, which is
risk based and has been derived following consideration of: organisational
changes; risk registers; corporate programmes and priorities; new projects
and procurement activities reported to the Cabinet and the Cabinet
Procurement Committee; the Annual Audit and Inspection Letter; changes
to legislation; and fraud investigation work completed in 2013/14. This
approach reflects current best practice requirements for internal audit and
ensures that, over the life of the contract, the Council's key financial and
non-financial systems and services will be appropriately reviewed
according to risk. This approach also ensures that the Council operates a
fully integrated internal audit and risk management process.

5.4 Appendix A also includes the audit strategy which will be used to deliver the
Council’s internal audit plan. The strategy has been drafted in accordance
with the 2013 UK Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS) which
came into effect on 1 April 2013.

5.5 The PSIAS provide a consistent framework for internal audit services
across the UK public sector and replace the existing standards and 2006
CIPFA Code of Practice for Internal Audit in Local Government.

6. Comments of the Chief Financial Officer and Financial Implications

6.1 There are no direct financial implications arising from this report. The work
which will be completed by Mazars to undertake the annual audit plan in
2014/15 is part of the three year contract which was awarded, in
compliance with EU regulations, from 1 April 2012. The costs of this
contract are contained and managed within the Audit and Risk
Management revenue budgets which are monitored on a monthly basis.

Page 2 of 4



Page 189

Xy

=

6.2 The audit plan reflects current best practice requirements for internal audit
in accordance with UK PSIAS and ensures that, over the life of the contract,
the Council’s key financial and non-financial systems and services will be
appropriately reviewed according to risk. This approach also ensures that
the council operates a fully integrated internal audit and risk management
process.

6.3 The corporate anti-fraud team is responsible for investigations into
allegations of financial irregularity, pro-active anti-fraud work, provision of
advice on risk and controls and grant certification work. This is on top of the
planned work set out in Appendix A.

7. Assistant Director of Corporate Governance Comments and Legal
Implications

7.1. The Assistant Director Corporate Governance has been consulted in the
preparation of this report, and advises that in noting that the audit plan
reflects current best practice, and the associated strategy has been drafted

in accordance with the 2013 UK Public Sector Internal Audit Standards, has
no comments.

8. Equalities and Community Cohesion Comments

8.1 This report deals with how risks to service delivery are managed across all
areas of the council, which have an impact on various parts of the
community. Improvements in managing risks and controls will therefore
improve services the Council provides to all sections of the community.
9. Head of Procurement Comments

9.1 Not applicable.
10.Policy Implications

10.1 There are no direct implications for the Council’s existing policies,
priorities and strategies. However, improving management controls,
reducing the opportunity for fraud to take place in the first place, and taking
appropriate action to detect and investigate identified fraud will assist the
Council to use its available resources more effectively.
11.Use of Appendices

11.1 Appendix A - Annual Internal Audit Plan and Strategy 2014/15

12.The Annual Audit Plan 2014/15

Page 3 of 4



Page 190

Haringey

12.1The proposed annual internal audit plan for 2014/15 is attached as
Appendix A to this report. It gives outline details of the planned audit work
on the key financial and other systems of the Council. The detailed scope
for each project will be agreed with the client for the work at the planning
stage of the audit. Indicative timings for the projects have also been
agreed, wherever possible, with the nominated clients to take account of
any cyclical or other work pressures, although these may be subject to
change during the course of the year.

12.2 The key changes in approach for 2014/15 are highlighted as follows:

¢ Significant resources and focus on the key corporate programmes
and projects in order to provide senior managers and programme
SROs with assurance over key stages and performance of the
programmes. The scope and audit resources required (including the
seniority of the auditor required) for each audit review will be
determined in discussion with the Assistant Director Corporate
Programme Office and CIO;

e Resources for business area risk audits allocated in line with the
priorities identified in the Council Plan; and

¢ Allocation of resources to review key corporate processes in order to
provide senior managers with assurance that risks are being
managed appropriately in the new organisational structure.

12.3 We will continue to work with the Council’s external auditors, Grant
Thomton, to ensure that audit coverage is maximised and duplication is
avoided wherever possible in order to make the best use of our combined
resources. A programme of meetings is in place to ensure that use of audit
resources is effective.

12.4 Included in the audit plan are audits of key financial systems. We consider
key systems to be those which are essential to the successful management
of the Council, and where failure of the system would have a material effect
on the organisation. These key systems, including payroll, accounts
payable, accounts receivable, council tax, and housing benefits are
therefore subject to regular review. A programme of full reviews every three
years, with high level reviews in the intervening years ensures that all key
risks and controls are appropriately reviewed. This programme of work has
been agreed with both the managers responsible and the council’s external
auditors.

Page 4 of 4



Page 191

Appendix A
London Borough of Haringey - Internal Audit Plan and Strategy 2014/15
(DRAFT)

Introduction
This document sets out the 2014/15 annual internal audit plan and audit strategy for Haringey
Council. The proposed audits have been discussed and agreed with the Chief Executive and
Senior Leadership Team, the Statutory Officers Group, and the nominated clients for the work:
and the plan and strategy are submitted to the Corporate Committee for final approval in
accordance with the committee’s terms of reference. It is proposed that any significant changes
to the annual internal audit plan and/or the internal audit strategy are reported during the year to
the Corporate Committee for formal approval.

Internal Audit Strategy

This Strategy sets out how the Council’s Internal Audit service will be delivered in accordance
with the Internal Audit Charter. The Strategy will be reviewed annually and presented to the
Corporate Committee for final approval.

Internal Audit Objectives

Internal Audit will provide independent and objective assurance to the Council, its Members, the
Chief Executive and Senior Leadership Team and to the Chief Financial Officer to support them in
discharging their responsibilities under S151 of the Local Government Act 1972, relating to the
proper administration of the Council’s financial affairs. It is the Council’s intention to provide a
best practice, cost efficient internal audit service which fulfils the requirements of the statutory
2013 Public Sector Internal Audit Standards.

Internal Audit’s Remit

The internal audit service is an assurance function that primarily provides an independent and
objective opinion on the degree to which the internal control environment supports and promotes
the achievement of the Council’s objectives.

Under the direction of a suitably qualified and experienced Head of Audit and Risk Management,

Internal Audit will:

» Provide management and members with an independent, objective assurance and advisory
activity designed to add value and improve the Council’s operations;

* Assist the Corporate Committee to reinforce the importance of effective corporate governance
and ensure internal control improvements are delivered;

Drive organisational change to improve processes and service performance;

e Work with other internal stakeholders and customers to review and recommend
improvements to internal control and governance arrangements in accordance with regulatory
and statutory requirements;

e Work closely with other assurance providers to share information and provide a value for
money assurance service; and

 Participate in local and national bodies and working groups to influence agendas and
developments within the profession.

Internal Audit will ensure that it is not involved in the design, installation and operation of controls
so as to compromise its independence and objectivity. Internal Audit will however offer advice on
the design of new internal controls in accordance with best practice.

Service Delivery 2014/15

The internal audit service will be delivered by a ‘mixed economy’ of externally procured services
under the direction of the Council’s Head of Audit and Risk Management and supported by an in-

Page 1 of 6



Page 192

Appendix A
London Borough of Haringey - Internal Audit Plan and Strategy 2014/15
(DRAFT)
house Corporate Anti-Fraud Team. The Council participates in the London Audit & Anti-Fraud
Partnership to work with other local authorities on a shared service basis. This includes
appropriate: resource provision, joint working, audit management & strategy and a range of value
added services.

Internal Audit Planning

Audit planning will be undertaken on an annual basis and audit coverage will be based on the
following: '

Discussions with the Council’s senior management and statutory officers;

The Council’s Risk Registers and Council Plan;

Outputs from other assurance providers; and

Requirements as agreed with the council’s external auditors.

The Head of Audit and Risk Management discusses the risk facing the Council with senior
managers as part of the annual planning process to ensure that management views and
suggestions are taken into account when producing the audit plan. The Internal Audit Plan
2014/15 (attached to this strategy) is composed of the following:

= Corporate and Business Area Risk Based Audits: Audits of systems, processes or tasks
where the internal controls are identified, evaluated and confirmed through risk assessment
process. The internal controls depending on the risk assessment are tested to confirm that
they operating correctly. The selection of work in this category is driven by senior managers’
own risk processes and may also include work in areas where the Council services are
delivered in partnership with or by other organisations.

» Key Financial Systems: Audits of the Council’s key financial systems where external audit
require annual assurance as part of their external audit work programme.

* Probity Audit (schools establishments): Audit of a discrete unit. Compliance with legislation,
regulation, policies, procedures or best practice is confirmed. For schools this includes
assessment against criteria included in the Schools Financial Value Standard.

» Computer Audit: The review of ICT infrastructure and associated systems, software and
hardware.

= Contract and Procurement Audit: Audits of the Council’s procedures and processes for the
letting and monitoring of contracts, including reviews of completed and current contracts.

= Counter-Fraud and Ad-Hoc Work: The in-house Corporate Anti-Fraud Team undertakes a
programme of pro-active and reactive counter-fraud investigations. A contingency of audit
days are also included in the plan to cover any additional work due to changes or issues
arising in-year.

Follow-up

Internal Audit will evaluate the Council’s progress in implementing audit recommendations
against set targets for implementation. Progress will be reported to management and to the
Corporate Committee on a quarterly basis. Where progress is unsatisfactory or management fail
to provide a satisfactory response to follow up requests, Internal Audit will implement the
escalation procedure as agreed with management.

Page 2 of 6



Page 193

Appendix A
London Borough of Haringey - Internal Audit Plan and Strategy 2014/15

(DRAFT)

Reporting

Internal audit reports the findings of its work in detail to local management at the conclusion of
each piece of audit work and at the follow up stage. Summary reports are also provided to the
Corporate Committee on a monthly basis and high level reports provided on a quarterly basis.
This includes the Head of Internal Audit's annual report which contributes to the assurances
underpinning the Annual Governance Statement of the Council.

Page 3 of 6



Page 194

Appendix A
London Borough of Haringey - Internal Audit Plan and Strategy 2014/15
(DRAFT)
Haringey Internal Audit Coverage: 2014/15
The table below sets out the internal audit work to be completed during 2014/15 by the external
contractor. The total number of days to be delivered is 850; which does not include audit work
that will be completed as part of the Service Level Agreement with Homes for Haringey, or the
corporate anti-fraud team’s work. The breakdown of work can be summarised as:

Audit area Client Quarter [ Days

Key Financial Systems (KFS)

Strategic Financial Management & Assistant Director - Finance 3 10

Budgetary Control - full review

Cash Receipting — high level review Assistant Director - Finance 3 7

Treasury Management - full review Assistant Director — Finance 3 10

Accounting & General Ledger - full Assistant Director - Finance 4 15

review

Accounts Payable (Creditors) - full Assistant Director - Fihance 4 10

review *

Pension Fund Investment — full review Assistant Director — Finance 4 10

Accounts Receivable (Sundry Debtors) Assistant Director - Finance 3 10

= full review

Housing Benefits — high level review Assistant Director — Customer 3 7
Services

Council Tax - high level review Assistant Director — Customer 4 7
Services

NNDR - high level review Assistant Director — Customer 4 7
Services

Payroll - full review Assistant Director - Human 4 15

Resources

Sub-total - Key Financial Systems 108

Corporate Risk Audits

Programme and Project Management - Assistant Director for 1-4 80

key corporate programmes and projects | Corporate Programme Office

(governance, performance, compliance) | and Chief Information Officer

Annual Governance Statement - Assistant Director Corporate 1-4 20

assurance statements controls testing Governance

Risk Registers — controls testing for key | Assistant Director Corporate 1-4 20

risk registers Governance

Information Management - controls Assistant Director Corporate 1-4 10

testing and follow up of ICO audit Governance

Data quality and Performance Chief Operating Officer 2 15

Indicators — key corporate services

Sub-total - Corporate Risk Audits 145

Business Area Risk Audits

Teachers’ Pensions contributions Assistant Director - Finance 1 5

(Grant certification requirement)

Debt Collection — governance, Assistant Director - Finance 2 10

performance and compliance

Medium Term Financial Strategy - Assistant Director - Finance 3 10

governance, performance and

Page 4 of 6



Page 195

Appendix A
London Borough of Haringey - Internal Audit Plan and Strategy 2014/15
(DRAFT)
Audit area Client Quarter | Days
compliance
Election 2014 Expenditure and Assistant Director Corporate 1 10
Expenses - governance, performance Governance
and compliance
Community Safety Partnership - Assistant Director for 2 10
governance and performance Environmental Services and
Community Safety
Parking Services — on street income Assistant Director for 1 10
and enforcement Environmental Services and
Community Safety
Highways Income - governance, Assistant Director for 1 10
performance and compliance Environmental Services and
Community Safety
Environmental Services enforcement - Assistant Director for 2 10
governance, performance and Environmental Services and
compliance Community Safety
Safeguarding Adults Board - Director for Adult Social 3 10
governance and performance Services
Implementation of the Better Care Fund Director for Adult Social 3 10
— governance and performance Services
Section 47 investigations — compliance | Director of Children’s Services 2 10
with legislation and procedures
Children in Care Plans (including Director of Children’s Services 3 10
Personal Education Plans) - governance
and performance
Early Help Pathway Framework - Director of Children’s Services 4 10
governance and performance
Commissioned Services - governance, | Director of Children’s Services 3 15
performance and compliance ‘
Private Sector Leasing and Housing Deputy Director - Community 1 10
Options - governance, performance Housing Services
and compliance
New Homes Bonus - governance, Deputy Director - Community 3 10
performance and compliance Housing Services/ Assistant
Director - Finance
Absence Management - governance, Assistant Director Human 1 10
performance and compliance Resources
Sub-total - Business Risk Audits 170
Corporate IT Audits
Complaints and DPA (Respond) - Head of Information TBC 12
application audit Technology
Council website and website security Head of Information TBC 12
Technology
Environmental Enforcement (PPwiz/M3) Head of Information TBC 12
- application audit Technology
ICT Strategy - governance, Head of Information TBC 12
performance and compliance Technology
Benefits & Local Taxation data storage Head of Information TBC 12

Page 5 of 6



Page 196

Appendix A
London Borough of Haringey - Internal Audit Plan and Strategy 2014/15
(DRAFT)
Audit area Client Quarter | Days
(Comino) — application audit Technology
Albacs /ePay — Post Implementation Head of Information TBC 10
Review Technology
Follow up audit Head of Information TBC 2
Technology
Schools ICT - risk audit Assistant Director Schools and TBC 3
Learning
Sub-total - Corporate IT Audits 75
Contract and Procurement Audit
Specific Contract Audits - key council Head of Corporate 1-4 20
contracts Procurement
Post Contract Evaluation - key council Head of Corporate 3 10
contracts Procurement
Contract Monitoring and Management Head of Corporate 1-4 20
arrangements — key council contracts Procurement
EU contract regulations — compliance Head of Corporate 4 10
with legislation Procurement
Procurement Strategy — governance Head of Corporate 2 10
and communications Procurement
Scheme of Delegation — Contract Head of Corporate 2 10
Standing Orders Procurement
Sub-total — Contract Audits - 80
School Audits "
Bruce Grove School Head teacher TBC 5
Chestnuts School Head teacher TBC 5
Crowland School Head teacher TBC 5
Devonshire Hill School Head teacher TBC 5
Mulberry School Head teacher TBC 5
Risley Avenue School Head teacher TBC 5
St Francis de Sale Inf & Juniors School Head teacher TBC 5
St Martin of Porres RC School Head teacher TBC 5
St Mary's CE Primary (single school) School Head teacher TBC 5
Park View Secondary School Head teacher TBC 6
South Harringay Junior School Head teacher TBC 5
South Harringay Infants School Head teacher TBC 5
Rowland Hill Nursery School Head teacher TBC 5
Sub-total - School Audits 66
Follow up audits 2013/14 audits 40
Admin and Management 80
Contingency 86
Total — Contractor delivered days 850

Page 6 of 6



Page 197 Agenda ltem 16
X

=

Haringey

Report for: Corporate Item
Committee number

Title: Audit Letters to Management and those Charged
with Governance — Assurance Statements to
comply with International Auditing Standards

Report authorised

by :
Kévin Bartle — Assistant Director — Finance (CFO)
Neville Murton — Head of Finance (Budgets,

Lead Officer: Accounting and Systems)
neville.murton@haringey.gov.uk
020 8489 3176

Ward(s) affected: Report for Key/Non Key Decision:
All Non-key
1 Describe the issue under consideration

1.1 To comply with International Auditing Standards, our external auditors, Grant
Thornton (GT), need to establish an understanding of the management
processes in place to prevent and detect fraud and to ensure compliance with
law and regulation.

1.2  They are also required to make inquiries of both management and the
Corporate Committee as to their knowledge of any actual, suspected or
alleged fraud. International Auditing Standards also place certain obligations
on auditors to document Management's view on some key areas affecting the
financial statements

2 Cabinet Member Introduction
2.1 Not applicable
3 Recommendations

3.1 Corporate Committee are asked to note the responses set out in the attached
documents and propose any amendments that may be considered necessary
before submission to the auditors.



Page 198

X

=

Haringey

4 Executive Summary

4.1  The external auditors have asked a number of questions both to the Council’s
management team and the Chair of the Corporate Committee. To enable the
external auditor, Grant Thornton, to meet their statutory requirements the
Chief Financial Officer, in consultation with other senior officers and the Chair
of the Corporate Committee, has considered and set out a proposed formal
response to the matters set out in the attached schedules.

4.2  This report provides an opportunity for the Committee to consider the
responses and propose any amendments they consider may be required
before it is finally submitted to our auditors.

Comments of the Chief Financial Officer and Financial Implications

5.1 There are no direct financial implications arising from this report which covers
the governance arrangements of the Council.

6 Comments of the Monitoring Officer

6.1  The Monitoring Officer has been consulted and has no additional comments
to make.

7 Policy Implication

71 None.

8 Use of Appendices

Appendix 1 — Draft Management response
Appendix 2 — Draft Chair of Corporate Committee response
9 Local Government Act, 2000 (Section 97)

None



Page 199

Responses from Management:

Appendix 1

Auditor question

Response

What do you regard as the key events or issues that
will have a significant impact on the financial
statements for 2013/14?

2013/14 is the first year that the Council has
operated under the government’s new Business
Rates Retention Scheme. In terms of the effect
on the Council’s SoA this will represent a
change from collecting and passing Business
rates to the Government under an agency
arrangement (and receiving redistributed NNDR
as part of Formula Grant) to the operation of a
Business Rate Collection Fund similar to Council
Tax.

The Council also assumed responsibility and risk
for implementing a local Council Tax Reduction
Scheme; this will affect the balance of the
Council’s Taxbase and associated income
compared to having a previous higher taxbase
with Council Tax benefit grant being received
from the government.

New Public Health responsibilities passed to the
Council in April 2013 along with a significant
new grant; the development of joint plans
under the review of the Health and Wellbeing
Boards are a key part of these reforms with
future funding streams being partly dependent
on achieving successful outcomes.

The Chief Executive has changed the way that
the Council is configured with a move away
from large Directorates to more agile service
groupings led by autonomous Directors and
Assistant Directors. Strategic Direction is given
by a new Senior Leadership Team and four key
transformational programmes have been
established.

There was a major Leisure Outsourcing project
achieved during the latter part of 2012/13
which primarily will impact the 2013/14
accounts.

Settlement was reached in the year on a high
profile employment tribunal case which will
require disclosure in the 2013/14 SoA.

Have you considered the appropriateness of the
accounting policies adopted by the Council? Have
there been any events or transactions that may cause
you to change or adopt new accounting policies?

We have started to account for our housing
rental income on a daily (365) rather than
weekly (53) basis.

Changes required to the accounting
arrangements for the Local Government
Pension Scheme (LGPS) will affect our
accounting policies and the presentation of
information in the financial statements.

Are you aware of any changes to the Council's
regulatory environment that may have a significant
impact on the Council's financial statements?

As described above the implementation of a
new Business Rate Retention Scheme and
localisation of the Council Tax Benefit system




Page 200

will change the accounting arrangements for
some of the Council’s major income sources.

In addition the transfer of Public Health
responsibilities and associated grant funding
will have an impact on the way that the
Council’s resources are spent.

A range of welfare reforms are also expected to
impact on areas such as rent arrears,
homelessness and the use of temporary
accommodation.

Changes to the Local Government Pension
Scheme will require restatement of prior year
data and changes to the information in the
Council’s core statements and disclosure notes.

How would you assess the quality of the Council's
internal control processes?

Effective. An annual review of the Council’s key
financial systems, covering key risk areas and
controls to manage the identified risks, is
undertaken including walkthrough and
compliance testing of controls on a sample
basis. All key financial systems achieved a
‘substantial’ assurance rating from internal
audit in 2013/14 and no high priority
recommendations remain outstanding.

How would you assess the process for reviewing the
effectiveness of internal control?

Effective. The annual programme of audit work
is agreed with Grant Thornton to ensure both
internal and external audit requirements are
met. Other key risk areas are included in the
risk based annual audit plan, which is discussed
and agreed with the Chief Financial Officer, all
senior managers and external audit to ensure
coverage is appropriate to mitigate the risks.
No significant issues relating to internal control
were raised by internal or external audit during
2013/14.

How do the Council's risk management processes link
to financial reporting?

The Chief Financial Officer assesses the
adequacy of the Council’s reserves as part of
the budget setting process and taking into
account an assessment of known and unknown
risks.

The Council maintains a number of earmarked
reserves as well as general (un-earmarked)
reserves and contingencies.

In addition the Council’s regular budget
monitoring process assesses performance
against the agreed budget and provides an
opportunity to identify and quantify emerging
risks and seeks formal approval to measures
aimed at addressing those risks.

How would you assess the Council’s arrangements for
identifying and responding to the risk of fraud?

The Council has a corporate fraud risk register
in place which reviews the key fraud risk areas —
emerging fraud risks are identified via the Audit
Commission fraud surveys, feedback from
attending regular public sector counter-fraud
briefings, and review of previous audit work.




Page 201

The fraud risk register is reviewed quarterly by
Internal Audit and used to plan the pro-active
counter-fraud work and highlight any emerging
trends. The risk of fraud and associated controls
are discussed monthly as part of the Council’s
Statutory Officers Group.

The Council has a Counter-Fraud Policy and
Strategy, together with a Fraud Response Plan,
Whistle Blowing Policy and HB Fraud Sanctions
Policy, all of which have been approved by the
Corporate Committee. The policies are all
published on the website together with the free
and confidential telephone and email reporting
details. The Corporate Anti-Fraud Team and HB
Fraud Investigation Team undertake pro-active
and reactive investigations into fraud. Regular
press releases are done on the outcomes of
fraud cases. The Insurance Team also
investigates claims against the Council for any
potential fraud and has implemented a ‘risk flag
review’ process which has been successful in
repudiating and prosecuting a significant
fraudulent claim on behalf of Homes for
Haringey.

What has been the outcome of these arrangements so
far this year?

Quarterly reports are made to the Corporate
Committee by the Head of Audit on
investigations into fraud and the outcomes, plus
the Committee is responsible for reviewing and
approving the Anti-Fraud Strategy.

What have you determined to be the classes of
accounts, transactions and disclosures most at risk to
fraud?

We have focussed attention on the Council’s
Key Financial Systems and in particular those
that generate large volumes of transactions,
large cash transaction or in relation to the
Council’s banking arrangements. Key Financial
Systems are considered annually as part of the
internal audit plan which is risk based and all
have gained substantial assurance.

We also consider and mitigate the potential for
fraud to take place through the related party
transaction disclosure process and procurement
fraud is considered through the Corporate
Declaration of Interest forms.

Are you aware of any whistle blowing potential or
complaints by potential whistle blowers? If so, what
has been your response?

The details of all whistle blowing reports made
are included in the quarterly internal report to
the Corporate Committee.

Have any reports been made under the Bribery Act?

No

As a management team, how do you communicate
risk issues (including fraud) to those charged with
governance?

The Council has a corporate fraud risk register
in place which reviews the key fraud risk areas
and is reviewed quarterly by Internal Audit. The
risk register is used to plan the pro-active
counter-fraud work and highlight any emerging




Page 202

trends. The risk of fraud and associated controls
are discussed monthly as part of the Council’s
Statutory Officers Group.

The Corporate committee’s responsibilities
cover audit and fraud and part of this includes
reviewing and approving the Council’s policies
on Anti-Fraud, whistle blowing, and risk
management.

The Committee gets relevant reports on a
quarterly basis and the reports cover all
investigations which include cases of actual
fraud and whistleblowing reports which have
been received.

As a management team, how do you communicate to
staff and employees your views on business practices
and ethical behaviour?

Regular dialogue takes place with senior
managers across the Council by the Head of
Audit on all internal audit work, including fraud
cases. All cases of actual fraud are reported to
senior managers (at Assistant Director level or
above) in order to advise them of breaches of
the Council’s code of conduct by staff, and
recommended action to address the breach.
Reports on the outcomes of pro-active counter-
fraud work are provided on a regular basis to
senior managers and ongoing liaison with
operational officers takes place to ensure all
suspected cases are followed up — latest
tenancy fraud work is also reported to Cabinet
Member responsible for Housing.

Head of Audit attends s151 Officer’s
Management Team meetings.

Reports to Corporate Committee are made on a
quarterly basis.

Regular reminders are included in newsletters
to all staff regarding expected standards of
behaviour and how to report suspected fraud.

What are your policies and procedures for identifying,
assessing and accounting for litigation and claims?

All claims made against the council’s insurance
policies are managed by the in-house insurance
team. The team use external claims handlers to
assist with complex and injury related claims, all
other claims are dealt with in-house. The
Council has accepted the fist £500k risk for each
and every claim made against it and uses its
internal insurance fund to manage the claims.
The Head of Audit & Risk Management advises
the s151 Officer of any claims which may impact
on the Council’s financial statements. The s151
Officer will discuss relevant matters with Grant
Thornton during the closure process in
particular in relation to the contingent liabilities
note to the final accounts.

Directors complete an annual assessment of
governance processes in their directorates
including any litigation and claims issues.




Page 203

Is there any use of financial instruments, including
derivatives?

No

Are you aware of any significant transaction outside
the normal course of business?

We have received repayment, following
auction, of monies previously held in Icelandic
banks and subject to the administration

process.
Are you aware of any changes in circumstances that No
would lead to impairment of non-current assets?
Are you aware of any guarantee contracts? No

Are you aware of allegations of fraud, errors, or other
irregularities during the period?

All the reports from the Head of Audit to the
Corporate Committee have details of the
investigation work completed by each of the
audit teams. These reports are reviewed on a
quarterly basis and the reports cover all
investigations which include cases of actual
fraud and whistleblowing reports which have
been received. The s151 Officer is also alerted
separately to any suspected irregularities or
fraud.

The quarterly audit report has details of staff
suspended and disciplinary actions taken.

Are you aware of any instances of non-compliance
with laws or regulations or is the Council on notice of
any such possible instances of non-compliance?

The annual internal audit programme of work
reviews compliance with local and statutory
regulations and covers the key risks facing the
Council. Advice and guidance is provided to
officers across the Council by Legal Services and
Corporate Procurement departments on
specific issues. Directors complete an annual
assessment of governance processes in their
directorates including compliance with relevant
laws and regulations. No significant issues of
non-compliance have been identified.

Have there been any examinations, investigations or
inquiries by any licensing or authorising bodies or the
tax and customs authorities?

No

Are you aware of any transactions, events and
conditions (or changes in these) that may give rise to
recognition or disclosure of significant accounting
estimates that require significant judgement?

No

Where the financial statements include amounts
based on significant estimates, how have the
accounting estimates been made, what is the nature
of the data used, and the degree of estimate
uncertainty inherent in the estimate?

At this stage of the closure of accounts process,
it is not yet known which items in the accounts
will require a significant estimate. However,
once known, the basis for any estimates used
will be discussed and agreed with the auditor.

Are you aware of the existence of loss contingencies
and/or un-asserted claims that may affect the
financial statements?

No

Has the management team carried out an assessment
of the going concern basis for preparing the financial
statements? What was the outcome of that
assessment?

The council has adequate reserves and the
Chief Financial Officer has formally reviewed
them as part of the budget setting process,
confirmation of this is included in the report to
Council. The council has set a balanced and
legal budget for 2014/15. The capital




Page 204

programme has been reviewed for expenditure
and income and is balanced. There are strong
revenue collection arrangements in place and
robust controls on Treasury Management
functions.

What is the process for undertaking a rigorous

assessment of going concern? Is the process carried
out proportionate in nature and depth to the level of
financial risk and complexity of the organisation and
its operations? How will you ensure that all available

information is considered when concluding the
organisation is a going concern at the date the
financial statements are approved?

The Chief Financial Officer assesses the
adequacy of the Council’s budget annually
including consideration of the adequacy of
reserves. Budget monitoring reports provide
on-going monthly assurance and any significant
variation from the approved budget.

The Chief Financial Officer has a statutory duty
to report to the Council under S114 of the LGFA
1972 if, inter alia, they believe that the Council’s
going concern status is likely to be
compromised.

Can you provide details of those solicitors utilised by

the Council during the year. Please indicate where

they are working on open litigation or contingencies

from prior years?

Insurance use external solicitors (a Panel of five
firms appointed via the Consortium tender
process) as part of the claims management
processes — only deal with claims.

Legal Services have used external counsel too to
provide specialist advice on a number of areas.

Can you provide details of other advisors consulted
during the year and the issue on which they were
consulted?

Professional valuers have been used to carry
out non-current asset valuations.

The Transformation Programmes have
commissioned a range of professional advisors
with experience of delivering similar
programmes of work elsewhere e.g.
regeneration advisors, Children’s Social Care
advisors (IMPower) Business and Customer
Service processes (Agilysis).

Have any of the Council’s service providers reported

any items of fraud, non-compliance with laws and
regulations or uncorrected misstatements which
would affect the financial statements?

Not to the Chief Financial Officer.




Page 205

Response from Corporate Committee Chair

Fraud risk assessment

Appendix 2

Auditor Question

Response

Has the Council assessed the risk of material
misstatement in the financial statements due to fraud?

Yes - The Council has a corporate fraud
risk register in place which reviews the key
fraud risk areas and is reviewed quarterly
by Internal Audit. The risk of fraud and
associated controls are discussed monthly
as part of the Council’s Statutory Officers
Group.

What are the results of this process?

The audit team have been pro-actively
targeting housing tenancy fraud in 2013/14
as well as undertaking work to review
potential fraud identified as part of the
National Fraud Initiative data matching
exercise.

The Insurance Team also investigates
claims against the Council for any potential
fraud and has been successful in
repudiating and prosecuting a significant
fraudulent claim on behalf of Homes for
Haringey.

What processes does the Council have in place to
identify and respond to risks of fraud?

The Council has a corporate fraud risk
register in place which reviews the key
fraud risk areas and is reviewed quarterly
by Internal Audit. The risk register is used
to plan the pro-active counter-fraud work
and highlight any emerging trends. The risk
of fraud and associated controls are
discussed monthly as part of the Council’s
Statutory Officers Group.

The Council has a Counter-Fraud Policy
and Strategy, together with a Fraud
Response Plan, Whistle blowing Policy and
HB Fraud Sanctions Policy, all of which
have been approved by the Corporate
Committee. The policies are all published
on the website together with the free and
confidential telephone and email reporting
details.

The Corporate Anti-Fraud Team and HB
Fraud Investigation Team undertake pro-
active and reactive investigations into fraud.

Have any specific fraud risks, or areas with a high risk of
fraud, been identified and what has been done to
mitigate these risks?

The audit team have been pro-actively
targeting housing tenancy fraud in 2013/14
as well as undertaking work to review
potential fraud identified as part of the
National Fraud Initiative data matching
exercise. The Corporate Committee
receives update reports on actions taken
and the outcomes achieved on a quarterly
basis.

The Insurance Team also investigates




Page 206

claims against the Council for any potential
fraud and has implemented a ‘risk flag
review’ process which has been successful
in repudiating and prosecuting a significant
fraudulent claim on behalf of Homes for
Haringey.

Are internal controls, including segregation of duties, in
place and operating effectively?

Yes. An annual review of the Council’s key
financial systems, covering key risk areas
and controls to manage the identified risks,
is undertaken including walkthrough and
compliance testing of controls on a sample
basis. All key financial systems achieved a
‘substantial’ assurance rating from internal
audit in 2013/14 and no high priority
recommendations remain outstanding for
this and all other areas.

If not, where are the risk areas and what mitigating
actions have been taken?

N/A

Are there any areas where there is a potential for
override of controls or inappropriate influence over the
financial reporting process (for example because of
undue pressure to achieve financial targets)?

Not that | have been informed of.

Are there any areas where there is a potential for
misreporting?

Not that | have been informed of.

How does the Corporate Committee exercise oversight
over management's processes for identifying and
responding to risks of fraud?

The audit plan includes areas which cover
systems across the Council and this also
helps to provide members with assurance
that the council’s key risk areas are being
reviewed.

Copies of all final reports are sent to me as
the Chair of the corporate committee and
copies also go to each Cabinet member so
we have the information and can decide
whether any further action needs to be
taken by members or officers.

What arrangements are in place to report fraud issues
and risks to the Corporate Committee?

The Corporate committee’s responsibilities
cover audit and fraud and part of this
includes reviewing and approving the
Council’s policies on Anti-Fraud, whistle
blowing, and risk management.

As the Chair of the Corporate Committee |
receive details of compliance with the
corporate risk management policy from the
Head of Audit and we review the risk
registers every six months to make sure
that key risks are being managed. The
policies which the Corporate committee
review are all on the Council’'s website.

How does the Council communicate and encourage
ethical behaviour of its staff and contractors?

| have seen a number of press releases on
successful prosecutions, especially housing
benefit prosecutions where fraudsters have
received custodial sentences, and internal
audit also put articles in the staff
newsletters, which are published on the
staff intranet.

How do you encourage staff to report their concerns

The audit team have arranged for letters




Page 207

about fraud?
Have any significant issues been reported?

and emails to go to all staff and members
about how the Council expects everyone to
behave and how to report fraud.

Internal Audit report on a quarterly basis to
the Corporate Committee and their report
includes details of the work done by the
fraud teams — this report includes details of
any whistle blowing reports.

Are you aware of any related party relationships or
transactions that could give rise to risks of fraud?

Not that | have been informed of.

Are you aware of any instances of actual, suspected or
alleged, fraud, either within the Council as a whole or
within specific departments since 1 April 2013?

All the reports from the Head of Audit to the
Corporate Committee have details of the
investigation work completed by each of the
audit teams. The Committee gets these
reports on a quarterly basis and the reports
cover all investigations which include cases
of actual fraud and whistleblowing reports
which have been received.

The quarterly audit report has details of
staff suspended and disciplinary actions
taken and members have the chance to
review and question managements actions.




Page 208

Law and regulation

Auditor Question

Response

What arrangements does the Council have in place to
prevent and detect non-compliance with laws and
regulations?

The internal audit programme of work
reviews compliance with local and statutory
regulations and covers the key risks facing
the Council.

Advice and guidance is provided to officers
across the Council by Legal Services and
Corporate Procurement departments on
specific issues.

Directors complete an annual assessment
of governance processes in their
directorates including compliance with
relevant laws and regulations. No
significant issues of non-compliance have
been identified.

How does management gain assurance that all relevant
laws and regulations have been complied with?

Internal audits cover compliance with the
Council’s regulations and any statutory
processes within each service and any
areas where managers don’t comply with
these are highlighted and
recommendations made.

How is the Corporate Committee provided with
assurance that all relevant laws and regulations have
been complied with?

The Head of Audit sends summary reports
out to members on a monthly basis so we
can take any action or ask the Head of
Audit for any further work we think should
be done. At the Corporate Committee, we
receive details of all recommendations
which haven’t been implemented and we
monitor these every quarter. We have
asked Directors to attend meetings if
members think that not enough action is
being taken to implement
recommendations.

Members are satisfied that audit’s
recommendations are being addressed,
and no high priority recommendations
remain outstanding, but we have asked for
follow up audit work to be done quickly in
some cases to make sure that high risk
areas are being dealt with appropriately.

Have there been any instances of non-compliance or
suspected non-compliance with law and regulation
since 1 April 2013?

No significant areas of non-compliance
have been highlighted.

What arrangements does the Council have in place to
identify, evaluate and account for litigation or claims?

All claims made against the council’s
insurance policies are managed by the in-
house insurance team. The team use
external claims handlers to assist with
complex and injury related claims, all other
claims are dealt with in-house. The Council
has accepted the first £500k risk for each
and every claim made against it and uses




Page 209

its internal insurance fund to manage the
claims.

Directors complete an annual assessment
of governance processes in their
directorates including any litigation and
claims issues.

Is there any actual or potential litigation or claims that No
would affect the financial statements?
Have there been any reports from other regulatory No

bodies, such as HM Revenues and Customs, which
indicate non-compliance?




Page 210

This page is intentionally left blank



woo1B )yN@Neuusaq's-pieyol 3
12€ 822 £02(0) ¥¥+ L
dAIINJOXT JpPNy

nauuag pJeydly

woo1byn@uipoelined 3
€9z¢€ 82/ £02(0) vv+ L
Jabeuep

uipfoer [ned

woobyn@iessop’ined 3
081€ 82/ £02(0) ¥¥+ L
Jauned

nessoq |ned

Agenda ltem 17

¥102C UydreN
¥10C Yd1e|N LE pPapus Jesap

Page 211

AS3urIe]] JO ySnoiog UOpuoOT| I0J
Ut[d PRy YL

uOJUIOY | JuelS) °



Page 212

‘asodimd sotpo Lue 703 papuarur y0ou 503 paredord
jou sem 170dox sy st 130dor ST} JO JUSIUOD Y} JO SISkq O} VO SUNdE WOIj JUTUTLIOT JO
‘Bunoe fred parp Lue 01 pavorseddo ssof Aue 105 Lpqisuodsar Aue 1doooe Jou op 9\ TUISTOD
vopnum rourd o nowm 1xed ur J0 doym ur pajonb oq Jou poys pue IFoURQ IMOA 10§
Aporos poredord voaq sey 170dox ST, 'S[OFITVOD [UIANUT INOL UT $ISSOUNELIM AUE JO [DUNOY) o)
10933 Aewr yorym sys1r o3 Jo [[e Sunrodar 10§ noi o3 s[qisuodsar pRY 9q J0UTEd o renonIed
ur pue ‘93ueyd 03 109[qns oq Aewr YOIYM ‘STONEUW JUBAI[IT O [[& JO PFO2T dAISUIRIdWwOd
e jou st 3] -ssoooxd ypne mo jo ired se nof o) poyrodor 9q 0} PoSU A M IIYM
‘UONUDE FNO 0} JWOD IABY YOIYM sI9)ews 91 01 A[uo 9)e[er 130dox s} JO SHUITVOD YT,



Page 213

[ dT1MN uoluioyl uein y10¢ @

wUQNQHu>OM LPEYZAN ﬁuwugﬂu 9SO} YA Sjo1jely J1pne JO yonediunuwwio’) ‘71

aouapuadopur pue sa9,] ‘]

wed) IO PUE SONASISO] ()]

KouoTA] 703 onfe A

SFOM WIIAIUT JO SHNSIY

Juowssasse s pue adoos dnoio)

SY[STF IO

PIYRUIPE SYSH JULIPIUTIG

SYSIT UO Pasndoj JIpne vy

yoeordde ypne QO

JIPNE S PUE SSIWISN INOL 03 JULAIPI SIUIWdOPAd(]

ssoursng sno£ Surpuelsiopun)

6
8

K4
T

uonoag

SIU9IUO")



Page 214

| dT1MN uojuioy] ety y10¢ ©

‘ABojel)s
su Buinsiyoe ul j1ounod ayi woddns djay o1 (wes} J01ess[929e ymolh
8oUBLIBA0B puE Buluue|d [eloUBUY O} UOIE|B) '6°8) uojuioy] Juei) uiyim woiy oddns isieroads asijiin ||IM Sp\ e
ul sjuswabuelle s,|1ounoD a8y} Jo yibualls syl mainal ‘(d41IN) UB|d [BIoUBUIH WIS ] WNIPS S,[1oUN0D
[IIM &M 80UBI|ISaY [BloUBUI4 UO IOM JNO Jo Ued Sy e By} UIYNIM SYSLI [eloueuly Jo Juawabeuew a8y} JO UOIRISPISUOD apnjoul
SjuawWwale)s [elouBUl 8y} UIYIM SUolie|nojed UOISN|OUOD 4 8} UO JIIM SIYL "uoISNjouod Asuoly 10} enfep Jno jo ued se sueld [eloueuly
uoIsinoId 8y] }08YD pPUB SINSO|ISIP MBIASI [[IM S\N e 3I0M JNo Jo Wed Wioy OS[e PUE oM uojuido SJUN0ooe s,J1ouno) 8y} uo sue|d uoijelsuabal 8y} o 1oedWI BY} MBIASI [|IM SN\ e
‘[1ouno) 8y} Jo suonelado Aep o} Aep ayi uo Buiney JINO wojul [[IM MBIA3I SIYy] “sJaded 1ounoy Jo malnal ‘aln)puadxa
sI siy1 1oedwi 8y} puelsiepun o} swwesboid Buinioniisal pUE S1821}40 YlMm suoissnasip ybnoiyy souewlopad [eudeo pue sjuelb Joj Buunoooe se yons sjuswieal] Buiunoooe
8y} Jo ssaib0.id 8y} SSNOSIP 0} SNUIUOD [|IM B\\ [eloUBUL S,|I0UNOD By} JOHUOW 0} SNUIUOD ||IM DA\ e pasodo.d s,)10un0D Byl Mmalnal ||Im om sassalbold awseyos syl Sy e
"Jobpng s,j1oun0y ‘Weyuano] Jo uolnessuabal ay} Jojuow
8y} 8dueleq 0] £ 0g pue GL0g usamiaq paisAllsp 8q pue uoddns abeuew 0} A|qixa|} saainosal Buisijiin sisuued J0joas
-sjuewAed Kouepunpes 0} poau [|ImM wyG3 Ajprewixoidde jo sbuines Jayung e Apunwiwod pue o1gnd yim A[9SO|D SIOM 0} PasU [[IM [IDUNOD) SY| e
paseaioul pue abpajmouy 81e10diod Jo SSO| Ul }nsal 'G1/¥102 1o} 186pnq psouejeq e ‘weyuano ]
Alrenusiod pinoo sy | "suonisod juswabeuew Jojuss 19s 0} 8np aJe pue /g |0z 104 snidins e Bunelsush wJojsuel) [im Jey) diysinauaidaijus pue ssauisng abeInodsus
J0 @injonJjsal e Bupjenspun aie [1ouno) ay} ‘sebusdlieyd Bunedionue ase [1ouno) 8yl “sseak Buiwooyuoy sy} 0] seoedsyIom 9|qixal} d1ow apiroid o) pue saoeds oignd Anjenb
[erouBul pue [euoijelado juedyiubis s) 198w 0} JopIo Ul e ul sainssaud [elouBUY 808} 0} SBNUIUOD |IOUNOD 8YL e ybiy arealo 0} ABslelis s,)10uUN0D By} INO S18S WEBYUdNOo| J0j UB|d Y e
sjuswabue.ly Juawabeueyy J101US JO aINJONIISAY °E SaINSSald 9oUBWLIOLIA [elouRUl g weyusno] jo uonessusbay 'L

saiunpoddo/sabuajieyn

"MO[2q MC%QNHmHMUQS Jno jo Ayewwms ® no 39S I\ .wﬁﬂu«m ST [IPUNOT) 9yl wuﬁMGBHOQ@O pue wwmﬁ\ﬂwzdﬂu Y] puelsiopun O} Pa2u oM JIpne Jno MQMQGNMQ Ul

ssouIsSNq JNOA SUTPULISIOPU)



Page 215

| dT1MN uojuioy] ety y10¢ ©

SIOM A INO
10 Ued se 441N S,)1ounoD ayl ulyim alejjem ul sebueyd

ay1 01 Buirejal sysi [elouruly pauue|d Y} MOIASI [[IM OA\ e
Bunsal sjunoooe
[eul} Jno jo ued se xe] [10unoD pue Ssjual YYH Yylog

10} 1g9p peq 10} SUOISIACID S,]IoUN0D BYI MBIASI [|IM DA\ e

sjjouag XB| [19UN0D JO UONESI[EI0| By} Jo Bunebpnq ue|d sy} Bunuawsidu Jo 1500 ay) Bulknuspl usym

pue 10edwi 8y} BUIMBIAGI BPN[OUI OS[E [[IM HIOM INO e usye)} Usaq sey uoljesapisuod Jadoid Jey) ainsus pue
wua) 6oy puB d41IN @y uo Buipuny sy} Jo 1oedwi Y} MSIASI [|IM SN\ e

wnipaw ‘Loys a8y} yloq ur sebueyo ssasy; abeuew o} JeaA [eloueul) G/ 10g 8yl Joj awin ul sjuswabuelle mau

aoe(d ul sjuswabuelie ajenbape aie alay] 1yl aiNsus ay} Jo uonejuswa|duwi Jo} sauljawl} pasodo.d JojuoLu

0] YIOM 8UBI|ISa [eroukUl JNo Jo Med SE [1PuUnoy ay) pue sue|d julol sy jo Juswdojarsp sy} yim Buipasooud
YHM SWI0Ja1 9S8y} Jo 10edwi JudLIND Y} MAIASI ||IM DA\ e SI} Moy [ISUN0Y By} YHM SSNOSIP 0} SNUAUOD [|IM S o

‘v102 Mdy + Aq pue|bu3
SHN 0} paniwans aq pjnoys ueyd [eulj 8yl ‘d-4 1IN
S,]1oUN0D By} OMUI }JINg pue 18uUIged Aq Jjo paubis uaaq
sey ue|d Jeip ay] "ue|d pun4 ased Janag ay) anoidde

‘pun4 [B190S 8y} saoe|dal yoiym wajlsAs sjuswhed 0} palinbai ale preog Buidqg|d | PUB YledaH 8yl e
alejjam [B00] Mau e Jo Alanljap ay} Joj abuelse 0] ®BOJR BU} IO} Ul PUN4 8IBD Joneg
aABY s]10un09 sebueyd Jijsuag xe] [1ouno) apisbuoly e U} BunsAlap 0} BjqIsuodsal &g [Iim (599) dnoin

"deo syjouaq ayj Jo Jsjuswadwi AjJes ue Buuoissiwwo? [eaunn AsbuueH yum Buore j1ounod

SEeM [IDUN0D) By YOM O} SBAIUSDUI dAoidwl 0} J8pJo a8y “Auunwwod ay} oy suonnjos pajesbajul Buipinoid

ur walsAs siyauaq ayl Ayidwis 0} s| swiojal syl Jo wie seaJe [B00| Ul Jay1ebo] A|9s0j0 a10W YIOM O} S80IAISS

3yl ‘SO¥6 1 9y} 9ouls WalsAS sHyduaq ay} JO [NBYISA0 aJed [B100S pue yyeay Joj 18bpng pajood ajbuls e si siy L
1s9661q 8y} 8q 0} PaIoPISUOD SJB SWI0JOY SIBJOM BUL e ‘91/G 10 Ul PaoNPOJIUl 8q [|IM pun4 818D Jaag ayl e
10V W03y aJejloM G pund ale) Janag ayl v

saiunpoddo/sabuajieyn

"MO[2q MC%QNHmHMUQS Jno jo Ayewwms ® no 39S I\ .wﬁﬂu«m ST [IPUNOT) 9yl wuﬁMGBHOQ@O pue wwmﬁ\ﬂwzdﬂu Y] puelsiopun O} Pa2u oM JIpne Jno MQMQGNMQ Ul

ssouIsSNq JNOA SUTPULISIOPU)



Page 216

sjuswalinbal

UoISSILIWOY HPNY YiIm
90UBpPIOdJ. Ul SUIN}aI puB
swie|o Juelb Aja0 M apn

sjuswalinbal yum
9oUBpPI0d2E Ul Yored YOM
3U1 UO 3Jom N0 ALed ||IIMm S

paJinbal s| UoieolILed Jpne
YOoIYM UO Suinjal pue swiefo
welb sa1e|dwod [1ouno) ay
uoluido

Hpne ue apinoid am Yoiym uo
yoed SJUNOJOE JUSWUIBAOL)
JO BJOYM E Jllugns

0} pasinbai si j19uno) ay ]
syuawalinbal 18yl

G

wswabeuew

Jojuas yum sbupesw

Jno ybnouyy sabueyod #1/£102

8y} 4o 10edwi Y} YUM Jesp
|IOUNOD) BY} MOY MBIABI ||IM SN\ e

S8INSO[OSIP Pa|ielop aI0W e

(S310) Wusworels

ainypuadxe pue awooul

anisusyaidwod ay} ul pabireys
SJUNOWE JO UOIEIO|Bal Y e
Aoljod Buiunoooy Ul sebuey) e
:0} spsebai ul Aigejou
1sow ale 8say] (SdHT) dwayds
uojsuad JusWwuIaA0Y) [B207]
ay} 1o} Bununoooe ay} ul sabueyd
J0 Jaquinu e sainbal apo) 8yl

suoisuad 'p

abpajmouy

INO Y}IM JU8ISISUOD

aJe Aay} Jaylaym Japisuod
0} pJomaio} Aioreue|dxs ay}

PUE SOV 8} MBIASI [|IM OAN e

SHY 8y} jo uononpoid
2y} Joj aoe|d uI sey
|1oUN0Y 8y} sjuswabuelre

Byl MBI ||IM O\ o

piomalo} Aiojeue|dxg e

(SHV) Weweleis
9OUBUIBAOY) [BNUUY o

aoueuwidnob ajelodion g

aleudoidde

alaym maia e Buipinoad

‘aoueulancb yum pabireyo

asoy} pue juswabeuew

Joluas yum sbunesw Jenbal

Ino ybnoJy} 1ouno) ayy

yum sebueyd anne|siba| sy}
10 10edWI By} SSNOSIP ||IM OM\ e

2102 1Y Wwiojal alej|op\ e

Jusws|iies
90UBUI{ JUSWUIBAQL) [BOOT] e

uone|siba g

sjuawalinbau Jayjo pue suawdojanag

[ dT1MN uoluioyl uein y10¢ @

aouepInb 1see|
8y} yum aul| ul pue A|108.100
10} PSJUNODJE BJE S|O0YDS e

a|geuoddns

aJse sjuswabpnl pue

S9JeW|}ISd PUB B|qeUOSEa

aJe sapew suoisinoid

Aue 1ey) Buunsus ‘sjeadde

ayel ssauisnq Joj Buiiunodoe
0] yoeoudde s,|1ounod) 8y} e

paidde Aj1081100

aJe 3dd JO uonenjea

Jo} sjuswalinbal ul sabueyo

3y} pue d91108ld JO 9p0D

v4dID 8y} jo sjuswainbal
3y} yum sal|dwiod |1ouno) 8y} e

1B} 2INSUB ||IM BN

salWapedy
0] S}OSSE JO J9JSUBI] e
s|eadde ajel
ssauisnq 1o} suoisinoid pue
Bununoooe ygn o1 sebuey) e
suofenea
(3dd) wswdinb3 pue jueld
Auadold Joy suswsalinbai
89P0 JO uoledylE|D o
99110B1d JO
8p0D V4dIO 8yl 01 sebueyy e
Buiuodal jeloueul4 L

*20UEPING Pajeosse pue (29pod )

AINIBIJ PNy JO 9p0O7) Iy} UI INO 198 SE wwﬁoawuﬂﬁﬁuwu pne [euOnNeu JO 1UNO0IIE 93] PUL JOJIIS 9] UT wuﬁ@&@Oﬂu»\ww@ %U& Jo uu._w@aﬂ Y]} JOPISUOI OS[e om JIpne Jno MGMGQ.EQ Ul

JIPNE O PUE SSAUISN FNOA 0} JUBAI[AT SIUIWdOTIAd(



Page 217

$]0J}U092 pue

aouapIng

sassad0.d sjuawnooq Hpne saliols

uodai pue spnjouo9)

SJUBWIBJE]S [BloUBUI

seinpsooid lpne [eisusk)

~~ |lelop JO SISO

sJoloweled swes) o)
LSS ueasjel Buisn MBIABI

[ESA[EUE S SRy indino podey [eonAleue
SAIUEBISONS o SANUEBISONS o
Ilelop JO 1S9 S|0JJU0D 1S3 e
4
|

10841X3

I
(¢@0ouenjas [04u09 pauue)d)
ABaje.ls upne asinaQ

(svsl1) Bunipny uo spiepueis

|euolleusaiu] yum asueljdwod sainsug

“MBIA Jiey
pue anJ} B moys Jobuoj ou pjnom

SJUBWAJE}S [BIOUBU BY} “9INSO|ISIP

-uou 0 UOISSIWO S} ybno.yy ‘Ji

SJUBWaYe)S [elouBUl U} O} [elatew

poISPISUOD 8Q PINOM W) Uy ‘B
190N

91eM)}OS }Jipne pue
ABojopoyiaw [eqo|b
ino Buisn yJomaweuy
aoljoeld jo

9p0J V4dIOD 3yl yum
sjoadsal cJelialew

11e ui pasedaud

pue juawsajejssiw
|erialew wouy

93l} dJe 3JoyMm e se
Sjuawialels [eloueulq
9y} 1ey} aoueinsse
a]qeuoseal uielqo

o} uejd yupne dojanag

| dT1 XN uojuioy] uelo v10¢c @

swelibouid ypne

siojie} pue sajeal)

Jagdefop
S90uUeEeq synsa. seok &
[eualep ay} Buirenjeag g

Sysu SNo0}
BYI0 s juswabeuew
Buipueisiepun
Sysu ssauisnqg ay}
weoyubis Buipueisiepun
Sysu Aus sy pue
JUBWUOJIAUS By}

1ualayu|

Buipueisiapun

ABojouyd9a} ypne jeqo|n

goeordde rpne ()




Page 218

suonoesuel) JueoyUBIS [eNsnuN JO MBINSY e

saujua [eunol jo bunsa] e

swabeuew Aq apew suolsioap pue sjuawbpn( ‘sejewiiss BuUNOJJE JO MaINSY e
:pauued yJom 1ayln4g

Juswabeuew Aq epeW SUOISIOap pue
sjuawBpnl ‘sejewiise BuUNOOOE JO UOISSNOSIP AlJES PUB S|04JUOD [BUINO[ JO MBINSY e

:a)ep 0} paja|dwod YoM

SWEeal]s anuanal [euslew jo Builsa] e
sa101j0d uoniubooal sanusnal Jo Bunsal pue mainey e
:pauuejd 310\

sainpadoud Jipne aajjuelsqng

[ dT1MN uoluioyl uein y10¢ @

"salue
|Ie uljuasaud S| S[0J1U0 JO dpl-I9A0 Juswabeuew
10 YSl 8y} 1ey} ysu pawnsaid e s| 818yl 02 VS| Jopun | S|0JIU0d JO 8pLI-1aA0 Juswabeue

‘anuanal

Jo uoniuBooal 1adoidwi 8y} 01 anp pajeissiw aq Aew suoloesueRl] JUsINpPNe.y)
anuaAal Jeyl ysu pawnsaid e si 818yl 02 YSI| Japun sapn|oul 81940 anuanal 8y
uonduosag )su yueayiubis

:MO0[9q PaIST] oFe YPTYA (SYS] — SURIPNY UO SPIepuUel§ [BUONEUIAIU]) spiepuels Sunipne Jopun
s)1pne e 03 a[qeordde oxe YoTyA sYSIT JULdHTUSTS powmsord 0M) 9Tk 9FOU[ ], "PIJHIUIPT ALY 9 YDITUM JUITIDIBISSTUF [LIFIILUS JO SYSTF JULINTUSIS o) QUI[INO dM TONIIS ST} UT

(1€ VSI) Surepaoun

JugowiaJnseawr wﬁdumﬂﬁwﬂw ST 97941 [YOo1ym JOJ S31eWso wQﬁQSOUUN Jo wﬁwaaoﬁvxwwmu 93 apndour Aews SJajjewr Tﬁﬁwew@ﬂ;. .%@QUSTO.HWQM JNO20 9J0JaJ3] 1eyl pue ‘Qimeu

10 9Z1s O] anp JoYIe Jﬂﬂmﬂﬁﬂ 9J% Je(] SUONOESULI] 91t SUONIOESULI] 9UNNOJ-UON] ‘Sfoljel ﬁduﬁwe.wﬁuﬂﬁ Ppur suonoesues] 9oUNNOI-uou ucdumﬂﬁwﬂm O] 9]1E[a1 U21JO SYSIF ACNU@MQMMW.

POYIUIPT SYSIT JULIYTUSIS



Page 219

suswAed puoddng xe] [10uUnoY) 1581 A|ISAIUBISQNS ||IM SN

‘siseq o|dwes B U0 papIeme s}jauaq
JO UOI1BOIILIBA pUB MaIA3I [edllAjeue Buipnjoul ‘syyauaq BuisnoH
jo Bunse} uolredyied dMA [elul 8y} 818|dWOD ||Im BN

19bpa| [esousb ay; pue
walsAs Aleipisgns ayl Usamiaq UONEBI|IDU0DS. BU} MBIABI |[IM B\

pasiubooal usaq aaey spouad uswsajus aleudosdde |je Joy
suopoesuel) eyl AjlaA 0} |1ounod ay} Joj Bujiom paouswwod
1eyl seakojdwa uo Bunsa) ajdwes a}a|dwod [jIM DN

suinjal DYNH pue
wa}sAs |joihed ayy 01 sioupalo |joihed-pus jeak saibe |Im apn

pasiubooal
sjuawAed Jo sisAjeue puaJ; Ajyjuow a19|dwod |[Im SN

Jabps| [essusb ay) pue
walsAs |joiAed sy} usamiaqg UOIBIIDUOIBI Y} MBIASBI ||IM DA

poliad 1084100 8y} Ul papI0daJ die sasuadxa

Jaylaym auiwialep o} Buiissl JJo-1nd ayeuspun ||IMm 9\
pasiubooa. usaq aAeY SUOlIOBSUE}

1By} 2INsua 0} SUOIFBWLIJUOD Jaylo pue sajou 1diadal spoob
pue sadioAul Jo 9jdwes & uo Bunsa) ainquile 8}a|dwod [jIM D\

Jabps| [essusb ay) pue
walsAs Aleipisqns sy} Usamlaq UOIIBII0U0D8I B} MBIAS ||IM S\

pauued yiom Jayping

WIom
SIY} JO }Nsal B Sk paljuspl alom sanss| oN ‘Buipueisiapun
INOo Yyum 9oueplodde ul Buieiado aiem Sj01jU0d JedAi-ul

8y} eyl 8oueunsse ureb o} ybnoaypjiem e pawiopad aney op e

“MIOM
SIYl JO }NSaJ B Sk palluspl a1am sanss| oN ‘Buipueisiapun
INo ylum aoueps0doe ul Buiesado a1em s|0J3U09 Jeak-ul

3y} Jey} soueinsse uieb o} ybnosypjiem e pawiopad aney SN e

“MIOM
SIYl JO }INSaJ B Sk paluspl a1am sanss| oN ‘Buipueisiapun
INo yum aoueps0doe ul Buiesado a1em s|0J3U09 Jeak-ul

ay} Jey} soueinsse uieb o} ybnosypjiem e pawiopad aney oA e

ajep 0} pajajdwod ylom

[ dT1MN uoluioyl uein y10¢ @

paindwod
Apadoidwi ainypuadxa
Hjausq aejls M\

palelsiapun [enJooe
uonelaunwsal sakojdwg

pouad
1081109 8y} Ul papI0dal Jou
10 pajeisiopun siolpaln

uonduasaqg

ainjpuadxy
alejlop

uolesaunwal
aafojdwg

sosuadxa
Buneiado

sy si
a|qissod
Algeuoseal
18ylo

.MGMGQNTM JNO JO J[NS3J € ST PIJNUIPT 9ARY oA [OTYM JUIWI9IEISSTW [BTI2]8W JO SYSIX JOUIO0 9] 9UI[INO aM TONIIS SIY) U]

‘(61¢ VSI) sempooord aanuelsqns woij A[Ho

Paure1qo 90U9pIAd JIpne YIIM [9A9] MO] \AMQ.N“QOUUN Ut O] [9A9] UONIISSE 9] 18 JUIWIE]SSTW [B1I2]¥W JO SYSII 9] 90Npat O Uﬁﬁduﬁu.ﬂu& JO wﬁﬂﬂwwOQ jou st JQ@QHMTH.& s Joypne
o1 Ut aﬂuﬁ\ﬁa JOJ SYSIF 9S0Y] J9AO nmwﬁTﬁuUN [01TOI JUeAI[I MQ%DﬁUGM anOﬁQOU w.bﬁﬁ@ 1 Jo QOﬁNaG@EQMQSM 91 2UTWIa19p pue Qwﬂwwﬁ 91 2jenjeAd pnoys Joypne 9y T,

PAYRUSPI SYSI YO



Page 220

[ dT1MN uoluioyl uein y10¢ @

awooul [elual Jo ssauale|dwod ay) Ajuan o} Bunsi| seiuadoud oM
8y} woy sjdwes e bunos|es ‘Bunsey einquie wioped [imem e SIY] JO }INSaJ B SB paliuapl a1om sanssi oN “Buipuelsiapun
awooul [elual Jo ssausla|dwod 8yl J8A0 soueInsse uieb o] INo yum aoueps0doe ul Buiesado a1em s|0J3U09 Jeak-ul papJooal

JapJ0 Ul S8INPa20Id M3IAS) [eDlA[BUE paIelep WJopad [|IM O e 2y} Jey} soueinsse ureb o} ybnoiypjem e pawiopad SABY S\ e | JOU SUOIJOBSUEI} SNUSASY

pauued yiom Jayping alep 0} pad|dwiod YIoM\ uonduasaqg

1UN022Y
anuanay
ey BuisnoH

sy si
a|qissod
Algeuoseal
18410

.MGMGQNTM JNO JO J[NS3J € ST PIJNUIPT 9ARY oA [OTYM JUIWI9IEISSTW [BTI2]8W JO SYSIX JOUIO0 9] 9UI[INO aM TONIIS SIY) U]

‘(61¢ VSI) sempooord aanuelsqns woij A[Ho

Paure1qo 90U9pIAd JIpne YIIM [9A9] MO] \AMQ.EQOUUN Ue O] [9A9] UOMNIISSE 9] 1¥ JUIWDIL]ISSTWT [RII21EW JO SYSTT 9] 20Npat O wﬁﬁduﬁumuﬁw JO wﬁﬂﬂwwOQ jou st JQ@SMﬁSﬁ s Joypne
o1 Ut AQUMQB JOJ SYSIF 9S0Y] J9AO mmwﬁﬁ\wﬁu.ﬁ [01TOI JUeAI[I MQ%HJUQM anOﬁQOU w.bﬁﬁ@ 1 Jo QOﬁNaG@EQMQSM 91 2UTWIa19p pue Qwﬂww—u 91 2jenjeAd pnoys Joypne 9y T,

PAYRUSPI SYSI YO



Page 221

* pelepl|josu09
A1081100 UBB(Q BARY SlUBWIBIE]S
[eouBUIY S8} JEY) YO8 [|IM S

‘AabBuley 1o} sewoH ayl

J0 Jipne 8y} woyy sbuipuly ay)
pue sjuawajels [elouBUl 8y} JO
MB3IABJ B 1IN0 ALIBD ||IM A

‘Buiuueld

}pne Jno o Jed se asay) Jopisuod
|1 SN “SYSH JUBLIND U0 MBIA JIBY}
urelqo o} AabuleH 10} SewoH 8y}
1O SI0}IpNe 8y} paloBIU0D SABY S

" palepl|osuo9 A|1081100 Usaq aAey
SJusLWale.]S [BIOUBUIL 9S8Y] 1BY]
%080 |[IM S\ “'1SNJ] 80B[Rd puB
%/ed BIpUEX3]Y BY} JO JIpNe au)
wouy sBulpuly 8yl pue sjusLWalRlS
[B1oUBUI 8YI MBIABI [|IM DA

‘Buiuue|d upne uno jo ued se asay}

JOPISUOD |[IM A “SYSH JUBLIND

UO MSIA JI3U] UIe1qo 0} 1sni|
aoe|ed pueR Yied BIPUBX3|Y 8yl

10 SIolpNE 8] PaJoBIU0D SARY S\

yoeoudde jpne pauue|d

‘upne dnoub ay o} Aejep

Aue uanaid o} Jsuuew Ajswil e ui Jjo paubis s AebuleH
10} SOWOH 8y} Jo uodal Jipne 8y} ey} 8iNsus 0} |IounoD
ayl yum Buisiel] usaq aney ap\ "S9]9A0 uonoesuel]

ay] 0] uone|al Ul YSII d1j109ds Aue paljiluapl 10U dABY S\

‘upne dnoub ayj o} Aejep Aue

wenaid 0] Jauuew Ajpwil e ul Jjo paubis siisni] 8oeed pue
Wied eipuexaly ayj jo Lodal Jipne ayi Jeyl 8insua o} [Iouno)
ayl yum Buisiel] usaq aney ap\ "S9]9A0 uonoesuel]

ay] 0] Uoie|al Ul YSI d1j109ds Aue paljiluapl 10U dABY S\

pannuap! sysiy

paabie|

[eondjeuy

009 VSI 18pun
patinbal asuodsal jo |9na]

SOA

SOA

sueayiubis

dTIMN uouioyL uely ¥10¢ ©

AebBulreH 1o} sowoH

1Sn.| 8dejed
PUE )lied BIpUBXS|Y

jusuodwo)

romowiety

Sunsodos peurury o[qeordde oy I 9ouEpI0dE UT ‘s300dsar [errorews [re Ut ‘paredord ore syuowolels ernueul dnosd oy yoym vo vorurdo ue ssoxdxo 03 ssavord
UONEPT[OSTOD 31} pue s1Uau0dwod Y} JO TONEWIOJUT [EDUEUN ) SUIpFedar 20uaprad ypne ajerrdordde juamngyns urelqo aa syoypne dnozoy se jer sarmbar )09 VST

1UWSSasse Ys1I pue 9dods y1pne dnoio)



Page 222

*JO139] PN [enuuy o1 Ul pue 330dos sSUTpUL] IIpNY IO UT
pa3rodor oq [ SursiTe s08essow £o3] 9} PUE JTOM JIPTE JATJ A TNO JO SINSIT 9T,

TPUNo.) o1 Aq padeurw A[qeims Suraq
ore sjoedwy [enualod Jey) 9Insud 0] s301e[n3as Aq pansst srodor Lue JopIsuo) -

H—MO&MH IDUII[ISaI [e1dUEUT] M.—\NHON 91 WOJJ suonepuaWwwioda1 &5 MO[[O] -

[IPUNOY) 3} 0} PIHUIPT sIssouyeam Lue 370doT pUE [OTVOD [EDULUT
pue Suruued [erUBUT 01391ENS VOUBUIIAOS [BULU]] DduLwI0fId [erpueury
30 102dsa7 sT syuowRSULIIE § PUNOY) o) JO Surpuelsiopun o aepdn -

‘POHRUSPIT SYSIF 9] SS9JppE O] Seoie MCMBOMMOW

9Y} UI YJOM I¥elIopun [[IM 9/X\ 'TOISNOUOD JAFA 2Yl O ¥SIF JO seaJe @Eﬁwﬁﬂ
O] SJOJeITPUT NSTX %QM Jo oqumu e umﬂﬂmwﬁ JUOWISSISSE YSIF B UIYEIIopPpUN 9ARY 9 A\

franonpoxd pue Lousromgge Suraordwr £q
pue suononpas 3500 Suradryoe £q ojdwexad
707 ‘s308pnq 79130 UIPIA SOOINOST

$31 Sursnrorrd s1 uonesTUESIO O T,

ormnyg

99959305 93 03 erado 03 SNUNTOD
0 11 sa[qeuD Jey} uonrsod [erueUT [qels
€ 9JN09s 0} puk ‘A[9AN29339 sonrumzoddo
PUE SYSTI [e1OUBUT 9Seuews 0 $9559003d
pUe swo)sAs 1sNqOT SBY UONESIUESIO 9T,

BII9ILID JY) JO SN0,

[ dT1MN uoluioyl uein y10¢ @

SSOUDATION)JO
pUE £5U911jJ0 ‘AWOU0I9 $9INIIS 3T
MOY FUISUI[[eYD JOJ SIUIWITUEITE

sodoid sey uonesuesso oy T,

QOURIYISOT [EDUBUY
Surmooas 303 2oe[d ur syuIWRSUEITE
7odoid sey vonesruedro oy T,

eI AJA

‘GOISSTIIwIoO )

wpny o1 £q paygroads er10l13d SUIMO[[OJ Y} UO Paseq ST TOTISNOUOD A A 1O

‘goIsnduod Q/@\Vv %OQOE JOJ onje A 93 St UMOUY ST STY T, 'S92JNOSIJ JO Isn §11
UT SS9U9AD9]]9 pue %UCOMUGWQ ‘“fwrouooa Mﬁﬁuﬁuvw J0J wucwawwﬁww—uw H@&OH& wu&~&

ur uSQ SEY [IPUNO07) 91 Joyloym UO TOIsNdUOI t 9nsst 0] sn m@HﬁDT@M PO YT,

Asuow 10) anjep

Aouows 303 anfeA



Page 223

[ dT1MN uoluioyl uein y10¢ @

"JeaA 1se| pasiel a1am Jeyl sanssi sy} Jo dn moj|oy
e wJiopad os|e ||Im S\ WBISAS S|0J1U0D [BUIBIUI BU] JO MBIASI |[BIOAO
8y} JO Led Se ‘JUBWUOIIAUS |0J1U0D || [eJauab ay] JO MaIABI |9A9) s|onuo?d
*yJ0m 8y} Jo uonajdwod uo sbuipuly N0 Lodal [[Im SN ybiy e Bupfeuspun Ajjuaingd ale isie1oads swalsAs uonewsojul INO ABojouyo9) uonew.oul Jo M3IADY

‘Buipuelsiapun pPajusWINI0P N0 YHUM
90UBPI022E Ul pajuswaldwi usaq aABY S|0JIUOD [BUJBIU| "UORUSNE
InoA 01 Bulg 0} ysim am ydiym sanssi Aue paiiuspl Jou Sey JJom InQ

"SJUBWaJe]S [eloUBUL BY}
"yoeoJsdde ypne ino 0] JUBWBIE]SSIW [BLISJBW JO YSU B S| 818y}l 1Byl JopISUOD aMm d1aym
uo 1oedwi yoiym sassauyeam Aue paijiiuspl Jou sey }Iom INnQ | Sease ul Buiesado sjosuod Jo sisal ybnoiypjiem palejdwod aney ap Bunsal ybnoaybjiem

‘1oday sbuipulq upny Jno ui pauodal aq
[l palluapl sassauyeam Aue ‘Aiessadau aisypn yoeosdde
upne uno ojul sbuipul S8y} 10108} pue SWalsAS [eloueul Aoy
S,[1oUN0D 8y} uo spodal SIPNe [BuJBIUI MBIABI JBYUNY [[IM S\

"IouN0Y 8y} 1B JUSWUOIIAUS |04JUOD [BUIBIUI DAIJOBYS "JUSWIAIE]S 9OUBUIBAOY) [BNuUY 8y} ul pajuasald uouido

Ue 0] S8INQLIIUOD YI0M JIpNe [BUISIUI JBY] PUE |I2Uno) ay} 1pny [eutalu] Jo peaH oyl Buipnjoul uoouny Ipne [eussiul 8y} Jo

0] 821n8S A1010B)SIIES puk Juspuadapul ue apiaoid 0] senuiuod | adouspuadapul 8yl JOA0 8ouBINSSe 8pIn0id O} JeaA [eloueul v 1/£102
90IAJSS JIPNE [BUIBIUI BY} JBY) POPN|OUOD BABY M ‘|[BJBAQ 9y} 40} sjuswabuele ||BJOAO S HPNE [BUISIUI POMBINSI SABY S Jipne |eusalu|

uoisn|ouo) sBuipuyy pue pawuoyiad 310\

:MO[2q I[qel Y3 U pasEewwuns aJe duaem&w JIpnE S1UNODJDE I} UO mmcmucm Ino jo HUNQEM 93 pPuE ‘YIOoM JIpnE WIIIUT N0 JO mwcmucm YT,

YFOM ITPNE WIFANUT JO SINSIY



Page 224

"2 01 0| Syuow Joj suonoesuel}
|joJAed pue senuanal jueib uou uo Bunsal 819|dwo9 [jIM BN

"'S9p0o

J96pa| arelidoidde ay) 01 paisod pue suone}oadxs JNo yim
90UEBPI0I2E Ul pasiubodal usaq aAey suonoesuel} ay| bunsal
anluelsqns AlJes no wouly payiuapl a1om sanssi Juediubis oN

“1eak ay) InoyBnoiy} pasn asoy] Sk ||om Se SjusLslels
[eroueuly 8y} Jo uononpoid sy} ul passasold usaq aney

yolym saujua [enpiaipul Buimainas Aq passasold suojjoesuel)
[euinol sy} jo ssausieudoidde ay) Jon0 aoueInsSe URD |[IM 9N

‘sainpaoo.d pue saloljod
[eulnol Jo maiAal By} Ul paljuUspl a1om sanss| Juediubis oN

uoisnjouo)

~196ps| [essusb ay) 01 paisod suonoesuel)
40 AoBINO9E puB 99U81INJI0 By} JOA0 9oUBINSSE papiAcid SeY SIYL

suonoesuel) uonjesaunwal esholdwy -
anuanai jueib uoN -

:yeak ay} JO syjuow aulu 1sii By}
10} Buimoj|o} 8y uo Buiisal aAlueisSqns AlJea uayeuapun aney ap

‘sjuswalels

[BIOUBUI} JO JUBWLUOJIAUS |0J]UOD S,|1oun0D) 8y} uo 1oedwi Aj@sianpe
01 A|9Y]1] 848 YdIym SaSSaudeam [elslew Aue paijijuspl Jou aAeY pue
ABajens Bunsay Ause jeulnol ino Buiuiwisiep jo Ued se sainpaosoud
pue saidljod A1us [eusnol s,10uUN0Y) Byl POMBINSI BABY SN

pauwuoyad yiop

[ dT1MN uoluioyl uein y10¢ @

Bunsal annuelsqns Apieg

sjo4uo9d Aniua jewunop

(PoNUNUOD) YFOM JTPNE WIIAIUT JO SINSIY



Page 225

uoluido sjuswayels [eloueul ublig

(sanwwon ares0dion) soueuianob yum pabieyd asoyl o1 sbuipulj ipne poday

80oUBUI JO 10]08.I( JUBISISSY

8y} pue 4800 BunesedQ JeiyD wisiul syl yim Bunssw aoueles|o sBuipul Iipny

MIOMplal} pus JeaA

102 1equiidag

¥10¢ 1oquiardag

102 1equirdag

v102 1snbny ; Ainp

99)lwwo) ajelodion o] ueld Jpne Jo uoleluSSaId 102 yotepn
JISIA SIS WLBlU| 102 Aenuep

Buiuueld 102 AMenuep / Jaqwiadag

Aianoy ajeq

dT1 )N UoUIoyL Juelin) y10¢ @

}ipne ano jo saseyd Aay

O

Buijodal USIA USIA
Ja1qeq
Juonajdwon SlUNnodde |eulq upne wuduj
< O O O
102 1290120 ¥10g Jaquiardeg v10g 1snbBny/AInp ¥10g Aenuer

919492 jipne ay L

sa1Bp A9




Page 226

‘SpIEpuULlg [ S, pIeog
SRRjih a8 | wcﬁ%ﬂ;\ s jo ucwEuﬁswua 3y} 199w 03 woﬁ%uuou& pue muﬂu:o& @u“cuauaﬁﬁ QALY 9M JBY) WHIJUOD I\

Jpne 93 JO uorsnpuod
oyl je HHO&QM wwﬁq—uﬁﬂm ypny Ino ur papndur oq [ S9JTAJISS JIpne-uou pue Jipne JOj .muww.ﬁwﬂu $99J [[e JO S[relop [[ng

“S]UWIDIEIS [EIDUBUTJ

o1p vo uorurdo 2a129[qo ue ssoxdxo 03 o[qe o3¢ puE JUIPUIJIPUT 9T M JEL[} WIATJUOD A dJOJIIY) PUL SPIEPULI
[edT s,pFeog s9O1DEIJ SuNIpny o) PIm pardwiod 2ALY 9A\ "“TONU21E JNOA 01 MEIP 0] YSIM JO pasmbaz

oTe oM JBY) SFOIIpNE st 20UdpUadopur Ino UOo 10edWT JBT) STONEW JO S)1OL] JUEDYTUSIS OU 93¢ IFI JeT[) WIAJUOD dA\

so1y}a pue asuapuadapuj

I'N SUON
3 S93d CRIVVETS

S92IAISS 19Y}O0 10} S99

[ dT1MN uoluioyl uein y10¢ @

suoneue[dxa opraoid o3
PUE UOnNEWIOFuT 916007 st d[9Y 03 JJels SunuNoIdE
PUE JUdWOSeutw J[qE[TEAE ONEW [[IA [OUNOT) 9T, o

Apueoygrudrs paSueyD 10U dABY ‘SITTATIOE
$)T pUE [1PUNO7) 213 put ypne o) Jo odods oY T, e
1571 3sonbox wonewroyur uodn PodISe o YPIM
90UBPIODDE UT PUE sajep paoide oy Aq parddns ore
$)UN0DE 21} UT $aIN3yg [[¢ 03 sa[npoatps Sunsoddng o

:opnjoul suondwnsse aa} AnQ

00€'8LE (LvA Buipnjoxa) saay [ejo
009‘y UONBOIIMSD JURIY)
00,22 JpNe [1ouno)
3

s994

0UIPUIdopUT PUE $99,]



Page 227

2 uJaou0d Buioh 0] uonledas ul sienew Juedyiubig

s saljed palejal Yyim uoiosuuod ul Buisue sienew jueoyiubig

A SjusWaleISSIW PajdalIoouN

A Jajiew jo siseydws Jo ‘Lodal sJolpne 8y} 0} suoledlyIpow pajoadxy

2 suone|nbal pue sme| yum asueldwod UoN

S]uaWale]S [BIOUBUI BY} JO JUBLIBIRISSIW [BLISJBW Ul S}NSaJ YdIym

2 SJ8Y]0 Jo/pue uswabeuew BUIAJOAUI pnely JO UoIDIdSNS 10 UoIBDIIIUSP|

2 Hpne ayl Buunp paiiuapl [0J1U0D [BUIBIUI Ul SSSSBUNBOM [BLISIBIN

aouspuadapul 01 siealyy o} paldde spienbajes Jo s|ielag

‘pabueyd sas) yim Jayiabol ‘suulj yiomjau

pue 4771 MN uojuioy] el Ag pawiopad Miom lipne-uou Jo s|ielaq

‘9ouspuadapul uo Jeaq o3 ybnoyl aq

biw yoiym sialew Jayio pue sdiysuonejas ‘e@ouspuadsapul Buipsebal

P A sjuawalinbal [eo1y1a JueAd|al yum palidwod aAey am Jeyl Juswalels v

2 A Aanoaslqo pue asuspuadapul jo uoeWILUOD

bnos uaaq aAey ey} suoneluasaldal usLm pue Jipne ay}

Bunnp Buisue anssi pue sianew wedyiubis ‘saonoeid Buiiodal [eloueuly

2 pue Buijunodoe s,Allus ayl Jo s1oadse aanelenb ayl Inoge SMaIp

SUOIIBDIUNWWIOD JO JuBluo9 [eidauab paloadxe pue

s Buiwn ‘wio4 “upne ayj jo Buiwi pue 8dods pauue|d Byl JO MBINIBAQ

aoueusanob yim

P pabieyod asoyliuswabeuew pue Jojpne Jo salljiqisuodsal aaioadsay

sBuipuyy ueid ue|d uonesIUNWWOD INQ
Hpny upny

[ dT1MN uoluioyl uein y10¢ @

‘saniiqisuodsal asay Buijjiy|ny SI [1IDUNOYD By} MOY PaISPISUOD ABY SA\ "0} palunodoe
Apadoud pue papienbajes si Asuow 21ignd 1ey] pue ‘Ssauisng SH 0 10NpUod 8y}
Jo} 92e|d ul aJe sjuswabueuse Jadoid Jeyl ainsus o} 1oUN0Y ay} Jo Aljiqisuodsal syl Si |

"8p0D Y} JapuN SUOISN|OUOD

Ino Buiyoeal uaym sysu A8y S,|10UNOYD BY} SISPISUOD HIOM INQO "MI0M paullLLIBlap
A|[eo0| pue paquasald Ajjeuoiieu sapnjoul pue uoISsIWWo) 1PNy a8yl Agq panssi (,8poD
ay}1,) 89119814 HPNY 0 8p0D Yl YIIM 80UBPI0IJE Ul 18S S| swwelboid ylom [enuue JnQ

‘sJaew aoueuianob

pue aoueUl} BULIBAOD HIWBI PeOIq B 8ABY M ‘SI0lipne [eulalxa sy ‘pue|bu3 ul

salpoq 21|gnd 20| 0} sio0lpne [eusalxa Bunuiodde oy ajqisuodsal Apoqg sy} ‘UoISSIWIWOD
Hupny ay1 Aq siolipne |eulalxa Juspuadapul S,|1ounoy 8y} Sse pajuiodde usaq aney

*(N"AOB UOISSIWWOD
-IPNE"MMM) UOISSILWLIWOD PNy 8yl Ag panssi salpog palipny pue Siolipny
1O sanjiqisuodsay Jo Juswalels ayl Jo 1xaluod sy} ul paledaid usaq sey ued siy|

saniqisuodsal aAn3osadsay

"1oUN0Y 8yl 0} Lodal B BIA 10 Ajjewiojul Jaylie ‘siseq
Ajdwiy e uo ypne ay} Bunoaye sbuipuly paroadxaun 10 8SIAPE Aue 8]BdIUNWLWOD [|IM S

‘PaAj0Sal Usaq aABY 9S8yl Moy 0} Se uoljeue|dxa

ue yum Jayiabol ‘upne ay} wolj Buisue sisew Jaylo pue sanss! Asy Juasaid ||im

pue sjuswsalels [eloueul) 8y} jo [earosdde oy Joud panssi aq |jim sBulpuld Ipny 8yl ajiym
‘Ipne ay} Janlap o} ueld pue ABajelis JIpNe JNo SauljiNo ‘ueld HPNY 8yl ‘luswndop Siyl
"a)isoddo 8|ge1 8y} ul IN0 18S am

YoIym pue ‘egueulanchb yum pabieys asoyl Yyiim 81esiunwiwiod o} palinbal ale am yoiym
sJanew aquosald ‘syS| Jaylo se ||am se ‘09z (YSI) Bunipny uo spiepuels [eucieulaiu]

IDULBUIIAOS I PISTEYD 9SOYI YIIM SIONBW IIPNE JO VONEITUNWWO,)



Page 228

}n-09-uojuloy}-juelh

'SJUBI[O 0} SBINIBS

apinoJd Jou Seop [BUOHBUIBIU| UOJUIOY ] JUBIE) "JBYjOUE 8UO JO
1J0€ 10 SBOIAIBS Y} 10} 8|qISUodsal Jou aJe Y2Iym ‘Swily Jaquisw
Aq Apuspuadepur paianiep ase saoines "diysiauped spimplom

B J0U 9JB SWLI} JOqUISU U} PUB [EUOHBUIBIU| UOJUIOY] JUBIL)
"salinbas 1Xajuod ay} Se ‘Swilj JaGUISL 2I0W JO BUO O} JojoI pue
ajelado swil Jaquiaw UOJUIOY ] JUBIL) B} YdIYM Japun puelq ay) 0}
aJe UOJUIOY ] JUBID), O} SAOUSIS)RY "(|BUOIEUISU| UOJUIOY] JUBID)
PI [BUOIUIBIU| UOJUIOY | JUBIL) JO LI} JaqUISW B S| Uojuloy] Juelt)

diysisuped Ayjigel|
pajwWI| B ‘g7 MN UojuIoy] Juelt) suesw ,uojuioy] Jueln,

"panIasal SIYBU I "d 71 MN Uoluoy] JUeIn ¥102 O

uojuloy | Juels) o



Page 229

woo1B )yN@Neuusaq's-pieyol 3
l¥2€ 8244020 L

BAIINOBX]

neuuag pieyary

woo1byn@unelined 3
€9¢€ 824,020 L
Jabeuep

uipfoer [ned

wooibyn@nessopined 3
08L€824.020 L
Jauned

nasso( [ned

¥102 Aenige4 g2
#7102 YoIe LE papusd Jesp

AS3urIe]] JO ySnoiog UOpuoOT| I0J
o1epd ) 9onTwon) 9erodion)

uOJUIOY | JuelS) o



Page 230

‘asodimd yotpo Aue 5oy popuaiut 0u 503 paredard

jou sea Jx0dax siyy se 930dar SIUY) JO JUSIUOD I JO SISEQ 3} UO JUNOE WOy SUTUTEI X IO
Bunoe fzed parp Lue 0) pavorseddo ssof Aue 305 Apqisuodsar Aue 1dodoe Jou Op 94\ TUISTOD
vonmm Jorrd mmo noymm 1xed ur 30 Sjoym ur pajonb oq Jou pnoys pue JFouaq oL 10y L[9[0s

poredord voaq sey 330dos SIYT, *S[ONUTOD [PUFAIUT FNOL UT $9ssoUT LM AUk TO SSouIsnq INOA
10933e Aewr yorym systx a1 jo [[& Sunzodar 103 nok o3 spqisuodsar pay 9q jouued om renonIed

Ut pue 93ued 03 199(qns oq AW YITYM ‘SIO)JEUF JULAI[DI O} [[& JO PF0I23 2AIsUIYaIdwoo

v jou s1)] ‘ssa001d Jipne o jo 1red st nos o3 pa3rodar 9q 0) PadU AN M YIIYM
‘UOTIUDIIE JNO 0} W0 IABY UDIYM SISNEW 91} 0} A[UO 91¥[91 170d0T ST} JO SIUITOD oY T,



Page 231

abed

dTIMN uouioyL uely ¥10¢ ©

sanss| pne pue Buunoody

uouIOY | JUEBID)

aouepInb juswuionob [eo0T
suawdo|ansp pue sanssi Buibiow]
¥10g Arenuga4 gz 1e ssalbolid
uoIONPOJIU|

uonoas

SIU9IUO")



Page 232

dTIMN uouioyL uely ¥10¢ ©

wod B N@UuIpPelTNed 9819670 8820 N £92€ 822/ 020 1 (1ebeuel upny) uipoer [ned
woo b N@uessopned  861G20616L0 IN 081LE 822/ 020 L (pesTiuswabebul) nessoq |ned

"Jebeuepy Jpny Jo peaT uswabebug JnoA Jayys joejuod ases|d ‘noA 0} 1salaul JO ale eyl Sanss! uo
sajepdn |lews Jejnbal 8A1808. 0} UOJUIOY | JuBi) Yylm Ja)siBal 0] 81 pinom Jo ‘Buiydliq Siyl ul Swiall Aue uo uoiewIOUl JBylNy 81| PINOM NOA J|

wJojol arejom

10 10edW! 8y} J0 suoissaidwil 1Sl ¢ SHjduaq ayl buideay ‘uaind syl Buibuajeyn ¢iuiod Buiddil 9102..¢,So1IoyINe [B20] 8Je Judl|iSe) MOy :WJ0]S
ay1 Buiainng, ‘,eaniny ayi Joj Buliedald, ‘epusbe lpne [eusaiul Buidojaasp ay, ‘,sea1aies dlgnd jo uonelbiw ayy, ‘i iuiod Buiddi e spiemoy],

‘. £102 M3INSY SOUBUIBAOK) JUSWIUIBAOK) [ED0T, — Suoiiedlignd Jno Jo sa1dod peojumop Ued NOA aleH "10108s 21jgnd 8y} Ul ¥40M INo 0} paledipap
UOI108S B SABY OM 8J9UM YN 02 UOIUIOY]-IUBID MMM 8}ISGSM JNO UO [BLISIEW |NJOSN JBYLN} pul} UBD 88)ilwo?) aielodio) ayl JO SIaquid|\

*J9PISU0D 0] ysim Aew aailiwo) ayl yoiym sanssi Buibiaws asay) Jo 10adsal ul suolisanb abus|ieyo Jo Jaquinu & sepnjoul .«

[1IoUN09 ybnolog uopuo e se NoA 0] Jueas|al aq Aew Jey} sluswdojdAsp pue senssi [euoljeu Buibiows jo Arewwns e .

:sapnoul os|e

Jaded ay| ‘sioypne [eusalxa JnoA se sallljiqisuodsal Jno BuleAlep ul ssaiboid uo podas e yum saniwwo?) alesodion ayl sepinoid saded siy |

UONONPORNU]



Page 233

9vjjlwwo)
alelodlon Jaquwisldag ay) 01 sBuipuly JNO d1e2IUNWWOD 0} ue|d A

102 Jequieldag ul aniwwo) a1elodion ayl je pajusasaid aq [|Im
yoiym uoday sbuipuiq4 upny Jno Ul oM Sy} Jo S}nsal ayl Jodal [jim
am pue ssaiboud ul si Bunisel aaiueisqns AlJeg ‘ue|d 1PNy 8yl uiyim

papn[oul 8Je Yolym JO S}Nsal ay} ‘paiajdwod ussaq sey YIoMp|dl4

epuabe ay) uo wayl ajeledss e si ue|d IPNY SIUNOJDY By |

‘Hpne g1/2102 8yl Peso[o pue 81ed|iLisd Jipne 8yl penss| Mou 8Aey
aM 99)lwwo9 ajelodio) 1se| 8yl 8ouls Jeyl Lodal 0] pasesld ase ap\

sjuswwo)

dTIMN uouioyL uely ¥10¢ ©

"uoISN|ou0d Asuoy 4o} anjep pasodoid .
SJUNO22E S,[19UN0Y) 8y} uo uoluido pasodoid .
Sljuswalels [eloueUl ¢7L-E10C 8yl JO lipne  «
:Buipnjou

lipne sjunoaJe jeul} y1L-€10C

"uoIsnjouod Asuojy Joj anjep pasodosd .

Buiisal annueisans Ajes .

sanss| Builunoooe Buibiaws uo yiom AJes .

SWa)SAS [elouBUl} 8100 UO Suodal JIpNy [BUIBIU| JO MBIADI
Swia)sAs |eloueul) Jo Buipueisiepun uno Buiepdn .
JUSWUOIIAUS |0J4]UOD S,|IoUN0D 3y} JO malAal Ino Buijepdn
:S9PN|OUI JISIA YJOMPISI} WIBUI INO

}ipne SJUNO0J9. WId)U|

"SJUBWIBIE]S [BIOUBUL {7 |-€ 102 S,|Ioun0D
ay} uo uoiuido ue aaIb 0} JapJo ul yoeoidde pasodoud uno 1no Buies
[IoUNOY 8y} 0} ueld Ipne SJUNOJJk Pajielap B anssi 0} palinbal aie ap\
uejd 1pny Sunoday {7 1-€102

9)edinia) Hpny €1/¢10¢
MR

+107 Areniqo,] Q7 1B SS9I501]



Page 234

dTIMN uouioyL uely ¥10¢ ©

(a2 Jad 9¢) s|1oun02 O P4yl 8uo Jo S1oadsold wis) wnipaw ay) IN0ge SUlaou0d passaldxa siolipne .
$oeJ] Uo sedueul) daay 0] suoloe pauue|dun Buiye)

pue s1ebpnq BuldAlep ul SaIlN2IIP JO XIw B AQ palqIyxe — €1/2 102 Ul SS841S [BIOUBUL} JO WO} SWOS PalQIYXd S|IoUN0D Ud) Ul 831y}
‘wea) Juswabeuew Joluas sy} Buunjoniisas 1o Buionpal

pue salouaiole AleAljep 8o1AI8s Bulindas ‘siequinu yels Bulonpal usaq aAey s|1ounod Aq paldope Ajapim 1sow saibajelis eaiyl oyl e

:1ey] puNoj YyoJeasal S,uoISSILIWOD IPNY 8y |

" Juswiuianob [ejuad woly Bulpuny uo sso| AjaJ 1eyl sadinlas 21ignd JaAlep 01 SAem mau 10} Buiyoo| deay pue sbuines Buiyew wouj jules)
aney Aayl 1eym aseys 1snw sjouno”), sabus|ieyd [eroueuly BuiNuUOD YIM Jeyl pres uelwmaN Awalap ‘Uewliey) UOISSILIWOD IpNy ay L

"g|doad [eo0]

JO Spaau oy} 198w pue sainp Aioiniels Jiayl |1y 01 JapJo ul Buindepe uo Aued 1snw sjIounod eyl sAes uoissiwwol) ayl ‘pesye Alurenuasun
yum ‘JenamoH "sebus|jeyd [eioueuly Jaylo O Jaguinu e pue juswultaaob wouy Buipuny ul uononpal uad Jad g e audsap ‘sieah saiy] 1se| ayl
Jan0 @oual|Isal eloueuly Jo 8a1Bap ybiy e pajelisuowap aAeY S|Iounod s pue|bug eyl smoys Jpd [m-Sabud|ey))-[eloueul]-0}-sasuodsay
-S|IoUN0N-E [ 0g-SaWi -ybno] /| |/€ 1 02/SPeo|dniuaiuod-dm/3 N ACE UOISSIWIWOD-IPNe MMM//-01Y ‘yoJeasal 1sale| S,uoISSIWwWo) Upny ay |
€10z sawi] ybno] - yosieasal uoisSIWWOY Jpny

asuepinb Juswuianob [eso7

ordoad [eo071 jo sposu oy 390w 03 3depe 01 SNUNTOD ISNW S[IITNOY)



Page 235

dTIMN uouioyL uely ¥10¢ ©

‘Bunesw Apoq Juswulanob [eoo| Aue wod) 19am] pue wijl 0} ybu a8yl suaziyo oAb sainseaw Aousaiedsuel] .
‘{sjuswabuelie us1INd Yum aul| ul

8Je |NJME|UN JUNOJJE JO WY Uk Buueoap 40} pue lipne Je uoidalqo ue ayew 0} Jybu 8y} ‘sjuswnoop Jo uoioadsul punoJde siybu Buisixe .
{SJUN02ok Si lpne 0} pajulodde Joupne [eo0| 8y} yum diysuolje|al

Juspuadapul ue Jo 8duBUSBlUIBW By} UO AJlIoyIne 8y} 8SIAPE 1Snw ydiym [dued Joypne ue ysijgeiss o} palinbai aq |im s,Al10yiny |BO0T
{sloypne [eoo| se pajuiodde aq 01 swuiy Jo ANjiqibid ayj 18A09 Jey} a2e(d ul saoijoed pue sajni

aAey 0} paJinbal 8q [|IM pue sJo}ipne pue swuiy Iipne JalsiBal |m (se1poq [euoissajoid Aouejunoooe) saipoq Alosialadns pasiubodal .

{s10lipne [Buidlxe umo Jiayl Buisooyo 1oy saljijigisuodsal aye] ||im S,Aloyiny [Bo0T .
{suonouny Jisyl 1no Aued

0} aJe siojpne ydiym ul Aem ayl Ino 18s yoiym ‘eduepinb pue aoj1oe.d JIpne Jo Sepod 8y} 40} 8|qisuodsal aq ||Im 80140 HPNY [euolleN 8y} .
‘papuslxa aJe s}oeJu0d By} |[B 4 02/6 102 Allenusiod 1o ‘21/9102

ul pua sJaiiddns ypne yim S}oBJIUO0D JUSLIND S,UOISSILIWOYD 8y} UBYM LielS 0] anp lpne 21|gnd [B00] 10} YIOMBWEI} MBU B 8 [[IM 8J8Y}

‘suonesiueblo mau 0} Sall|IqISUodsal UOISSILLWOD JPNY [enpisal Jajsuel) 0] ybnolayl payiom Buleq aie sjuswebuene .

{G10Z YOJBN L€ UO UOISSILWIWOD UPNY 8yl JO 8INSO|O 8y} IO} UOISIA0ID S8)eW 10y 8yl

:swuiod Aoy

v 102 Alenuep 0g uo Juassy [eA0Y paAIadal 10y AlljIgelunoody pue lipny [e207 8y
10V AM|jIgelUN029y pue Jpny |ed0T

asuepinb Juswuianob [eso7

795012 da1s ouO sT0ITPNE JIY} SUISOOYD S[IOUNO))



Page 236

dTIMN uouioyL uely ¥10¢ ©

sue|d pasijeul} JO UOISSILINS 10} dUIIPESP 102
udy $ e yum ‘Arenuge4 1 Aq swes) ease puelbug SHN 01 paliwgns pue pieog Bulag |9 pue yijeaH Aloinjels yoes Aq 30 paubis
AjrewJoy aq 1snw sue|d Jyesp — ads aq |Im siabpng psjood moy 1Ino Buipies aoe(d ul 8q 1snw sueld a4ed [e100S pue yljeay uiol pasijeul} -«
‘seale [B00| pajeubisep Jisy} ul S82IAISS 8Jed [B100S pue yljeay jo Alealap ayl Moddns 0] Juswabuele

186pnq psjood g|buls e ybnoayl 81eJ0qe||09 0} Paau |[IM SISNI| SHN PUB SHDD ‘S82IAISS [BI00S }NPY YUM SOIIoYINY [B00T]
‘s19b6pnq

(599) dnoun Buluoissiwwos [eaiulj) Bunsixe jo 891s doy e ybnouyl Ajebie| ‘91/G10g Wol) a|gejieAe aq |[im Buipuny 1o} UOI||Iq 8'EF -

sanss| Ao

'9002 19V SHN 98Ul Jo G/ uonoas Aq pauuidiapun Ajjew.oy are sjuswabuele 106png psajood ‘siuswabuee 1abpnq
pajood a|6uls [e20] ybnouy}l 81ed [e100S pue yljeay pajelbaiul ul uolew.IOjSuBI] B 8INSud 0} SI wie A8y 8y "(puny uonewlojsued) uoljelbajul
ay} AlJawo}) pun4 aJen Janag ayl Jo uonelusws|dwi aAiloadsoid ayl padunouue JUsWUIBA0L) 8y] punoy bBuipuads €102 aunp 8yl u|

pung aie) ianeg

aouepinb Juswuianob |20

dy g 4q 9ov1d UT 9q 03 SUE[J 93)) [PID0S PUE YI[EIH IVIO[



Page 237

dTIMN uouioyL uely ¥10¢ ©

‘uonesiuebio-ai Jopim pue sdiysisuyed oibajel)s
‘s92IAIBS paJteys ybnouyl Aousiole Buiroidwi pue ‘awodul anudAal JO S824n0s [euollippe Buijelsualb uo snooj Ssojjuslel B Sapnjoul Siy |
‘o|qeulelsns Ajeroueuly bulurews. jo abus|jeyd ayl o1 Buipuodsal ul salloyine [eoo| 40} sanuoud Aay ay) Jo awos 1sebbns osje uodal InQ

"S90IAJIBS J0 abuel B JaAldp 0] saljjiqisuodsal Alojniels
198w 0} 9|qe Buiaq Jebuo| ou saioyINe [Bo0| Sk yons soleusds juiod Buiddiy, jenusiod Jo saLies e salijuspl OS|e ]| "|0JIU0D [elouBUIly pue
aoueuwlanob [eroueuly ‘Buiuued [eioueul) oibalel]s ‘@ourwload [BlIOUBULY JO SI0JBDIPUl A8 - SBaJe IN0J Ul Salllloyine [Bo0| sajel Lodal InQ

"/ 1/9102 10 91/G 102 Ul luiod Buiddiy jJo wio) swos ajedionue saijluoyine [e20] 0 1udd Jad aulu AJuaAas Jeyl smoys uodal
SIY1 ‘10108S ay1 Jo 1usd Jad A110) JO MBIABI INO UO pasey "YSl [Bal B SI ain|ie} [elouBUl} PUB 91Ndk SawW029q ainssaid ay] uaym ‘quiod Buiddi
Buiyoeas Bunoipaid ase salllIoyINe awos ‘J9ABMOH “suollonpad 186png 10128s 21jgnd Jo sebus|jeyd syl 1aw Jej 0S dABY SallLIoYINe [B207]

"aInny
[BIDUBUI} S|QRUIBISNS J18Y) 8Insus 0} 8%e(d ul sjuswabuelse sy} aAey SaljLIOyINe [Bo0] ysBug Jaylaym Sassasse Yyolym Salias [enuue ue
ul pAy} oy st Jpd-Tulod-BuUIddn-g 1 0z-90Ual[ISod-eldueuld-D1/Jpd_UONEdIqNd/[eqo[H /N 09 UOIUIOYI-TUBIb mmm,//-dny 1odas siy |

Jua.ind ayj buibuajjeys ¢iuiod 6uiddn 9102

uojuioy] juein

uoo0s 1utoJ durddr T, aredonue sounon) Jo o/,6/.



Page 238

ot

dTIMN uouioyL uely ¥10¢ ©

")SU JO s}oadse SIapISuoD)
solfole.ls uoieaouul Juswajdwi pue suondo J1ayl dojaasp Asyl Se saljlioyine Jaylo 1SISSE 0] SWIy  «
Saljlloylne [B00| 0} 8|ge|ieAR S|apow AISAIBP SAIlRUIBYE UIBW BY] SBUIINO -«

:pue sjualjo AlLIoYINe [BOO| YIIM MIOM pue ASAINS JUBID J81iq B UO Paseq si Lodal siy|

"1S00 paonpal e sadIAIas Ajljenb Jeneq uoIssIWwWOoD pue jusl|isal

Ajleroueuly urewad o1 aJe Aayy i ‘BuiieAouul 8NUIUOD SBIIIOYINE [BD0] 1By} Jueliodwi SI } ‘enuniuod 0} 18s Alliaisne [eioueuly YUAA “Sa1lud
10108s 21jgnd-uou pue 10108s 21ignd mau Buidojaasp se ||om se ‘suoiesiueblio 1010as a1eald pue saipoq d1ignd Jayio yum sdiysiaured
pue S10BJ1U0D Bulpn|oul SieaA 1uadal Ul Sasn 1l S|opowW AJBAIBp SAIBUIS)E JO Jaquinu pue AlalieA ayl pasealoul Sey Juswulanob (8007

‘salbalells

uoljeaouul Juswajdwi pue suoido J1ay} dojaasp Aay] Se S1aylo 1SISSe 0] SWIe }| “SIUdIjO JusWwuldaA0b [BO0] Ylim 3Iom pue

Kaains 1ua1j0 U828l INO U0 paskeq aJe asay | uawuianob [Bo0| 0} 8|ge|ieA. Sjapow AISAIIBp SAIlBUIBYE UlBW 8y} S8SSNOSIP /IUSWUISA0D
-|e20]-ul-S|9pow-AISAl|ap-aAieUIB}[E-obUd|[Byd-ayl-0}-buipuodsay/y | 0g/SUONedI|gNd/Us/>N 03" UOIUIOYI-JUBID MMM//-01Y :Jodal Siy |

JuswiuIdnob [e20] ul sjapow AIBAII9p aAlBUIBYY

uojuioy] juein

SO} JO ISOW 9} SUTEW NOA 978 — S[OPOIA] ATIAT[Q(] QARBUINY



Page 239

H

dTIMN uouioyL uely ¥10¢ ©

'sieak maj 1xau 8y} Jano sabus|ieyd pue saluienaoun
Jueonubis Juasaid sjuswAied 108.41p 01 SAOW By} PUE 1IPaJD [BSISAIUN JO uoleluswa|dwi 8y} SB Yons ‘Swiodl Jayuny ‘peaye Buoo]
"SWI0JaJ 8y}l 0] pa)ul| 8q Aew YdIym ‘Syueq poo} uo aduel|al
pue Ssaussajowoy ‘siealle [elual Buisu Buipnjoul ‘BuiBiaws ase subis BulAiiom swog “}8} usaq 194 jou sey Joeduwl N} 8y} 8sneoaq aq
Aew sy "AjoAnjosyje pabeuew usaq sey siauled pue salioyine [eoo| Aq paousaiiadxs wiojal Jo 1oedwi 8yl eyl SI Uolledlpul 8yl ‘Je} 0S .
‘wJoyal 4oy bulredaud
ul way} o1 uado suondo ayj |je uojdxa Ajnj Jou pip suoijesiueblo Jo Aluoulw v “swJiojal oyoads Juswa|dwi 0] swalsAs pue sjuswabuele
aoueulanob ajendoidde aoe|d ul Buind pue siapjoyayels yum Buibebus ul aAijoe Aiaa usaq aAey suolesiuebio ‘eijauab u|

:Jey} punoj o

‘pue|Bug ul suoneIdosse Buisnoy pue sailioyine [ea0] Bulkaains pue s10109s Buisnoy
pue 1uswuJiaAob [Bo0| 8yl SSOIOB SuolesSIanuod Jejnbal Jno Buipnjoul ‘sa2inos Jo AlJaLieA B woJ) uonew.lojul jayiabol pajind aney ap\

"a4n]ny Jeau ay} ul suonesiuebio asay] Buioe) sabus|eyo ojul Jybisul AJes Bulpinolgd

"wJojal Jo 1oedwl syl pue sainseaw asay] Jo uoleluawa|dwi syl Buimo||0) SSBUBAINDS}S JO suoledlpul AlJes ayl uo Buioday .
's$9558204d mau pue s1o9(oid ‘ABajedis jo swua) ul 8bud|ieyd siyl 10aw 0} Bulop usaq aey suoljesiuehlio

1eym pue wlojal aiejjam o} prebas ul suoleloosse Buisnoy pue jJuswuidAob [eoo] Buioey Ajjuaiino sebusjieyd ayl buipueisiepun

:SOAJOAUI SIY ] "WJO0JD) 8lejjom Jo S}oadse [eusbeuew pue [eloueul

9} U0 S8SND0} /101085-01|qNd/SadIAI8S/Ud AN 00" UOIUIOYI-JUBID MMM//Zd1Y ‘1odal Jno o0s ‘peoiq si 91do} syl jo 8doas [enualod ay |

"wii0jaJ aseyom Jo 1oeduwi ay) jo suoissaiduwi 1sii :suauaq ayl buideay

uojuioy] juein

dJeJ OS 1T JO YUTY) NOA JBYyM — SWIOJOT ITLIIA\



Page 240

al dT1)N uoloyL Wein ¥10z ©

"a10u Juswdinba pue jue|d ‘Auadoid ay) ul Ajo1esedas pPaso|oSIp 10U S| 19SSE JO SSB|0 8yl

Jeak awes ayj Ul panjeA ||e Jou aJe SSe|d 8yl UIYlIM S}OSSE || «

:SSB[O 19SSE |BldjewW B 1o}

‘@laym aoueuIanob yim pabieyd asoyl 0} Jodas 0] siolpne 108dxe PINOMm am ‘JSASMOH “dN[eA Jiej 8yl Wol) Ajjeuslew Jayip 10U S80p anjeA
BuiA11eo ay] 18yl luswalinbai ayl 0] A1epuodas aJe SuoIleIapISU0D 89Sy | "SIUBWALRIS [eloukeUl) 8yl ul Ajo1esedas pasojdsip g OS[e pjnoys
sasodind uolnen|ea 10} S8SSe[0 Sk pauljep uaag aAeY 1BY] S18SSe Jaylaym pue poliad LIoYS B S| JBYyM U0 81egap Yyonw usaq sey aay |

‘a)ep 01 dn 1day aJe suolnenjeaal ayl papinocid
pue pouad Loys B ulylm pala|dwod Si S}9SSe Jo SSe|0 8y Jo uolieneaal papinoid siseq Buljjos B uo panjeaal aq Aew S}oSSe JO SSBjO B
Sa]ep JUSJBYIP 1B SB San|eA pue S1S0J JO aJNiXIW B aJe Jey] SJUSWaIE]S [elouBUl) 8y} Ul sjunowe Jo Buijodal
Byl pue S18SSE JO uollen|eAal 9AI}09]8S PIOAE 0} Alsnoaue)nwis panjeAal aq o} aJe Juawdinba pue jue|d ‘Aladoud Jo SSe|D B UIyIM SWa)l
:S]9SSE J0 SasSe|0 Buinjea 1o} sjuswalinbal a8y} ul A|@sojo aiow 9| Sy| Ul Buipiom a8y} SMO||0} 0S|e 8p0D) 8y |

"SJUNOJOE By} JO JOPEAI B JO MAIA BY) 9oUSN|jUl PINOM BNSSI UB JBYIOYM - 8SUSS 1SOPIM SH Ul All[eliajew JO UOIJBIapISUOD 8y}

S1s09 Buip|ing pue s821id 18)Jew uo uoiew.Ioul [eJjauab .

panjeA AjJuadal uaaq jou sey leyl Auadoud Jo uoienjea ayl o} ueaw ybiw SIy} 1eym pue suoljen|eAal Juadal Jo S)nsal ayl .

102 yoJe L€ 1e oljojuod Auadoud s Alioyine ayj JO UOIIPUOD BY)

:JO UOIIBIBPISUOD apnjoul Iybiw yoiym sisAjeue xa|dwod e aq 0}

Ko)1] I SIUL 102 Y2JB\ | € UO 1IN0 palIed uoien|ea |ny e Aq uaalb 8q pjnom eyl Junowe ay} woJj Juaayip Ajjesiew Jou si 19ays aduefeq
S} Ul SJ9SSE JO anjeA ay} eyl J|as Ajsiies 0] paau |im Allloyine 20| e eyl sueaw Siy] ,'pouad Buiodal ay) Jo pus ayj 1e anjeA Jiey

ay} Buisn paulwlalep g pinom Yyoiym Jeyl wodj Ajjeusiew Jajip 1ou saop junowe BulAlied ay) eyl ainsus o} Jejnbal Ajjusioyns, aq isnw
suonenjeaal 1eyl Ajuoldxa saleis mou pue Juswdinba pue ueld ‘Aledoid Buinea 1oy sjuswalinbal ay) pailied sey apoD $1/£102 dYL

suonenjea yusawdinba pue jue|d ‘Aliadold

sanssi Jipne pue Buiunoody

90UEPING SUNUNOIIE JO UOTEBIIJIIE[D — S19SSE JNOA SUIN[BAdY



Page 241

€l

dTIMN uouioyL uely ¥10¢ ©

‘panssi sI uoiuido Jpne 8y} 810489 Ajd1eIpawwl d|ge|leAR UOIBWIO)UI 1S81B| 8Yl YIIM SlewW1}Sd 8y} JISIAS) O}
apew aq Jouued ajewisa a|geljal e eyl lJuawabpnl sisy) pyoddns 03 ajeuoliel e apinoid 0] -
SpEeW 98 JoUUBD B1BWIISS 9|gel|a) B a4aym Aljigel| Jusbuiluod e asojosIp 0} -
apew 8q UBD SjeWI1Sa d|geljal B a1aym uoisiroid e asiubooal 0] -
(sassoauisng Jolew 0} uolelal ul ‘ojdwexa J0}) spew aq Ued dlewiso a|gel|al B YyoIym 0] JUdIXa 8y} JopISuod o} -
:9peW usaq 10u aAey sjeadde aiaym .
Anualsisuod Abojopoylaw siyl Aidde o1 pue uoisinoid e Buitewilse 1o) ABojopoylaw B auiwidlap 0] ‘epew usaq aney sjeadde aiaym .
paau Asy} uonew.oul 8y} 0} SS809€ dAeY Adyl 1Byl 8ins ayew 0] YOA 98Ul YIM YIOM O} .
:S9l1lI0yINe |B00] 108dXd pINOM S\

‘leadde ue epew 184 jou Inq pabieydlono usaqg aney Aew SoSSaUISNQ SWOS

VOA 8y Agq way} o}
papiAnoid uolewIOUl 8y} UO JuBljal 848 SallioyIne [Bo0] 0S pue (YOA) Aouaby 80140 uonenjep ayl Aq pabeuew si sseooud sjeadde ay)

:Buibua|eyo
s| pabieyosano usaq sey Jeyl Junowe |B}0] 8y} 40} 81ewilss a|geljal e Bunjew eyl ueaw yoiym sainoip [eanoeid ale aiay] ‘J9ASMOH

‘102 YoJe\ L€ 01 dn pabireyoisno usaq aAeY S8SSaUISN( Jey] JUNOWE 8y} JO 8lewise

1s9Q 118y} 10} uoisinoid e asiubooal ‘a10jaiay) ‘pinoys Aay | "sajel ssauisnq jsuiebe sjeadde |njsseons J0) 8|qel| 848 SaIlIoYINe [Bo07
suoisinoud sjeadde ajel ssauisng

sanssi Jipne pue Buunoosoy

sfeadde o3er ssoursnq jo 1oedwr oy Sunewmsy



Page 242

143

dTIMN uouioyL uely ¥10¢ ©

‘palelsal
8q 0} sainbly aAiresedw o9 10adxd PINOM am ‘i 1L/€10Z Ul ©21AI8S SIY} 0} Bulje|as SJUNOWE [elIslew 84aM 818y} §| "S82IAISS JO 1S0D UIYIM
S31D 9y1 Jo 89} 8y} Uo pajuasald aq 0] aul| 821AI8S MBU SIY} 108dxa 9\ "SHN @yl ul Bulinjoniisas Buimojo} saiioyine [eoo| uodn paoe|d
saljIqisuodsal mau 108|481 0} padNPOJIUI UdSQ SeY SIY| ".yleay 21|gnd, J0} dul| 8IIAISS JO 1S0O MBU B SBONPOJIUI {7 1/€102 10} JODYHOS

aul| yyeay a1jqnd mau — JOOHAS 0} sabueyd

sanss| jipne pue Buiunoosody

ey o1qnd Jo s1s00 oyp Sungodoy



Page 243

Sl dTIMN uouioyL uely ¥10¢ ©

'sieah 9a4y] ay] Jono peaids si o|jqeled
unowe ay} eyl ‘Aisnonbiqueun ‘moys 0} 81ed1jilia0 sjuswisnlpe pue sajel ayl 10adxa pjnom am ‘poliad Jeak-aa.yl e J8A0 puny [esausab
ay1 o1 Junowe sy} abeyd o1 sesodoud pue Jeah o|buis e ul punj uoisuad ay] 0} JuswAed e ayew 0] sealbe Alioyine [eoo| e Ji ‘a|dwexas 104

"Jeah |eloueul} yoes 1o} ajgeded ale sjunowe usym ino Buillas a1eoiiad sjuswisnipe pue sajes sy ul Buipiom ayl .

apeuw aq 0} aJe sjuswAied asay) usym 0} se AjIoyine [B20] a8yl pue Aienjoe ay) usamiaq Juswoalbe ayl .

punj uoisuad ay} ojul Ajioyine [e20] 8yl Aq o|qeAed a.e jey) sjunowe ayj uo uoluido s,Aienjoe ayl .

:JO UOI1BJISPISUOD BpN|dUl 0} SIY} Joadxa pjnom apA “puny [esauab ayl 0} sjgqesbieyd aJe Jey} sjunowe ayl auiw.alap o} (Ajleusalxa

1o Ajjeulaiul Jayua) aaiape [ebs| uiejqo o1 wayl 10adxa pjnom am ‘sjuswAed Ales Bunjew Bulispisuod ale sailoyine [Boo| alaym

“Jeak eyl Jo} s|gqeled sjunowe ay} ale Jeah [eioueuly B ul puny [esausab syl 0] pabieyd sjunowe ayj Jeyl palisiies aq isnw saillioyine [eooT

*J8]e| |un puny [eJauab sy} Buibieyd 10u Ing JUNOJSIp B

1o} abueyoxas ul AjJes suonnquiuoo puny uoisuad BulAed Buuspisuod ale salllloyine [B20] SWOS "91ed1jI1a0 sjuswisnlpe pue sajel s Aienjoe
By} Ul 1IN0 18s sk JeaA |eroueuly 1ey) Joj ajgehed si eyl Junowe ay} SI Jeak jeioueuly e ul puny [eiauab sy o) pabieyd aq 0} Junowe ay |
sonss| Buioueul

‘'saAljesedw oo pajelsal Buipnioul ‘sjuswalels |eloueul) 8y} aJedald 0] pesu Asy) uoljeuoul
3yl yum sanuoyine [eoo] buipinoid 8q pinoys sauenioy “palinbal jou si 18ays adueeq paiyl e ‘palelsal 8q 01 S3|0D dyi 1oadxe pjnom
M 1S|IUm Jey] sueaw siy| “(soueeq aniasal uoisuad pue Ayjigel uoisuad 1au ay}) swall 18ays aduejeq 0} sabueyd 10adxs Jou op S\

"S9INSO|OSIP Pa|Ielap ai0W
(S319) Wwawale)s ainypuadxe pue awodul dAISuaya.dwod sy} ul pabieyo SJunowe Jo uoljedo|eal e .

:0Je 99s 0} 10adxe am sabueyo urew ay |

‘Alenioadsoual Aidde im pue Aoijod Buiunodoe ul ebueyo e st siy] (SdH 1) swayos uoisuad juswulanob [eoo| ay) wouy Buisie asoy}

Se yons saljjigel| uoisuad Jiysuaq pauliep 1o} sjuswalinbal Buiunoooe ayl sebueyd pue 6} SY| 01 SJuBWPUSWE SMOJ||0} 8Pp0D) ¥ 1/€ 102 dUL
sanss| Buijunoooy

S)S09 awayas uoisuad Juswuianob [eooj ay) Buioueuly pue 10} Bunpunoddy

sanss| jipne pue Buiunoosody

suorsuad 10J SuUnuNoddY



Page 244

91 dTIMN uouioyL uely ¥10¢ ©

‘'G1L0Z |Udy | nun pajuswsa|dwi aq 0} pajoadxa Jou aJe sjuswabuelse aoueusanob ul sebueyd

Byl pue asay] 40} pie| usaq 184 10u Ay ST 8yi 4o} suolenbal ybnoyje sjuswabuelie adueulanob ay) 0] sabueyd saliinbal os|e 10y ay |
‘suoisuad

aininy jo JuswAed 1081100 By} 84NSUS 0] SISQWIBW [|B 10} SJUN0JJk uoisuad [enpiAlpul Bulurelurew punoJte sassad0id pajie}ap aiow yonw se
[1om se swalsAs JuswAed/uonelsiuiwpe uoisuad 0} palinbas osje aJe sebueyd uolppe u| “a|geloipald ssa| pue spiemio} Bulob xadwod aiow
aJe suolle|n9[ed ay} aouIs spJemio} Bulob suonnguluod Jo ssauala|dwod pue Aoeindoe sy} JOA0 8oUBINSSE Ulelqo [|IM A8yl moy Jepisuod pue
siafojdwa yum a1eoiunwiwod 01 saioyine Bulislsiuiwpe 1o} suoieodlidwi jJusnbasuod sey siy| "Aj19841090 palenojes ale suolinguluoo uoisuad
ainsua 0] swalsAs |joiAed Jiay) 01 sebueyo pasinbal Bulonpoliul SO 8yl Ul paAjoAul siekojdwe (e 4o} suonedldwi aAey sebueyd anoqge ay |

‘palieme [|11s aJe suolenbal Jjeylny) 10z [dy | o sieak g} uiyum Bunnal sidoad Joj uoijosjoud jeuoilisuel) .
sBuipueq pue sajel uoinquiuoo aakojdws ul sebueyd .

siseq Jejnbal e uo sbBuipueq alel uoiNgLIUOD
usamiaq Buinow Bupjiom jo susalied Jeinbalil yim 1els awos 0] pes| pjnod yoiym Asejes [enjoe uo paseq Suoiinguiuod Jo UOIBNJED .
1jouaq SS9| %0G 919981 0] %0G AQ SUOIINGLIUOD JIBY} 8oNpal 0} 8S00YD UBD siaquiaw Agasaym uondo 0G/0G B JO UoIoNPoJul
awayos abelone Joaied B 0] awayos Alejes |eul) e wodj abueyo e .
:Buipnjoul sebueyo Jo Jaquinu B 8onNpoJul 9S8y |

(G102 Mdy | wouy 1oedwl AjUo |IIM pue pre| usaq

184 10U aAeY puejl0dS Ul sabueyd ay} 4o} suoienbal ay]) 10z |Udy 1S} Wwouj SBjeAA PuUe pue|bug ul Sd97 Yl 0} sabueyd 8onpoJjul 0] pie|
usaq aAey suolenbal Jusnbasuoy ‘pue|l0os B SeeA\ ‘Pueibug Ul paysiigeise aq 0} sewayos uoisuad 821A18s O1|gnd mau 1o} uoISIn0Id Seyew
oY 8yl “(JoV Y1) €102 10V suoisudd d21A8S dljgnd 8y} Buiwodaq ‘g0z dy Ul Juassy [eAoy paal@dal ||ig suoisuad 821A18S dliqnd 8y L

3aWaYIS UOISUdd JUSWUIDAO0Y) [e207 3y} 0} sabuey)

sanssi Jipne pue Bununosoy

QwAYPSs Torsuad $9071A39s o1]qnd 93 03 SIFUEY))



Page 245

)N 09 uojuioy}-juelh

'SJUaI[o 0} SBOINIBS

apinoid Jou S80p [BUOHBUISIU UOJUIOY ] JUBIL) “JBYJOUE BUO JO
1108 10 S8OIAIBS BU} 0} 8|qIsuodsal Jou ale YOIym ‘swily Jaquisw
Aq Apuspuadepur pasaniep ase saoiMeS "diysiauped apimplom

B JOU 8J& SWI} JaquawW 8y} pue [BUOIBUIBIU| UOJUIOY] JUBIS)
*$8JinbaJ 1X8JU00 8U) SB ‘SWllj JaqUIaW 80w IO 8UO O} Jajal pue
ojelado swuly Jaguuaw UOJUIOY ] JUBIS 8U} YIYMm Japun pueiq sy} o}
8Je ,UOJUIOY] JUBID), O} SBOUBISRY “(JEUOIBUIBIU| UOJUIOY] JUBID)
PIT [eUONBUISIU| UOJUIOY ] JUBIL) JO W JaGUIBW B S| UOUIOY ] JuelD)

diysseured Ayjge
polwl| B ‘477 MN UOJUIOY JUBJS) SUBSW UOJUIOY] JUEID),
"paNIasal SIUBU I "d T YN UoIoy ] JuBID) 7102 @

uojuloy | Juelc) o



Page 246

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 247 Agenda ltem 18
X

=

Haringey
Report for: Corporate Committee | ltem
number
Title: Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014
Report authorised

e

Kevin Bartle — Assistant Director — Finance (CFQO)

Neville Murton — Head of Finance (Budgets,
Lead Officer: Accounting and Systems)
neville.murton@haringey.gov.uk

020 8489 3176

Ward(s) affected: Report for Key/Non Key Decision:
All Non-key
1 Describe the issue under consideration

1.1 This report forms a briefing note for members following the enactment
of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 (The Act). The Act
received Royal Assent on the 30 January 2014.

2 Cabinet Member Introduction

2.1 Not applicable

3 Recommendations

3.1 Corporate Committee members are asked to note this report.
4 Executive Summary

4.1  The Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 (The Act) introduces a
number of measures all aimed at improving the accountability and
democracy of councils; the provisions are summarised below with the
main issues being considered in more detail within this report.

411 On 13 August 2010 the government announced its intention
to abolish the Audit Commission and put in place new
decentralised arrangements for the audit of local public
bodies. The Act delivers the government’s commitment to
close the Audit Commission and transfer its remaining
functions.

4.1.2 The Act also protects electors rights to inspect Local
Authorities’ accounts and allows them to say if they think that
there are matters that the auditor should examine.



Page 248

X

=

Haringey
41.3 Proposals are also included to increase local accountability
by ensuring compliance with existing rules to protect the
independent free press from unfair competition from Local
Authority newspapers.

414 The Act also amends the Local Government Finance Act
1992 so that the principles underpinning the need for Local
Authorities to undertake a binding referendum following
‘excessive’ council tax increases takes account of levy
increases.

4.1.5 Measures introduced through earlier regulations regarding
access to meeting and documents have also been extended
through the Act to include Full Council meetings and other
local government bodies. This includes the right for the
public to film, blog and tweet at public meetings.

5 Abolition of the Audit Commission and other consequent
considerations

5.1 It is expected that the Audit Commission will close on 31 March 2015;
in place of the commission there will be a new framework for local
public audit which will commence once the existing audit commission
contracts with audit suppliers ends in 2016/17 (or potentially in 2019/20
if all the contracts are extended).

5.2 The framework thereafter allows for local bodies to appoint their own
independent external auditors. Auditors are to be appointed before the
31 December of the year preceding the year of account and
appointments can be made for more than a single year but a new
appointment must be made at least every five years. For Haringey the
appointment must be made by the Full Council and cannot be
delegated, although the views of an authority’s ‘auditor panel’ must be
sought and taken into account.

5.3 The Act sets out the requirements for, and the duties of, an Auditor
Panel. The Council will have to have an auditor panel although a
decision on the precise arrangements can be considered at a later
date; the provisions allow for panels being created by each authority or
jointly by a number of authorities. The majority of members of an
auditor panel must be independent and the chair of the auditor panel
must also be independent (a definition of independence is included in
Schedule 4 Para 2 sub section 2 of the Act) and is attached as
Appendix 1.

5.4 The scope of audits will remain largely similar with guidance being
developed by the Comptroller and Auditor General of the National Audit
Office and auditors being required to have regard to such guidance.

5.5 The publication of Public Interest Reports will also continue with local
bodies being required to publish both any public interest reports and
their response. In addition the existing rights of electors to inspect and



Page 249

X

=

Haringey
raise concerns on the accounts of public bodies with the external
auditor are maintained.

5.6

5.7

5.8

5.9

As is currently the case auditors are required to be satisfied that the
statement of accounts and accounting records comply with the relevant
enactments; that proper practices have been observed in the
compilation of the statement of accounts and that they present a true
and fair view and that proper arrangements have been made to secure
economy, efficiency and effectiveness (vfm) in the use of resources.

The current provisions regarding the right of electors to inspect the
accounts and raise objections with the auditor that items of expenditure
are unlawful or about which the auditor could make a public interest
report are maintained. Auditors must decide whether to consider the
objection and if so whether to make a public interest report or a
declaration of unlawful expenditure. The auditor has discretion not to
consider the objection if they consider it to be vexatious, frivolous,
repeats a previous objection or where the cost of the auditor’s
investigation would be disproportionate to the amount to which the
objection relates.

The role of the audit commission relating to authorities compliance with
its best value duties passes to the Secretary of State to appoint a
person to carry out such inspections.

Previously the regulations governing binding referenda require that,
when considering whether an authority has sets a Council Tax at an
excessive level (above a limit set by the government), the change in
any levies and precepts are excluded. The Act now requires that levies
are included (although precepts remain excluded as precepting
authorities are subject to their own referendum legislation). In practice
this means that the relevant basic amount for the purpose of
considering whether a Council Tax increase is excessive is taken to
mean the increase in an authority’s Band D Council Tax level.

Comments of the Chief Financial Officer and Financial
Implications

This report is for information and as such there are no direct financial
implications arising from it; any consequent effects will be included in
future reports.

Head of Legal Services comments

The Monitoring Officer has been consulted and has no additional
comments to make.

Policy Implication
None.



Page 250

X

=

Haringey
9 Use of Appendices

Appendix 1 — Local Audit and Accountability Act extract
(Independence of Auditor Panels)

10 Local Government Act, 2000 (Section 97)
Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014

All the above papers are available for inspection through Neville
Murton Head of Finance (Budgets, Accounting and Systems) ext. 3176.



Page 251

X

4

//r

Haringey

Appendix 1.
Constitution of an Auditor Panel — Independence.

(2) A member of a relevant authority’s auditor panel, other than a health service
body’s auditor panel, is “independent” at any given time if—
(a) the panel member has not been a member or officer of the authority within
the period of 5 years ending with that time,
(b) the panel member has not been an officer or employee of an entity
connected with the authority within that period, and
(c) the panel member is not at that time a relative or close friend of a member
or officer of the authority or an officer or employee of an entity connected with
the authority.



Page 252

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 253 Agenda ltem 19

Haringey
Report for: Corporate Committee | Item
20 March 2014 number
Title: Delegated Decisions /Significant Actions/ Urgent
Actions
Report authorised Assistant Director of Corporate Governance and
by : Monitoring Officer
v
Lead Officer: Helen Chapman (Tel. 020 8489 2615)
Ward(s) affected: Report for Key/Non Key Decision:
Not applicable For information

1. Describe the issue under consideration

To inform the Corporate Committee of Non Executive delegated
decisions and significant actions taken by Directors.

To further advise of any urgent actions taken by Directors in consultation
with the Chair of the Corporate Committee since the previous meeting.

The report details by number and type decisions taken by Directors
under delegated powers. Significant actions (decisions involving
expenditure of more than £100,000) taken during the same period are
also detailed.

2. Cabinet Member Introduction
Not applicable

3. Recommendations

That the report be noted.

Page 1 of 3



Page 254

Haringey

4. Other options considered
Not applicable
5. Background information

To inform the Corporate Committee of non executive delegated
decisions and significant actions taken by Directors

The report details by number and type decisions taken by Directors
under delegated powers. Significant actions) decisions involving
expenditure of more than £100,000) taken during the same period are
also detailed.
In keeping with usual practices and working procedures used for
Cabinet, the attached report details urgent actions taken by Directors in
consultation with Corporate Committee Chair since last reported. Part
three, Section E, under the scheme of delegation paragraph 4.03, of the
Council Constitution provides guidance on the action that needs to be
taken on any urgent matter between meetings of the Cabinet, or any
committee or Sub Committee of the Cabinet or the Council.

6. Comments of the Chief Financial Officer and financial Implications
Where appropriate these are contained in the individual delegations.

7. Assistant Director of Corporate Governance comments and legal
implications

Where appropriate these are contained in the individual delegations.
8. Equalities and Community Cohesion Comments

Where appropriate these are contained in the individual delegations.
9. Policy Implications

Where appropriate these are contained in the individuai delegations.
10.Use of Appendices

The appendices to the report set out by number and type decisions

taken by Directors under delegated powers. Significant actions

(Decisions involving expenditure of more than £100,000) taken during the
same period are also detailed.

Page 2 of 3



Page 255

11.Local Govérnment (Access to Information) Act 1985

Background Papers

The following'background papers were used in the preparation of this
report;

Delegated Decisions and Significant Action Forms
Those marked with ¢ contain exempt information and are not available
for public inspection.

The background papers are located at River Park House, 225 High
Road, Wood Green, London N22 8HQ.

Page 3 of 3



Page 256

vL0C yosel £ :ejeg

seo1{Ss [8100S NPy 4o Joloauq - Bunyg Buoyy uny

JIUUM\(\S :Aq pasuoyine uolssigng

89®ld 81D L0'6 OSO/ L0°0LOSD /208 OSD 0 Lcovi

J3qUNN
uonoy pajebajag
B4
k>
‘C
AN
‘|t
Jopaug
uosjsaq onu | Aq panocidde ejeg OoN

‘Jdwex3 are sieded punoiboeq sejousp ¢
¥10¢ Arenuged — uonoy parebeje - suoisjoep juesyiubis

S3JIAHIS TVIOO0S 1INAY 40 HOLIIHIA




Page 257

v1L02 Arenugeg Yig— :ejeq

Sedinsagrieloos HNPY jo Jopauq - Bunyqg Buoy) ungy

:Aq pasuoyine uoissiugng
ik

SjOR.UOJ SnoLieA 103083 Arejunjop — ased [eio0s ynpy ¢0'0L OSO ¥1°10°20

JequinN
uonoy pajebajaq
‘b
penoiddy JuswieBeuBN }IOM [E10S - SB0IAIeS ANUNWWOD puB Ynpy ‘Ruoyiny pajebajag ri'10'Le
£
paAoiddy diysisuped Ayqesig bujuses — sasineg Awunwwod pue ynpy :Auoyiny pajebajeg vL'Love
2
panoiddy I-=Homewesy :AQuoyiny pajebsjag PLL0ve
‘L
sop8u1q
uojsioeg eny | Aq panosdds sjeq oN

‘Jdwex3y ase siaded punoibyoeq sajousp ¢
¥ 102 Arenuep — uonoy pajebsjaq - suoisioap uesiubig

S3VIAHIS TVIO0S LINAV 40 HOLI3HIa



Page 258

(Bunoy) eomeg suaipiyy “openg
waypay esr

QIR 840

L 000853 pea] dioH Ale3 pue sies A Ajes wisu L1001
Rquinn L
uooy pajebajaqg
— snuep suaipyy | ) _
SPISPOOM, :pels 05 ueyy
< w0 penoiddy $s8} Buposye  Buunpnasey | vioezoe| vy |
esuodsey 1snd yeis gg ueyy
panoiddy $soj Bupdaye busmpdnisay __¥I02'108 | g
CLITVETS
Buipuayo yinoA :pyeis 0g uey
paaoiddy ss9) Bupoeye Buunionnsey | v102'1pe | T
ediiag | N T
. Suipusyo yinoa :yers og uey
_ =g poao.ddy ssaj Bunoayje Suunpnnsey viozive| 1
J0193210
yois198Q =y anL r>n1 v@o&ﬁ.owmcn . oz_

‘Jdwex3 ese siaded punoibyoeq sajouap ¢
102 Arenuer uonoy pejebeje( - SuoisIdap jueaiubig

(ere10190.417 J0 Sweu pesur) 40 d40.103H10



Page 259

uoinoy pajebejaq

panosddy

‘}sod 18210

S8NUBAB) G 8|BS | JO uonesasd
pue yejs Aousbe Aq pjay Ajuasno
sisod ¢ Jo uons|ep — saoInIes
Bunped jo uonesiuebio-ay ¥102 uver .6 e

panoiddy

sseah ¢ 0} g 10} }sod sonuaiddy
Anenp a1y yo swyuioddy | 410z uep sz

"Jdwax3 aue siaded punoibyoeq sajousp ¢
uonpy pajebsleq - suoisiosp ueosyiubig

(s1eJ0190.11q Jo sweu pesul) 40 HOLIIHIG




Page 260

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 261 Agenda ltem 22

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 4 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is exempt



Page 264

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 265

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 4 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is exempt



Page 266

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 267

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 4 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is exempt



Page 270

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 271

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 4 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is exempt



Page 274

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 275 Agenda ltem 23

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is exempt



Page 280

This page is intentionally left blank



	Agenda
	5 Minutes
	6 Final Actuarial Valuation and Funding Strategy Statement
	1.1 DRAFT 2013 Valuation Report
	1.2 Funding Strategy Statement 4 march 2014

	7 Pension Fund Statement of Investment Principles
	2.1 Statement of Investment Principles v2 20feb2014

	8 Pension Fund Quarterly update
	9 Pension Fund: London Collective Investment Vehicle
	10 Pension Fund Investment in Recommended Investment Funds
	11 Treasury Management update
	12 Local Government Pension Scheme - employer discretions
	13 Pay Policy Statement 2014/15
	14 Schools Employee Consultative Group
	15 Annual Internal Audit Plan and Strategy 2014/15
	16 Audit letters to management and those charged with governance - assurance statements to comply with International Auditing Standards
	GT - Fraud Law  Regs 28-02-14 v3 Appx 1
	GT - Fraud  Law Regs - Corporate Committee response 28-02-14 Appx 2

	17 The Audit Plan
	Corporate Committee update March 2014

	18 Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014
	19 Delegated Decisions, Significant Actions, Urgent Actions
	22 Exempt minutes
	Draft exempt Minutes 060314
	Draft exempt Minutes 070314
	Draft minutes - CEJCC 10 October

	23 Pension Fund Investment in Recommended Investment Funds

